
 
 
Anwen Jones Solicitor/Cyfreithiwr 
Interim Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Pennaeth Dros Dro Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA 

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 
www.flintshire.gov.uk 

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR 
Ffôn 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 

www.siryfflint.gov.uk 
 

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English 
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg 

To:   

Councillors: Bernie Attridge and Derek Butler 

 
CS/NG 

 
Date Not Specified 

 
Steve Price 01824 712589 

steve.price@denbighshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
A meeting of the CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AREA OF 

OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY JOINT COMMITTEE will be held in the 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, GUILDHALL, WREXHAM on FRIDAY, 13TH FEBRUARY, 
2015 at 2.00 PM to consider the following items. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Democracy & Governance Manager 
 

A G E N D A 

 
 
1 AGENDA (Pages 3 - 246) 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 
To: Members of the Clwydian 

Range and Dee Valley Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
Joint Committee 

Date: 

 
Friday, 6 February 2015 

 Direct 
Dial: 
 

01824 712589 

 Email: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty Joint Committee, Friday, 13 February 2015 at 2.00 
pm in the Council Chamber, Guildhall, Wrexham. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
INTRODUCTIONS 

 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in the business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 
 

3 MINUTES OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE - 14 NOVEMBER 2014  (Pages 3 - 
8) 

 To receive the minutes of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty Joint Committee held on the 14 November 2014 
(copy attached). 
 

4 MINUTES OF THE INTERIM JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE - 5 

DECEMBER 2014  (Pages 9 - 18) 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 1

Page 3



   

 To receive the minutes of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty Interim Joint Advisory Committee held on the 5 
December 2014 (copy attached). 
 

5 JOINT COMMITTEE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 AND PROPOSED 

BUDGET 2015/16  (Pages 19 - 24) 

 To consider a report (copy attached) on the AONB’s current financial position 
and to approve the budget for 2015/16. 
 

6 DRAFT MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE AONB  (Pages 25 - 118) 

 To consider a report presenting the AONB Draft Management Plan for 
endorsement and approval for public consultation (copy attached). 
 

7 AONB PARTNERSHIP UPDATE   

 To receive a verbal update on progress. 
 

8 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 119 - 120) 

 To receive the revised updated forward work programme (copy attached). 
 

9 FUTURE MEETING DATES   
 

 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
Bernie Attridge 
Derek Butler 
Hugh Evans 

Hugh Jones 
Huw Jones 
Ian Roberts 

  
 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 
 

Page 4



 

CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL 
BEAUTY JOINT COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty Joint Committee held in Conference Room 1a, County Hall, Ruthin on Friday, 14 
November 2014 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillors Derek Butler, Hugh Evans, Hugh Jones, Huw Jones and Ian Roberts 
 
Observers: Councillors Stuart Davies, Martyn Holland, Rhys Hughes, Win Mullen-James 
and Carolyn Thomas 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services (DCC - GW), Clwydian Range and Dee 
Valley AONB Officer (HS), Countryside and Heritage Services Manager (DCC – HR), 
Head of Flintshire Countryside Services (TW), Parks / Countryside and Rights of Way 
Manager (WCBC – MH), Democratic Services Manager (DCC - SP), Senior Countryside 
Officer AONB (DS), Finance and Assurance Manager (DCC - SG), and Senior Finance 
Officer (DCC – PO’H) 
 
Representative from Natural Resources Wales (PM) 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
An apology for absence was submitted by Councillor Bernie Attridge (Flintshire 
County Council). 
  

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No interests were declared. 
  

3 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE  
 
Councillor Hugh Jones (Wrexham County Borough Council) was proposed for 
appointment as chair of the Joint Committee by Councillor Huw Jones. Councillor 
Ian Roberts seconded the proposal. With no other nominations Councillor Hugh 
Jones was appointed as chair. 
  
RESOLVED – that Councillor Hugh Jones be appointed chair of the Joint 
Committee for the 2014 / 15 municipal year. 
  

4 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE  
 
Councillor Huw Jones (Denbighshire County Council) was proposed as vice chair of 
the Joint Committee by Councillor Derek Butler; seconded by Councillor Hugh 
Evans. With no other nominations it was: 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



  
RESOLVED – that Councillor Huw Jones be appointed vice chair of the Joint 
Committee for the 2014 / 15 municipal year. 
  

5 ADOPTION OF THE CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AONB 
CONSTITUTION  
 
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services for Denbighshire County Council 
(HLHRDS) introduced a report (previously circulated) which sought the adoption of 
the appended Joint Committee constitution (standing orders) by the Joint 
Committee. 
  
The HLHRDS advised that the appended constitution had already been approved 
by the legal departments of the 3 authorities and witnessed with the seal of each 
authority. He outlined some of the key parts of the document; that the Joint 
Committee’s membership was drawn from the executives of each authority (i.e. 
Cabinet or Executive Board members) with each authority having two members, the 
provisions for an annual meeting and meetings every 4 months. The meeting 
venues would be rotated between each authority. He reported on quorum and 
voting arrangements shown in the standing orders and confirmed that Denbighshire 
as lead authority for the AONB would prepare, publish and circulate the agenda 
packs for each Joint Committee meeting, though the minutes of meetings would be 
produced by the authority hosting the meeting. 
  
The HLHRDS pointed out an error in the standing orders whereby standing order 
8.6 should refer to standing order 14 (not 4) when dealing with nuisance activity. 
  
Councillor Martyn Holland queried standing order 13 which prohibited expressions 
of dissent. The HLHRDS advised that the provision prevented dissentions after a 
vote had been taken from being recorded in the minutes. He confirmed that 
dissentions could be recorded in the minutes as part of the debate and that a 
recorded vote could be used to record the way each member voted. 
  
RESOLVED that the constitution (standing orders) attached as appendix 1 to 
the report be approved by the Joint Committee (subject to the correction of 
standing order 8.6). 
  

6 OVERVIEW OF JOINT COMMITTEE AGREEMENT  
 
The HLHRDS introduced a report (previously circulated) which contained 
information on the legal agreement underpinning the Joint Committee and he 
referred to the following points. 
  

        The agreement created the Joint Committee and set out its powers 

        The agreement established an officer group to make recommendations on 
strategic direction and the budget, to implement the management plan, 
annual action plan and the Joint Committee’s decisions; this group to include 
co-optees from Natural Resources Wales, officers from the 3 participant 
authorities and from other partners. 

Page 4Page 6



Denbighshire would provide financial expertise, legal and administrative 
support for the Joint Committee with minute-taking support coming from the 
authority hosting the Joint Committee meeting 

        A process for financing the Joint Committee to meet its objectives through a 
core budget provided by the 3 authorities and grant funding from Natural 
Resources Wales 

        The agreement would last until 2019 and unless it was changed, withdrawn 
or terminated it would then roll over for a further period of 5 year.  

        Any of the 3 authorities could withdraw from the Joint Committee by giving 
not less than 18 months’ notice to each authority and the Secretary 
(Denbighshire’s HLHRDS).  

  
Councillor Hugh Evans referred to the stated objectives of the Joint Committee 
whereby it would seek to exert ‘influence’ in favour of the AONB’s designated 
purposes. Councillor Evans reported that he was unclear about the definition 
applied to the influencing aspect and what the implications were. He advised that 
he’d experienced the negative effects of the AONB’s activities where it had sought 
to influence the outcomes of decisions on properties and communities outside of 
the AONB itself. 
  
The Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB Officer (AONB Officer) explained that 
the AONB was a national designation which the 3 authorities needed to take 
account of. He reported that the Joint Committee was required to promote policies 
and decisions that conserved and enhanced the natural beauty of the AONB in line 
with its statutory purpose. The HLHRDS added that the agreement had already 
been cleared by the legal teams in the 3 authorities and had been approved by 
each authority’s Cabinet or Executive Board. 
  
Councillor Stuart Davies supported the concerns raised by Councillor Evans, 
adding that he lived in an area affected by the AONB’s activities which he viewed 
as unfairly restricting the freedom of residents and businesses. Councillor Hugh 
Jones reported that the Joint Committee could only act within its terms of reference, 
had clear processes and would develop a forward work programme to operate 
within. 
  
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
  

7 JOINT COMMITTEE BUDGET 2014 / 15  
 
Denbighshire’s Finance and Assurance Manager (FAM) introduced a report 
(previously circulated) on the AONB’s revenue budgets. He reported that the 
budget setting process for the current year recognised that the AONB had to have 
had a budget to operate with up this point which could now be formally approved by 
the Joint Committee. The FAM reported on the small overspend and underspend in 
the core and area budgets respectively and advised that the budget for 2014 / 15 
was secure but warned of possible difficulties in future years. 
  
In highlighting that the Joint Committee needed to agree a budget each year and 
request that each of the 3 authorities provide an appropriate contribution, Councillor 

Page 5Page 7



Hugh Jones advised that the Joint Committee would need to meet to discuss the 
draft budget in time for recommendations on funding to be made to the authorities. 
  
Members discussed the issue of ensuring an equitable apportioning of the budget 
between the authorities. In response it was reported that the majority of the AONB 
lay within Denbighshire and the majority of work and expenditure was therefore 
within Denbighshire. 
  
RESOLVED that the report be noted and the budget set for 2014 / 15 be 
formally approved. 
  
  

8 APPOINTMENT OF PARTNERSHIP AND ASSOCIATED BODIES FOR THE 
CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL 
BEAUTY (AONB)  
 
The AONB Officer introduced a report (previously circulated) regarding finalising the 
outstanding governance arrangements for the Joint Committee’s legal agreement. 
He advised that as part of the legal agreement the AONB Partnership was being 
overhauled with the replacement of the Interim Joint Advisory Committee by the 
AONB Partnership (Stakeholders Group) and associated fora.  
  
The AONB Officer reported that the production of a management plan was the main 
area of work for the Partnership and he referred to the list of members that would 
comprise the AONB Partnership as shown in the report.  
  
RESOLVED that the Joint Committee: 
(i)        Approves the appointment of a sub-group comprised of Councillors 

Derek Butler, Huw Jones and Ian Roberts to appoint the AONB 
Partnership (subject to the formal confirmation of the sub-group’s 
membership by each authorities delegated decision procedures); 

(ii)       A date for the AONB Forum and Community and Town Council meeting 
be confirmed following a consultation with participants; with an 
invitation to attend being extended to the elected members of the 3 
authorities. 

  
9 RECEIPT OF DOCUMENTS FROM EXISTING WORK PROGRAMME 2014 / 15  

 
The AONB Officer gave a verbal report and tabled a Sustainable Tourism Strategy 
and Action Plan. The Strategy had been produced by The Tourism Company 
following consultation workshops in order to set the scene for developing 
sustainable tourism. 
  
A publicity event to promote the Strategy was to be held in Corwen the following 
week. 
  
The AONB Officer also circulated a climate change work programme and advised 
that the document made suggestions on how farms, residents and businesses 
within the AONB could adapt to mitigate climate change effects. Members were 
advised that the programme had associated documents including one for children 

Page 6Page 8



that was seen to address a gap in provision and was hoped would bring families 
and others interested in climate change issues into the AONB. 
  
Councillor Hugh Jones queried whether there was a distribution policy for these 
documents, and it was confirmed that there was a good distribution network within 
Denbighshire but the distribution points, such as the tourist information centres, in 
Flintshire and Wrexham were not as well connected. 
  
RESOLVED that a Communication Strategy, to include the monitoring of the 
effectiveness of communication, be added to the Joint Committee’s forward 
work programme. 
  

10 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The AONB Officer introduced a report (previously circulated) on the development of 
a forward work programme for the Joint Committee in order to consider the 
committee’s future priorities and areas of work. Members considered the following 
issues: 
  

        The Edeyrnion Strategy was being taken forward by partners in the south of 
the AONB 

        The Outreach and Volunteers Strategy was intended to increase the 
numbers of volunteers and maximise their contribution to the AONB’s aims. 

  
The production of a supplementary planning guidance for the AONB was discussed 
by members, with Councillor Hugh Evans concerned that the AONB was at risk of 
damaging its reputation when it tried to influence the outcomes of planning 
applications and should be carefully in this respect. The ensuing debate covered: 
  

        Concerns that additional costs from complying with the AONB’s guidance 
could prevent residents and businesses from making an application, leading 
to a stagnation of development within the AONB 

        Councillor Carolyn Thomas argued that the guidance was intended to be 
helpful advice to be considered prior to the submission of a planning 
application. 

        The role of the AONB in promoting its aims and the role of planning 
authorities in determining the merits and viewpoints of those promoting or 
objecting to planning applications. Councillor Derek Butler said that the Joint 
Committee’s role was to advocate for the AONB’s aims and that other bodies 
and individuals would do the same in respect of their aims and remits. 

  
RESOLVED that: 
(i)        A review of the AONB’s finances and funding be added to the forward 

work programme; and 
(ii)       The forward work programme be approved. 
  

  
  
  

Page 7Page 9



11 CURRENT WELSH GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION REVIEW OF 
DESIGNATED LANDSCAPES IN WALES  
 
The AONB Officer gave a verbal report on the review which would examine the 
landscape designations and purposes and the merits of classifying Wales’ 
designated landscapes under one type of designation. Members were advised that 
the review would also consider the governance arrangements of designated 
landscapes and take account of the Planning (Wales) Bill in respect of the future 
arrangements for planning in National Parks. 
  
In response to questions, members were advised that the governance 
arrangements were thought to be the main aim of the Welsh Government’s review. 
The possibility of a national park-type designation being placed on the AONB was 
discussed together with the possibility that the governance of national parks could 
be returned to local authorities. 
  
Members were advised that members could contribute to the consultation either as 
the Joint Committee or as individuals and the Interim Joint Action Committee had 
already made written representations. 
  
Councillor Hugh Jones thought that the Joint Committee lacked sufficient 
information on the review to make a response to the Welsh Government at this 
time. 
  

12 FUTURE MEETING DATES  
 
The Democratic Services Manager reported that the Joint Committee’s forward 
work programme indicated that meetings in 2015 should be held in January, June 
and November. Members advised that they would prefer meetings to be arranged 
for Friday mornings wherever possible. 
  
In light of the new chair being a Wrexham County Borough Councillor, it was 
agreed that Wrexham be considered as the venue for the January meeting of the 
Joint Committee. 
  
RESOLVED that meetings of the Joint Committee be arranged for January, 
June and November 2015. 
  
 

Page 8Page 10



KM Holthofer  

       
 
 
 
 
 

 
CLWYDIAN RANGE & DEE VALLEY AONB 
INTERIM JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES OF THE CONSULTATION SUB COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD AT 10:00 am on Friday 5th December 2014 at  
Loggerheads Country Park 

 
 

Representing Clwydian Range& Dee Valley                              
AONB 

Representing Flintshire County Council 

Mr H Sutcliffe (AONB Officer) Councillor C Thomas (Chair) 
Mr D Shiel (Senior AONB Officer) Councillor Colin Legg 
Mr T Hughes (AONB Planning Officer) Councillor N Steele Mortimer 
Ms K Holthofer (AONB Communications Officer) 
Mrs H Mrowiec (Senior Recreation Officer) 

Councillor N Matthews 
Mr T Woodall 

  
Representing Denbighshire County Council Representing Wrexham County Borough          

Council 
Councillor M Holland Councillor Hugh Jones 
  
  
Representing Flintshire Local Access Forum Representing Natural Resources Wales 
Mr D Hÿtch Mr P Mitchell 
  
Representing Denbighshire Local Access 
Forum 

Representing Country Land and Business 
Association 

Mrs K Culhane Mrs S Archdale 
  
Representing North Wales Wildlife Trust 
Mr T King 

Representing the Campaign for the Protection of 
Rural Wales 

 Mr M Skuse 
  
Representing Ramblers Association Representing Civic Trust Wales 
Mr J Roberts Mrs H Williams 
  
Representing One Voice Wales (Flintshire) Representing Tourism 
Mr J Emyr Davies Mrs J Clough 
  
Representing One Voice Wales (Denbighshire) Representing National Farmers Union 
Mrs M Davies Mr RH Jones 
  

                                                                                   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE WERE SUBMITTED FROM 
Councillor Huw L Jones, Councillor M Pritchard, Councillor M Parry, Mr N Williams 
 
 
 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



WELCOME/AONB NEWS 
The AONB Officer welcomed members to the last IJAC Meeting to be held ahead of the 
Clwydian Range & Dee Valley AONB Partnership being convened.  The AONB Officer 
thanked members for all the enthusiasm and dedication they had given to the AONB over 
the years. The AONB Officer advised members that if would like to apply to join the 
Partnership application forms would be circulated before Christmas. 
 
 

1.      URGENT CONSULTATIONS 
 The Planning Officer advised that there were no urgent consultations to be considered.  

 
        2.         MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

 
            IJAC Sub Committee Meeting held on 12th September  2014 

 
2.1         Item u  
             Details of restoration scheme submitted in accordance with condition number 34 of 

planning permission 21/1999/0783/PF at Aberduna Quarry, Maeshafn, Mold, CH7 5EN – 
21/2013/1388                     

 
             The Planning Officer reported that the minerals planning authority had agreed to convene a 

future site visit for the IJAC to view the restoration works at Aberduna in Spring 2015 when 
the planting works would be complete.   The first AONB Partnership meeting was due to be 
held on Friday 27th March 2015 and it was suggested that a site visit could be undertaken 
after the meeting.   

 
   A member queried who would be responsible for the long term maintenance of the safety 

fencing around the quarry void when Hanson's liabilities end.  The AONB Planning Officer 
agreed to refer this query to the minerals planning authority and would report back. 

 
            RESOLVED 
            To seek to arrange a site visit after the Partnership Meeting due to be held on March 27th 

2015 if possible, and the AONB Planning Officer to contact the Minerals Planning Authority 
to seek clarification of long term responsibility for fencing around the quarry void.              

 
2.3          Item 1,3,4,5      

    

               Developments at Big Covert 
             Councillor Holland provided a brief verbal update regarding the selling off of woodland plots  

at Big Covert, highlighting further activity and development outside that permitted.               
Enforcement Officers had been informed to discuss the matter together with  

             Darren Millar AM, was also taking an active interest in the matter.  Denbighshire County 
Council had convened an Enforcement Team which would be examining the issue in more 
depth.   

              
             Invitation to Welsh Minister to Attend IJAC Meeting 
             The Chair advised that a letter had been sent to the Welsh Minister Carl Sergeant inviting 

him to attend an IJAC Meeting but he had responded that currently he had too many 
commitments to attend. 

 
2.5        Item 12 
            Rebuild 11kv overhead line using additional conductors and erect 11kv overhead lines 

supported by wood poles at Marian Mawr, Cwm, Rhyl 
              
             The AONB Officer reported that a successful meeting had been held with the landowner and 

a compromise had been agreed.  There would now be hedgerow restoration, improvement to 
Rights of Way and an additional viewing point would be provided. 

Page 10Page 12



 
8.       Clwydian Range Lamb 

            The Senior AONB Officer reported that a successful launch of the project had been held at 
the Tweed Mill, St Asaph and a number of graziers and IJAC Members had attended.  

 
8.1       Heritage Lottery Fund Bid - Picturesque Project 

The Senior AONB Officer advised that none of the bids that had been submitted from Wales    
had been successful this time.  However, the AONB would be submitting another application 
in May 2015. 

 
 

 10.        PLANNING CONSULTATION 
              Installation of a Wind Turbine 30.5m hub height and 45.07m to blade tip, control box 

and associated works at Maes Truan, Llanelidan, Ruthin, LL15 2RN – 19/2014/0702 
               
              The AONB Planning Officer reported that planning permission had been granted for this 

development against officer recommendation.   
 

11.         PLANNING CONSULTATION 
              Single Wind Turbine of maximum tip height 86.5m and ancillary development, 

including a crane hard-standing pad, substation equipment housing cabinet and 
access road at Lygan Uchaf Farm, Wern Road, Rhosesmor, Mold CH7 6PY – 052344 

               
              Mrs Archdale referred to the application and queried whether the residents of Penbedw had 

been contacted prior to reference being made to the ‘Historic Park and Garden’ in the 
response. The AONB Planning Officer advised that the recommended response had been 
discussed at the previous meeting and had been approved by the IJAC.  The reference to 
the impact on Penbedw ‘Historic Park and Garden’ was a response to information presented 
by the applicant which had been submitted with the planning application. 

 
 The AONB Officer commented that the Planning Officer only worked two days per week.  He 
had limited time to communicate with applicants or other interested parties within the 
timescale available to respond to consultations. However, applicants or interested parties 
could contact the AONB Team if they required advice on applications. 

 
             The minutes were agreed as a correct record of the meeting. 

 
 

3.      DELEGATED CONSULTATIONS 
 

3.1          ITEM 35 
                Change of use of hotel (Class C1) to private dwelling (Class C3) incorporating 

alterations and partial demolition together with associated works at  
                Bodidris Hall, Llandegla, Wrexham, LL11 3AL – 17/2014/1114 

     
                   Mrs Clough expressed some concerns about the loss of a quality hotel accommodation 

which was within the AONB. The Planning Officer agreed this was regrettable but the hotel 
had been closed for some time and had not been proved to be viable.  Significant investment 
was required to secure the future of this important listed building (which was in a state of 
disrepair), and an application for the conversion of the outbuildings for up to eight holiday 
lets had been submitted and would provide some compensation for the loss of the hotel.   

 
It was also noted that the site adjoined a public footpath which was a promoted recreational 
route, and members emphasised the need to ensure a practical and safe route for footpath 
users was maintained during construction operations.  

 
 

Page 11Page 13



3.2          ITEM 56 
Erection of wooden tool store and shelter for managing the woodland (retrospective 
application) – amended plans at Big Covert, Clwyd Forest, Maeshafn, Mold – 
21/2014/0032 

            
Members expressed concern regarding the application and queried whether the National 
Trust (who have covenants on the woodland) had been consulted on the application.  The 
AONB Officer agreed to contact the National Trust. 
 
Mr P Mitchell reported that he had raised the issue internally with NRW. Members agreed 
that a response was required by Welsh Government in order for policy to be changed and 
resolved to approach Darren Millar AM. 
 
RESOLVED 
Darren Millar AM to be contacted and invited to meet with members  
The AONB Officer to contact the National Trust 
 

 
3.3          PLANNING CONSULTATION 

Installation of 6kw wind turbine (hub height 9m, tip height 11.8m) at 
Y Lletty, Pen Line Road, Cilcain, Mold, CH7 5NZ 
 
Mrs Archdale referred to the above application and queried why the application had not been 
published along with the IJAC supporting documents. The AONB Planning Officer responded 
that the response had been sent after the papers for the meeting had been published.  The 
Communications Officer agreed to circulate the response to members, which is as follows: 

 
“The JAC notes that this application is substantially the same as that which was 
refused planning permission earlier this year (Code No: 051227).  The site is in an 
open and exposed hillside location in the AONB which is visible over a wide area, 
including the adjacent and surrounding footpath network.  The JAC accepts the 
applicant’s argument in support of wind over the further use of solar PV and also 
notes that the proposed turbine is modest in scale (11.8m to blade tip). It is also 
understood that, whilst recognising that there would be some adverse visual impact, 
Natural Resources Wales do not consider the harm to be so serious as to warrant an 
objection to the application.  

 
The JAC is still of the opinion that this is a sensitive site and would favour an 
alternative less conspicuous location for the turbine, preferably in the vicinity of the 
existing farm complex or in the enclosed pastoral area to the south-east of the farm 
which is less open and exposed and is characterised by hedgerows, individual trees 
and small woodlands which would draw the eye away from the turbine.  It is noted that 
a wind speed of 5m per second is required to make the turbine viable, but no details 
of wind speeds across the farm holding have been submitted with the application 
which would greatly assist with selection of the most appropriate site for the turbine. 

 
If the planning authority is satisfied that there is no better location on the holding 
which has the necessary wind speeds, the JAC would suggest resiting the turbine 
approximately 30-40m south/south-east of the currently proposed location which 
would reduce the skyline impact of views from the surrounding footpath network and 
wider area.  The mast and turbine colour should be selected to blend in with the 
hillside as far as possible, and a naturalistically shaped area of locally indigenous 
gorse planted around the turbine to help reduce the open character of the landscape 
and assist with integrating the turbine into its rural setting. The JAC would also 
recommend that the grid connection must be undergrounded.”(AONB Management 
Plan Policies PCP1, PCP2, PSQ1 and PSQ2) 
                    

Page 12Page 14



        
4. AONB JOINT COMMITTEE (JC) Meeting 14/11/2014 

The AONB Officer provided a verbal update on the first Joint Committee meeting to be held. 
The meeting was attended by:- 
 

  Councillor Hugh Jones 
  Councillor Huw L Jones 

Councillor Hugh Evans 
  Councillor Ian Roberts 
  Councillor Derek Butler 
 

Apologies were received from Councillor Bernie Attridge. 
Councillor Hugh Jones had been appointed as the Chair of the Committee and Councillor 
Huw L Jones as the vice Chair.   
Councillor Hugh Jones said that the Joint Committee was a strategic Committee and the key 
in going forward was partnership working. 
 

4.1        Clwydian Range & Dee Valley AONB Partnership 
At the meeting the Joint Committee approved the formation of the Clwydian Range & Dee 
Valley AONB Partnership; therefore today’s meeting was the final IJAC Committee meeting.  
The new governance arrangements for the Partnership form part of the new legal 
agreement.   Application forms, Accord and role of the Partnership were now being finalised.  
An advertisement for applicants to join the Partnership would be placed in the local 
newspapers prior to Christmas.   All existing IJAC members would be invited to apply to the 
Partnership along with organisations and individuals who had expressed an interest.   The 
AONB Officer reiterated that the Partnership did not have the capacity to have 
representation from all organisations as it was now covering a much larger area. 
 

               
5.      AONB  MANAGEMENT PLAN REVIEW 

The Senior AONB Officer introduced the AONB Management Plan (previously circulated) 
     and explained that some of the feedback from the workshops which were held last year  
     would be incorporated within the policies and objectives of the Plan. 
 

The Action Plan 
The objectives of the Plan would be met by partnership working. 
 

5.1     A member queried why there was extended reference to ‘Access and Recreation’ within the 
Plan.  The Senior AONB Officer explained Access and Recreation had always been a key 
component of the Management Plan.  However, reference had been expanded in the current 
plan to accommodate the extension area. He explained that one of the foremost pressures 
on protected landscapes was recreation.  Everyone should be able to access and enjoy the 
AONB but with due consideration for the people who lived and worked in it.   
An Outreach Strategy was also being produced to help target underrepresented groups and 
Community First Groups and improve their access to the AONB. 
 

5.2     Page 16 
IVCO1.  – To ensure that visitors and the tourism industry understand the need for, 
and support the conservation and enhancement of, the special qualities of the AONB 
as key assets upon which tourism is based 
 
 Mrs Clough referred to the above objective and advised that the Clwydian Range Tourism 
Group could assist with meeting this.  
 

5.3    Discussion ensued on whether there was too much pressure on the iconic areas of the AONB 
because of access and parking issues and whether there should be more emphasis to 
other/more remote areas of the AONB to assist in the dispersal of visitors. The Senior AONB 

Page 13Page 15



Officer explained that visitor numbers were increasing which could cause some issues but it 
was equally important that the tranquillity and remoteness of the AONB was retained.  
The AONB Team strove to create a balance with visitors and communities to both enjoy the 
AONB and its array of forms. 
 

 
6. AONB AWARD for 2014 

The Senior AONB Officer provided a verbal update on the AONB Award for 2014 explaining 
this year there had been seven nominations (previously circulated) and the winner for 2014 
was Richard Jones – Countryside Skills 
 
The AONB Officer said that when the AONB required something extra special it looked to 
Richard Jones.   Richard had completed a great deal of work for the AONB including the 
much praised car park at Bwlch Pen Barras.   Richard also provided good employment 
opportunities for individuals who want a career within the countryside.  The award would be 
presented to Richard and his Team in March 2015. 
 

 6.1        SDF Funding 
Councillor Holland extended his thanks to the SDF Officer Nick Critchely for the work 
completed on the Llanarmon y IaI walls.  The work had been completed with funding from: 
SDF, Cadwyn Clwyd and local contributions. 
 

 
7.     WELSH GOVERNANCE REVIEW OF DESIGNATED LANDSCAPES IN WALES 

The AONB Officer introduced the report (previously circulated) regarding the Review of 
Designated Landscapes in Wales and explained that the review had started to examine the 
first two aspects of the review:- 

 
1. What were the purposes of AONB’s and National Parks 
2. If there could be a single landscape designation 

 
The AONB Officer went on to explain that the review was also about governance. National 
Parks had their own Local Authority and budget. The AONB Officer said in his view the 
AONB had appropriate governance: the Joint Committee and the AONB Partnership. 
Discussion ensued and most members agreed that the National Park brand did have a 
higher profile than the AONB.  Some concerns were raised regarding the implications that 
could come with any brand change e.g. planning restrictions. Members also queried whether 
funding would be more secure for the AONB if it achieved National Park status.  
It was noted that the NAAONB had responded on behalf of all of the AONB’s. 
 

 
8.      AONB MEMBERS SEMINAR – Plas Tan y Bwlch 

The AONB Officer enquired if any members would like to attend a seminar at  
Plas Tan y Bwlch on 26th & 27th January 2015 
two places were available.  
 

 
9.      WELSH GOVERNMENT PLANNING CONSULTATIONS 

The AONB Planning Officer introduced the report (previously circulated) relating to seven 
current planning related consultations from Welsh Government and advised members to 
consider their response from an AONB perspective. Discussion ensued and most members 
agreed that it would be a great loss for the AONB if the Design and Access Statement (DAS) 
was removed. Members agreed with the pre-application notification to the AONB 
Partnership.  It was queried whether there would be an increase in fees for retrospective 
applications. Members agreed for the recommended responses to be submitted in respect of 
three of the consultation documents. 

 
Page 14Page 16



 
RESOLVED 
Consultation on Design in the Planning Process  
“Good design is vital to successfully accommodate development in protected 
landscapes or within their setting without undermining or harming the qualities and 
features that make them special places. Good design can also enhance the character 
and appearance of such areas.  In this context, the JAC welcomes an emphasis on 
good design in national and local policy and supports the objective to raise design 
standards through the planning process and other measures. 
 
However, the JAC is very concerned about the proposal to remove the need for 
developers to submit a Design and Access Statement (DAS) for all applications.  In 
sensitive areas such as AONB’s the need to consider design and the context of the 
proposal in relation to its landscape setting is a vital consideration which is often 
overlooked, and the formal requirement to have regard to such matters through a DAS 
is an important step to secure good design. In this context the JAC also notes that 
many applications are not submitted by professional designers. Whilst there is scope 
to modify the categories and thresholds associated with the requirement to submit 
such a design statement, the JAC firmly believes that the need for a formal statement 
should be retained for sensitive areas, including AONB’s.  The commonly used 
exception in planning legislation relating to Article 1(5) land and World Heritage Sites 
should be applied in this regard.”(Questions 13 and 14) 
 
Frontloading the development management system 

 
“The JAC supports the principle of developers undertaking pre-application 
consultation with the community for major developments, and agrees that this should 
allow significant planning issues to emerge in advance which developers can respond 
to before submitting their application. The JAC notes that the proposed minimum 
publicity requirements comprise site notices and letters to neighbours, local ward 
members and town and community councils. However, the JAC considers itself a part 
of the local community and can raise substantive planning issues for developers to 
consider.  The JAC would therefore suggest that pre-application notification of AONB 
JAC’s/Partnerships as part of this process would be beneficial.”  
 
Planning committees, delegation and joint planning boards 
 
“The JAC supports that part of the proposed National Planning Committee Protocol 
(which it is noted will not form part of the legislative proposals) relating to mandatory 
member training.  Avoiding unnecessary effort and duplication by preparing a 
national set of training materials is a sensible approach.  Although details of such 
materials and topics to be covered have not yet been specified, the JAC would 
strongly recommend that local planning authorities which include nationally protected 
landscapes (AONB’s and National Parks) should receive specific training in planning 
for the conservation and enhancement of such designated landscape.” 

 
 

10.      ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10.1       Dobson & Crowther Factory, Cilmedw, Llangollen 
The AONB Planning Officer reported that a letter (previously circulated) had been sent to the 
Chair and IJAC from Mr Simon Collinge.  Mr Collinge had expressed concern that the colour 
of the wall cladding of the recently erected factory was too light in colour and that the 
building was visually intrusive within the AONB. Mr Collinge was also concerned about the 
felling of trees which helped to screen the site. 

 

Page 15Page 17



Members had some sympathy with the views expressed but agreed that realistically the 
developer would not change the approved colour of the cladding at this late stage of the 
development.  Members agreed that it was very disappointing that the IJAC had raised these 
concerns and the Planning Authority had chosen not to act on the Committee’s suggestion of 
sample panels in the first instance. The Chair reported that she had been very concerned 
about the tree felling and had contacted the planning authority to seek the highest levels of 
mitigation to compensate for their loss.   
 
The following letter was sent by the Chair to Mr Collinge after the meeting: 

 
Dear Mr Collinge 
 
As requested, I reported your letter to the meeting of the Interim Joint Advisory 
Committee (IJAC) for the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB held on 5 December, 
2014.  Copies of your letter and the photographs you sent were circulated to all 
members prior to the meeting. 
 
The IJAC are very disappointed that the planning authority chose not to act on the 
committee’s suggestion that sample panels be erected on site to help select the 
colour of the cladding, and agree with you that a darker, more recessive colour would 
help better integrate the new factory into its rural setting. However, members 
accepted that the planning authority had issued an approval for the cladding as 
constructed and regretted that there was little that can be done at this stage to 
overturn a legitimately made decision.  The committee did however ask for their 
concerns to be brought to the attention of the planning authority, hence me copying in 
Ian Weaver. 
 
Members also share your deep concern about the loss of mature trees along the A5 
which were to be protected and retained as part of the development.  These helped 
screen the site and reduce its impact in the landscape, and their felling has resulted in 
the development appearing starker than it would otherwise. When they were felled I 
personally approached the planning authority to express my concerns and to seek as 
much mitigation as possible from the developers to compensate for their loss. The 
committee appreciates that it is difficult to fully compensate for the loss of such 
mature trees in the short term, but understands that the planning authority has 
reached agreement with the developers to secure additional planting in mitigation 
which, in time, will help break up views of the building.  
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Cllr Carolyn Thomas 
Chair of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB Interim Joint Advisory Committee 

 
10.2       Mynydd Mynyllod Wind Farm 

The Planning Officer reported that Scottish Power Renewables proposal for up to 25 turbines 
with a height of 110-160m at Mynydd Mynyllod near Llandrillo had been withdrawn, citing 
landscape and visual impacts of the necessary grid connection as one of the main reasons. 

 
10.3        Rhiannon off-Shore Wind Farm 

The Planning Officer reported that Celtic Array’s proposal for 250+ turbines up to 265m in 
height in the Irish Sea had also been withdrawn. Challenging undersea ground conditions 
and associated costs were cited as the main reasons for deciding not to proceed. 
 
 

 
10.4        AONB Planning Officer 

Page 16Page 18



Councillor Hugh Jones thanked and commended the AONB Planning Officer on his 
efficiency; he noted that the Planning Officer who works part time (two days per week) had 
responded to 62 applications since the last meeting.   

 
 10.5           Message from the Chair    

               The Chair thanked all members for their contribution to the IJAC and said she had enjoyed 
chairing the meetings and extending her knowledge about the AONB.  She had tried to 
promote and raise awareness of the area at every opportunity possible.   

 
 10.6            AONB Officer 

Councillor Nancy Matthews thanked the AONB Officer for briefing members to extend their 
knowledge of the AONB and making members feel welcome on the committee.   

        

 
11. FUTURE MEETING DATES 

     The first Clwydian Range & Dee Valley AONB Partnership Meeting 
     Will be held on:- 
     Friday 27th March 2015 
 
 

           
 

Page 17Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

JOINT COMMITTEE 
Of the 

CLWYDIAN RANGE & DEE VALLEY 
 AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY 

 
Held on: 13th February 2015 
 
Lead Member / Officer: Steve Gadd 
 
Report Author: Paula O’Hanlon /Huw Rees 
 
Title: Joint Committee Budget Monitoring 2014/15 & Proposed Budget 2015/16 
 

 
1. What is the report about?  

 
The report gives details of the AONB’s revenue budget monitoring position for 
2014/15 as well as the proposed budget for 2015/16. 
 

2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 
The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the AONB’s current financial 
position. 
 

3. What are the Recommendations? 
 
Members note the progress against the agreed budget strategy this financial year 
(Appendix 1). Also, to formally approve the proposed budget for 2015/16.                                              
  

4. Report details. 
 
The report provides a summary of the AONB’s revenue budget for 2014/15 
detailed in Appendix 1. The AONB’s gross expenditure budget is £406K. The position 
is a forecast under spend of £3k.  
The report also provides a summary of the proposed revenue budget for 2015/16 in 
Appendix 2, which proposes a gross expenditure budget of £403K. 
The budget is presented as 2 parts; Core and Area. The Core budget relates to those 
functions that are the current minimum amount required to operate the AONB 
activities during the current year. This budget may vary from year to year depending 
on external and internal funding. The Area budget relates to expenditure to deliver 
projects in the various LA areas of the AONB. The budget could include non-core 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



staff working on particular projects in the AONB during this year. This budget will vary 
from year to year and even within year depending on project progress and funding 
sources.  
 

5. How does it contribute to the Clwydian Range & Dee Valley AONB Management 
Plans Priorities? 
 
Effective management of the AONB’s revenue budgets will help the delivery of the 
agreed management plan priorities for the current year and underpins activity in all 
areas, particularly our relationships with funding partners and our joint priorities. 
 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
We are currently projecting that the income contributions remain at the level agreed 
in the budget for this year.  
 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be attached 
as an appendix to the report. 
 
N/A 
 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 
This is the first opportunity to consult the JC regarding the 2015/16 budget. The 
2014/15 budget was agreed at the last meeting of the JC held on 14th November 
2014.  
 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
This report outlines the financial position for the AONB for 2014/15. If the position 
remains as a small under spend it is recommended that this is carried forward for use 
by the JC in 2015/16. The proposed budget for 2015/16 will ensure the financial 
stability for the JC over the next 12 months. However it must be recognised that the 
budgets of all public sector bodies are coming under increasing pressure due to the 
economic climate and that future funding levels may not be relied upon (see also 
section 10). 
 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
The proposed budget is dependent on income from NRW, Welsh Government and 
the three Local Authorities. Any changes to these income levels will pose a risk to the 
future delivery of projects and our ability to deliver against the priorities in the AONB 
Management Plan. 
 

11. Power to make the Decision 
 
Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 
to make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs. 

Page 20Page 22



�����������	�

����� ���
������

������������������������������������
�	���	����

	���� ���!�������	�
��������"����������		��������#�$%��
&
'(
)�*+�,

�-�.
%�

*+�,/�0

�1)
&2$%�

*+�,/�0

3 3

��"��������

���������

	
�
���� 
������ 
������

�������������������� 
���� 
����

���
���������������� 
������ 
������

��������
� ���
!��

��
!����"������ ����
 �����

��������
!����"������ ��� ���

���
����������#���
!����"������ ����
 �����

�����

�$$�����"������ ����� �����

���
���������"������ ����� �����

%��&����

'�
��� ������ ������

���
��%��&��������� ������ ������

��������"�������� *45�,+� *4+�,�6

��	�
�

()*�'�
�� +
������� +
�������

	,-�'�
�� +������� +�������

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1����� +����
�� +����
��

-����������0�1����0�1���� +������� +�������

*��"�
��0�1����2���1/��0�1���� +������ +������

��������	�
�  *45�,+��  *45�,5#�

�1%27��
%����
���%-)
 +  5�+80�

Page 21Page 23



�����������	�

����� ���
������

������������������������������������
�	���	����

����� ���!�������	�
��������"����������		��������#�$%��
&
'(
)�*+�,

�-�.
%�

*+�,/�0

�1)
&2$%�

*+�,/�0

3 3

��"��������

���������

	
�
���� 
������ 

�����

�������������������� ��� ���

���
���������������� 
������ 

�����

��������
� ���
!��

-���� �
���
 
�����

���
����������#���
!����"������ �
���
 
�����

�����

�$$�����"������ �� ���

���
���������"������ �� ���

%��&����

3
�
/������%�
� ����� �����

4�(2����&����

���
��%��&��������� ����� �����

��������"�������� �#4�45# �##�084

��	�
�

()*�'�
�� +
������ +
������

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1����� +
���
��� +

������

��������	�
�  �#4�45#�  �*8�84,�

�1%27��
%����
���%-)
 + 0�6�*

Page 22Page 24



�����������	�

����� ���
������

������������������������������������
�	���	����

	���� ���!�������	�
��������"����������		�����"��"�������������#$%&$'

�������

�	
��



"()�)*
��

+,�-
.��

�#$%&$'

� /

��"��������

���������

	
�
���� ������� 
������

�������������������� ����� 
����

���
���������������� ����	
� 
���
��

��������
�����
 ��

��
 ����!������ ���	� �����

��������
 ����!������ �		 ���

���
����������"���
 ����!������ ��
	� �����

�����

�##�����!������ ����� $�$��

���
���������!������ ����� $�$��

%��&����

'�
��� ������ �$��$�

���
��%��&��������� ������ �$��$�

��������"�������� �����	
 �0$�1$�

��	�
�

()*�'�
�� ��	�����
 +
�$�����

	,-�'�
�� �������
 +�$��$��

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1����� ��	����
 +�������

-����������0�1����0�1���� �
���		
 +�������

*��!�
��0�1����2���1/��0�1���� ���			
 +������

��������	�
� ������	
�  �0$�1$��

�).23��
.����
���.,(
 	 #

Page 23Page 25



�����������	�

����� ���
������

������������������������������������
�	���	����

����� ���!�������	�
��������"����������		�����"��"�������������#$%&$'

�������

�	
��



"()�)*
��

+,�-
.��

�#$%&$'

� /

��"��������

���������

	
�
���� �	���	� 
������

�������������������� ��� �$�

���
���������������� �	���	� 
���$�


��������
�����
 ��

-���� 
���
� 
�����

���
����������"���
 ����!������ 
���
� 
�����

�����

�##�����!������ �� ���

���
���������!������ �� ���

%��&����

3
�
/������%�
� ��			 �����

���
��%��&��������� ��			 �����

��������"�������� 
������ $4$��5$

��	�
�

()*�'�
�� ��
����
 +
���$��

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1����� ��
�����
 +

����$�

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1�����%��&����3
����-1����/

��������	�
� �
�������  $4$��5$�

�).23��
.����
���.,(
 	 #

Page 24Page 26



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Held on:    13th February 2015 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  David Shiel 
 
Report Author:   David Shiel – Asst AONB Officer 
 
Title: To receive the draft Management Plan for the 

AONB and to resolve to consult externally  
 

 
1. What is the report about?  

 
The Report is about adopting the draft management Plan for the Clwydian Range 
and Dee Valley AONB 
 

2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 
Agreement is required to consult the externally on the on the Draft Plan.  
 

3. What are the Recommendations? 
 
That the JC endorse the Draft Management Plan and approve it for public 
consultation.  
 

4. Report details. 
 
The Draft Management Plan is a review of the 2009 Management Plan for the 
Clwydian Range AONB but incorporates the area of the Dee Valley designated as 
AONB in 2011.  It has been prepared following consultation with key partners and 
stakeholders.  The management planning process has included consultation 
workshops covering the Natural Environment, Historic Environment, Access and 
Tourism and Planning and Development and has engaged both professional and 
interested bodies in the process 
 
The plan identifies the Special Qualities and Features of the Clwydian Range and 
Dee Valley and sets out a series of Policies for sustainable development within the 
context of natural beauty.  It recognises the benefits that the special character of the 
landscape contributes to the communities and economies both inside and outside of 
the AONB.  
 
Through the State of the AONB Report it makes an assessment of the key issues 
and factors impacting on the special character of the AONB and includes a 5 year 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

Page 27



Action Plan that works towards ensuring that the AONB can continue to deliver key 
services that contribute to economic, social and cultural wellbeing.   
 

5. How does it contribute to the Clwydian Range & Dee Valley AONB 
Management Plans Priorities? 
 
The draft management Plan will replace the current plan which was due for Review 
in 2014.  It will set the agenda for the AONB until 2019.    
 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
The delivery of the Management Plan will be met within existing budget 
arrangements 
 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment 

(EqIA) undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template 
should be attached as an appendix to the report. 

 
Appendix 6 
 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 
The plan has been prepared following key stakeholder workshops with specialist and 
interest groups.   
 
An earlier draft of the plan was approved by the Interim Joint Advisory Committee 
December 2014.  
 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
"As stated above the Management Plan will be delivered within existing budgets and 
will also help secure existing external funding levels which form part of the proposed 
AONB budget."  
 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
There is a Statutory Duty on the Local Authorities to produce a Management Plan for 
the AONB 
Financial - Failing to adopt a Plan may put external funding from Welsh Government 
and Natural Resources Wales in jeopardy. 
Reputational - There is reputational risk in not adopting a plan and failing to fulfil the 
statutory to do so.   
 

11. Power to make the Decision 
 
The countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 places a duty on Local Authorities to 
produce a Management Plan for AONBs within their boundary.    
The Joint Committee established under Section 101(5) of the Local Government Act 
of 1972 and the Local Government Act 2000 has the power to act on behalf of the 3 
Authorities of Denbighshire Flintshire and Wrexham in discharging this duty.  

Page 26Page 28



 

!

!

!

 

 

 

Clwydian Range and Dee Valley 
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
!

!

!

!

 

 

Draft 

Management Plan 2014 - 2019 
!

PART!ONE!!

STRATEGY!

!

!

December 2014 

Page 27Page 29



!

PART$ONE$$

STRATEGY$

!

Contents!

!

$ Introduction$$ 2

$ !

SECTION$ONE$

1$ AONB!Designation! 2

1.1$ Purpose!of!the!Designation 3

1.2$ Significance!of!the!designation! 3

1.3$ Who!is!the!Plan!for! 3

1.4$ Governance 4

$ !

SECTION$TWO$

$ Setting!the!Plan!in!Context

2.1$ European!Landscape!Convention 5

2.2$ IUCN!Category!V!! 5

2.3$ The!Environment!Bill! 6

2.4$ Taking!the!Long!View! 6

2.5$ River!Basin!Management!Plans 6

$ !

SECTION$THREE$

3.1$ An!Ecosystem!Approach 7

$ !

SECTION$FOUR$

$ What!makes!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!Special!!

$ Special!Qualities! 10

$ Special!Features! 11

$ A!Vision!for!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley 12

$ Landscape!Quality!and!Character 13

$ Habitats!and!Wildlife! 14

$ The!Historic!Environment 18

$ Access,!Recreation!and!Tourism 21

$ The!Built!Environment!! 24

! !

!

!

Page 28Page 30



P a g e  | 2 

!

INTRODUCTION(

(

The!Clwydian!Range!nd!Dee!Valley!Area!of!Outstanding!Natural!Beauty!is!the!dramatic!

upland!frontier!to!North!Wales!embracing!some!of!the!country’s!most!wonderful!

countryside.!!!

!

The!Clwydian!Range!is!an!unmistakeable!chain!of!heather!clad!summits!topped!by!Britain’s!

most!strikingly!situated!hillforts.!!Beyond!the!windswept!Horseshoe!Pass,!over!Llantysilio!

Mountain,!lies!the!glorious!Dee!Valley!with!historic!Llangollen,!a!famous!market!town!rich!in!

cultural!and!industrial!heritage.!!

!

The!Offa’s!Dyke!National!Trail!traverses!this!specially!protected!area,!one!of!the!least!

discovered!yet!most!welcoming!and!easiest!to!explore!of!Britain’s!finest!landscapes.!!

!

(

About(this(Plan.(

(

This!Management!Plan!is!the!first!overarching!5!year!strategy!for!the!newly!formed!

Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!Area!of!Outstanding!Natural!Beauty.!

!

It!is!a!plan!for!all!those!with!an!interest!in!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!and!!

has!been!prepared!by!the!AONB!Unit!in!close!collaboration!with!key!partners!and!!!!!!!!!!!

stake!holders.!This!is!a!fiveLyear!plan!for!the!entire!community!of!the!AONB!not!just!

the!AONB!unit.!!It!also!recognises!that!the!AONB!has!an!impact!on!the!wider!region!

and!can!be!affected!by!influences!outside!of!its!boundary.!It!is!a!Plan!for!the!AONB,!!

its!communities,!businesses,!visitors!and!organisations!and!will!require!all!who!have!

an!interest!in!the!AONB!to!work!together!to!achieve!its!aspirations.!It!will!ensure!

that!AONB!purposes!are!being!delivered!whilst!contributing!to!the!aims!and!

objectives!of!other!strategies!for!the!area.!

!

This!Management!Plan!is!different!from!its!predecessors!in!that!it!also!begins!to!

tackle!the!question!of!what!the!AONB!can!produce!to!meet!society’s!needs!whilst!

ensuring!the!achievement!of!AONB’s!purposes!to!conserve!and!enhance!natural!

beauty.!

!

!

(

SECTION(ONE(

1..AONB(DESIGNATION(

The!Clwydian!Range!was!designated!as!an!Area!of!Outstanding!Natural!Beauty!in!July!

1985.!In!2011!following!detailed!work!by!the!Countryside!Council!for!Wales!and!the!

three!Local!Authorities!of!Denbighshire,!Flintshire!and!Wrexham!the!AONB!

designation!was!extended!to!include!the!Dee!Valley.!This!is!the!most!recent!

landscape!designation!in!Wales!and!makes!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!AONB!

for!largest!of!the!5!AONBs!in!Wales.!

!

Page 29Page 31



P a g e  | 3

!

1.1"Purpose"of"the"Designation"

AONBs!together!with!National!Parks!recognise!our!finest!landscapes!and!set!a!

framework!for!their!protection!and!enhancement.!The!primary!statutory!purpose!of!

designating!a!tract!of!Countryside!as!an!AONB!is!to!conserve!and!enhance!the!

natural!beauty!of!the!area.!The!concept!of!‘natural!beauty’!includes!the!protection!of!

flora,!fauna!and!geological!as!well!as!landscape!features.!However,!it!is!very!

important!that!the!cultural!dimension!of!the!landscape,!including!the!historical,!

spiritual!and!inspirational!elements,!as!well!as!the!physical!human!shaping!of!the!

land!is!fully!recognised.!In!Wales!the!added!dimensions!of!the!language!provides!an!

essential!element!of!cultural!richness!that!must!be!recognised!too.!These!should!all!

be!integrated!into!the!management!of!AONBs.!

!

1.2 The significance of AONB designation 

The!power!to!designate!an!Area!of!Outstanding!Natural!Beauty!comes!from!the!

National!Parks!and!Access!to!the!Countryside!Act,!1949.!!The!purposes,!duties!and!

management!requirements!for!AONBs!are!set!out!in!the!Countryside!and!Rights!of!

Way!(CRoW)!Act!2000.!Section!82!of!the!CRoW!Act!establishes!the!primary!purpose!

of!AONB!designation!as!the!conservation!and!enhancement!of!natural!beauty.!

!

Section!85!places!a!duty!on!all!public!bodies!to!have!regard!to!the!purposes!of!

conserving!and!enhancing!the!natural!beauty!of!the!area!in!undertaking!any!

functions!or!actions!affecting!an!AONB.!!It!is!not!the!purpose!of!designation!to!stop!

development!but!the!planning!authorities!will!consider!any!development!proposal!to!

ensure!that!it!does!not!unduly!harm!the!character!and!appearance!of!the!AONB;!it!is!

sensitively!located!and!designed;!and!it!complements!or!enhances!the!special!

qualities!and!features!of!the!area.!

!

Section!89!requires!the!local!authorities!in!whose!area!an!AONB!lies!to!prepare!and!

publish!an!AONB!Management!Plan!to!guide!policy!development!and!management!

actions.!!!

!

1.3 Who is the Plan for? 
The!Plan!is!designed!to!provide!a!framework!that!can!inform!and!guide!anyone!who!

undertakes!activities!that!may!affect!the!AONB.!These!will!include:!

!

Relevant"Authorities – All!public!bodies!and!statutory!undertakers!–!as!

defined!in!Section!85!of!the!Countryside!and!Rights!of!Way!Act!2000!–!that!

have!a!duty!to!have!regard!for!the!purposes!of!AONBs.!This!plan,!in!defining!

the!areas!special!qualities!and!features!sets!out!an!agenda!for!managing!

change!that!will!help!these!bodies!to!fulfil!their!statutory!duties.!!The!Joint!

Committee!of!the!AONB!represents!and!acts!on!behalf!of!the!three!local!Authorities!

of!Denbighshire,!Flintshire!and!Wrexham.!!

"

Page 30Page 32



P a g e  | 4 

!

Partners'of'the'AONB – organisations!and!individuals!that!have!a!key!role!in!

delivering!and!championing!the!programmes!of!the!AONB!–!as!represented!by!the!

AONB!Partnership!

.!

Landowners'and'Land'managers – The!Plan!seeks!to!work!with!landowners!

and!land!managers!and!recognises!the!key!role!they!have!to!play!in!realising!

the!overall!vision.!

!

Local'Communities'– The!plan!commits!to!working!with!those!who!live!and!

work!within!the!AONB!and!identifies!the!importance!of!communities!in!

defining!and!caring!for!the!landscape.!The!plan!sets!out!an!agenda!for!

working!with!the!communities!of!the!AONB.!

1.4 Governance 

Since!the!expansion!of!the!AONB!to!include!the!Dee!Valley,!parts!of!which!fall!in!to!

Wrexham!County!Borough!Council,!a!governance!review!has!been!undertaken!in!order!to!

develop!more!appropriate!working!structure!that!reflects!the!joint!approach!between!the!

three!Local!Authorities!of!Denbighshire,!Flintshire!and!Wrexham!as!well!as!the!need!to!

expand!to!include!other!partnerships!in!the!new!AONB.!!!

!

AONB Joint Committee 2014 
The!three!Local!Authorities!of!Denbighshire,!Wrexham!and!Flintshire!entered!into!the!Legal!

Agreement!to!jointly!discharge!their!AONB!functions!by!means!of!a!Joint!Committee!for!the!

AONB!in!the!summer!of!2014.!!The!Committee!is!made!up!of!Lead!members!(members!of!

the!Authority’s!Executive!or!Cabinet)!of!each!Local!Authority!and!has!the!power!act!on!

behalf!of!those!Local!Authority’s!in!delivering!the!purposes!of!the!AONB.!

!

AONB Partnership 2015 
The!AONB!Partnership!is!an!effective!resource!in!the!range!and!depth!of!political!and!

professional!expertise!and!experience.!It!represents!the!local!authorities,!landowners,!

farmers,!conservation!and!recreation!interests.!!!The!Partnership!supports!the!delivery!of!

the!AONB!Management!Plan!through!its!expertise!and!experience!in!a!broad!range!of!fields!

related!to!landscape!management.!!It!is!supported!by!an!Officer’s!Working!Group!of!

relevant!officers!from!the!constituent!local!authorities!and!Natural!Resources!Wales.!!

!

'

'

'

'

'

'

Page 31Page 33



P a g e  | 5 

!

SECTION'TWO'

Setting'the'Plan'in'Context.'

'

European'Context'

'

2.1'''European'Landscape'Convention'

The!UK!signed!up!to!the!European!Landscape!Convention!in!2007.!!The!Convention!

clearly!sets!out!an!agenda!for!landscape!protection!and!management!on!a!European!

level!and!as!such!is!an!important!element!in!informing!a!strategic!approach.!The!

Convention!asks!member!states:!

a)"to"recognise"landscapes"in"law"as"an"essential"component"of"people’s"

surroundings,"an"expression"of"the"diversity"of"their"shared"cultural"and"

natural"heritage,"and"a"foundation"of"their"identity;"

b)"to"establish"and"implement"landscape"policies"aimed"at"landscape"

protection,"management"and"planning."

c)"to"establish"procedures"for"the"participation"of"the"general"public,"local"and"

regional"authorities,"and"other"parties"with"an"interest"in"the"definition"and"

implementation"of"landscape"policies."

d)"to"integrate"landscape"into"their"regional"and"town"planning"policies"and"in"

its"cultural,"environmental,"agricultural,"social"and"economic"policies,"as"well"

as"in"any"other"policies"with"possible"direct"or"indirect"impact"on"landscape."

!

Specifically!the!Convention!asks!each!country!to!undertake!to!raise!awareness!of!

landscape!protection,!identify!special!landscape!characteristics,!and!to!set!and!

implement!objectives!for!protection,!management!and!planning!of!the!landscape.!

!

'

2.2'International'Union'for'Conservation'of'Nature'and'

'''''''Natural'Resources'–'Category'V'Landscapes'

AONBs!together!with!other!designated!landscapes!in!the!UK!are!part!of!a!global!network!

and!sit!within!a!worldwide!category!of!protected!areas!known!as!“Protected!

Landscapes”.!Category!V!refers!to!one!of!six!categories!of!protected!areas!worldwide.!

Category!V!Landscapes!recognise!the!significance!of!AONBs!in!global!terms!and!

ensures!a!consistent!approach!to!landscape!conservation!internationally.!The!IUCN!

recognises!that!thinking!on!protected!areas!is!undergoing!a!fundamental!shift.!“Whereas!

protected!areas!were!once!planned!against!people,!now!it!is!recognised!that!they!need!to!

be!planned!with!local!people,and!often!for!and!by!them!as!well.!Where!once!the!emphasis!

was!on!setting!places!aside,!we!now!look!to!develop!linkages!between!strictly!protected!

core!areas!and!the!areas!around:!economic!links!which!benefit!local!people,!and!physical!

links,via!ecological!corridors,!to!provide!more!space!for!species!and!natural!processes.”!

Page 32Page 34



P a g e  | 6 

!

National Context 

2.3##The#Environment#Bill#

Environment!Bill!emphasises!the!importance!of!considering!the!management!of!our!natural!

resources,!on!land!and!sea,!in!a!more!integrated!way!and!places!sustainable!development!at!

the!heart!of!its!approach.!!It!sets!out!a!new!statutory!framework!for!the!integrated!and!

sustainable!management!of!our!natural!resources!in!order!to!deliver!a!healthier,!more!

resilient!Wales!through!economic,!social!and!environmental!benefits.!!!!!!!!!

2.4#Taking#the#Long#View#

       Welsh Government Statement for AONBs and National Parks. 

This!draft!policy!statement!sets!out!the!Welsh!Governments!policy!framework!for!

statutory!designated!landscapes!in!Wales.!!It!requires!designated!landscapes!to!

contribute!to!meeting!the!challenges!of!sustainable!development!through!the!

delivery!of!their!statutory!purposes.!

!

It!set!out!a!vision!for!AONBs!and!National!Parks!to!be!living,!working!landscapes,!

exemplars!of!sustainable!development,!with!vibrant!rural!communities,!extensive!

recreational!opportunities!as!well!as!thriving!ecosystems!rich!in!biodiversity.!

!

It!calls!for!Protected!Landscapes!in!Wales!to!be!areas!where!new!and!innovative!

solutions!to!environmental!challenges!will!be!developed,!tested!and!shared.!

!

It!specifically!promotes!an!‘ecosystem!approach’!to!landscape!management!which!

means!considering!how!it!regulates!our!environment!and!its!key!services!including!

economic!and!social!wellbeing.!

!

!

2.5##River#Basin#Management#Plans#=#2015#

The!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!falls!into!two!River!Basin!Districts!L!the!Dee!and!the!

Clwyd.!!Natural!Resources!Wales!are!currently!consulting!on!the!River!Dee!Basin!

Management!Plan!and!the!River!Clwyd!Catchment!Management!Plan!due!to!be!completed!

in!2015.!!!Both!plans!outline!measure!to!improve!the!water!environment,!its!river!lakes!and!

streams,!and!encompass!all!of!the!issues!and!pressures!on!the!water!environment.!!The!

plans!recognise!that!river!basin!management!can!deliver!multiple!benefits.!!For!example!the!

management!of!the!uplands!can!not!only!manage!flood!waters!but!can!also!deliver!better!

water!quality!and!help!in!carbon!capture.!

!

Page 33Page 35



P a g e  | 7 

!

SECTION THREE 

3.1 An Ecosystem Approach 

What is the landscape of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley delivering for us and how 
can we ensure that it can continue to deliver?

!

The!natural!systems!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!touch!our!lives!every!day.!

Whether!living!in,!Mold,!Wrexham!or!Rhyl!or!in!the!more!rural!areas,!we!rely!on!these!

natural!systems!to!support!us.!!They!underpin!our!health,!wealth!and!happiness!and!give!us!

a!sense!of!place,!pride!and!identity.!

Well!looked!after!the!AONB!will!continue!to!provide!us!with!some!of!the!essentials!of!

life!including!clean!air!and!water,!food,!fuel!and!raw!materials.!!It!helps!to!regulate!our!

climate;!stores!flood!waters,!filters!pollution,!and!provides!opportunities!for!us!to!

improve!our!health!and!wellbeing.!!The!Plan!therefore!needs!to!consider!what!benefits!

the!AONB!can!provide!to!meet!the!needs!of!society!and!respond!to!current!issues!such!

as!the!need!to!produce!more!food,!improve!health!and!wellHbeing!and!adapt!to!the!

effects!of!a!changing!climate.!

!

It!is!also!recognised!that!the!landscape!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!has!an!

influence!on!ecosystems,!communities!and!economies!far!beyond!the!boundary!of!the!

designation.!For!example!the!river!catchment!of!the!Dee!has!its!beginnings!in!the!

Clwydian!Range!and!the!Berwyn!Mountains!but!extends!far!beyond!through!

Denbighshire,!Wrexham,!Flintshire!and!Cheshire.!!Activity!within!these!catchments!

therefore!is!potentially!wide!reaching!and!so!where!necessary!we!need!to!consider!

these!impacts.!This!is!equally!true!of!the!communities!and!businesses!outside!of!the!

AONB!that!nevertheless!rely!on!the!outstanding!quality!of!the!landscape!on!their!

doorstep!to!thrive.!

!

Page 34Page 36



Page 35Page 37



Page 36Page 38



P a g e  |10 

!

SECTION'FOUR'

What'makes'the'Clwydian'Range'and'Dee'Valley'Special'?'
'

In!setting!out!a!programme!of!management!for!the!protection!and!enhancement!of!the!

AONB!it!is!first!necessary!to!define!those!individual!features!and!qualities!that!make!up!

the!special!character!of!the!area.!

!

Whilst!it!is!recognised!that!there!are!a!number!of!other!elements!within!the!landscape!

that!are!of!particular!value!it!is!important!to!identify!those!features!within!the!Clwydian!

Range!and!Dee!Valley!that!represent!the!finest!qualities!nationally.!!It!is!also!recognised!

that!this!special!character!is!made!up!of!the!unique!combination!of!all!its!Special!features!and!

qualities!where!the!features!may!be!considered!to!be!the!physical!attributes,!it!rolling!moorland,!

woodlands!and!cliffs!and!the!qualities!are!the!nonphysical!attributes!and!are!related!to!how!we!

interact!with!it.!These!are!the!sensory!aspects!of!the!landscape.!

!

The!2009!management!planning!process!for!the!Clwydian!Range!undertook!

consultation!with!local!communities,!public!bodies!and!agencies!with!an!interest!in!the!

area’s!management.!!The!individual!features!and!qualities!that!make!up!the!special!

character!of!the!area!were!identified!and!formed!the!basis!of!the!2009!Management!

Plan!for!the!Clwydian!Range.!!Similarly!the!work!that!took!place!to!deliver!the!extension!

to!the!Clwydian!Range!into!the!Dee!Valley!in!2011!considered!the!special!characteristics!

of!the!landscape!which!were!then!drawn!together!into!an!Interim!Statement!in!2012.!!The!

Special!Features!and!Qualities!identified!in!both!pieces!of!work!have!been!drawn!together!to!form!

the!basis!of!this!plan.!

!

!

!

Special'Qualities'of'the'AONB!

!

Landscape'Character''

and'Quality'
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Tranquillity 
Tranquillity is associated with an atmosphere of calm and stillness; 
peace and quiet; and with dark night skies. 

Remoteness and wilderness, Space and Freedom 
Remoteness and wildness is associated with a feeling of trepidation 
and sometimes even danger. The sublime.  

Space and freedom is related with access to the landscape and the 
uninterrupted and extensive views from the high places within it. 

Bro and the link between communities and their landscape 
A sense of belonging and attachment to the landscape. 

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Page 37Page 39



P a g e  | 11 

!

Special'Features'of'the'AONB!

!

Habitats'and'

Wildlife'
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Heather Moorland and Rolling ridges 
The#dramatic#moorland#ridges#of#the#central#Clwydian Range, expansive 

Llandegla and Ruabon Moors, Llantysilio and North Berwyn. 

Broadleaved woodlands and Veteran trees 
Bishops Wood, Cwm and Wheeler Valley. Ash dominated Alyn Valley 
woods and the small copses of the upper Alyn and upland oak woods of 
the Dee Valley. 

River Valleys and the River Dee 
The dramatic and powerful river Dee contrasted with the smaller twisting 
and winding River Alyn and River Wheeler.  

Limestone grasslands, cliffs and screes. 
Graig Fawr, Loggereads and Bryn Alyn – Llanarmon yn Ial and the 
spectacular Eglwyseg Escapement

!

!

Historic'

Environment'
!

Historic'Settlement'and'Archaeology'

Historic#settlement#patterns#and#conservation#areas.#The#diverse#patterns#and#

features#in#the#landscape#left#by#previous#generations.#

#

Industrial'Features'and'the'World'Heritage'Site'

Limestone#quarrying#and#lead#mining,#slate#quarries#and#associated#tramways#

and#workings#–#the#Pontcysyllte#Aqueduct#and#canal,#Horseshoe#Falls#

#

Historic'Defence'Features'

The#dramatic#chain#of#Iron#Age#Hillforts#of#the#Clwydian#Range,#Castell#Dinas#

Bran#and#Chirk#Castle#and#medival#Motte#and#Bailys#at#Tomon#y#Rhodwedd,#

tomen#y#Fadre#and#Carrog.#

#

Small'historic'features'

Often#unlisted#or#scheduled#a#rich#mixture#of#small#historic#features#that#are#an#

important#part#of#the#rich#cultural#layer#of#the#landscape#–#wells,#village#pumps,#

boundary#stones,#waymarkers,#milk#stands#and#K6#telephone#boxes.#

#

Traditional'boundaries'

Drystone#walls#and#hedges#reflecting#traditional#skills#and#craftsmanship#and#

often#reflecting#local#styles#and#geology.

!

Access'Recreation'

and'Tourism'

Iconic'Visitor'and'Cultural'Attractions'

Sites#that#have#helped#to#shape#the#identity#of#the#AONB#as#a#visitor#destination#

–Loggerheads,#Mole#Famau,#Castell#Dinas#Bran,#Valle#Crucis#Abbey,#the#

Horseshoe#Pass#and#Pontcysyllte#Aqueduct#and#Horseshoe#Falls#

#

The'Offa’s'Dyke'National'Trail'and'Promoted'Routes'

Stretching#from#Prestatyn#Hillside#in#the#north#to#Llangollen#in#the#South#The#

National#Trail#makes#the#AONB#particularly#accessible.#The#Dee#Valley#Way,#

north#Berwyn#Way#and#a#network#of#community#paths.#Together#with#extensive#

areas#of#Access#Land#the#landscape#of#the#AONB#is#particularly#accessible.#

'

'

Culture'and'People'

The'Built'Environment'

The#villages#and#towns,#hamlets#and#scattered#settlements.#

People'and'Communities'

A#rich#mix#of#culture#and#strong#sense#of#community#–#the#facilities#and#services#

that#areessential#to#sustaining#rural#life.

Page 38Page 40



P a g e  | 11 

!

A!Vision!for!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!AONB!

!
The!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!AONB!is!a!dynamic!landscape!with!flourishing!

communities!and!a!thriving!local!economy.!!This!landscape!supports!a!rich!biological!and!

cultural!resource!delivering!benefits!for!the!communities,!economies!and!ecosystems!far!

beyond!its!boundary.!!The!landscape!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!is!cherished!as!a!

peaceful!haven!by!those!living!in!and!visiting!the!AONB!and!is!treasured!for!its!open!spaces!

and!commanding!views.!!Its!special!features!and!the!benefits!they!provide!are!understood!

and!appreciated!by!all.!

!

The!AONB!is!managed!through!sound!and!effective!partnerships!which!ensure!that!

communities!and!visitors!are!fully!engaged!in!decision!making!and!are!empowered!to!have!a!

stake!in!their!local!landscape!and!invest!in!its!future.!!!

!

The!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!is!a!flagship!for!sustainable!development!and!forward!

planning!and!its!international!protection!as!a!category!V!protected!landscape!is!influential!

on!an!international,!national!and!local!stage.!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Page 39Page 41



P a g e  | 13 

!

LANDSCAPE(QUALITY(AND(CHARACTER(

(

(

!

!

!

!

!

This!section!focuses!specifically!on!the!qualities!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!and!in!

particular!the!tranquility!it!offers,!the!wide!and!expansive!views!in!all!directions!from!almost!every!

corner.!From!the!East!however!views!are!dominated!by!the!conurbations!of!Mold,!Chester,!

Wrexham!and!Merseyside.!This!has!a!significant!impact!on!tranquility,!particularly!at!night!spilling!

light!onto!the!darker!skies!to!the!West.!

!

This!section!also!recognises!the!vital!role!that!people!have!played!and!continue!to!play!in!giving!the!

landscape!a!distinctive!character.!Generations!of!communities!have!shaped!the!land,!farming,!

building!and!moulding!the!landscape!to!meet!their!needs.!It!is!people!who!give!an!area!its!flavour,!its!

culture!and!its!heritage,!accumulated!over!many!generations.!

!

Special(Qualities(

(
! Tranquillity,(!

!

! Remoteness(and(Wilderness(B(Peace!and!quiet!with!a!hint!of!danger!and!surprise!

!

! Bro(and(the(link(between(communities(and(their(landscape(B(A!sense!of!

belonging!and!attachment!to!the!landscape!

Policies( Landscape(Quality(and(Character(

(

PolSQ1. Conserve!and!enhance!the!Special!Qualities!and!distinctive!

character!of!the!AONB’s!landscape!and!associated!features.(

! !

PolSQ2. Safeguard!the!panoramic!views,!tranquillity!and!environmental!

quality!of!the!AONB.!

!

PolSQ3. Secure!the!equitable,!sustainable!use!of!the!area’s!natural!resources!

to!conserve!and!enhance!the!special!qualities!of!the!AONB.!

!

PolSQ4. Protect!and!promote!traditional!cultural!distinctiveness!within!the!

AONB!including!the!Welsh!language.!

Great!diversity!of!landscape,!wideNopen!views,!expansive!moorland!and!dramatic!ridges,!

spectacular!cliffs!and!screes,!ancient!trees!and!rich!woodland,!sweeping!river!valleys!and!

cascading!streams;!diverse!heathlands!and!rich!floristic!grasslands;!

!

Historic!settlements!and!distinctive!buildings,!dramatic!monuments!and!a!tapestry!of!

evidence!of!human!settlement:!world!heritage!site,!canals!aqueducts!and!waterways;!!

!

dark!night!skies;!clear!unpolluted!air,!peace!and!tranquillity,!remote!and!wild;!ruined!

abbeys!and!early!churches,!picturesque!views!and!ancient!ruins;!thriving!communities,!

Welsh!language!and!Culture;!artistic!and!literary!inspiration,!extensive!trails!and!paths;!!

!

Cynefin,!Belonging.!

Page 40Page 42



P a g e  | 14 

!

Objectives)

)

SQO1. Ensure!that!the!natural!resources!and!special!qualities!of!the!AONB!are!

recognised!and!valued.!

SQO2. Ensure!that!the!impacts!of!environmental!change!on!the!AONB!are!

understood!and!a!strategic!response!is!developed!and!implemented!

SQO3. Minimise!the!cumulative!impacts!of!small;scale!change!that!may!erode!the!

special!character!of!the!AONB.!

SQO4. Protect!the!tranquillity!of!the!AONB!and!take!steps!where!possible!to!reduce!

noise!and!light!pollution.!

SQO5. Where!possible!reduce!visual!intrusion!by!screening!or!removing!eyesores.!

SQO6. Establish!a!monitoring!programme!from!key!viewpoints!across!the!AONB!

!

)

HABITATS)AND)WILDLIFE)
The!AONB!supports!a!wide!diversity!of!habitats!and!species!reflecting!the!local!ariations!in!

geology,!topography,!soils,!land!use!and!climate.!The!dramatic!moorland!ridges!of!the!

Clwydian!Range!and!rolling!hills!of!the!Dee!Valley!are!mixed!with!spectacular!limestone!

cliffs,!meandering!and!cascading!rivers!and!scattered!woodlands.!They!contain!some!of!the!

UK’s!most!important!habitats!and!the!significance!of!these!areas!for!conservation!are!

recognised!by!designation!as!a!Site!of!Special!Scientific!Interest,!a!Special!Area!for!

Conservation!and!a!Special!Protection!Area.!

)

Connectivity)

It!is!the!combination!and!variety!of!features!and!habitats!in!the!AONB!that!taken!together!

make!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!special.!It!is!important!to!consider!how!these!

various!components!interact!and!function!as!an!overall!ecosystem.!

!

The!upland!areas!and!river!valleys!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!are!providing!many!

ecosystem!service!benefits!for!people!and!communities!both!within!and!beyond!the!AONB.!

Some!are!well!known!such!as!food,!fuel,!water!and!biodiversity!as!well!as!cultural!services!

such!as!recreation!and!tourism.!Others!are!less!apparent,!but!include!flood!regulation,!soil!

formation!and!pollination!and!are!equally!critical!to!human!well!being.!

!

The!AONB!contains!valued!landscapes!and!natural!habitats!and!its!soils!and!woodlands!store!

carbon.!It!is!an!important!source!of!water!and!food.!Its!landscape!and!natural!beauty!attract!

visitors!seeking!recreation!and!mental!refreshment.!

!

Special Features 

! Heather!Moorland!and!Rolling!ridges!

! Broadleaved!woodlands!and!Veteran!trees!

! River!Valleys!and!the!River!Dee!

! Limestone!grasslands,!cliffs!and!screes.!

Page 41Page 43



P a g e  | 15 

!

Policies' Habitats'and'Wildlife'

! !

PolHW1. Secure!natural!systems!and!networks!that!provide!more!and!

better!places!for!nature!for!the!benefit!of!wildlife!and!people.!!!

!

PolHW2. Restore,!reconnect!and!expand!key!habitats!and!species!at!a!

landscape!scale!in!order!to!increase!resilience!to!environmental!

change.!!

!

PolHW3. Ensure!that!the!conservation!of!habitats!is!an!integral!part!of!

agricultural!and!field!sports!management.!

!

PolHW4. Ensure!that!the!natural!benefits!and!services!of!the!landscape!

are!properly!understood!and!valued.!

'

'

Heather'Moorland'and'rolling'ridges'

'

Most!of!the!moorland!within!the!AONB!consists!of!dry!heath!although!wet!heath!and!

blanket!bog!are!also!present!particularly!in!the!South.!!Management!is!primarily!for!sheep!

with!grouse!management!also!important!in!the!Dee!Valley.!!Although!moorland!areas!in!the!

Clwydian!Range!are!not!designated!they!are!still!important!habitats!for!protected!species.!!

Across!the!AONB!there!is!a!distinctive!transitional!zone!on!the!lower!hillsides!where!

moorland!gives!way!to!more!fertile!lowFlying!farmland.!This!upland!margin,!often!known!in!

Wales!as!ffridd,!has!a!distinctive!habitat!composition!with!elements!characteristic!of!both!

upland!and!lowland!habitats.!!Ffridd!can!often!be!one!of!the!most!diverse!habitats!within!

the!AONB!and!it!particularly!important!in!connecting!more!fragmented!areas.!

!

!

Objectives'

'

HMRO1. Work!with!the!North!Wales!Bionet!Group!to!maintain!or!extend!the!current!

extent!of!heather!moorland!within!the!AONB.'

HMRO2. To!bring!areas!of!heather!moorland!into!positive!productive!management.!

HMRO3. Continue!to!monitor!black!grouse!and!other!upland!bird!species!!

as!an!indicator!of!habitat!condition.!

HMRO4. Associate!food!production!with!ecosystem!management.!!

HMRO5. Support!and!encourage!sustainable!grouse!moors!management!!where!it!has!

positive!environmental!and!economic!impacts.!!

HMRO6. Where!possible!restore!areas!of!former!heathland!habitat!within!the!AONB.!

HMRO7. Provide!support!to!farmers!and!landowners!in!upland!areas!to!bring!moorlands!

into!management!schemes.!

!

!

!

'

Page 42Page 44



P a g e  | 16 

!

Limstone(Grasslands,(Cliffs(and(Screes.(

(

Calcareous!grasslands!and!limestone!outcrops!exist!throughout!the!AONB!most!notably!to!

the!North!around!Prestatyn!Hillside!and!the!central!areas!around!Llanarmon!yn!Ial!and!

Eryrys.!!The!dramatic!Eglwyseg!Escarpment!dominates!the!Eastern!end!of!the!Dee!Valley!in!

the!South!and!provides!some!of!the!most!outstanding!features!of!the!AONB.!!

!

These!areas!are!associated!with!shallow,!free!draining!base!rich!soils!supporting!rich!plant!

communities.!This!habitat!type!contributes!greatly!to!the!biodiversity!of!the!AONB.!!These!

open!area!have!traditionally!been!maintained!by!grazing!livestock!but!changes!in!farm!

practices!have!led!to!some!areas!becoming!underIgrazed!with!a!subsequent!loss!of!species!

diversity!as!scrub!encroaches.!!!

!

Many!limestone!areas!within!the!AONB!are!of!significant!biological!and!geological!interest!

and!as!such!are!afforded!protection!as!Sites!of!Special!Scientific!Interest!and!Special!Areas!of!

Conservation.!!!

!

Traditionally!these!areas!have!been!associated!with!quarrying!and!mineral!extraction!with!a!

few!large!quarries!still!in!operation,!and!a!wealth!of!industrial!archaeology!associated!with!

19th!and!early!20th!century!lead!mining.(

(

(

Objectives(

(

WVTO1. Maintain!the!current!extent!of!calcareous!grassland!and!limestone!pavement!

within!the!AONB.!

WVTO2. Bring!all!areas!of!public!owned!/!managed!limestone!grassland,!cliffs!and!

screes!into!favourable!management!schemes.!

WVTO3. Provide!opportunities!for!privately!owned!areas!of!limestone!grassland!and!

pavement!to!come!into!favourable!management!schemes.!

WVTO4. Ensure!that!recreational!pressure!is!minimised!in!sensitive!areas.!

(

(

(

Woodland(and(Veteran(Trees(

Many!of!these!woodlands!represent!a!link!with!the!landscape!as!it!appeared!following!

the!last!ice!age!and!support!a!diverse!range!of!flora!and!fauna.!Ash!woodlands!are!

particularly!important!in!the!Alyn!Valley!where!it!has!been!designated!SAC.!In!other!

parts!of!the!AONB!oak!woods!are!significant.!The!historic!parklands,!particularly!evident!

In!the!Dee!Valley!contain!some!of!the!oldest!trees!in!the!AONB!and!are!key!components!

of!the!historic!landscape!as!well!as!supporting!significant!biodiversity.!

!

(

(

(

Page 43Page 45



P a g e  | 17 

!

Objectives)

!

WVTO1. To!maintain!the!current!extent!of!broadleaved!woodland!and!veteran!trees!

within!the!AONB.!

WVTO2. Record!the!current!extent!and!condition!of!veteran!trees!in!the!AONB.!

WVTO3. To!maintain!and!restore!broadleaved!woodland!towards!a!favourable!condition!

through!the!implementation!of!Biodiversity!Action!Plans!for!Mixed!Ash!

Woodlands,!Upland!Oak!Woodlands!and!Wet!Woodlands.!

WVTO4. Develop!publically!owned!woodlands!as!models!of!best!practice!in!broadleaf!

woodland!management.!

!

River)Valleys)

!

In!considering!the!River!Valleys!of!the!AONB!it!is!important!to!look!beyond!the!water!bodies!

themselves.!!For!example!the!management!of!the!moorlands!and!ffridd,!maintenance!of!

woodlands!and!field!boundaries!can!not!only!manage!flood!waters!but!can!also!deliver!

better!water!quality!and!help!in!carbon!capture.!!Also!we!should!remember!that!the!water!

ultimately!flows!far!beyond!the!boundary!of!the!AONB!so!the!impact!of!land!management!

within!the!AONB!is!potentially!far!reaching.!

!

The!River!Dee!is!the!most!dominant!of!the!rivers!in!the!AONB!with!the!Dee!catchment!

extending!northwards!to!include!the!River!Alyn!in!the!heart!of!the!Clwydian!Range.!!The!

Dee!is!designated!SAC!and!is!important!of!Atlantic!salmon,!otter!and!a!range!of!wetland!

habitats.!!The!Wheeler!is!the!other!significant!river!forming!and!important!part!of!the!

Clwyd!Catchment.!

!

They!are!dynamic!systems!and!provide!a!wide!range!of!ecological!niches!supporting!a!

diverse!flora!and!fauna.!They!also!form!important!wildlife!corridors,!enabling!dispersion!and!

migration!of!species.!

!

!

)

Objectives)
!

WVTO1. Continue!to!monitor!the!extent!of!key!indicator!species!such!as!otter!and!

water!vole!in!order!to!gauge!habitat!condition.!

WVTO2. Continue!to!develop!a!partnership!of!key!agencies!and!bodies!to!ensure!an!

integrated!and!landscape!approach!to!management.!

WVTO3. Support!and!develop!a!landscape!scale!approach!to!a!programme!of!

invasive!species!control!particularly!in!relation!to!Himalayan!balsam.!

WVTO4. Raise!awareness!amongst!the!general!public!and!landowners/managers!of!

the!importance!of!the!river!valleys!for!biodiversity.!

!

)

Page 44Page 46



P a g e  | 18 

!

THE#HISTORIC#ENVIRONMENT#
#

The!AONB!has!a!wealth!of!archaeological!and!historic!remains!that!date!from!the!early!

prehistoric!period!right!through!to!the!Second!World!War.!Sites!range!from!the!massive!

Iron!Age!Hillforts!to!the!less!conspicuous!crop!marks!and!finds!in!the!lower!areas.!The!

large!number!of!archaeological!sites!in!the!AONB!are!part!of!the!continuous!imprint!of!

human!activity!that!contribute!to!the!landscape!character.!They!represent!human!

activity!from!around!the!last!ice!age!12,000!years!ago!to!the!more!recent!but!important!

industrial!landscapes!associated!with!mineral!and!stone!extraction.!

!

Many!of!these!archaeological!sites!are!Scheduled!Ancient!Monuments!and!are!afforded!

protection!through!Cadw.!Many!other!historic!features,!such!as!boundary!stones,!village!

wells!and!milestones!are!not!protected!and!as!such!are!much!more!vulnerable.!!!

!

!

Special Features 

! Historic!settlement!and!archaeology!

! Industrial!Features!and!the!World!Heritage!Site!

! Historic!defence!features!

! Small!historic!features!

! Traditional!boundaries!

!

!

Policies# Historic#Environment#

! !

PolHE1. To!conserve!and!enhance!features!and!sites!of!archaeological,!

cultural!or!historic!importance!within!the!AONB!whilst!recognising!

that!the!whole!of!the!area!has!an!historic!dimension.!

PolHE2. Increase!our!understanding!of!all!aspect!of!the!Historic!Environment!

of!the!AONB.!

PolHE3. Ensure!that!the!World!Heritage!Site!is!conserved!in!the!context!of!its!

setting!within!the!AONB.

! !

! !

!

Historic#Settlement#and#Archaeology.#

#

Objectives#

!

HSAO1. Work!towards!a!position!where!the!condition/state!of!all!archaeological!sites!

within!the!AONB!is!known!and!appropriate!management!work!is!carried!out.!!

Utilise!HER!information,!Pan!Wales!projects,!Glastir!agriPenvironment!schemes!

and!the!planning!process!to!facilitate!this.!

HSAO2. Encourage!owners!of!Historic!parks!and!Gardens!within!the!AONB!to!

maintain!and!restore!existing!parkland!features!as!noted!in!the!Register.!

HSAO3. Increase!the!profile!of!the!Historic!Environment!through!effective!and!!

Page 45Page 47



P a g e  | 19 

!

consistent!interpretation!and!information.!

HSAO4. Incorporate!information!gathered!as!part!of!the!Historic!Environment!Record!

into!the!continuous!management!process!within!the!AONB.!

!

&

Industrial&Features&and&World&Heritage&Site.&

&

The!tranquillity!and!beauty!of!the!AONB!today!in!many!places!masks!the!bustling!and!

thriving!industry!that!once!dominated!many!parts!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!

during!the!Industrial!Revolution.!!!The!drive!to!win!natural!resources!from!the!landscape;!

lead,!limestone,!slate!and!sand,!saw!entrepreneurs!and!prospectors!push!high!onto!remote!

hillsides!and!deep!into!wooded!valleys!in!search!of!fortune.!!The!same!period!saw!great!

innovation!in!overGcoming!the!natural!barriers!of!the!landscape!and!features!such!as!the!

Pontcysyllte!Aqueduct,!the!Alyn!Valley’s!Leete!and!tramways!to!Moel!Fferna!and!Llantysilio!

and!extensive!lead!works!at!Minera!remain!as!dramatic!reminders!of!past!ingenuity!and!

determination.!!

!

Throughout!the!AONB!remains!of!winding!sheds,!engine!houses,!tramways!and!limekilns!are!

an!important!part!of!the!special!character!of!the!landscape!and!offer!reminders!of!past!

communities.!!

&

Objectives&

&

DFSO1. To!secure!the!integrity!of!the!outstanding!universal!values!of!the!World!

Heritage!Site.!

DFSO2. Maintenance!of!key!views!to!and!from!the!WHS!and!the!visual!and!cultural!

setting.!

DFSO3. Take!steps!to!limit!the!impact!visitor!pressures!on!the!historic!integrity!and!

setting!of!the!World!Heritage!site!

DFSO4. Ensure!a!consistent!approach!to!interpretation,!signage!and!quality!of!the!

experience!across!partnership!authorities.!

DFSO5. Raise!awareness!of!the!importance!of!industrial!sites!and!features!within!the!

planning!and!AONB.!

DFSO6. Develop!an!“at!risk!“!register!for!key!industrial!historic!sites!and!work!

towards!programmes!that!will!respond!where!action!is!required.!

!

!

&

Hillforts&and&Defensive&Structures&

&

The!medieval!strong!holds!of!Castell!Dinas!Brân!and!Chirk!Castle!associate!the!Southern!part!

of!the!AONB!with!the!defence!of!the!Dee!Valley!by!first!the!Welsh!and!subsequently!the!

English!under!Edward!I.!!!The!impressive!chain!of!Iron!Age!Hillforts!of!the!Clwydian!Range!

and!Dee!Valley!point!to!a!much!earlier!occupation!and!defensive!settlement.!Later!again!the!

Page 46Page 48



P a g e  | 20 

!

association!of!Owain!Glyndwr!with!Corwen!and!Ederynion!give!a!strong!cultural!and!

historical!root!in!defence!of!national!identity.!

!

Objectives)

)

DFSO1. Ensure!continuation!of!the!Heather!and!Hillforts!Project!to!maintain!existing!

level!of!work!at!the!4!hillforts!of!Penycloddiau,!Moel!Arthur,!Moel!y!Gaer!

Llanbedr!and!Moel!Fenlli!and!aim!to!continue!programme!to!include!Moel!y!

Gaer!Bodfari!and!Moel!Hiraddug.!

DFSO2. Ensure!the!structural!integrity!features!and!ensure!that!impacts!of!visitor!

pressure!is!minimised.!

!

)

Small)Historic)Features)

The!landscape!and!particularly!the!villages!of!the!Clwydian!Range!Area!of!Outstanding!

Natural!Beauty!contain!many!small!features!which!cumulatively!help!enhance!the!area!and!

give!it!its!character.!Some!still!have!a!useful!function,!like!post!boxes!and!village!greens!and!

parish!commons.!Others!like!old!fingerpost!road!signs,!no!longer!maintained!by!the!Highway!

Authority,!milestones!or!K6!red!telephone!boxes!no!longer!have!a!use!and!can!easily!

disappear!from!our!landscape.!!

!

These!everyday!features!are!often!taken!for!granted!but!our!settlement!landscapes!would!

be!the!poorer!without!them.!

!

Objectives)

)

DFSO3. Raise!awareness!of!the!importance!of!small!historic!features!within!both!the!

planning!and!highways!environments!by!providing!training!sessions!to!

professionals.!

DFSO4. Encourage!Communities!to!identify!and!map!features!within!their!

communities!on!a!standard!database!which!is!compatible!with!the!HER.!

DFSO5. Encourage!Communities!to!adopt!these!features!and!act!as!their!champions!

by!raising!awareness!within!community!councils!and!youth!groups.!

!

)

Boundaries)

)

Boundary!features!in!the!Clwydian!Range!largely!reflect!local!circumstances!and!

geology.!!In!the!limestone!areas!the!boundaries!are!predominantly!stone!built,!in!the!

more!recently!enclosed!upland!areas!boundaries!are!predominantly!fence!lines!and!in!

the!agricultural!areas!of!the!lower!slopes!in!both!the!east!and!west,!hedges!

predominate.!

!

)

)

Page 47Page 49



P a g e  | 21

!

Objectives))

)

BO1. Using!SDF!and!other!funds!develop!a!Countryside!Grant!schemes!to!support!

projects!which!will!maintain!and!enhance!the!most!important!boundaries!in!

the!AONB!as!well!as!other!Special!Features!

BO2. In!line!with!aspirations!within!The#Welsh#Historic#Environment#Strategic#

Statement#(2009)!raise!the!skills!base!amongst!the!local!workforce!to!

increase!the!number!of!people!who!can!carry!out!the!necessary!conservation!

and!repair!work.!

BO3. Identify!the!most!important!boundaries!within!the!AONB.!

!

!

ACCESS RECREATION AND TOURISM 
The!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!is!an!historic!gateway!to!Wales,!crossed!by!a!

number!of!access!corridors.!These!corridors,!including!main!road!routes!(such!as!the!

A5,!A55!and!A494),!upland!passes!(including!the!Horseshoe!Pass)!and!the!rail!routes,!

have!varied!historical!significance!as!well!as!being!highly!important!for!tourism.!

In!2007!a!Sustainable!Tourism!Strategy!and!Action!Plan!for!the!Clwydian!Range!AONB!

was!prepared,!to!run!up!to!2013!and!beyond.!!It!formed!the!basis!for!the!award!to!the!

AONB!of!the!European!Charter!for!Sustainable!Tourism!in!Protected!Areas!and!has!been!

actively!used!by!the!AONB!team!and!its!partners!to!guide!their!tourism!related!work!in!

the!area.!!This!strategy!was!reviewed!in!2014!encompassing!the!new!parts!of!the!AONB!in!

the!South.!!The!strategy!gives!recognition!to!the!value!of!tourism!to!the!economy,!

environment!and!communities!of!the!AONB!and!its!wider!area!of!influence.!

Sustainable!Tourism!is!defined!as!tourism!that!takes!full!account!of!its!current!and!

future!economic,!social!and!environmental!impacts,!addressing!the!needs!of!visitors,!the!

industry,!the!environment!and!host!communities.!

)

Health)and)well6being.)

The!trend!across!the!UK!and!other!developed!nations!is!for!physical!activity!levels!to!

decline.!This!is!associated!with!widespread!use!of!the!private!car,!an!increase!in!

sedentary!leisure!activities!and!greater!mechanisation!in!the!home,!workplace!and!

public!places.!Illness!as!an!outcome!of!physical!inactivity!has!been!conservatively!

calculated!to!be!£1.08!Billion!per!annum!in!direct!costs!to!the!NHS!alone.!Indirect!costs!

have!been!estimated!as!£8.2!Billion!per!annum.!Studies!have!shown!that!in!a!UK!

context!for!every!£!spent!on!developing!and!promoting!access!to!the!countryside!

presents!a!£19!saving!to!the!health!Service.!Investment!in!infrastructure!and!action!to!

facilitate!increased!activity!levels!amongst!local!communities!through!access!to!the!

countryside!is!critical!therefore!in!promoting!significantly!improved!levels!of!health!an!d!

wellbeing.!

!

Special)Features)

)

! Iconic!Visitor!and!Cultural!Attractions!

! The!Offa’s!Dyke!National!Trail!and!Promoted!Route!

Page 48Page 50



P a g e  | 22 

!

!

!

!

!

Policies' Access,'Recreation'and'Tourism'

! !

PolART1. To!promote!the!sustainable!use!and!enjoyment!and!

understanding!of!the!landscape!of!the!AONB!in!a!way!that!

contributes!to!local!prosperity!and!social!inclusiveness.!!!

!

PolART2. Ensure!the!attractiveness!of!the!AONB’s!landscape!and!views!as!

a!primary!basis!for!the!areas!tourism!are!retained.!!!

!

PolART3. Ensure!that!all!visitors!and!residents!are!able!to!experience!and!

enjoy!the!benefits!of!the!special!qualities!of!the!AONB!within!

environmental!limits.!!

!

PolART4. Ensure!that!the!honey!pots!and!other!key!access!points!are!

managed!to!a!high!standard!and!that!they!act!as!models!of!good!

practice!in!access!and!conservation!delivery.!!

!

PolART5. Ensure!the!Country!Parks!and!the!Offa’s!Dyke!National!Trail!

provide!effective!gateways!to!the!AONB!in!promoting!

understanding!and!awareness!of!its!key!qualities!and!features.!!

!

!

Iconic'Visitor'and'Cultural'Attractions.'

'

Key!sites!such!as!Loggerheads,!Moel!Famau,!Castell!Dinas!Bran,!Valle!Crucis,!the!River!

Dee!and!Pontcysyllte!aqueduct!have!been!reproduced!by!early!landscape!painters!such!

as!Richard!Wilson,!Turner!and!Edward!Pugh,!and!as!such!have!particular!significance!in!

the!very!early!presentation!of!picturesque!landscapes.!!They!have,!in!part,!contributed!

to!a!very!strong!tradition!of!tourism!to!these!areas!within!the!AONB.!

!

These!are!the!sites!that!help!to!give!an!area!a!sense!of!place!because!of!the!cultural!

attachment!associated!with!them.!!The!influence!of!Loggerheads!and!Moel!Famau!on!the!

central!Clwydian!Range!has!been!significant!and!spanned!generations.!!It!has!!in!part!shaped!

communities!and!been!a!corner!stone!of!the!tourism!in!this!area.!!

!

Similarly!Castell!Dinas!Brân,!Valle!Crucis!Abbey,!Pontcysyllte!and!the!and!the!Horseshoe!Pass!

combine!to!give!the!Southern!part!of!the!AONB!a!sense!of!the!sublime!and!has!!provoked!

generations!of!visitors!in!search!of!the!picturesque!to!flock!to!the!Dee!Valley.!

!

Page 49Page 51



P a g e  | 23 

!

Objectives
!

IVCO1. To!ensure!that!visitors!and!the!tourism!industry!understand!the!need!for,!and!

support!the!conservation!and!enhancement!of,!the!special!qualities!of!the!

AONB!as!key!assets!upon!which!tourism!is!based.!

IVCO2. Promote!and!assist!convenient!and!sustainable!access!into!the!AONB!and!

special!places!within!it.!

IVCO3. Continue!to!develop!public!transport!links!and!develop!a!strategy!to!reduce!

congestion!between!honeyApots!and!with!other!centres!of!population.!

IVCO4. Investigate!ways!to!reduce!congestion!around!key!visitor!areas.!

IVCO5. Target!information!relating!to!the!Countryside!Code,!behaviour!and!the!

Country!Park!and!provide!information!relating!to!the!impact!of!visitors!on!

conservation!and!remedy!works!including!tree!felling.!

IVCO6. Ensure!that!both!Loggerheads!Moel!Famau!Country!Parks!continue!to!act!as!

exemplars!in!delivering!projects!in!key!areas!and!manage!both!sites!towards!

favourable!condition!through!sensitive!ecological!management.!!

IVCO7. Provide!assistance!to!tourism!businesses!in!the!area!should!be!helped!to!

embrace!the!opportunities!and!responsibilities!of!being!in!a!protected!area,!

understanding!more!about!the!AONB,!improving!their!management!of!

resources!and!informing!their!guests!about!the!area.!

!

The Offa’s Dyke Trail and Promoted Routes 
!

The!Offa’s!Dyke!Path!National!Trail!is!a!key!feature!of!the!AONB,!running!its!entire!

length!from!Prestatyn!Hillside!in!the!North!to!the!Dee!Valley!in!the!South.!!!It!links!many!of!

the!AONB’s!most!outstanding!features!crossing!the!peaks!and!hillforts!of!the!Clwydian!

Range,!the!dramatic!moorland!plateau!of!the!Ruabon!Mountain!before!crossing!the!

Eglwyseg!Escapement!and!the!Pontcysyllte!Aqueduct.!!!!

!

The!AONB!is!also!well!served!by!an!extensive!network!of!rights!of!way,!which!have!been!

actively!maintained,!identified!and!promoted!for!various!kinds!of!access,!with!some!

promoted!as!named!trails.!The!River!Dee!provides!a!major!facility!for!recreation.!

!

Objectives!

!

ODPO1. Continue!a!programme!of!Rights!of!Way!improvement!across!the!AONB!

through!the!use!of!the!Community!miles!Initiative!and!other!area!access!

improvement!works!focusing!on!increasing!opportunities!to!access!the!

countryside.!!

ODPO2. Provide!increased!opportunities!where!appropriate!for!cycling!and!horse!

riding!in!the!AONB!and!promote!these!opportunities.!

ODPO3. Ensure!each!Local!Access!Forum!has!a!good!understanding!of!the!needs!of!the!

AONB!through!regular!liaison!

ODPO4. Raise!awareness!of!the!acknowledged!health!and!wellAbeing!benefits!

provided!by!the!AONB!and!develop!initiatives!promoting!physical!activity!

particularly!walking!and!cycling.!

Page 50Page 52



P a g e  | 24

!

ODPO5. Understand!and!work!towards!removing!physical!and!psychological!barriers!

to!access.!

ODPO6. Investigate!ways!to!promote!the!trail!with!local!tourism!businesses!and!to!

develop!initiatives!that!will!strengthen!business!links.!

ODPO7. Strengthen!links!between!the!Trail!and!nearby!settlements!and!places!of!

interest!utilising!the!wider!Rights!of!Way!Network!and!Public!Transport.!

ODPO8. Monitor!erosion!in!key!areas!and!develop!a!programme!of!measures!that!will!

reduce!the!impact!of!the!trail!on!the!landscape!by!limiting!width!or!depth!of!

path!as!appropriate.!

!

!

THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT 

Policies. Historic.Environment.

! !

PolHE1. Ensure!that!new!development!adopts!the!highest!standards!of!

design!and!is!sympathetic!to!the!character!and!appearance!of!the!

AONB.!!!

PolHE2. Retain!and!improve!essential!services!and!facilities!for!local!people.!!

PolHE3. Ensure!that!local!businesses!and!communities!feel!a!sense!of!

ownership!and!responsibility!for!their!surroundings.!!

! !

! !

Objectives
!

BEO1. Ensure!new!development!in!and!around!the!AONB!is!sympathetically!located!

in!the!landscape,!and!is!well!designed!to!complement!the!character!and!

appearance!of!the!area!and!its!setting,!particularly!in!respect!of!visual!

impact,!scale,!materials!and!landscaping.!

BEO2. Conserve!and!enhance!the!character!and!local!distinctiveness!of!historic!

villages,!buildings!and!gardens!within!the!AONB.!

BEO3. Promote!action!to!reduce!the!visual!impact!of!prominent!existing!

development!in!the!AONB.!

Culture and People 

Communities!need!to!be!at!the!heart!of!any!vision.!Rural!communities!need!economic!

and!social!sustainability.!There!are!two!key!areas!that!need!support.!The!first!is!local!

facilities!such!as!shops,!pubs,!schools!and!youth!clubs,!which!provide!vital!services!for!

the!community!and!local!employment,!and!includes!more!recent!necessities!of!life!

such!as!mobile!phone!and!internet!access.!

!

Page 51Page 53



P a g e  | 25

!

The!second!is!countering!rural!exclusion!by!which!opportunities!are!limited!by!issues!

such!as!unemployment,!poor!skills,!low!incomes,!poor!housing!and!poor!public!

transport.!A!lack!of!affordable!housing!for!local!people!is!another!important!factor.!

Communities!may!also!have!specific!needs!for!particular!groups,!including!older!and!

younger!people!and!the!less!able.!It!is!also!important!that!the!local!communities!feel!

that!they!are!part!of!the!AONB!and!they!have!a!part!to!play!in!formulating!policy!and!

the!decision!making!process.!Communities!should!directly!benefit!from!being!in!the!

AONB!through!projects!that!are!targeted!at!communities!and!their!environs!through!the!

Sustainable!Development!Fund.!

!

!

Objectives!

!!

CPO1. Help!local!communities!to!retain!and!enhance!access!to!essential!

community!services!and!facilities.!

CPO2. Support!the!development!of!affordable!housing!for!local!people!in!

appropriate!locations,!whilst!maintaining!the!highest!standards!of!design!

and!landscaping.!

CPO3. Foster!a!sense!of!place!and!local!pride!to!secure!social!wellFbeing.!

CPO4. Ensure!that!the!governance!of!the!AONB!promotes!effective!partnerships!and!

fosters!opportunities!for!communities!to!engage!in!the!management!of!the!

AONB.!!

Page 52Page 54



Clwydian Range and Dee Valley

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

State of the AONB Report

2014 – 2019

P
a
g
e
 5

3
P

age 55



In setting an agenda that will ensure the special qualities and features of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley are preserved, it is first necessary

to make an assessment of their current extent and condition. It is also important that the issues impacting upon them are identified and that

factors likely to impact upon them in the future are anticipated. 

The State of the AONB Report identifies where possible the extent and condition of each feature and the factors impacting on them. It also

seeks to identify an ideal state for these features and begins to establish indicators that will help to define what we are aiming for in pursuing

the good health of the AONB. It is an on going process that relies on constant data gathering and monitoring and should be able to respond to

changing demands on the environment. There is a requirement for up to date information that will lead to informed responses to

environmental change.

P
a
g
e
 5

4
P

age 56



P a g e  | 2 

Tranquillity, Remoteness and Wilderness 
 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Intrusion 

 

A variety of factors can have an 

impact on the Tranquillity, 

Remoteness and Wilderness of 

the AONB. Traffic noise, light 

pollution, the impact of 

quarrying and utility 

installations can all have an 

effect on the tranquillity of the 

AONB and peoples enjoyment 

of the landscape. 

 

Light from the major 

settlements, particularly to the 

east and north of the AONB, 

have a significant impact on 

dark night skies. 

Light and noise pollution from 

transport, development and 

recreation erodes tranquillity – 

A55, A494, A5, A542 

Intrusive and degrading 

elements such as power lines / 

phone lines, transmitters, masts 

and wind turbines can have a 

significant impact. 

Cumulative effects of small scale 

change can lead to a 

degradation of landscape 

character. 

Permitted development 

completed within the AONB 

could also impact the landscape. 

Accommodating visitor access 

and destination sites within 

sensitive locations. 

 

 

Further intrusion mapping required 

 

Extent: 

Illuminated bollards and signs within 

Denbighshire – 80 within AONB 

Wrexham - unknown 

Flintshire - unknown 

Street lights 

1,350 directly adjacent to or within 

AONB in Denbighshire. 

 
 

 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Roads 

 

The principle roads and 

communication routes in the 

AONB primarily cross the 

 

Possible environmental impact 

of major road improvement 

schemes in the AONB.  

Potential loss of rural character 

 

Length and class of roads in the 

AONB: 

Dualled EuroRoute –                    1.6km 

Trunk Road -                                35.0km 

A Road -                                        49.2km 

P
a
g
e
 5

5
P

age 57



P a g e  | 3 

Clwydian Range in an east – 

west direction, and run in an 

east – west direction along the 

Dee Valley and Morwynion 

Valley. The most significant 

road is the dualled A55 

EuroRoute which passes 

through the narrowest part of 

the AONB at Rhuallt. Other 

important routes are the A5 and 

A494 Trunk Roads and the A542 

Horseshoe Pass, A5104, A5151, 

A541, A539 and A525. However, 

the bulk of the network within 

the AONB is made up of smaller 

roads and lanes, many of which 

add to the character of the area. 

 

and features as a result of 

highway maintenance, signage 

and minor improvement works. 

Increasing traffic related to 

people working at a 

considerable distance from 

where they live, increasing 

commuter traffic, and use of cars 

for recreational visits. 

Raising awareness of the AONB 

through threshold / village 

signs. 

B Road -                                         23.6km 

Minor roads -                             338.8km 

Unclassified County Roads -    60.9km 

Total length of road                  509.1km 

 

No. of AONB threshold signs – 16 

No. of AONB branded village signs – 

21 

 

 

 

 
 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 
Minerals 

 

The limestone and slate 

geology of the Clwydian Range 

and Dee Valley has been 

exploited for its mineral wealth 

for centuries. This has left its 

mark on the landscape; many 

abandoned or worked out 

mineral sites have been 

assimilated into the landscape 

over time but others still scar 

the area. There are two active 

slate quarries in the AONB, 

other sites are dormant but 

 

Restoration and aftercare of 

quarries, including these which 

are outside the AONB but visible 

from it or impact on views into 

the area. 

Dormant sites – need to pursue 

Prohibition Notices under s102 

of T&CP Act 1990. 

 

 

 

Within AONB 

No. of active quarries – 2 

Area of active quarries – 41.5 ha 

% of total AONB area – 0.11% 

No. of dormant quarries - unknown 

Area of dormant quarries - unknown 

% of total AONB area - unknown 

No. of confirmed Prohibition Orders 

- unknown 
 

Within 3km of AONB 

No. of active quarries - 8 

Area of active quarries – 203.38 ha 

No. of dormant quarries - unknown 

Area of dormant quarries - unknown 

P
a
g
e
 5

6
P

age 58



P a g e  | 4 

have old planning permissions. 

Given the scale of mineral 

operations and their potential 

impact on a wide area, 

including important views out of 

the AONB, there is a need to 

have regard to both active and 

dormant quarries outside the 

designated area. 

 

No of confirmed Prohibition Orders – 

unknown                                                  

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Utilities and Energy 

 

Overhead power transmission 

lines and communications masts 

are the most prominent utility 

infrastructure within the AONB. 

The largest power lines cross 

the AONB at its narrowest point 

near Rhuallt and travel through 

the AONB down the Morwynion 

Valley. Given the topography of 

the AONB it is an attractive 

location for communications 

infrastructure. The most 

prominent installations are the 

masts at Moel y Parc and Cyrn y 

Brain, but there are also 

prominent masts at 

Gwaenysgor, Moel Gelli, Craig-

y-dduallt, Coed Mawr and 

Barber’s Hill. 

 

A relatively new feature of 

 

Overhead cables and wires can 

degrade the local landscape 

character. 

Reluctance to share masts leads 

to duplication and an increase 

impact on the local landscape. 

Mobile phone coverage 

‘blackspots’ lead to pressure for 

additional communication masts. 

Cumulative impact of large scale 

wind farm development in the 

setting of the AONB degrades 

landscape character and sense 

of tranquillity. 

The need to moving towards 

zero carbon development 

without harming the AONB. 

 

 

 
Extent: 

Length of National Grid high-voltage 

overhead cable (400kv) – 17.46km 

Length of 132kv overhead power 

lines – 1.38km 

Length of 33kv overhead power lines 

– 44.76km (87.85 

Length of 33kv undergrounded 

power lines – 6.19km (12.15%) 

 

Communication masts: 

Moel y Parc (TV) 

Moel y Gelli (Emergency Services) 

Gwaenysgor 

Bryn Alyn 

Cyrn y Brain 

Moel Gelli 

Craig-y-dduallt 

Coed Mawr 

Barber’s Hill 

 

Wind turbines: 

1 46m high wind turbine consented 

P
a
g
e
 5

7
P

age 59



P a g e  | 5 

regional energy infrastructure 

is the development of major on-

shore and off-shore wind farms. 

 

within the AONB 

50m+ high wind turbines within 15km 

– 122 

 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Land Management Practices 

 

Land Management Practices are 

continually changing, adapting 

to government policy, climate 

change and agricultural 

improvements. These changes 

in management have the ability 

to impact on the landscape of 

the AONB. 

 

Impact of European and Welsh 

Government agricultural and 

forestry policies can have a 

significant impact on landscape 

character and views 

It is important that habitat 

improvements and creation 

becomes a part of viable land 

management systems and 

businesses. 

Modern agricultural practices 

and equipment leads to larger 

fields with fewer internal 

boundaries and wider gateways, 

which can degrade the local 

landscape character. 

Geometrical forestry planting 

and harvesting, and heather 

cutting patterns can add 

intrusive lines into the 

landscape. 

Lack of buffer strips along 

watercourses. 

 

 

6,441.35 ha of the AONB is Common 

Land (16.55% of total AONB area) 

7,786.98ha (20% of total AONB area) 

of land in the AONB in Glastir Agri-

environment scheme in 2013. 

o 5,232.24ha (67%) Entry Level 

o 793.75ha (10%) Glastir 

Advanced 

o 1,760.99ha (23%) Glastir 

Commons 
 

Protection: 

8,028.37 ha of AONB designated as 

SAC (20.62% of AONB land area) 

9,097.34 ha of AONB designated as 

SSSI (23.36% of AONB land area) 

2,555.05 ha of AONB designated as 

SPA (6.56% of AONB land area) 

21.33 ha of AONB designated as LNR 

(0.05% of AONB land area) 

3,451.92 ha of AONB designated as 

Wildlife Sites (8.87% of AONB land 

area) 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Climate Change 

 

The AONB has evolved over 

time, shaped by geological 

 

Adaption and mitigation 

measures may impact upon the 

AONB and its setting. 

Reduction in air and water 

 

9,428 ha (24.2% of AONB area) is 

heather moorland. 

Total area of AONB covered by 

woodland 5,165.24 ha (13.27% of 

P
a
g
e
 5

8
P

age 60



P a g e  | 6 

forces, climate and human 

activity, and this evolution is on-

going. Climate change is 

expected to have a major 

influence in the coming 

decades, and we need to 

manage this process, taking 

action to adapt to the impacts 

and make the best of the 

opportunities. 

 

Although the global climate has 

been relatively stable for 

thousands of years, recent 

extreme weather events and 

longer terms trends suggest it is 

now changing due to human 

activity. Climate change is 

expected to continue, causing 

hotter, drier summers, warmer 

wetter winters, more extreme 

weather and sea level rise in 

Wales and the rest of Britain. 

 

Global climate change is 

projected to continue, causing 

hotter drier summers, warmer, 

wetter winters, more extreme 

weather, droughts, heat waves, 

heavier rainfall, and 

accelerating sea-level rise in 

Wales and the rest of Britain 

over coming decades. 

 

quality impacting on the health 

of the population and ecosystem. 

Seasonal reduction / increase in 

water flow. 

Pressure for inappropriate flood 

defences with dredging and 

development degrading the 

local landscape character. 

Long dry spells of weather could 

lead to increased fire risk, 

particularly on heathlands. 

 

AONB area). 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

9
P

age 61



P a g e  | 7 

Resource / 

Special 

Feature 

Description Issues State 

Cultural 

Heritage and 

Bro 

 

Bro/Welsh Language 

 

‘Bro’ is a Welsh word which 

describes a sense of 

belonging and community 

cohesion within an area. It is 

an intangible concept which is 

difficult to define, but is 

nonetheless a valid 

component of sustainable 

Welsh communities. The 

Welsh language is part of the 

traditional character and 

cultural make-up of the AONB. 

The use of Welsh is greater 

than the Wales average 

(21.3%) and remains a 

significant feature of the area. 

The greatest proportion of 

Welsh language users live in 

the western and south western 

parts of the AONB. 

 
Picturesque and romantic 

movement 

 

The story of the picturesque 

movement in the AONB goes 

back to the late 18th century, 

particularly in the Dee Valley 

 

Community involvement and 

participation in local events and 

traditions. 

Inward migration is changing 

the makeup of communities 

Need to raise community 

awareness of the AONB and the 

benefits it brings, especially in 

the south. 

Need to raise local business 

awareness of the AONB and the 

benefits it brings. 

Sustaining the Welsh language 

Lack / loss of facilities to 

celebrate cultural associations. 

Visitor pressure degrading 

landscape character at key 

locations. 

Loss of significant views 

depicted in art or prose due to 

vegetation encroachment, or 

insensitive development. 

 

 

Percentage of population speaking, 

reading and writing Welsh in the 

AONB (2011): 

North – 26.7% 

West – 37.2% 

East – 24.2% 

South – 29.1% 

No. of active community groups – 

Unknown 

No. of community shows – 6 

No. of community publications – 

Unknown 

Cylch Meithryn / Ty a fi clubs – 7 

Welsh medium primary schools in 

the AONB – 2 

 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

0
P

age 62



P a g e  | 8 

around Llangollen, painted by 

Turner and Wilson amongst 

others. Richard Wilson also 

has close links to the 

Loggerheads area. 

 

The ladies of Llangollen 

established the Dee Valley as 

a centre for picturesque 

appreciation from their home 

at Plas Newydd. 

 

Poets and authors such as 

Wordsworth, Gerald Manley 

Hopkins and Mendelssohn 

have also taken inspiration 

from the AONBs landscape. 

 
Eisteddfodau 

 

Building on these artistic 

traditions, Llangollen is known 

throughout the world for the 

International Eisteddfod, held 

annually in the town since 

1947. Corwen was the location 

of the first public national 

eisteddfod in 1919. 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

1
P

age 63



Page | 9 

Natural Environment 
 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Natural 

Environment 

 

Natural Benefits and Services 

 

The landscape of the AONB is 

important for the resources it offers 

which benefit everyone, such as 

water, food and locations for quiet 

enjoyment. 

 

These benefits, known collectively 

as Ecosystem Services indicate that 

the landscape of the AONB not only 

provides a rich variety of habitats 

and species, but also contributes 

positively towards the production of 

food, the control of climate and 

recreational provision. 

 

There is a need for natural 

systems and networks that 

are fit for purpose, with 

more and better places for 

nature for the benefit of 

wildlife and people. 

There is a need to identify all 

the benefits and services 

delivered by the natural 

system. 

Lack of data and knowledge 

makes it difficult to manage 

within environmental limits. 

There is no baseline for 

assigning a value to the 

services and benefits 

received from the natural 

system. 

 

 

 

 

Natural 

Environment 

 

 

Habitat Resilience 

 

Habitat resilience is a habitats 

ability to respond to natural or man-

made disturbance through fast 

recovery or by resisting damage.  

 

Resilience and condition of 

the natural system is not fully 

understood. 

Attention given to priority 

habitats at the expense of 

other locally important sites, 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

2
P

age 64



Page | 10 

 

 

such as road verges and 

other corridors. 

There is a need for the 

expansion of and 

connectivity between 

wildlife rich habitats. 

Natural 

Environment 

 

Designations / SAC 

 

Special Areas of Conservation 

(SAC) and Special Protection Areas 

(SPA) are legal protections for sites 

of European importance for habitats 

and birds, to protect against 

damaging activities. These 

designations form part of a larger 

European network called Natura 

2000. 

 

Sites of national importance are 

designated and given protection as 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest 

(SSSI) 

 

Land designated as a County 

Wildlife sites are often the finest 

local examples of habitats, and are 

given material consideration in the 

planning process. 

 

These and other designations 

provide a level of protection for 

important sites against potentially 

damaging activity. 

 

Need to bring sites into 

favourable conservation 

status. 

Visitor pressure in key 

conservation areas. 

Designations do not address 

all conservation interests. 

 
Extent: 

There are 22 SSSI’s in the AONB, 

covering 9,097.34 ha (23.36% of total 

AONB area). 

There are 3 SAC’s covering 8,028.37 

ha (20.62% of AONB) 

There is 1 SPA covering 2,555 ha 

(6.56% of AONB) 

There are 162 Wildlife Sites covering 

3,451.92 ha (8.87% AONB) 

There is 1 LNR covering 21.33 ha 

(0.05% AONB) 

There are 73 RIGS sites covering 

676.45 ha (1.74% AONB) 

 
Condition: 

NRW continue to monitor the condition of 

SSSIs, SACs and SPAs. All geological SSSIs 

are in favourable condition.  

P
a
g
e
 6

3
P

age 65



P a g e  | 11 

Natural Environment 
 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Limestone 

Grassland, 

cliffs and 

screes 

 

 

Calcareous grasslands typically 

occur on shallow base-rich soils 

derived from the underlying 

limestone rocks. They are 

characterised by a short species-

rich turf containing a variety of 

grasses and herbs. In the AONB 

calcareous grassland primarily 

occurs in the north from Prestatyn to 

Cwm, centrally along the Alyn 

Valley, including the second largest 

limestone pavement in Wales at 

Bryn Alyn, and in the south around 

the Eglwyseg rocks where large 

areas of scree are also located. 

 

Limestone pavement is an area of 

limestone which lies wholly or 

partly exposed on the surface of the 

ground and has been fissured by 

natural erosion. They can be 

wooded or open and both types 

exist within the AONB. 

 

There are a number of geologically 

and archaeologically important 

 

Under-grazing encouraging 

scrub encroachment. 

Over-grazing resulting in 

loss of species diversity 

Enrichment of soils from 

fertilisers, herbicide 

application, ploughing and 

re-seeding from agricultural 

purposes. 

Acidification and nitrogen 

enrichment caused by 

atmospheric deposition. 

Recreational pressure 

bringing about floristic 

changes associated with soil 

compaction. 

Recreational pressure on 

Limestone geological SSSI 

features such as Eglwyseg 

scree slopes and Panorama 

Drive limestone grassland. 

Invasion by no-native plant 

species. 

Limited knowledge of 

underground systems. 

 
Limestone Grassland Ideal state: 

Favourable condition will be comprised of 

short species-rich mixtures of herbs, 

grasses, sedges and mosses on lime-rich 

soil. Balanced management ensures a scrub 

grassland mosaic that supports a wide range 

of wildlife without the scrub spreading to 

replace the grassland. 

 
Extent: 

Unimproved Calcareous Grassland: 

292.24 ha (0.75% of AONB area) 

Semi-improved Calcareous 

Grassland: 39.74 ha (0.1% of AONB 

area) 

 
Limestone Pavement Ideal state: 

Limestone pavements require structural 

diversity to maximise transitions, shelter 

invertebrates and keep a variety of 

structural niches open. There should be a 

mixture of flora characteristic of rocky and 

woodland habitats. Wooded pavements 

should have clearings created naturally by 

clint and gryke structure or through 

woodland management. 

P
a
g
e
 6

4
P

age 66



P a g e  | 12 

caves associated with the Limestone 

areas of the AONB. Caves studied 

have been found to be important 

archaeologically for human and 

animal activity. Cave systems at 

Tremerchion, Llanarmon-yn-Ial and 

Loggerheads are among the more 

well known. In 2015, there is 

currently a Cadw funded project 

running to discover more about 

Limestone caves in north east 

Wales. 

 

Scree slopes on the Eglwyseg rocks 

are an important geological feature, 

across which the Offa’s Dyke 

National Trail passes. 

 

Removal of Limestone rocks 

for rockeries. 

Quarrying. 

 

 
Extent: 

Limestone Pavement: 1.88ha (13.82% 

of Limestone Pavement in Wales – 

Wales total 13.6 ha) 

Scree: 22.89 ha 

 
Indicators:  

There are 12 SSSIs in the AONB 

containing Geological features. 

There are 73 RIGS sites in the AONB 

covering 676.45 ha (1.74% of the 

AONB). 

315.52 ha (88.23%) within SAC, SSSI 

or Wildlife Site.  

230.3 ha (64.4%) international and 

national designation with 

commitments to maintain / restore 

favourable condition (SAC and SSSI). 

 
Limestone Cave systems indicators: 

No. Caves in the AONB - unknown 

4 cave systems protected as SSSI; 

Alyn Gorge Caves (Alyn Valley 

Woods & Alyn Gorge Caves SSSI), 

Coe Gwyn & Ffynnon Beuno Caves, 

Tremeirchion Caves (both Ffynnon 

Beuno & Cae Gwyn Caves SSSI) and 

Minera Caves (Ruabon / Llantysilio 

Mountains & Minera SSSI). 

 
Limestone Habitats Favourable 

Management: 

1.05 ha (0.29% resource) are within 

P
a
g
e
 6

5
P

age 67



P a g e  | 13 

DCC Countryside Service owned / 

managed sites. 

5.47 ha (1.53% resource) are within 

NWWT managed sites. 

 
Condition: 

NRW continue to monitor the 

condition of SSSIs and SACs.  

All geological SSSIs are in a 

favourable condition. 

 

From 2015 to 2018 there is to be significant 

investment into Limestone features in the 

AONB through the Limestone Legacy project 

which has received NRW competitive bid 

funding. 

 

Heather 

moorlands 

and rolling 

ridges 

 

 

Dominated by heather, bilberry 

and western gorse with ideally a 

diverse range of age communities. 

It has a distinct range of bird life 

associated with it, including grouse, 

stonechat and whinchat.  

 

The uplands of the North Berwyn, 

Llantysilio, Ruabon and Llandegla 

mountains in the south of the AONB 

are predominantly heathland. 

Heather moorland is also found in 

large blocks along the ridge of the 

Clwydian Range between 

Llandegla and Bodfari. 

 

 

Conversion to grassland 

through ploughing, 

reseeding, liming and 

fertilisation for agricultural 

purposes. 

The division of common 

through internal fences and 

subsequent loss of hefted 

flocks. 

Under-grazing / 

abandonment. 

Localised over-grazing 

caused by lack of heathland 

management and structure. 

Poorly managed burning / 

wildfires. 

 
Ideal state: 

Upland heath in ‘favourable condition’ is 

typically dominated by a range of dwarf 

shrubs such as heather, bilberry, crowberry, 

bell heather and western gorse. They are 

generally structurally diverse, containing 

stands of vegetation with heather at different 

stages of growth, including areas of mature 

heather. This habitat supports an important 

assemblage of birds, a diverse invertebrate 

fauna and, in some cases, assemblages of 

rare and local mosses and liverworts. 

 
Extent: 

9,428 ha (24.2% of AONB area) 

(includes degraded areas / potential 

P
a
g
e
 6

6
P

age 68



P a g e  | 14 

Inappropriate methods of 

supplementary feeding. 

Bracken invasion. 

Heavy recreation pressure 

causing erosion, particularly 

illegal off road vehicle use in 

the south of the AONB. 

Lack of appropriate 

rotational heather 

management. 

Afforestation. 

Nitrogen enrichment caused 

by atmospheric deposition. 

 

for restoration / expansion). 

 
Indicators: 

9,317.2 ha (98.9%) has some form of 

designation conferring a level of 

protection. 

7,776.6 ha (82.48%) is protected as 

SSSI or SAC. 

 
2. Favourable management: 

683.51 ha (7.25% resource) are 

within DCC Countryside Service 

owned / managed sites. 

 
3. Condition: 

The majority of the heathland areas in 

the AONB are currently being 

managed through cutting and 

burning of heather, and cutting and 

bruising of bracken. 

Bracken extent unknown. Between 

2008 and 2012, in the Heather and 

Hillforts project area, 1,029 ha of 

bracken were sprayed, and 270.5 ha 

cut / bruised. Bracken dominated 

heathland reduced from 788 ha to 303 

ha. 

Between 2008 and 2012, in the 

Clwydian Range and Llantysilio 

mountains, mature / degenerate 

heather reduced from 384 ha to 367 

ha 

 

The Heather and Hillforts project Landscape 

P
a
g
e
 6

7
P

age 69



P a g e  | 15 

Partnership Scheme ran from 2008 to 2012, 

focusing on the Clwydian Range and 

Llantysilio mountains heathland areas. 

Significant work was undertaken to reduce 

the extent of bracken through aerial 

spraying, as well as work with landowners 

and graziers to improve the condition of 

heathland. Heather condition surveys were 

carried out in 2005 and 2010, showing an 

improvement in the age structure of heather 

as well as a reduction in the extent of 

bracken cover. 

 

Woodland 

and veteran 

trees 

 

 

Many of these woodlands represent 

a link with the landscape as it 

appeared following the last ice age 

and support a diverse range of flora 

and fauna. Ash woodlands are 

particularly important in the Alyn 

Valley where it has been 

designated SAC. In other parts of 

the AONB oak woods are 

significant. 

 

Veteran trees are trees which, 

because of their size and age are 

considered of exceptional cultural, 

landscape and nature conservation 

value. Veteran trees are often 

associated with parkland, and are 

usually found in more lowland 

areas. There are few in the north of 

the AONB and are found in greater 

 

Grazing preventing natural 

regeneration. 

Loss due to localised 

quarrying. 

Lack of specific woodland 

management and cessation 

of traditional management. 

Fragmentation of ownership. 

Invasion by naturalised 

species leading to a change 

in structure and composition 

(sycamore and beech). 

Loss of species such as red 

squirrel. 

Development pressures. 

Effects of air pollution. 

Acidification of base-rich 

soils through the scavenging 

effect of commercial 

conifers. 

 
Ideal State: 

A woodland in ‘favourable condition’ has a 

varied structure with at least three age 

classes spread across the average life 

expectancy of the commonest trees, areas of 

open space – both temporary and 

permanent relatively undisturbed mature / 

old growth stands, understory and some 

build-up of fallen and standing dead wood. It 

should be comprised predominantly of 

native species and there should not be signs 

of rapid loss of native trees and shrubs. 

There should also be signs of seedlings 

growing through to saplings to young trees 

at sufficient density to maintain canopy 

density. 

 
Extent: 

Broadleaved (including mixed) 

woodland: 1809.43 ha (4.65% of 

P
a
g
e
 6

8
P

age 70



P a g e  | 16 

number in the south. Some fine 

examples can be found on the 

Eglwyseg (Yew / Field Maple), at 

the Horseshoe Falls, at Trevor 

Church and Chirk Castle. 

Many semi-natural 

woodlands have declined as 

a result of replanting with 

exotic conifers. 

 
Pests and diseases 

Present / future tree 

diseases could have a 

significant impact on the 

local landscape character. 

Phytopthora Ramorum – 

Bilberry and Larch (is listed 

as an EU controlled 

organism). 

Chalara fraxinea – Ash 

dieback. 

Phytophthora Alni – alder. 

Canopies opened by 

disease may be subject to 

higher rates of wind-throw, 

and invasion by 

unrepresentative species 

becomes more likely. 

 

AONB area) of which 795.8 ha (2.04% 

of AONB) is Semi Natural Ancient 

Woodland or Replanted Ancient 

Woodland. 

 
1. Indicators: 

199.9 ha (11.04%) are within 

international and national designation 

(SAC and SSSI). 

 
2. Favourable Management: 

54.79 ha (3.03% resource) are within 

Country Parks and DCC Countryside 

Service managed sites. 

17.72 ha (0.98% resource) are within 

NWWT managed sites. 

 
3. Condition: 

Woodland SSSIs 

NRW continue to monitor the 

condition of all SSSIs and SACs. 

 

River 

Valleys 

 

 

River valleys are not only important 

for the watercourse itself but also 

the bank and associated land or 

riparian zone. They are dynamic 

systems and provide a wide range 

of ecological niches supporting a 

diverse flora and fauna. They also 

form important wildlife corridors, 

enabling dispersion and migration 

 

Water pollution from 

sewage, acidification, urban 

drainage, agricultural run-

off and mine and industrial 

damage. 

Loss of bank-side vegetation 

through overgrazing and 

poaching. This can also lead 

to erosion of river margins 

 
Ideal state: 

The morphology of rivers and streams and 

their associated plant and animal 

assemblages vary according to their 

geographical area, underlying geology and 

water chemistry. However, all rivers in their 

natural state are dynamic systmes, 

continually modifying their form. A healthy 

river will have good water quality, free from 

P
a
g
e
 6

9
P

age 71



P a g e  | 17 

of species. 

 

There are three significant river 

valleys in the AONB. The River Dee 

from Corwen to Newbridge, the 

River Alyn from Cilcain to 

Llanferres and the River Wheeler 

from Bodfari to Melin-y-Wern. 

and siltation of the river 

channel with losses of fish 

spawning gravels and 

habitat diversity. 

Modification of the shape 

and course. 

Potential loss of indicator 

species such as otters, water 

voles and fresh water pearl 

mussel. 

Invasive non-native species 

such as Himalayan balsam, 

Chinese mitten crabs and 

mink competing with native 

species. 

Recreational impacts such as 

walking, angling, boating 

and canoeing can cause 

disturbance to both the 

habitat and resident species. 

Inappropriate land drainage 

and flood defence works. 

Climate change may affect 

the habitat and species 

through flooding and 

temperature change. 

Abstraction and discharge of 

water for hydro-power 

generation. 

Meeting the requirements of 

the Water Framework 

Directive and Catchment 

Management Plans. 

 

outside pollution, and marginal and bank-

side vegetation that supports an array of 

wild flowers and animals and provides 

corridor links between fragmented habitats. 

Rivers which display a mosaic of features 

such as riffles and pools and exposed 

sediments can support a diverse range of 

plant and animal species. 

 
Extent: 

62.77 km  (34.53 km River Dee, 19.55 

km River Alyn and 8.69 km River 

Wheeler) 

 
Indicators: 

The River Dee is designated at SAC 

and SSSI. 

3.31 km (16.93%) of River Alyn are 

within SAC. 

1.43 km (16.46%) of River Wheeler 

passes through wildlife sites. 

 
2. Favourable management: 

1.06 km (8.16%) of the River Alyn 

falls within Loggerheads Country 

Park. 

1.73 km (5.01%) of the River Dee falls 

within Ty Mawr Country Park, and 

Denbighshire Countryside Sites. 

 
3. Condition: 

Otters are known to be present on all 

three rivers. Water voles have been 

recorded on the Llangollen Canal, 

P
a
g
e
 7

0
P

age 72



P a g e  | 18 

and at either end of the Wheeler 

valley with extensive field ditches 

giving population potential to 

expand. There is only one pocket of 

water vole records in the Alyn valley, 

though further surveys may reveal 

more.  

Invasive species are known to be 

present on all three river systems, 

both mink and Himalayan balsam in 

particular, although Japanese 

Knotweed is more widespread on the 

River Dee. The River Dee also has 

populations of Signal Crayfish. 

All three rivers have wet woodland 

and meadow habitats supported by 

back channels in many places 

providing good bank-side cover and 

corridors for wildlife. 

A number of rights of way cross and 

run parallel to all three rivers, in 

particular the Alyn indicating 

recreation pressure is present. 

Recreation pressure on the River Dee 

is significant; it is popular for fishing, 

canoeing and rafting. A number of 

businesses use and are dependent on 

access to the river. 

 

P
a
g
e
 7

1
P

age 73



 | 19 P a g e

The Historic Environment 
 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Historic 

Environment 

Historic Settlement and 

Archaeology 

 

There are a number of historic 

settlements within the AONB. 

Llangollen is the largest with a 

population of around 3,000. The 

town was granted its charter in 1284 

and straddles the Dee via an arched 

bridge built in about 1500. The 

historic core of the town lies on the 

southern side, focusing on the 

church and the river crossing. Later 

development occurred largely as a 

result of the woollen industry. Since 

early times, the town has been an 

important stopping place, 

especially for people travelling 

from London to Ireland. Until the 

early 1800s, roads were notoriously 

hazardous but Telford’s new road to 

Holyhead (now the A5) had a 

profound effect on the development 

of early 19th century Llangollen and 

North Wales in general, allowing 

the London mail coaches to travel 

faster and more safely. 

 

 

 

Deterioration and lack of 

funding for the upkeep of 

structures and monuments. 

Erosion of sites following 

archaeological excavations. 

Lack of awareness of ancient 

monuments and sites. 

Lack of facilities for study 

groups. 

Inappropriate land 

management. 

Lack of archaeological data. 

Damage from metal 

detection. 

Off Road Motorcycle and 4x4 

damage, particularly on the 

Llantysilio and North Berwyn 

mountains. 

Historic Parks and Gardens 

are privately owned; 

dependant on landowners to 

maintain and enhance. 

Not all open to the public. 

 

 

 
Protection: 

Scheduled Ancient Monuments are 

nationally important archaeological 

sites or historic buildings, afforded 

protection against unauthorised 

change. 

There are 95 Scheduled Ancient 

Monuments in the AONB, the 

protection of which are overseen by 

Cadw. Many of these sites provide 

evidence of past mining, quarrying 

and settlements.  

Scheduled Ancient Monuments cover 

156.04 ha (0.4% of the AONB). 

There are 17 Conservation Areas in 

the AONB, covering 88.85 ha (0.23% 

of the AONB). 

There are 645 Listed Building in the 

AONB. 

Valle Crucis Abbey, Eliseg’s Pillar 

and Llangar church are guardianship 

sites and managed by Cadw. 

 

P
a
g
e
 7

2
P

age 74



 | 20 P a g e

 

The Cistercian Abbey of Valle 

Crucis lies near the confluence of 

the Eglwyseg and the Dee rivers, 

north of Llangollen. The 

fragmentary 9th century cross, the 

Pillar of Eliseg, is set on a small 

circular mound which is a Bronze 

Age Barrow, just to the north of the 

Abbey. 

 

Historic parks and gardens form an 

important and integral part of the 

historic and cultural fabric of an 

area. They are listed in the Cadw / 

ICOMOS Register of Parks and 

Gardens of Special Historic Interest 

in Wales. The registered sites are 

Penbedw, Golden Grove, St 

Beuno’s, Colomendy, Valle Crucis, 

Bryntysilio, Llantysilio Hall, Vivod, 

Plas Newydd, Trefor Hall, Chirk 

Castle and Argoed Hall.  Although 

not protected in the same way as 

Listed Buildings they are graded in 

a similar way. It is anticipated that 

legislation in the new heritage Bill 

to be announced shortly will give 

more weight to this designation 

 

Not statutorily protected; 

need to engage with and 

support landowners. 

No arrangements for 

monitoring the condition of 

Historic parks and gardens. 

No Management / 

Enhancement Plans. 

Ideal state: 

Sites are maintained in a favourable 

condition. Cadw are currently 

reappraising their monument 

condition surveys and are 

developing a Monuments at Risk 

methodology, as yet information is 

not available for the AONB but this 

will be extremely valuable 

information in the future. 

 
State: 

Sites are visited by Cadw every 5 or 

10 years. 

SAM condition data is not consistently 

available yet, but Cadw are working 

towards this. 

Of the 645 Listed Buildings in the 

AONB, 56 are considered to be ‘at 

risk’. 

 

 
Understanding: 

Recent archaeological work on 

Elisegs Pilar has been undertaken by 

Bangor and Chester Universities, this 

has identified that the pillar sits on a 

pre-existing Bronze Age burial 

mound.  

Excavations have also taken place at 

Penycloddiau by Liverpool 

University, Moel y Gaer Bodfari by 

Oxford University and at Fron 

Newydd near Caer Drewyn by 

P
a
g
e
 7

3
P

age 75



 | 21 P a g e

Bangor University. 

 
Extent: 

There are 12 Historic Parks within the 

AONB covering 611.67 ha (1.57% of 

the AONB). The essential settings of 

14 Historic Parks are within the AONB 

covering a total of 1,152.01 ha (2.96% 

of the AONB). 

9 more Historic Parks and Gardens 

are directly adjacent to the AONB. 

 

 

  

Historic 

Environment 

Industrial Features and World 

Heritage Site 

 

When Thomas Telford finished 

Pontcysyllte Aqueduct in 1805, it 

was the tallest canal boat crossing 

in the world. On 27 June 2009, 

UNESCO made this masterpiece of 

civil engineering a World Heritage 

Site, along with 11 miles of canal 

including Chirk Aqueduct and the 

Horseshoe Falls at Llantysilio, near 

Llangollen. Pontcysyllte represents 

a ‘masterpiece of human creative 

genius’ and is an outstanding 

example of a construction that 

‘illustrated a significant stage in 

human history’. 

 

Construction work on the 

 

 

 

Prevention from decay and 

need for on-going 

maintenance. 

Inappropriate methods or 

materials for repairs through 

lack of understanding, skills 

or materials, or changing 

modern standards. 

Vegetation growth in the 

World Heritage Site and the 

Buffer Zone affecting views 

in and out. 

Maintenance of effective 

protection of the Site and 

Buffer Zone through 

designations and planning 

policies. 

 

 

 
Protection: 

The World Heritage Site is afforded 

protection as such. 

Much of the World Heritage site is 

owned by the Canal and Rivers Trust. 

 
Extent: 

The World Heritage site covers 62.62 

ha within the AONB (0.16% of the 

AONB). 

The World Heritage Site Buffer Zone 

covers 3,129.54 ha within the AONB 

(8.04% of the AONB). 

 
Status: 

Not currently on UNESCOs list of 

World Heritage in Danger. 46 sites 

P
a
g
e
 7

4
P

age 76



 | 22 P a g e

Llangollen Branch of the Shropshire 

Union Canal began in 1795 and was 

completed in 1808. The canal gave 

access to the Ruabon collieries and 

stimulated the growth of the 

limekilns and pottery works at 

Froncysyllte and Tref-y-nant. 

 

The Vale of Llangollen Railway was 

opened in 1861. For nearly a 

century, the railway took over much 

of the traffic formerly carried by 

road and canal. The Llangollen 

Railway Society now operates the 

line between Llangollen and 

Corwen. 

 

World Heritage Status means that 

the Pontcysyllte Aqueduct and 

Canal has been inscribed on the 

World Heritage List, offering it 

increased awareness. This 

awareness leads to an increase in 

the level of protection and 

conservation given to inscribed 

sites. It is one of 28 properties 

inscribed in the UK. Worldwide 

there were 1,007 World Heritage 

Sites in 2014.  

 

Loggerheads was the focal point for 

lead mining in the 18th and 19th 

century and remnants of this 

industrial past remain along the 

Management of visitor 

pressure. 

Need to develop the 

presentation of the 

Outstanding Universal Value 

– how to get the story across. 

Site surveys not followed up. 

Sites being lost to land use 

change. 

Some industrial remains are 

in poor condition. 

Much of the industrial 

heritage of the Alyn Valley is 

outside the public estate. 

Lack of awareness of 

archaeological heritage, the 

relationship of quarries, 

inclines and associated 

works which together have 

cultural integrity. 

Some sites unrecorded or 

with no scheduled 

protection. 

Some sites recommended 

for scheduling in the Metal 

Mines survey of the 1990s 

have not taken place. 

The vast majority of 

industrial (and indeed all 

other periods of site) are 

undesignated. They are 

noted on the HER Historic 

Environment Record which 

is set to become statutory in 

listed in 2014. 

 
Industrial Archaeology 

Protection: 

Some of the key industrial sites are 

protected as scheduled. The canal 

and many associated monuments are 

scheduled. The Nant y Pandy 

tramway and slate works at 

Glyndyfrydwy are scheduled but in 

poor condition. Parts of the Minera 

lead mines at Meadow shaft are a 

SAM as is the Hoffman kiln in the 

Minera Quarries. 

 
Condition: 

The Glyndyfrydwy slate works 

buildings and parts of the tramway 

are in a poor condition. 

Key features like the Leete at 

Loggerheads Country park, Cascade 

Woods lead mining site and others 

are unprotected 

P
a
g
e
 7

5
P

age 77



 | 23 P a g e

river and in the woods. There was 

extensive lead mining in the Alyn 

Valley, Prestatyn Hillside, Bryn 

Alyn, and areas of Esclusham 

Mountain, World’s End and Minera. 

 

The name Loggerheads derives 

from a dispute over mineral rights 

which was eventually settled in the 

high court. The boundary stone 

adjacent to the A494 and boundary 

stones within the Park mark the 

position the legal boundary was 

determined to be. 

 

There was extensive slate 

quarrying in the south of the AONB, 

on the Llantysilio and North Berwyn 

mountains. Only the Berwyn quarry 

on the Horseshoe Pass remains 

open today. 

 

There are a number of features 

associated with these mines, such 

as the Leete at Loggerheads, and 

tramways from the Moel y Faen 

quarry to Llangollen canal, and 

Moel Fferna to Glwyndyfrdwy 

through Nant y Pandy, where there 

are extensive ruins relating to slate 

working. 

the new Planning Bill. 

P
a
g
e
 7

6
P

age 78



 | 24 P a g e

Historic 

Environment 

Hillforts and Defensive Structures 

 

The chain of Iron Age Hillforts along 

the ridgeline of the Clwydian Range 

are its most high profile and unique 

archaeological sites. These 6 

hillforts, between Moel Hiraddig 

near Dyserth and Moel Fenlli near 

Llanferres, provide one of the 

highest concentrations in Western 

Europe. 

 

Moel y Gaer is one of the summits 

of Llantysilio Mountain, on the north 

side of the river Dee and west of the 

Horseshoe Pass. There is evidence 

for human activity here dating back 

to at least the Bronze Age (2,300 – 

1,200 BC), with a large burial cairn 

on the summit of Moel Gamelin. 

Several centuries later, during the 

Iron Age (1200 BC – 74 AD), Moel y 

Gaer was chosen as the site for a 

small hillfort. 

 

Castell Dinas Bran, a medieval 

castle located within the earthworks 

of an earlier Iron Age Hillfort, 

towers over the town of Llangollen 

giving it a strong sense of place and 

historic context. Similarly, Caer 

Drewyn Iron Age Hillfort, along 

with the 6th century church at St 

Mael and St Sulien and associations 

 

 

Erosion to the hillforts and 

other defensive structures 

through recreation and 

sheep scrapes. 

Damage through 

inappropriate land 

management, such as 

quarrying, tree planting and 

over grazing. 

Ploughing / Agricultural 

pressure. 

Damage from metal 

detection. 

Increased awareness and 

access could lead to 

increased erosion issues. 

 

 
Extent: 

10 Iron Age Hillforts in the AONB, 

covering 105.14 ha (0.27 % of total 

AONB). 

3 Motte and Bailey castles. 

Small remnants of a 12th century 

castle at Dyserth. 

2 later 13th Century stone castles. 

 
Protection: 

5 Iron Age Hillforts are owned by the 

Local Authorities. 

All Iron Age Hillforts are designated 

as Scheduled Ancient Monuments. 

Dinas Bran Castle, owned by 

Denbighshire County Council, is 

designated as a SAM, SSSI and it is 

also within the buffer zone of the WHS 

and within the Historic landscape  of 

the Vale of Llangollen 

Chirk Castle is jointly managed by 

Cadw and the National Trust. 

Tomen y Rhodwydd, Tomen y 

Faerdre and Glyndwr’s Mount are all 

SAMs. 

Remains of Dyserth Caslte are a SAM. 

 
Condition: 

Erosion work was carried out on Moel 

Fenlli, Moel Arthur, Penycloddiau , 

Moel y Gaer Llanbedr, Moel y Gaer 

Llantysilio and Caer Drewyn as part  

P
a
g
e
 7

7
P

age 79



 | 25 P a g e

with Owain Glyndwr give the town 

of Corwen a strong historical root. 

Pen y Gaer Hillfort is located near 

Garth adjacent to Trefor Hall 

woods. 

 

Completed in 1310, Chirk is the last 

Welsh castle from the reign of 

Edward I that is still lived in. 

Features from its 700 years include 

the medieval tower and dungeon, 

17th century Long Gallery, grand 

18th century state apartments, 

servants’ hall and historic laundry.  

 

Motte and Bailey castle sites are 

found at Tomen y Rhodwydd near 

Llandegla, Tomen y Faerdre near 

Llanarmon-yn-Ial and Glyndwr’s 

Mount near Llidiart y Parc. 

 

The site of Gop Cairn at Trelawnyd, 

not technically a defensive 

structure but hinting at nearby 

settlement, is thought to date to the 

Neolithic period from about 

3000BC. It is a vast mound, 

constructed on the top of a hill, 

perhaps marking burials in a 

nearby cave. 

 

of the Heather and Hillforts scheme. 

Erosion repair work has taken place 

at Tomen y Rhodwydd and extensive 

stabilisation work was carried out at 

Owain Glyndwr’s Motte. 

Management plans were drawn up 

for the six monuments within the 

Heather and Hillforts project area. 

Prior to work taking place in Heather 

and Hillfots, condition surveys were 

carried out on the 6 hillforts, this 

work was repeated in 2012 and an 

improvement in condition was 

demonstrated at each of the sites. 

Continual monitoring will be needed 

to maintain this. 

 
Understanding: 

The Heather and Hillforts project, from 2008 

to 2012, greatly increased our 

understanding of 6 hillforts in the AONB. A 

programme of archaeological digs (at Moel 

y gaer Bodfari, Penycloddiau, Moel y Gaer 

Llanbedr) and community archaeology 

events have developed a greater 

understanding within the local community. 

The Clwydian Range Archaeology Group 

(CRAG) was established during Heather and 

Hillforts, and now runs successfully as an 

independent voluntary group who have 

made important discoveries on land 

adjacent to Moel Arthur Hillfort. 

 

Recent archaeological work has also been  

P
a
g
e
 7

8
P

age 80



 | 26 P a g e

undertaken on Moel y Gaer Bodfari by 

Oxford University and Penycloddiau by 

Liverpool University. Bangor University have 

been excavating at Fron Newydd adjacent to 

Caer Drewyn as well as at the small 

defended settlement of Moel Fodig, just 

outside the AONB. 

 

Historic 

Environment 

Small Historic Features 

 

These are features that are unique 

to the AONB. They are unlikely to 

be listed and conserved but they 

are part of the fabric of the 

landscape. Examples: Red 

telephone boxes, water troughs, 

milestones, stone stiles and gate 

posts, old wells, old road signs, 

named rocks, milk stands and 

World War I and II relics. 
 

 

 

These features tend to 

‘disappear’ and part of this 

is because there is not a 

comprehensive list held 

anywhere. They also 

disappear through being 

modernised or through road 

improvement schemes. 

 

 
Extent: 

23 K6 Red Phone Boxes. 

15 Trig Points. 

Total number of features unknown. 

% loss of features identified 

unknown. 

 

The new Heritage Bill is likely to contain a 

section on proposals to produce robust 

‘local lists’ of these types of features. 

Historic 

Environment 

Boundaries 

 

The main types are native 

hedgerows on slopes and dry stone 

walls in the limestone and upland 

shale areas. The other types are 

hedgerows on a stone retaining 

wall (Clawdd Wall). These linear 

features are valuable wildlife 

habitats, which act particularly well 

as wildlife corridors between 

habitats. 

 

 

 

Loss of hedges and walls 

due to agricultural 

improvement. 

Loss due to lack of 

maintenance. 

Loss of skill to maintain in a 

traditional way. 

Expense of maintenance. 

Modern maintenance not 

suitable. 

 

 
Extent: 

Length of traditional boundaries in 

the AONB unknown. 

12 km of hedgerow have been 

restored through the AONB 

countryside grant scheme between 

2007 and 2014. 

0.5 km of dry stone wall have been 

rebuilt through the AONB 

countryside grant scheme between 

2007 and 2014. 

P
a
g
e
 7

9
P

age 81



 | 27 P a g e

An unusual feature unique to 

Corwen within the AONB is 

boundaries using upright slate 

slabs – an example of this can be 

seen at Gro Isa just north of Corwen 

next to the River Dee. 
 

 

Need survey of boundaries with those that 

have greatest impact on the landscape 

prioritised for action. 

 

% of boundaries in good condition unknown. 

P
a
g
e
 8

0
P

age 82



 | 29 P a g e

Access and Leisure 

 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Access and 

Leisure 

 

Iconic Visitor and Cultural 

Attractions 

 

The Vale of Llangollen and Dee 

Valley forms a striking gateway to 

North Wales as the topography 

changes rapidly from flat 

Shropshire Plain to a steep sided 

Welsh Valley, with accompanying 

changes in building styles and 

materials, culture and way of life. 

The area has a special role as a 

gateway to and cultural window on 

Welsh life and marks the English-

Welsh borderlands. 

 

Further north, the Clwydian Range 

is the first chain of hills inside the 

Welsh border. With strong cultural 

links to Liverpool and the North 

West of England, the area is heavily 

visited. 
 

‘Honey-pot’ sites 

 

The Pontcysyllte Aqueduct and 

 

 

 

No coherent identity for the 

area, there are three distinct 

tourism units – the Clwydian 

Range, the Dee Valley and 

the World Heritage Site. 

There is no coordination of 

visitor management. 

Interpretation and 

awareness of the culture and 

history of the area is low. 

People pass through the 

area travelling to west 

Wales. Need to raise 

awareness of the area and 

encourage people to stop in 

the AONB. 

Lack of high quality facilities 

– public transport, car 

parking, cafes, toilets, 

information. 

Localised degraded 

environment due to 

congestion, litter and 

vandalism. 

 

 

 

Provision: 

36 Caravan Parks / Camp Sites in the 

AONB. 

Number of tourism businesses – 

unknown 

Number of AONB threshold signs - ? 

Number of Car Parks in the AONB – 

unknown. 

Number of Public Toilets in the AONB 

– 8 

4 Country Parks in the AONB – 

o Loggerheads 

o Moel Famau 

o Ty Mawr 

o Minera Lead Mines 
 

Extent: 

4 Country Parks covering 1,007.05 ha 

(2.59% of AONB). 

o 1 Country Park currently 

closed. 

There are 20 sites (including Country 

Parks) in the AONB managed by 

AONB / Local Authorities. These 

P
a
g
e
 8

1
P

age 83



 | 30 P a g e

Canal is a feat of civil engineering 

of the Industrial Revolution, 

completed in the early years of the 

19th century. The property is 

inscribed as a World Heritage Site 

and is recognised as an innovation 

ensemble that inspired many 

projects all over the world. 

 

Loggerheads Country Park 

provides an important link to the 

wider Clwydian Range and is seen 

as a base from which to explore. 

 

Moel Famau is a significant tract of 

heather moorland in the Clwydian 

Range. The Jubilee Tower is on the 

summit. 

 

Ty Mawr Country Park and farm lies 

on the banks of the River Dee 

beneath the arches of the Cefn 

Viaduct. 

 

Minera Lead Mines Country Park is 

a starting point for the Clywedog 

Trail and accessing the beautiful 

countryside of Minera Mountain.  

 

Offa’s Dyke National Trail and the 

Panorama Drive, which run along 

the foot of Eglwyseg Rocks, offer 

stunning high level views. 

 

Existing and new 

development where there 

has been a lack of attention 

to design, character, 

materials and integration 

within key views and at key 

locations which contribute to 

visitor experience. 

Access for the less able is 

challenging. 

Lack of / closure of visitor 

facilities. 

Traffic management, 

congestion and car parking. 

Poor public transport links 

and infrastructure. 

Busy road crossings. 

Some industrial remains are 

in poor condition. 

Visitor pressure in key 

conservation areas. 

cover 1075.78 ha (2.76% of the 

AONB) 

Natural Resources Wales estate 

(formerly Forestry Commission) 

covers 1299.37 ha (3.34% of the 

AONB). 

 
Condition: 

Minera Lead mines currently closed 

to the public. 

P
a
g
e
 8

2
P

age 84



 | 31 P a g e

The Horseshoe Pass is a popular 

tourist viewpoint and scenic drive.  
 

Access and 

Leisure 

 

The Offa’s Dyke Trail and 

Promoted Routes 

 

The AONB has an extensive 

network of paths, bridleways and 

byways. Some have great historical 

significance including the Leete 

Path and old Drovers’ Roads. The 

network brings specific economic 

benefit to the local economy. 

 

There are a great many 

publications promoting primarily 

walking opportunities. 
 

Open Access 

 

Access Land comprises mountain, 

moor, heath and down, common 

land and all land over 600m in 

height. 

 

Access Land is an important 

component of the Clwydian Range 

and Dee Valley, and provides 

access to areas, particularly 

hilltops, not served by the Rights of 

Way network. It is found throughout 

the AONB, but the majority in found 

in the south, covering the large 

 

 

On-going maintenance of 

promoted routes. 

Erosion in sensitive areas. 

Impact of access on stock 

and farming, particularly by 

dogs. 

Limited Rights of Way for 

horse riders and cyclists. 

Congestion in honey pot 

areas. 

Blocked and unusable paths 

restrict opportunities. 

Number of unsupported 

promoted routes. 

Uncertainty with the public 

to where access land areas 

are. 

Disturbance to nesting birds 

and other wildlife. 
 

Adventure activities 

Population health issues 

increasing. 

Conflict between user 

groups using the resources 

of the area, in particular the 

River Dee. 

Litter, noise, damage. 

Mountain biking pressure on 

 

 

Extent: 

772.6 km of Public Rights of Way 

324.4 km of Rights of Way and 

permissive routes promoted by 

AONB / Local Authority publications. 

(42% of the network). 

114 km of Promoted Cycle Routes on 

Public Rights of Way / permissive 

paths. (14.8% of the network). 

Length of blocked / unusable paths 

unknown. 

Significant car parks serving the 

network include Loggerheads, Moel 

Famau and Ty Mawr Country Parks, 

Car Parks in Corwen and Llangollen, 

and Llantysilio Green. 

Number of Laybys suitable for 

parking unknown 

3 Railway stations serving the AONB 

(Prestatyn, Ruabon and Chirk) 

10,380.18 ha of Access Land (26.67% 

of AONB area), of this 

o 6441.35 ha is common land 

o 3938.83 ha are mapped as 

open country. 

Number of adventure activity 

providers unknown. 

Tourism spend in the AONB in 2012 - 

£39.4 million. 

P
a
g
e
 8

3
P

age 85



 | 32 P a g e

extents of open moorland on the 

Ruabon, Llantysilio and North 

Berwyn mountains. 

 

A number of permissive access 

routes have been developed to 

guide walkers to points of interest 

and significance, such as Liberty 

Hall south of Corwen, and the 

summit of Moel Gyw. 
 

Adventure Activities 

 

There is growing concern that 

people’s lifestyles are becoming 

too sedentary. They seek to ‘de-

stress’ through adventure 

experiences such as rock climbing, 

caving, kayaking, white water 

rafting, mountain bikes, horse 

riding etc…. 
 

The landscape of the AONB 

supports adventure activity 

businesses, including the mountain  

Biking centre at Coed Llandegla. 
 

bridleway network and 

wider countryside. 

Impact of access on key 

conservation sites. 

Access and 

Leisure 

Health and well-being –

Deprivation 

 

In general, the AONB is not an area 

with high levels of deprivation 

when assessed against most 

deprivation indicators, including 

 

 

Maintaining and improving 

access to local services. 

People living in deprived 

areas do not get a benefit 

from the AONB.  

 

 

2 Communities First Areas within the 

AONB 

7 Communities First Areas within 3km 

of AONB. 

Percentage of LSOA’s (Lower-level 

P
a
g
e
 8

4
P

age 86



 | 33 P a g e

income levels, educational 

attainment, employment, health, 

housing quality and physical 

environment. Overall, the AONB is 

within the least deprived 25% areas 

of Wales (Welsh Index of Multiple 

Deprivation 2005). However, one 

aspect in which the AONB 

demonstrates notably high levels of 

deprivation is access to services, 

which is a result of the sparsely 

populated rural character of the 

area. As the population is older than 

the average, access to local and 

specialist health care, and support 

services, all contribute to a sense of 

community wellbeing. 

 

Although still below the Welsh 

average, levels of limiting long 

term illness have increased in the 

AONB between 2001 and 2011. 
 

 Super Output Areas) in AONB within 

the most deprived quartile in Wales 

for access to services – 26.3%  (10 of 

38) 

Percentage of people with limiting 

long-term illness 

o East 17.2% 

o North 21.7% 

o West 19.5% 

o South 21.2 % 

o Wales 22.7% 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

5
P

age 87



 | 34 P a g e

Culture and People – The Built Environment 

 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Environment 

Settlement 

 

The settlement pattern of the 

Clwydian Range is characterised by 

villages and hamlets on either side 

of the main ridge, such as Llanbedr 

DC, Cilcain and Nannerch, and 

along river valleys, including 

Bodfari and Llanferres. Most of 

these villages are compact and 

nucleated in form. These 

settlements are supplemented by 

scattered farmsteads and isolated 

dwellings which extend higher up 

the slopes.  

 

The settlement patterns in the south 

of the AONB are found primarily 

along river valleys. Smaller villages 

include Bryneglwys, Glyndyfrdwy, 

Carrog, Pentredwr and 

Froncysyllte. The towns of 

Llangollen and Corwen both 

straddle the River Dee. Similar to 

the Clwydian Range, scattered 

farmsteads and isolated dwellings 

are found higher up the slopes. 

 

 

Development in the AONB 

and its setting is not always 

in sympathy with the local 

landscape character and 

settlement pattern. 

 

 

No. of AONB villages / settlements defined 

in development plans: 

Denbighshire 23 

Flintshire 6 

Wrexham 2 

Total – 31 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 8

6
P

age 88



 | 35 P a g e

 

A number of larger settlements 

adjoin the AONB, including 

Prestatyn, Meliden, Dyserth, 

Gwernymynydd, Trefor, Cefn Mawr 

and Chirk. 

 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Environment 

Conservation Areas 

 

Conservation Areas are designated 

by local planning authorities to 

protect areas of special 

architectural or historic interest 

where it is desirable to preserve or 

enhance their character or 

appearance. They are one indicator 

of the quality of the built 

environment. Designations should 

be underpinned by up to date 

Character Appraisals, and planning 

authorities should prepare 

Management / Enhancement Plans. 

Designation also brings some 

additional controls on 

development, but these can be 

increased via Article 4 Directions if 

permitted development is harming 

the special character of the area. 

 

 

 

Incomplete / out of date 

Conservation Area 

Character Appraisals. 

Lack of Management / 

Enhancement Plans for 

Conservation Areas. 

No arrangements for 

monitoring the condition of 

Conservation Areas. 

 

 
Extent: 

There are 17 conservation areas in 

the AONB, covering 88.85 ha (0.23% 

of AONB) 

o Denbighshire 9 

o Flintshire 6 

o Wrexham 2 

% of AONB villages / settlements 

recognised in development plans 

which are Conservation Areas – 

41.9% (13 of 31) 

% of Conservation Areas with an up 

to date Character Appraisal unknown 

% of Conservation Areas with a 

Management / Enhancement Plan 

unknown 

No. of Article 4 Directions unknown 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Environment 

Listed Buildings 

 

Buildings of special architectural or 

historical interest are Listed by 

Cadw. There are strict controls over 

 

 

Concerns over the number 

of listed buildings at risk. 

There is a need to update 

 

 
Extent: 

There are 645 Listed Buildings in the 

AONB 

P
a
g
e
 8

7
P

age 89



 | 36 P a g e

development of Listed Buildings 

and their setting to ensure their 

special character is conserved or 

enhanced. The number and grade 

of Listed Buildings in an area is 

another indicator of the quality of 

the local built environment. Local 

authorities are advised to 

undertake 5 yearly surveys of the 

condition of Listed Buildings in their 

area to identify buildings at risk. 

 

and maintain the Buildings at 

Risk list for each Local 

Authority. 

The Jubilee Tower at Moel 

Famau is one of the most 

prominent and distinctive 

Listed Buildings in the 

AONB, but is in need of 

restoration / conservation to 

secure its long term future. 

 

56 are considered to be ‘at risk’. 

Significant Listed Buildings include 

Chirk Castle, Llangollen Bridge and 

the Jubilee Tower. 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Environment 

Development Control 

 

The control of development in the 

AONB is an important means by 

which the character and 

appearance of the area can be 

maintained or improved. 

Development proposals outside the 

area can also have an impact on 

important views in or out of the 

AONB. 

 

The three local planning authorities 

(LPA’s) consult the Joint Committee 

on planning applications which 

might impact on the AONB. 

 

 

 

 

Need to maintain Joint 

Committee activity in 

respect of responding to 

development proposals. 

Maintain and develop the 

Joint Committee’s credibility 

and influence as a planning 

consultee. 

Three LPA’s; need to ensure 

consistent approach across 

administrative boundaries. 

Urbanisation of villages and 

poor urban design. 

Need for a more proactive 

response to unauthorised 

development in the AONB. 

 

 

 

No. of planning applications referred 

to the JAC 

o 2011/12 – 199 

o 2012/13 – 212 

o 2013/14 – 221 

% of JAC comments adopted by 

LPA’s  

o 2011/12 – 68% 

o 2012/13 – 72% 

o 2013/14 – 74% 

No. of possible unauthorised 

development cases referred to LPA’s 

o 2011/12 – 13 

o 2012/13 – 21 

o 2013/14 – 10 

 

 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Planning Policy and Guidance 

 

.Within a plan led system for the 

 

 

Clear and robust policies 

 

 

Local Development Plans: 

P
a
g
e
 8

8
P

age 90



 | 37 P a g e

Environment control of development, relevant 

and up to date planning policy and 

guidance is an essential component 

of protecting and conserving the 

character and appearance of the 

AONB. 

 

The local planning authorities 

publish Local Development Plans 

(LDPs). Adopted Supplementary 

Planning Guidance (SPG) notes 

complement development plans. 

The Joint Committee has prepared 

non-statutory Development 

Guidelines for the AONB. National 

planning policy is set by the Welsh 

Government, and the Joint 

Committee is usually consulted on 

proposed changes to national 

policy. 

 

 

 

required to conserve and 

enhance the AONB. 

Need for Joint Committee to 

engage with LDP process; 

WG guidance no longer 

requires LDP’s to include 

national AONB policies. 

Three LPA’s; need to ensure 

consistent approach to 

AONB policy and guidance 

across administrative 

boundaries. 

No specific SPG for the 

AONB to conserve and 

enhance local 

distinctiveness. Non-

statutory Development 

Guidelines cannot be 

adopted by the LPA’s. 

Need to maintain AONB 

profile and Joint Committee 

activity in respect of 

responding to planning and 

other policy consultations. 

 

Denbighshire LDP 2006 – 2021 

(adopted 2013) 

Flintshire LDP 2015 – 2030 (In 

preparation: adoption planned in 

2018) 

Wrexham LDP 2 2013 – 2028 (In 

preparation: adoption planned in 

2018) 

 

Unitary Development Plans (now 

superseded by Local Development Plan 

system): 

Flintshire UDP 2000 – 2015 ( adopted 

2011) 

Wrexham UDP 1996 – 2011 (adopted 

2005) 

 

P
a
g
e
 8

9
P

age 91



 | 38 P a g e

Culture and People – Sustainable Communities 

 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Sense of place 

 

Community, belonging, attachment 

and a sense of place. Associated 

with this is the Welsh language, 

strong community vaues and a 

sense of local pride which are all a 

part of the natural beaty of an area. 

There is an understanding that ‘the 

land makes us what we are’. 

 

 

 

Lack of awareness of the 

AONB and its purposes 

within parts of the local 

communities. 

Unfocused community and 

voluntary actions that 

contribute to local 

distinctiveness. 

 

 

 

 

  

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Population 

 

The AONB is sparsely populated 

but there is some variation across 

the area, the Dee Valley is the most 

populous mainly due to the larger 

towns of Llangollen and Corwen. 

However, there are a number of 

larger and more populous 

settlements in close proximity to 

the Clwydian Range such as Mold, 

Ruthin, Prestatyn, Chirk and the 

Wrexham urban fringe.  

 

The age profile of the AONB shows 

an older population than Wales, 

 

 

As life expectancy 

increases, there will be 

increasing numbers of older 

people in society. A sharp 

rise in the number of over 

80s will see a generation 

keen to relax but potentially 

reluctant (or unable) to 

travel far. 

Over the past fifteen years, a 

sustained rise in the birth 

rate has caused a mini baby 

boom. 

Grandparents will be 

 

 

Resident Population (2011) -18,690 

o 8,000 of these within the Dee 

Valley 

Population Density (2011) 

o North – 0.7 (persons per km 

sq) 

o West – 0.4 

o East – 0.4 

o South - 0.4 

o Wales 1.5 

Families with dependent children 

o North – 378 

o West – 839 

o East – 426 

P
a
g
e
 9

0
P

age 92



 | 39 P a g e

Denbighshire and Flintshire. 

 

The number of families with 

dependent children has risen 

between 2001 and 2011, 

particularly in the western area of 

the AONB. 

‘younger’ than ever before; 

and retiring baby boomers 

will priorities their leisure 

time. 

Pressures and opportunities 

arising from the close 

proximity of the AONB to a 

much larger population. 

 

o South - 301 

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Housing 

 

The AONB is an attractive area in 

which to live. It is also within easy 

commuting range of large 

employment centres such as 

Deeside, Chester, Wrexham and 

beyond. This influences the local 

housing market by pushing up 

house prices, often beyond what 

many local people can afford. The 

number of social / rented council 

and housing association properties 

in the AONB is limited. The 

problems of availability and 

affordability for local people are 

compounded by a higher 

percentage than the Welsh average 

of second / holiday homes in parts 

of the AONB. 

 

 

 

Increasing the number and 

range of affordable homes in 

the AONB to meet local 

needs. 

High levels of demand for 

council / housing association 

accommodation in some 

areas. 

Need for robust planning 

policies to ensure that new 

housing development 

addresses affordability and 

local need issues. 

 

 

368 Council Houses in Denbighshire 

and Flintshire areas of AONB. 

(Wrexham CBC Council House 

numbers unknown). 

No. of dwellings unknown 

Council / Housing Assoc Waiting 

Lists unknown 

Second homes in the AONB unknown 

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Employment 

 

A high proportion of AONB 

residents are economically active 

 

 

Lack of economic self-

containment resulting in 

 

 

No. of working residents unknown 

No. of jobs in the AONB unknown 

P
a
g
e
 9

1
P

age 93



 | 40 P a g e

when compared to the Welsh 

average but most commute out of 

the area to nearby towns and other 

centres of employment. The area 

does not therefore exhibit high 

levels of economic self-

containment, which can impact on 

community cohesion. The public 

sector is the largest source of 

employment, but agriculture and 

forestry continues to be an 

important employer when 

compared to the Welsh average. 

 

fewer people ‘embedded’ in 

their local area and reduced 

sense of community. 

Fewer local jobs than the 

working population. 

Reduction in the number of 

active agricultural holdings 

and the overall increase in 

the average holding size. 

Resources to deliver AONB 

Sustainable Tourism 

Strategy and Action Plan. 

% of population economically active 

(2011) 

o East 70% 

o North 67% 

o West 67% 

o South 68% 

o Wales 66% 

% of residents living and working in 

the AONB unknown 

% of residents employed in 

agriculture or forestry (2011) 

o East 5.4% 

o North 5.6% 

o West 9.3% 

o South 4% 

No. of active agricultural holdings 

unknown. 

Average size of agricultural holding 

unknown. 

No. of tourism related businesses 

supporting the AONB unknown 

% of population retired (2011) 

o East 20% 

o North 20% 

o West 21% 

o South 18% 

Levels of long term unemployment 

(2011) 

o East 0.9% 

o North 1.6% 

o West 1.2% 

o South 1.7% 

o Wales 2.4% 

 

P
a
g
e
 9

2
P

age 94



 | 41 P a g e

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Facilities and Services 

 

Access to local facilities and 

services such as schools, shops, 

post offices, community meeting 

places and public transport all 

contribute to a sense of community 

wellbeing. Access to such services 

in the AONB can be limited. Rural 

services are in decline and 

continue to be under threat given 

the economic outlook and the 

viability of providing such facilities 

in isolated and sparsely population 

areas. 

 

 

Maintaining key existing 

rural facilities and services 

that meet the needs of local 

people, and preventing the 

further loss of such facilities. 

Review of education 

provision and the number of 

rural schools. 

Developing access to new 

facilities and services such 

as high speed broadband 

and mobile phone coverage. 

Ensuring effective public 

transport network links to 

service centres. 

 

 

 

40 places of worship in the AONB. 

Facilities in Denbighshire area of 

AONB. 

o 57 Pubs / hotels / bars. 

o 118 shops. 

No. of primary schools in AONB – 14 

Nos. on school roll unknown 

No. of settlements with a public 

house – 21 (68%) 

No. of settlements with a community 

hall – 17 (55%) 

No. of settlements with a shop / PO – 

13 (42%) 

No. of settlements with a regular 

daily bus service – 19 (61%) 

Broadband ‘notspots’ – Unknown 

No. of mobile blackspots – unknown. 

 

P
a
g
e
 9

3
P

age 95



T
h
is

 p
a
g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k

P
age 96



Clwydian Range and Dee Valley
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

Draft Management Plan 2014

SECTION THREE

Action Plan

P
a
g
e
 9

5
P

age 97



1

Landscape Quality and Character

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority
LQCO1 Ensure that the natural resources

and special qualities of the AONB

are recognised and valued

Support Cadwyn Clwyd Renewable Energy Pilot projects and other appropriate

community based projects which seek to mitigate the impact of climate change and

reduce the carbon footprint of the AONB without harming the special qualities and

features of the area or its character and appearance.

Cadwyn /

AONB

LQCO2 Ensure that the impacts of

environmental change on the

AONB are understood and a

strategic response is developed

and implemented

Engage with the National Grid’s Visual Impact Provision (VIP) programme to reduce

the impact of high voltage transmission in the AONB and it’s setting.
AONB

Promote mast sharing to reduce clutter and impact on the local landscape character

of the AONB.

Work with the industry to apply the seven ‘Holford Rules’ and develop guidance for

mitigation measures.

LQCO3 Minimise the cumulative impacts

of small scale change that may

erode the special character of the

AONB.

Prepare guidance on the introduction of renewable energy technologies into the

AONB and its setting, to reduce the impact on the local landscape character

Encourage and support energy conservation measures in order to help meet national

and regional targets for energy consumption.

LQCO4 Protect the tranquillity of the

AONB and take steps where

possible to reduce noise and light

pollution.

Identify those special qualities of the AONB that are sensitive to change and monitor

their state.

LQCO5 Where possible reduce visual

intrusion by screening or

removing eyesores.

Conduct fix point photography monitoring of key viewpoints across the AONB.

Establish a monitoring programme from key viewpoints across the AONB

LQCO6 To investigate and increase our

understanding of the cultural

diversity of communities within

the AONB.

Organise community reminiscence days to engage with communities and draw upon

their wealth of knowledge about the area. 1 per year

Support the research and recording of the area’s social history

LQCO7 Develop partnerships that will

help to stimulate awareness of

and interest in cultural diversity

within the AONB.

Hold an annual AONB Forum to stimulate discussion on the areas special qualities and

ensure community participation

Maintain an AONB Partnership as part of the governance structure for the AONB

P
a
g
e
 9

6
P

age 98



2

HMRO1 To maintain or extend the

current extent of heather

moorland within the

AONB

Where possible, restore areas of former heathland particularly around

Coed Moel Famau, Coed Nercwys, Moel Findeg and Moel Famau.

HMRO2 To bring areas of heather

moorland into positive

productive management.

Continue to support the graziers on the Clwydian Range,Llantysilio

Mountain and North Berwyn in the management of heathland through

cutting and burning.

Continue to work with Coleg Cambria Llysfasi to provide training courses

in upland management as part of their National Diploma course – 2

events per year.

HMRO3 Continue to monitor black

grouse and other upland

bird species as an

indicator of habitat

condition

Monitor Black Grouse populations and other upland birds every year at

key lek sites across the AONB in order to inform and target specific

management.

RSPB AONB

NRW

HMRO4 Associate food production

with ecosystem

management.

Work with farmers and graziers to associate lamb from the upland areas

with quality landscapes.
AONB

Cadwyn

Cadwyn

Graziers

AONB

Food Trail

Engage producers and retailers with the Clwydian Range Food Trail

Project to promote local produce and give added value to produce

associated with positive conservation works.

HMRO5 Support and encourage

sustainable grouse

management where it has

positive environmental and

economic impacts

Support the North Wales Moors partnership on Y Berwyn RSPB NRW

AONB

HMRO6 Provide support to

farmers and landowners

in upland areas to bring

moorlands into

management schemes.

Attend graziers meeting where appropriate AONB

AONB
Provide practical support burning in upland areas wherever possible

P
a
g
e
 9

7
P

age 99



3

Limstone Grasslands, cliffs and screes
Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

LGPO1 Maintain the current extent of

calcareous grassland and limestone

pavement and scree within the AONB.

Ensure that the conservation objectives of each site are understood

and incorporated into project plans.

Plot and record cave systems in the AONB and identify features at

risk.

Support and promote projects through the North Wales Bionet

Group

LGPO2 Bring all areas of public owned /

managed limestone grassland, cliffs and

screes into favourable management

schemes.

Carry out targeted scrub control to restore areas of former

calcareous grassland habitat at Prestatyn Hillside, the Alyn Valley

and Eglwyseg.

LGPO3 Provide opportunities for privately

owned areas of limestone grassland and

pavement to come into favourable

management schemes.

Develop a Landscape Partnership Scheme Project for HLF to address

issues of visitor impacts on areas of limestone grassland, cliffs and

screes particularly around Loggerheads, Eglwyseg and the

Panorama.

Ensure that land managers understand the importance of calcareous

habitats and their sensitivity to grazing levels and the enrichment of

soils from fertilisers, herbicide application, ploughing and re

seeding.

LGPO4 Ensure that recreational pressure is

minimised in sensitive areas

Reduce the impact of the Offa’s Dyke National Trail on the Eglwyseg

Screes through path repair and consolidation.
AONB NRW

Assess the floristic changes that recreational pressure associated

with soil compaction brings about.

Develop the Countryside Grant Scheme to include funding of all

special features of the AONB including limestone grassland

restoration projects.

P
a
g
e
 9

8
P

age 100



4

Woodland and veteran Trees

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

WVTO1 To maintain the current extent of broadleaved

woodland and veteran trees within the AONB.
Support measures to reduce the impacts of pests and

diseases on the local landscape character (Phytopthora

Ramorum – Bilberry and Larch Ash dieback, and

Phytophthora Alni – Alder

Support appropriate planting programmes that strengthen

woodland resilience to environmental change.

WVTO2 Protect Veteran Trees within the landscape

across the AONB

Record the current extent and condition of veteran trees in

the AONB.

WVTO3 To maintain and restore broadleaved

woodland towards a favourable condition

through the implementation of the

Biodiversity Action Plans for Upland Mixed Ash

Woodlands, upland oak woodlands and wet

woodlands.

Bring all areas of public owned / managed broadleaved

woodland into favourable management schemes such as

Glastir or SSSI Section 15 Agreements by 2013.

Implement actions within existing section 15 management

agreements and Glastir schemes.

Develop the Countryside Grant Scheme to include funding

of all special features of the AONB including small

woodlands under 2 ha.

WVTO4 Develop publically owned woodlands as

models of best practice in broadleaf woodland

management.

Develop management programmes for all Local Authority

owned woodlands in particular Bishops Wood, Coed Alex,

Alyn Valley Woods, Riverside Woods Llangollen, Corwen

Cynwyd Railway line and Coed Pen y Pigyn and along the

Dee corridor at Ty Mawr including Jeffry’s Wood

P
a
g
e
 9

9
P

age 101



5

River Valleys

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

RVO1 Continue to monitor the extent of key indicator

species such as otter and water vole in order to

gauge habitat condition.

Meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive

and Catchment Management Plans

NRW AONB/

RVO2 Continue to develop a partnership of key

agencies and bodies to ensure an integrated and

landscape approach to management.

Support the Alyn and Wheeler Living Landscapes Project

and its work on riparian connectivity and invasive species.

NWWT AONB –

NRW

NEWWildlife

Develop the Countryside Grant Scheme to include funding

of all special features of the AONB including water courses

AONB

RVO3 Support and develop a landscape scale approach

to a programme of invasive species control

particularly in relation to Himalayan balsam.

Continue to work in partnership with others to control

invasive species within the Alyn and Wheeler Living

Landscapes Project.

Support the DINNS Partnership in addressing invasive

species throughout the Dee catchment.

Support Big Dee Day to tackle invasive non native plants

and animals, such as Japanese knotweed, Himalayan

balsam.

RVO4 Raise awareness amongst the general public and

landowners/managers of the importance of the

river valleys for biodiversity.

Devise and run an exemplar demonstration project on good

catchment management

Hold an annual workshop on pollution control and good

management for landowners, local councillors and

professionals.

P
a
g
e
 1

0
0

P
age 102



6

Historic Settlement and Archaeology

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

HSAO1 Work towards a position where

the condition/state of all

archaeological sites within the

AONB is known and appropriate

management work is carried out.

Utilise HER information, Pan

Wales projects, Glastir agri

environment schemes and the

planning process to facilitate this.

Produce a schedule of historic site enhancements to prioritise works

and promote good practice across all types and ages of assets. Target

Project Action by the use of an ‘At risk’ register.

Conduct CPD sessions with planners and Highway officers to explain

Archaeology and the Planning system and the importance of these

small features in maintaining the character of settlements

Work with Denbighshire Agricultural Estate at Caer Drewyn to

establish an appropriate stocking rate and continue to control scrub

around the hillfort.

HSAO2 Encourage owners of Historic

parks and Gardens within the

AONB to maintain and restore

existing parkland features as

noted in the Register.

Work with registered Historic parks and gardens landowners and

other relevant agencies to undertake appraisals and to prepare and

implement management plans to conserve and enhance the sites.

HSAO3 Increase the profile of the Historic

Environment through effective

and consistent interpretation and

information.

Raise awareness of the importance of industrial sites and features

within the planning and AONB.

Through the Our Picturesque Landscape Project devise and run an

engagement programme for both residents (including schools, Town

and Community Councils and Community Groups) and visitors,

promoting awareness and understanding of the Historic Environment

of the AONB and the historical links between sites.

HSAO4 Incorporate information gathered

as part of the Historic

Environment Record into the

continuous management process

within the AONB.

Ensure all decisions regarding the Historic Environment are evidence

based.

Ensure LANDMAP data and the Historic Environment Record are

utilised to guide the determination of planning applications and

inform agri environment schemes.

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1

P
age 103



7

Industrial Features and World Heritage Site.

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

WHSO1 To secure the integrity of the outstanding

universal values of the World Heritage

Site.

Work in partnership to achieve the aspirations of the World Heritage

Site Landscape Management Plan.

WHSO2 Maintenance of key views to and from the

WHS and the visual and cultural setting.

Establish an HLF project with Canal Rivers and Trust and Wrexham

County Borough Council to preserve the key views from and into the

WHS

WHSO3 Take steps to limit the impact visitor

pressures on the historic integrity and

setting of the World Heritage site

Work with Cadw and local landowners to formalise access to the

Horseshoe Falls from Llantysilio.

WHSO4 Ensure a consistent approach to

interpretation, signage and quality of the

experience across partnership authorities.

Work with the World Heritage Site partnership to develop an

Interpretation and strategy for the whole corridor.

WHSO5 Raise awareness of the importance of

industrial sites and features within the

planning and AONB.

Through the Our Picturesque Landscape Partnership project assess

and restore key features associated with lead mining limestone

quarrying particularly around Loggerheads, Minera and Eglwyseg.

Work towards the reconsolidation of industrial features on Prestatyn

Hillside.

Through the Our Picturesque Landscape Project provide high quality

interpretation for key industrial sites within the AONB – in particular

the Leete at Loggerheads, Devil’s gorge and Minera Lead mines.

WHSO6 Develop an “at risk “ register for key

industrial historic sites and work towards

programmes that will respond where

action is required.

Establish an HLF project to identify and respond to sites at risk. LAs

Cadw

P
a
g
e
 1

0
2

P
age 104



8

Hillforts and Defensive Structures

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

DFSO1 Ensure continuation of the Heather and

Hillforts Project to maintain existing level

of work at the 4 hillforts of Penycloddiau,

Moel Arthur, Moel y Gaer Llanbedr and

Moel Fenlli and aim to continue

programme to include Moel y Gaer

Bodfari and Moel Hiraddug.

Monitor the impact of the Offa’s Dyke

National Trail on the Hillforts of the

Clwydian Range.

AONB NRW

DCC /FCC

Continue to support a partnership approach

to tackling off road vehicular trespass and its

impacts on the hillforts, particularly on

Llantysilio Mountain work with Police,

NRW and Local Authorities.

DCC RoW AONB

NWP

NRW

DFSO2 Ensure the structural integrity features

and ensure that impacts of visitor

pressure is minimised

Complete the reconsolidation of the

masonry at Castell Dinas Bran around the

gatehouse.

DCS AONB

Cadw

Through the Our Picturesque Landscape

project take steps to minimise erosion into

Castell Dinas Bran particularly from the

eastern access point.

AONB Cadw

DCS

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3

P
age 105



9

Small Historic Features

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

SHFO1 Raise awareness of the importance

of small historic features within both

the planning and highways

environments by providing training

sessions to professionals.

Ensure LANDMAP data and the Historic

Environment Record are utilised to guide the

determination of planning applications and inform

agri environment schemes.

Conduct CPD sessions with planners and Highway

officers to explain Archaeology and the Planning

system and the importance of these small features

in maintaining the character of settlements

SHFO2 Encourage Communities to identify

and map features within their

communities on a standard database

which is compatible with the HER.

Encourage the use of the Civic Trust Wales historic

characterisation tool kit in the AONB’s

settlements.

Visit Local Communities to discuss recording of

features

SHFO3 Encourage Communities to adopt

these features and act as their

champions by raising awareness

within community councils and

youth groups.

In line with The Welsh Historic Environment: a

Celebration (2009) Establish an Historic

Environment Champion from within the AONB

Partnership.

P
a
g
e
 1

0
4

P
age 106



10

Boundaries

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

BO1 Using SDF and other funds develop a

Countryside Grant schemes to

support projects which will maintain

and enhance the most important

boundaries in the AONB as well as

other Special Features

Continue to support through SDF a grant scheme

to facilitate boundary improvement.

AONB

BO2 In line with aspirations within The

Welsh Historic Environment Strategic

Statement (2009) raise the skills base

amongst the local workforce to

increase the number of people who

can carry out the necessary

conservation and repair work.

Continue to work with Llysfasi College students

and staff to provide training courses in

Countryside Skills

AONB

Continue to offer training days for Countryside

Volunteers in hedge laying and dry stonewall

construction.

AONB

BO3 Identify the most important

boundaries within the AONB within an

historic context.

Gather information on current condition of

boundaries within the AONB.

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5

P
age 107



11

Iconic Visitor and Cultural Attractions.

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

IVCO1 To ensure that visitors and the tourism

industry understand the need for, and support

the conservation and enhancement of, the

special qualities of the AONB as key assets

upon which tourism is based.

Maintain Sustainable Tourism Charter

status for the AONB.

AONB Cadwyn

FCC / DCC

WCBC

Co ordinate the development and

implementation of Destination

Management Plans that affect the AONB.

DCC

FCC

WCBC

AONB

VW

Hold an Annual Tourism Forum

Work with Visit Wales and other Protected

Landscapes to promote sustainable

tourism in Wales

IVCO2 Promote and assist convenient and sustainable

access into the AONB and special places within

it.

Utilise countryside sites such as Ty Mawr

Country Park and Loggerheads to act as

gateways to the AONB through good

quality interpretation and information

provision.

AONB Cadwyn

CRT

WCBC

DCC

FCC

IVCO3 Continue to develop public transport links and

develop a strategy to reduce congestion

between honey pots and with other centres of

population.

Work with the public transport staff and

companies to co ordinate public transport

to and from AONB access hubs.

IVCO4 Investigate ways to reduce congestion around

key visitor areas.

Prepare a Visitor Management Plan for the

World Heritage Site and consider ways to

reduce congestion that will reduce the

impact on residents and improve the

visitor experience.

CRT AONB

WCBC

DCC

P
a
g
e
 1

0
6

P
age 108



12

Implement the scheme for the

development of additional car parking at

Loggerheads and implement car park

improvements at Ty Mawr country Park

AONB Cadwyn

DCC

IVCO5 Target information relating to the Countryside

Code, behaviour and the impact of visitors on

conservation status of key sites.

Collect and disseminate data on actual and

potential users recreational needs and

aspirations.

AONB NRW

NFU

FUW

IVCO6 Assist tourism businesses to embrace the

opportunities and responsibilities of being in a

protected area

Develop an AONB Tourism Ambassador

scheme.

AONB DCC

FCC

WCBC

Provide support to business groups in the

Clwydian Range and Dee Valley and

continue to develop the Sustainable

Tourism Forum of businesses and officers.

AONB DCC

FCC

WCBCP
a
g
e
 1

0
7

P
age 109



13

The Offa’s Dyke Trail and Promoted Routes

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

ODPPRO1 Continue a programme of Rights of Way

improvment across the AONB through the use of

the Community miles Initiative and other arera

access improvement work focusing on increasing

opportunities to access the countryside.

Seek safe and convenient access for horses,

cyclists and walkers when creating new

routes in the AONB.

AONB DCC

RoW

ODPPRO2 Provide increased opportunities where appropriate

for walking, cycling and horse riding in the AONB

and promote these opportunities

Crete digital files of all promoted routes

within the AONB and make them accessible

on the web.

AONB DCC

FCC

WCBC

ODPPRO3 Work with the Local Access Forums to ensure an

effective partnership with access users and

landowners.

Provide support to farmers and landowners

in dealing with recreational pressure.

AONB FUW

NRW

NFU

ODPPRO4 Raise awareness of the acknowledged health and

well being benefits provided by the AONB and

develop initiatives promoting physical activity

particularly walking and cycling.

Continue to develop through partners

volunteer and events programme activities

that encourage the use of the countryside

Develop and promote Health Walks and

Green Gyms close to AONB settlements

AONB

ODPPRO5 Understand and work towards removing physical

and psychological barriers to access enabling all

sectors of society to participate in and benefit from

Ensure least restrictive access is applied on

all promoted trails in the AONB

AONB DCC

FCC

WCBC

NRW

P
a
g
e
 1

0
8

P
age 110



14

outdoor access and recreational opportunities. Continue to provide opportunities for

underrepresented groups to experience the

special qualities of the AONB.

AONB NRW

ODPPRO6 Investigate ways to promote the trail with local

tourism businesses and to develop initiatives that

will strengthen business links.

Through the Walking with Offa project

provide support to tourism businesses in

order to ensure that they are able to

maximise the potential of the National Trail

to the economy of the area.

AONB Cadwyn

DCC

CRT

WCBC

ODPPRO7 Strengthen links between the Trail and nearby

settlements and places of interest utilising the wider

Rights of Way Network and Public Transport.

Through the Walking with Offa cross border

collaboration project with other Protected

Landscapes work with business groups to

increase awareness of the Offa’s Dyke Path

as a gateway to the AONB.

AONB Cadwyn

DCC

CRT

WCBC

ODPPRO8 Monitor erosion in key areas and develop a

programme of measures that will reduce the impact

of the trail on the landscape by limiting width or

depth of path as appropriate.

Carry out erosion control measures on the

Offa’s Dyke National Trail at Cyrn y Brain,

Egwyseg, Moel Famau and the hillforts of

the Clwydian Range in order to reduce the

impact of the trail on the landscape and

conservation features of the area.

AONB NRW

ODPPRO9 Identify key indicator sites to monitor visitor user

numbers within the AONB

Produce an annual monitoring report for key

sites such as Ty Mawr Country Park,

Loggerheads and People Counter data for

the trails in the AONB.

AONB DCC

NRW

DCC

P
a
g
e
 1

0
9

P
age 111



15

THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

BEO1 Ensure new development in and around

the AONB is sympathetically located in

the landscape, and is well designed to

complement the character and

appearance of the area and its setting,

particularly in respect of visual impact,

scale, materials and landscaping.

Prepare guides for development at gateway

locations to complement the AONB and

strengthen local landscape character.

AONB

To work with the local planning authorities to

prepare and adopt formal Supplementary

Planning Guidance and design guides for

development in the AONB.

Facilitate an annual meeting with interested parties

on the built environment.

Undertake characterisations studies of all

settlements, initially focusing on the larger

settlements and pressure points, to identify

sensitivities and opportunities for change

Consider and comment on >100 planning

applications and other development

proposals in and around the AONB each year,

and to seek >85% adoption of the JC’s views.

Increase awareness and understanding of

development issues in the AONB by assisting

with planning committee member training

and development programmes and

continued professional development for

officers.

BEO2 Conserve and enhance the character and

local distinctiveness of historic villages,

buildings and gardens within the AONB.

Work with the local authorities to undertake

5 yearly reviews of the Buildings at Risk register

and condition surveys covering the AONB and take

action to rduce the number of buildings at risk

AONB

Carry out and/or updating Conservation Area

Appraisals and Management Plans for all

Conservation Areas within the AONB,

AONB

P
a
g
e
 1

1
0

P
age 112



16

including boundary reviews and an

assessment of the overall condition of the

areas.

To promote the use of Article 4 Directions to

control permitted development in

Conservation Areas which is harmful to the

character and appearance of the area as

identified by Conservation Area Appraisals.

Ensure that Historic Parks and Gardens are

protected from inappropriate development

which would harm the character or

recognised special features of the registered

site

BEO3 Promote action to reduce the visual

impact of prominent existing

development in the AONB.

Develop guidance for the siting and design of

agricultural and forestry buildings in the

AONB to enhance local landscape character

Work with National Grid to reduce the impact of

pylons in the Molwynion Valley and Tremeirchion area

through their Visual Improvement Project

Work with Scottish Power to under ground overhead

lines where ever possible

P
a
g
e
 1

1
1

P
age 113



17

Sustainable Communities

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

SCO1 Help local communities to retain

and enhance access to essential

community services and

facilities.

Support and promote appropriate social /

community ownership and enterprise projects

and initiatives such as ‘The Pub’s the Hub’

which will maintain and improve access to

local facilities and services.

AONB

Resist development proposals that involve the

loss of community facilities such as local shops

and public houses.

Identify current broadband provision across

the AONB and work with communities and

other agencies to secure the best possible

coverage/speed of service, address broadband

‘not spots’, and to promote the WAG

Superfast Scheme

Promote a profitable, high quality local food

processing economy as a way of revitalising

rural incomes; and to raising awareness among

residents, businesses and visitors about the

benefits to the landscape, economy and social

fabric of purchasing locally sourced goods.

SCO2 Support the development of affordable

housing for local people in appropriate

locations, whilst maintaining the highest

standards of design and landscaping.

Support the local authorities in carrying out

housing needs and affordability surveys in

areas of high demand for affordable housing

indicated by LA/HA waiting lists.

AONB

Work with local planning and housing

authorities to promote affordable housing

schemes for local people, to secure affordable

units as part of any new market housing

development, and to encourage the provision

of affordable housing for local people through

AONB

P
a
g
e
 1

1
2

P
age 114



18

conversions and the development of individual

new dwellings in villages and hamlets.

Promote opportunities to encourage local

businesses to become more environmentally

and economically sustainable, particularly in

ways that conserve the special qualities of the

AONB

SCO3 Foster a sense of place and local pride to

secure social well being.

Promote opportunities to encourage local

businesses to become more environmentally

and economically sustainable, particularly in

ways that conserve the special qualities of the

AONB

AONB

AONB

AONB

Support a Community Ambassador Scheme to

improve communication with communities

Liaise with community and Town Councils on an

annual basis

Hold an annual Forum

Produce an volunteer programme of events twice per

year

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3

P
age 115



T
h
is

 p
a
g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k

P
age 116



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AONB Management Plan  

28/01/2015 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 115Page 117



 

<Title of the proposal being assessed> 
 

Contact: 
 

David Shiel, Clwydian Range and Dee Valley 
AONB - Environmental Services> 

Updated: 28/01/2015 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A strategic or service plan 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

The adoption of the Management Plan for the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley 
AONB.  This is a statutory Plan which sets out an agenda for the management of 
the Special Qualities and Features of the AONB for the period 2014 - 2015.  The 
Plan has been prepared following consultation with key stakeholders on behalf of 
a partnership of the 3 local authorities of Denbighshire Flintshire and Wrexham. 
 
The Proposal is to take the draft plan to public consultaion.  
  

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

No The proposal relates soley to the administrative process of 
moving the plan to public consultation stage.  

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

N/A 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 

Page 116Page 118



 

(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

N/A 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

N/A 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

<Please Select> N/A 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
<Please Select> N/A 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: following 
Public 
consultation 

 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

David Shiel  28/01/2015 
 

 

Page 117Page 119



 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Page 118Page 120



 

Forward Work Programme February 2015 Update 
Project Detail/Action 

Management Plan 
Reference 

Timescale  Cost –ve or +ve or 
neutral (Through 
existing and 
external budgets) 

Finance 

Finance and Funding To be a standing item on 
the Forward Work 
programme 

Report to each 
JC 

Neutral 

Strategic Plans 2014-16 

Communications 
Strategy 

To asses monitoring and 
effectiveness of AONB 
Communication  

Spring 2015 Neutral 

Friends of the 
Clwydian Range and 
Dee Valley 

Launch of an 
independent ‘Friends 
Group’ 

Summer 2015 Neutral 

AONB Management 
Plan 

To support the Policies of 
the AONB through 
contribution to 
consultations. To 
implement the AONB 
Action Plan 

Summer 2015 Neutral 

Outreach and 
Volunteers strategy 

To provide a policy 
statement, engagement 
plan and action plan 

Summer 2015 Neutral 

Business Plan To write a five year 
business plan 

Autumn 2015 Neutral 

Projects 2015-16 

Clwydian Range 30th 
Anniversary 

Celebration of 
Anniversary 

 Neutral 

AONB Tourism 
Strategy 

To Implement the action 
plan 

Autumn 2015 Neutral 

Climate Change 
Programme 

To implement and 
promote the new 
literature 

Summer 2015 Neutral 

    

Edernion Tourism 
Strategy 

To implement the action 
plan 

Autumn 2015 Neutral 

 AONB Icons 

World Heritage Site Collaboration between 
the two designations 

Autumn 2014 Neutral 

 Section 85 Organisations 

Planning To produce an SPG for 
the AONB 

Spring 2016 -ve 

Tranquillity To investigate 
improvements to Dark 
skies 

Spring 2016 -ve 

Urbanisation  To enter into an 
agreement with NEWTRA 
and LA Highways to 
respect the rural nature of 
the AONB 

Spring 2016 -ve 

Tourism Investigate how best to 
integrate the NE Wales 
and AONB Brands 

Spring 2016 Visit Wales E4G 
Neutral 

Page 119

Agenda Item 8

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



   

 
 
At: Aelodau’r Cyd-bwyllgor Ardal 

o Harddwch Naturiol 
Eithriadol Bryniau Clwyd a 
Dyffryn Dyfrdwy 

Dyddiad: 

 
Dydd Gwener, 6 Chwefror 2015 

 Rhif 
Union: 
 

01824 712589 

 Ebost: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y Cyd-bwyllgor Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol 
Eithriadol Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy, Dydd Gwener, 13 Chwefror 2015 
am 2.00 pm yn Siambr y Cyngor, Neuadd y Dref, Wrecsam. 
 
Yn gywir iawn  
 
 
G Williams 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, AD a Democrataidd 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
CYFLWYNIADAU 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD   

 Aelodau i ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu gysylltiad sy'n rhagfarnu yn 
y busnes a nodwyd i'w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn. 
 

3 COFNODION  (Tudalennau 3 - 8) 

 Derbyn cofnodion Cyd-bwyllgor Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol Bryniau 
Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy a gynhaliwyd ar 14 Tachwedd 2014 (copi ynghlwm). 
 

4 COFNODION Y CYD-BWYLLGOR YMGYNGHOROL DROS DRO - 5 

RHAGFYR 2014  (Tudalennau 9 - 18) 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus

Page 123



 Derbyn cofnodion Cyd-bwyllgor Ymgynghorol Dros Dro Ardal o Harddwch 
Naturiol Eithriadol Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy a gynhaliwyd ar 5 
Rhagfyr 2014 (copi ynghlwm). 
 

5 MONITRO CYLLIDEB Y CYD-BWYLLGOR 2014/15 A CHYLLIDEB 

ARFAETHEDIG 2015/16  (Tudalennau 19 - 26) 

 Ystyried adroddiad (copi ynghlwm) ar sefyllfa ariannol bresennol yr AHNE a 
chymeradwyo'r gyllideb ar gyfer 2015/16. 
 

6 CYNLLUN RHEOLI DRAFFT AR GYFER YR AHNE  (Tudalennau 27 - 122) 

 Ystyried adroddiad yn cyflwyno Cynllun Rheoli Drafft yr AHNE i'w gadarnhau 
a’i gymeradwyo ar gyfer ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus (copi ynghlwm). 
 

7 DIWEDDARIAD PARTNERIAETH AHNE   

 Derbyn diweddariad ar lafar ar y cynnydd. 
 

8 RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL  (Tudalennau 123 - 124) 

 Derbyn y rhaglen gwaith i'r dyfodol ddiwygiedig wedi’i diweddaru (copi 
ynghlwm). 
 

9 DYDDIADAU CYFARFODYDD Y DYFODOL   
 

 
 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Bernie Attridge 
Derek Butler 
Hugh Evans 

Hugh Jones 
Huw Jones 
Ian Roberts 

  
 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned 
 

Page 124



 

CYD-BWYLLGOR ARDAL O HARDDWCH NATURIOL EITHRIADOL BRYNIAU CLWYD 

A DYFFRYN DYFRDWY 

 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Cyd-bwyllgor Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol Bryniau Clwyd a 
Dyffryn Dyfrdwy a gynhaliwyd yn Ystafell Gynhadledd 1a, Neuadd y Sir, Rhuthun, Dydd 
Gwener, 14 Tachwedd 2014 am 10.00 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 
Y Cynghorwyr Derek Butler, Hugh Evans, Hugh Jones ac Ian Roberts 
 
Arsylwyr: Cynghorwyr Stuart Davies, Martyn Holland, Rhys Hughes, Win Mullen-
James a Carolyn Thomas 

 

 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau'r Gyfraith, AD a Democratiaeth (CSDd - GW), Swyddog AHNE 
Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy (HS), Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Cefn Gwlad a 
Threftadaeth (CSDd - HR), Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cefn Gwlad Sir y Fflint (TW), 
Rheolwr Parciau / Cefn Gwlad a Hawliau Tramwy (CBSW - MH), Rheolwr Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd (CSDd - SP), Uwch Swyddog Cefn Gwlad yr AHNE (DS), Rheolwr Cyllid a 
Sicrwydd (CSDd - SG), ac Uwch Swyddog Cyllid (CSDd - PO’H)  
 
Cynrychiolydd o Gyfoeth Naturiol Cymru (PM)  
 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd Bernie Attridge 
(Cyngor Sir y Fflint).  
 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  

 
Dim. 
 

3 PENODI CADEIRYDD Y CYDBWYLLGOR  

 
Cynigwyd y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones (Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Wrecsam) i’w 
benodi fel Cadeirydd y Cyd-bwyllgor gan y Cynghorydd Huw Jones.  Eiliodd y 
Cynghorydd Ian Roberts y cynnig.  Ni chafwyd unrhyw enwebiadau eraill a 
phenodwyd y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones yn gadeirydd.  
 
 PENDERFYNWYD - bod y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones yn cael ei benodi’n 
gadeirydd y Cydbwyllgor ar gyfer blwyddyn y cyngor 2014/15.  
 

4 PENODI IS-GADEIRYDD Y CYDBWYLLGOR  

 
Cynigwyd y Cynghorydd Huw Jones (Cyngor Sir Ddinbych) fel is-gadeirydd y 
Cydbwyllgor gan y Cynghorydd Derek Butler; ac fe eiliwyd y cynnig gan y 
Cynghorydd Hugh Evans.  Heb unrhyw enwebiadau eraill:  

Tudalen 3

Eitem Agenda 3

Page 125



 
PENDERFYNWYD – bod y Cynghorydd Huw Jones yn cael ei benodi’n is-
gadeirydd y Cydbwyllgor ar gyfer blwyddyn y cyngor 2014/15.  
 

5 MABWYSIADU CYFANSODDIAD AHNE BRYNIAU CLWYD A DYFFRYN 

DYFRDWY  

 
Cyflwynodd Bennaeth Gwasanaethau'r Gyfraith, AD a Democratiaeth Cyngor Sir 
Ddinbych adroddiad (wedi’i ddosbarthu’n flaenorol) oedd yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth 
y Cydbwyllgor i fabwysiadu cyfansoddiad y Cydbwyllgor (rheolau sefydlog).  
 
Cynghorodd y Pennaeth fod y cyfansoddiad atodol eisoes wedi’i gymeradwyo gan 
adrannau cyfreithiol y 3 awdurdod a’u tystio gyda sêl pob awdurdod.   Amlinellodd 
rai o rannau allweddol y ddogfen; bod aelodaeth y Cydbwyllgor yn cynnwys 
aelodau gweithredol pob awdurdod (e.e. Aelodau Cabinet neu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol) 
a bod gan bob awdurdod ddau aelod, darpariaethau ar gyfer cyfarfod blynyddol a 
chyfarfodydd bob 4 mis.  Byddai lleoliadau’r cyfarfodydd yn cael eu cylchdroi rhwng 
pob awdurdod.   Adroddodd ynglŷn â chworwm a threfniadau pleidleisio fel y 
dengys y rheolau sefydlog a chadarnhaodd y byddai Sir Ddinbych fel awdurdod 
arweiniol yr AHNE yn paratoi, cyhoeddi a chylchredeg pecynnau rhaglen ar gyfer 
pob cyfarfod y Cydbwyllgor, ond byddai’r awdurdod sy’n cynnal y cyfarfod yn 
cynhyrchu'r cofnodion.  
 
Amlygodd Pennaeth y Gyfraith, AD a Democratiaeth wall yn y rheolau sefydlog ac y 
dylai rheol sefydlog 8.6 gyfeirio at reol sefydlog 14 (nid 4) wrth ymdrin â 
gweithgarwch niwsans.  
 
Cwestiynodd y Cynghorydd Martyn Holland reol sefydlog 13 oedd yn gwahardd 
datgan anghytundeb.  Cynghorodd y Pennaeth fod y ddarpariaeth yn atal cofnodi 
anghytundeb yn y cofnodion ar ôl cynnal pleidlais.   Cadarnhaodd y gellir cofnodi 
anghytundeb yn y cofnodion fel rhan o’r drafodaeth ac y gellir defnyddio pleidlais 
wedi’i chofnodi i gofnodi sut y pleidleisiodd bob aelod.  
 
 PENDERFYNWYD bod y Cydbwyllgor yn cymeradwyo’r cyfansoddiad 
(rheolau sefydlog) sydd ynghlwm yn atodiad 1 (yn amodol ar gywiro rheol 
sefydlog 8.6).  
 

6 TROSOLWG O GYTUNDEB Y CYDBWYLLGOR  

 
Cyflwynodd Bennaeth y Gyfraith, AD a Democratiaeth adroddiad (wedi’i 
ddosbarthu’n flaenorol) oedd yn cynnwys gwybodaeth ynglŷn â'r cytundeb 
cyfreithiol sy’n sylfaen i’r Cydbwyllgor a chyfeiriodd at y pwyntiau canlynol.  
 

  Roedd y cytundeb yn creu’r Cydbwyllgor ac yn sefydlu ei bwerau.  

  Roedd y cytundeb yn sefydlu grŵp swyddogion i lunio argymhellion ar 
gyfeiriad strategol a’r gyllideb, i weithredu’r cynllun rheoli, cynllun gweithredu 
blynyddol a phenderfyniadau’r cydbwyllgor; byddai’r grŵp yn cynnwys 
aelodau cyfetholedig o Gyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, swyddogion o’r 3 awdurdod 
perthnasol a gan bartneriaid eraill.  

Tudalen 4Page 126



  Byddai Sir Ddinbych yn darparu arbenigedd ariannol, cymorth cyfreithiol a 
gweinyddol ar gyfer y Cydbwyllgor a chymorth gyda chofnodion gan yr 
awdurdod sy’n cynnal cyfarfod y cydbwyllgor.  

 Proses ar gyfer ariannu’r Cydbwyllgor i ddiwallu ei amcanion drwy gyllideb 
graidd sy’n cael ei darparu gan y 3 awdurdod a chyllid grant gan Gyfoeth 
Naturiol Cymru.  

 Byddai’n cytundeb yn parhau hyd 2019 ac oni bai y caiff ei newid, ei dynnu’n 
ôl neu ei ddiddymu yna byddai’n parhau am gyfnod arall o 5 mlynedd wedi 
hynny.   

  Gall unrhyw un o’r 3 awdurdod dynnu’n ôl o'r Cydbwyllgor drwy roi dim llai 
na 18 mis o rybudd i’r awdurdodau eraill a’r Ysgrifennydd (Pennaeth y 
Gyfraith, AD a Democratiaeth Sir Ddinbych).   

 
Cyfeiriodd y Cynghorydd Hugh Evans at yr amcanion a nodir ar gyfer y Cydbwyllgor 
lle y byddai’n ceisio ‘dylanwadu' o blaid pwrpas ddynodedig yr AHNE.  Adroddodd y 
Cynghorydd Evans nad oedd yn glir beth oedd ystyr diffiniad yr ymagwedd o 
ddylanwadu a beth oedd y goblygiadau.  Dywedodd ei fod wedi profi effeithiau 
negyddol  o ran gweithgarwch yr AHNE lle yr oedd yn ceisio dylanwadu ar 
ganlyniadau penderfyniadau ar eiddo a chymunedau tu hwnt i’r AHNE ei hun.  
 
Eglurodd Swyddog AHNE Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy (Swyddog AHNE) fod 
yr AHNE yn ddynodiad cenedlaethol ac roedd angen i’r 3 awdurdod ystyried hynny.  
Adroddodd fod angen Cydbwyllgor i hyrwyddo polisïau a phenderfyniadau oedd yn 
cadw a gwella harddwch naturiol yr AHNE yn unol â’i bwrpas statudol.   
Ychwanegodd Bennaeth Gwasanaethau'r Gyfraith, AD a Democratiaeth fod y 
cytundeb eisoes wedi’i gymeradwyo gan dimau cyfreithiol y 3 awdurdod ac wedi’i 
gymeradwyo gan Gabinet neu Fwrdd Gweithredol pob awdurdod.   
 
Cefnogodd y Cynghorydd Stuart Davies y pryderon a godwyd gan y Cynghorydd 
Evans, gan ychwanegu ei fod yn byw mewn ardal yr effeithir arni gan 
weithgareddau’r AHNE ac yn ei farn ef roedd hyn yn cyfyngu’n annheg ar ryddid 
trigolion a busnesau.  Adroddodd y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones y gallai’r Cydbwyllgor 
weithredu o fewn ei gylch gorchwyl yn unig, ac roedd ganddo brosesau eglur a 
byddai’n datblygu rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol i weithredu arno.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD nodi’r adroddiad. 
 

7 CYLLIDEB Y CYDBWYLLGOR 2014 / 15  

 
Cyflwynodd Rheolwr Cyllid a Sicrwydd Sir Ddinbych adroddiad (a ddosbarthwyd yn 
flaenorol) ar gyllidebau refeniw’r AHNE.  Adroddodd fod y broses gosod cyllideb ar 
gyfer y flwyddyn gyfredol yn cydnabod fod yn rhaid i’r AHNE gael cyllideb i 
weithredu ac y gallai gael ei gymeradwyo’n ffurfiol gan y Cydbwyllgor yn awr.  
Adroddodd y Rheolwr Cyllid a Sicrwydd ar y gorwariant bychan a’r tanwariant yn y 
cyllidebau craidd ac ardal yn y drefn honno a chynghorodd fod y gyllideb ar gyfer 
2014 /15 yn bendant ond rhybuddiodd efallai y bydd anawsterau yn y blynyddoedd 
sydd i ddod.  
 
Wrth amlygu bod yn rhaid i’r Cydbwyllgor gytuno ar gyllideb bob blwyddyn a bod 
gofyn i’r 3 awdurdod ddarparu cyfraniad priodol, cynghorodd y Cynghorydd Hugh 

Tudalen 5Page 127



Jones y byddai angen i’r Cydbwyllgor gyfarfod i drafod drafft y gyllideb mewn pryd 
er mwyn cyflwyno argymhellion ynglŷn â chyllid i’r awdurdodau.  
 
 Trafododd yr Aelodau'r mater o sicrhau fod y gyllideb yn cael ei rhannu’n deg 
rhwng yr awdurdodau.  Mewn ymateb eglurwyd fod y rhan fwyaf o’r AHNE yn Sir 
Ddinbych ac felly roedd rhan fwyaf y gwaith a’r gwariant yn Sir Ddinbych.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD nodi’r adroddiad a bod y gyllideb a osodwyd ar gyfer 
2014/15 yn cael ei chymeradwyo’n ffurfiol.  
 

8 PENODI PARTNERIAETH A CHYRFF CYSYLLTIOL AR GYFER ARDAL O 

HARDDWCH NATURIOL EITHRIADOL BRYNIAU CLWYD A DYFFRYN 

DYFRDWY  

 
Cyflwynodd Swyddog yr AHNE adroddiad (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) ynghylch 
cadarnhau trefniadau llywodraethu ar gyfer cytundeb cyfreithiol y Cydbwyllgor.  Fe 
gynghorodd fod Partneriaeth yr AHNE yn cael ei thrawsnewid fel rhan o’r cytundeb 
gyfreithiol gan ddisodli'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol Dros Dro gyda Phartneriaeth yr 
AHNE (Grŵp Budd-ddeiliaid) a fforymau perthnasol.   
 
Adroddodd Swyddog yr AHNE mai cynhyrchu cynllun rheoli oedd prif faes gwaith y 
Bartneriaeth a chyfeiriodd at y rhestr o aelodau fyddai’n ffurfio Partneriaeth yr 
AHNE fel y dengys yr adroddiad.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod y Cydbwyllgor yn:- 
(i) Cymeradwyo penodiad is-grŵp yn cynnwys y Cynghorwyr Derek 

Butler, Huw Jones ac Ian Roberts i benodi Partneriaeth yr AHNE (yn 
amodol ar gadarnhad ffurfiol aelodaeth yr is-grŵp drwy weithdrefnau 
penderfyniadau dirprwyol pob awdurdod);  

(ii) Byddai dyddiad ar gyfer cyfarfod Fforwm yr AHNE a Chyngor Tref a 
Chymuned yn cael ei gadarnhau ar ôl ymgynghori gyda’r cyfranogwyr; 
gyda gwahoddiad i aelodau etholedig y 3 awdurdod.  

 
9 DERBYN DOGFENNAU O'R RHAGLEN WAITH PRESENNOL 2014 / 15  

 
Cyflwynodd Swyddog yr AHNE adroddiad ar lafar a chyflwyno Strategaeth 
Twristiaeth Gynaliadwy a Chynllun Gweithredu.  Cynhyrchwyd y Strategaeth gan y 
Cwmni Twristiaeth ar ôl cynnal gweithdai ymgynghori er mwyn deall y sefyllfa i 
ddatblygu twristiaeth gynaliadwy.  
 
Byddai digwyddiad cyhoeddusrwydd i hyrwyddo’r Strategaeth yn cael ei gynnal yng 
Nghorwen yr wythnos ganlynol.  
 
Dosbarthodd Swyddog yr AHNE rhaglen waith newid hinsawdd ac egluro fod y 
ddogfen yn llunio awgrymiadau sut y gallai ffermydd, trigolion a busnesau o fewn yr 
AHNE addasu i liniaru effeithiau newid hinsawdd.  Cynghorwyd yr Aelodau fod gan 
y rhaglen ddogfennau cysylltiol gan gynnwys un ar gyfer plant oedd yn ceisio 
ymdrin â’r bwlch mewn darpariaeth a gobeithir y byddai’n denu teuluoedd ac eraill 
sydd â diddordeb mewn materion sy’n ymwneud â newid hinsawdd i’r AHNE.  
 

Tudalen 6Page 128



Holodd y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones os oedd polisi dosbarthu ar gyfer y dogfennau 
hyn, a chadarnhawyd fod rhwydwaith ddosbarthu dda yn Sir Ddinbych, ond nad 
oedd pwyntiau dosbarthu, megis canolfannau croeso, yn Sir y Fflint a Wrecsam 
wedi’u cysylltu cystal.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod Strategaeth Gyfathrebu, gan gynnwys monitro 
effeithiolrwydd cyfathrebu, yn cael eu hychwanegu at raglen gwaith i’r 
dyfodol y Cydbwyllgor.  
 

10 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL  

 
Cyflwynodd Swyddog yr AHNE adroddiad (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) ar 
ddatblygiad rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol ar gyfer y Cydbwyllgor er mwyn ystyried 
blaenoriaethau a meysydd gwaith y pwyllgor ar gyfer y dyfodol.   Ystyriodd yr 
Aelodau'r materion canlynol: 
 

 Roedd Strategaeth Edeyrnion yn cael ei datblygu gan bartneriaid yn ne’r 
AHNE  

 Bwriad y Strategaeth Estyn Allan a Gwirfoddolwyr oedd cynyddu nifer y 
gwirfoddolwyr a gwneud y gorau o’u cyfraniad at amcanion yr AHNE.   

 
Trafododd yr Aelodau gynhyrchiant canllawiau cynllunio atodol ar gyfer yr AHNE, 
ac roedd y Cynghorydd Hugh Evans yn pryderu fod perygl y byddai’r AHNE yn 
niweidio ei enw da wrth geisio dylanwadu ar ganlyniadau ceisiadau cynllunio a dylid 
bod yn ofalus yn hyn o beth.  Roedd y drafodaeth a ddilynodd yn cynnwys: 
 

 Pryderon y gallai costau ychwanegol i gydymffurfio â chanllawiau’r AHNE 
atal trigolion a busnesau rhag cyflwyno cais, gan arwain at ddiffyg datblygiad 
o fewn yr AHNE.  

 Dadleuodd y Cynghorydd Carolyn Thomas mai bwriad y canllawiau oedd 
darparu cyngor defnyddiol i’w ystyried cyn cyflwyno cais cynllunio.  

 Rôl yr AHNE i hyrwyddo ei amcanion a rôl yr awdurdodau cynllunio i 
benderfynu ar deilyngdod a safbwyntiau’r rhai sy’n hyrwyddo neu’n 
gwrthwynebu’r ceisiadau cynllunio.  Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Derek Butler 
mai rôl y Cydbwyllgor oedd eirioli amcanion yr AHNE ac y byddai cyrff ac 
unigolion eraill yn gwneud yr un fath o ran eu hamcanion a'u cylch gwaith.  

 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
(i) Bod adolygiad o arian a chyllid yr AHNE yn cael ei ychwanegu at y 

rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol; a 
(ii) Chymeradwyo’r Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol. 
 

11 ADOLYGIAD YMGYNGHOROL CYFREDOL LLYWODRAETH CYMRU O 

DIRWEDDAU DYNODEDIG YNG NGHYMRU  

 
Darparodd Swyddog yr AHNE adroddiad ar lafar ynglŷn â’r adolygiad fyddai’n 
archwilio dynodiadau tirwedd a phwrpas a buddion dynodi tirweddau Cymru dan un 
math o ddynodiad.   Cynghorwyd yr Aelodau y byddai’r adolygiad hefyd yn ystyried 
trefniadau llywodraethu'r tirweddau dynodedig ac yn ystyried Mesur Cynllunio 

Tudalen 7Page 129



(Cymru) o ran trefniadau ar gyfer cynllunio yn y dyfodol mewn Parciau 
Cenedlaethol.  
 
Mewn ymateb i gwestiynau, cynghorwyd yr aelodau mai prif amcan adolygiad 
Llywodraeth Cymru oedd y trefniadau llywodraethu.  Trafodwyd y posibilrwydd o 
osod dynodiad tebyg i barc cenedlaethol ar yr AHNE ynghyd â’r posibilrwydd y 
gallai llywodraethu parciau cenedlaethol ddychwelyd i fod yn gyfrifoldeb i’r 
awdurdodau lleol unwaith eto.  
 
Cynghorwyd yr Aelodau  y gallai’r Aelodau gyfrannu at yr ymgynghoriad naill ai fel 
Cydbwyllgor neu fel unigolion ac roedd y Cydbwyllgor Gweithredu Dros Dro eisoes 
wedi cyflwyno sylwadau ysgrifenedig.  
 
Roedd y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones o’r farn nad oedd gan y Cydbwyllgor ddigon o 
wybodaeth ynglŷn â’r adolygiad i lunio ymateb i Lywodraeth Cymru ar hyn o bryd.  
 

12 DYDDIADAU CYFARFODYDD Y DYFODOL  

 
Adroddodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd fod rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y 
Cydbwyllgor yn nodi y dylid cynnal cyfarfodydd 2015 ym mis Ionawr, Mehefin a 
Thachwedd.   Cynghorodd yr Aelodau y byddai’n well ganddynt pe bai’r cyfarfodydd 
yn cael eu cynnal ar foreau Gwener lle bo modd.  
 
Gan fod y cadeirydd newydd yn Gynghorydd gyda Chyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Wrecsam, cytunwyd y dylid ystyried Wrecsam fel lleoliad ar gyfer cyfarfod mis 
Ionawr y Cydbwyllgor.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod cyfarfodydd y Cydbwyllgor yn cael eu trefnu ar gyfer 
mis Ionawr, Mehefin a Thachwedd 2015.  
 
 

Tudalen 8Page 130



 

KM Holthofer  

       
 
 
 
 
 

 
CYDBWYLLGOR YMGYNGHOROL DROS DRO AHNE BRYNIAU CLWYD A 

DYFFRYN DYFRDWY 
 

COFNODION CYFARFOD IS-BWYLLGOR YMGYNGHORI 
a gynhaliwyd am 10:00am dydd Gwener 5 Rhagfyr 2014 ym  

Mharc Gwledig Loggerheads 
 
 

Cynrychiolwyr AHNE Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn 
Dyfrdwy 

Cynrychiolwyr Cyngor Sir y Fflint 

Mr H Sutcliffe (Swyddog AHNE) Y Cynghorydd C Thomas (Cadeirydd) 
Mr D Shiel (Uwch Swyddog AHNE) Y Cynghorydd Colin Legg 
Mr T Hughes (Swyddog Cynllunio AHNE) Y Cynghorydd N Steele Mortimer 
Ms K Holthofer (Swyddog Cyfathrebu’r AHNE) 
Mrs H Mrowiec (Uwch Swyddog Hamdden) 

Y Cynghorydd N Matthews 
Mr T Woodall 

  
Cynrychiolydd Cyngor Sir Ddinbych Cynrychiolydd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 

Wrecsam 
Y Cynghorydd M Holland Y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones 
  
  
Cynrychiolydd Fforwm Mynediad Lleol Sir y 
Fflint 

Cynrychiolydd Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 

Mr D Hÿtch Mr P Mitchell 
  
Cynrychiolydd Fforwm Mynediad Lleol Sir 
Ddinbych 

Cynrychiolydd Cymdeithas Tir a Busnesau Cefn 
Gwlad 

Mrs K Culhane Mrs S Archdale 
  
Cynrychiolydd Ymddiriedolaeth Natur 
Gogledd Cymru 
Mr T King 

Cynrychiolydd Ymgyrch Diogelu Cymru Wledig 

 Mr M Skuse 
  
Cynrychiolydd Cymdeithas y Cerddwyr Cynrychiolydd Ymddiriedolaeth Ddinesig Cymru 
Mr J Roberts Mrs H Williams 
  
Cynrychiolydd Un Llais Cymru (Sir y Fflint) Cynrychiolydd Twristiaeth 
Mr J Emyr Davies Mrs J Clough 
  
Cynrychiolydd Un Llais Cymru (Sir Ddinbych) Cynrychiolydd Undeb Cenedlaethol yr 

Amaethwyr 
Mr M Davies Mr RH Jones 
  

                                                                                   
 

CYFLWYNWYD YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB GAN 
Y Cynghr. Huw L Jones, M Pritchard, N Matthews. 
 

Tudalen 9

Eitem Agenda 4

Page 131



 

 

CROESO/NEWYDDION AHNE 
Croesawodd Swyddog yr AHNE yr aelodau i gyfarfod olaf y Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol cyn 
galw Partneriaeth AHNE Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy. Diolchodd Swyddog yr AHNE yr 
aelodau am eu brwdfrydedd a’u hymroddiad i'r AHNE dros y blynyddoedd. Dywedodd y 
byddai’r ffurflenni cais i ymuno â’r bartneriaeth yn cael eu dosbarthu cyn y Nadolig. 
 
 

1.      YMGYNGHORIADAU BRYS 
 Dywedodd y Swyddog Cynllunio nad oedd unrhyw ymgynghoriad brys i’w ystyried.  

 
        2.         COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF 

 
            Cyfarfod Is-Bwyllgor CBYD a gynhaliwyd ar 12 Medi 2014 

 
2.1    Eitem u  
            Manylion y cynllun adfer a gyflwynwyd yn unol ag amod rhif 34 o ganiatâd cynllunio 

21/1999/0783/PF yn Chwarel Aberduna, Maeshafn, Yr Wyddgrug, CH7 5EN - 
21/2013/1388                   

 
              Dywedodd y Swyddog Cynllunio bod yr awdurdod cynllunio mwynau yn fodlon i’r 

Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol ymweld â’r safle i weld y gwaith atgyweirio yn Aberduna yng 
ngwanwyn 2015 pan fydd y gwaith plannu wedi ei orffen. Bydd cyfarfod cyntaf Partneriaeth 
yr AHNE ddydd Gwener 27 Mawrth 2015 ac awgrymwyd y gellid ymweld â'r safle ar ôl y 
cyfarfod.   

 
  Holodd aelod ynghylch pwy fyddai'n gyfrifol am gynnal a chadw’r ffens ddiogelwch o amgylch 

y gwagle chwarel pan fydd rhwymedigaethau Hanson yn dod i ben. Cytunodd Swyddog 
Cynllunio’r AHNE i gyfeirio’r ymholiad hwn at yr awdurdod cynllunio mwynau ac y byddai'n 
adrodd yn ôl. 

 
             PENDERFYNWYD 

Trefnu ymweliad safle ar ôl cyfarfod y bartneriaeth ar 27 Mawrth 2015 os yn bosibl, a 
Swyddog Cynllunio’r AHNE i gysylltu â'r Awdurdod Cynllunio Mwynau i geisio eglurhad 
ynghylch pwy sy’n gyfrifol am y ffens o amgylch y gwagle chwarel yn y tymor hir.              

 
2.3          Eitem 1,3,4,5      

    

Datblygiadau yn Big Covert 
           Rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Holland ddiweddariad byr ar lafar ynglŷn â gwerthu lleiniau coetir 

yn Big Covert, gan amlygu gweithgareddau a datblygiadau pellach y tu allan i’r hyn a 
ganiateir. Mae Swyddogion Gorfodi wedi cael gwybod am hyn ac mae Darren Millar AC wedi 
cymryd diddordeb gweithredol yn y mater. Mae Cyngor Sir Ddinbych wedi sefydlu Tîm 
Gorfodaeth i edrych ar y mater yn fanylach.   

              
          Gwahodd Gweinidogion Cymru i fynychu cyfarfod y Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol  
         Dywedodd y Cadeirydd fod llythyr wedi ei anfon at Carl Sergeant Gweinidog Cymru yn ei 

wahodd i fynychu cyfarfod o’r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol. Yn anffodus, mae gan y Gweinidog 
ormod o ymrwymiadau eraill i fynychu cyfarfod.  

 
2.5       Eitem 12 
             Ailosod gwifrau uwchben 11kv gan ddefnyddio dargludyddion ychwanegol a chodi 

gwifrau uwchben 11kv a gefnogir gan bolion pren ym Marian Mawr, Cwm, y Rhyl 
              
              Dywedodd Swyddog yr AHNE bod cyfarfod llwyddiannus wedi ei gynnal gyda'r tirfeddiannwr 

a’u bod wedi cytuno ar gyfaddawd. Bydd y clawdd yn cael ei adfer, Hawliau Tramwy yn cael 
eu gwella a bydd man gwylio ychwanegol yn cael ei ddarparu.  

 

Tudalen 10Page 132



 

 

8.        Cig Oen Bryniau Clwyd 
             Dywedodd Uwch Swyddog yr AHNE bod y prosiect wedi cael digwyddiad lansio 

llwyddiannus yn Tweedmill, Llanelwy gyda nifer o ffermwyr defaid ac aelodau o’r 
Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn bresennol.  

 
8.1         Cais Cronfa Dreftadaeth y Loteri – Prosiect Tirlunio 

Dywedodd Uwch Swyddog yr AHNE nad oedd yr un cais o Gymru wedi bod yn llwyddiannus 
y tro hwn. Fodd bynnag, byddai'r AHNE yn cyflwyno cais arall ym mis Mai 2015. 

 
 

 10.        YMGYNGHORIAD CYNLLUNIO 
Gosod tyrbin gwynt 30.5m uchder both ac 45.07m i flaen y llafn, bocs rheoli a gwaith  
cysylltiedig ym Maes Truan, Llanelidan, Rhuthun, LL15 2RN - 19/2014/0702 

               
Dywedodd Swyddog Cynllunio’r AHNE bod caniatâd cynllunio wedi ei roi ar gyfer y 
datblygiad hwn yn erbyn argymhelliad y swyddog.   
 

11.         YMGYNGHORIAD CYNLLUNIO 
Tyrbin gwynt unigol ag iddi uchafswm uchder i flaen y llafn o 86.5m a datblygiad 
ategol, gan gynnwys pad wyneb caled i graen, is-orsaf, cabinet dal offer a ffordd 
fynediad yn Fferm Lygan Uchaf, Ffordd y Wern, Rhosesmor, Yr Wyddgrug, CH7 6PY - 
052344 

               
              Cyfeiriodd Mrs Archdale at y cais a gofynnodd a oedd trigolion Penbedw wedi eu cysylltu â 

hwy cyn y cyfeiriwyd at y 'Parc a’r Ardd Hanesyddol' yn yr ymateb. Dywedodd Swyddog 
Cynllunio’r AHNE bod yr ymateb a argymhellwyd wedi ei drafod yn y cyfarfod blaenorol ac 
wedi ei gymeradwyo gan y Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol. Mae'r cyfeiriad at yr effaith ar ‘Barc a 
Gardd Hanesyddol' Penbedw yn ymateb i wybodaeth a gyflwynwyd gan yr ymgeisydd a 
oedd wedi ei gyflwyno gyda'r cais cynllunio. 

 
 Dywedodd Swyddog yr AHNE bod y Swyddog Cynllunio ond yn gweithio dau ddiwrnod yr 
wythnos. Does ganddo ddim llawer o amser i gysylltu ag ymgeiswyr a phartïon eraill â 
diddordeb o fewn y raddfa amser sydd ar gael i ymateb i ymgynghoriadau. Fodd bynnag, gall 
ymgeiswyr neu bartïon â diddordeb gysylltu â Thîm yr AHNE os oes arnynt angen cyngor ar 
geisiadau. 

 
             Cymeradwywyd y cofnodion fel cofnod cywir o’r cyfarfod. 

 
 

3.      YMGYNGHORIADAU WEDI EU DIRPRWYO 
 

3.1          EITEM 35 
           Newid defnydd gwesty (Dosbarth C1) i annedd breifat (Dosbarth C3) a gwneud 

newidiadau a dymchwel rhai darnau, ynghyd â gwaith cysylltiedig yn Bodidris Hall, 
Llandegla, Wrecsam, LL11 3AL - 17/2014/1114 

     
                  Mynegodd Mrs Clough rai pryderon ynghylch colli llety gwesty o ansawdd o fewn yr AHNE. 

Cytunodd y Swyddog Cynllunio bod hyn yn anffodus ond roedd y gwesty wedi bod ar gau 
ers peth amser a ddim yn gynaliadwy. Mae angen buddsoddiad sylweddol i sicrhau dyfodol 
yr adeilad rhestredig pwysig yma (sydd mewn cyflwr gwael), ac mae cais i droi adeiladau 
allanol i greu hyd at wyth uned gwyliau wedi ei gyflwyno a fyddai'n gwneud rhywfaint o iawn 
am golli’r gwesty.   

 
Dywedwyd hefyd bod y safle yn ffinio llwybr cyhoeddus sy’n cael ei hyrwyddo fel llwybr 
hamdden, a phwysleisiodd yr aelodau bod angen sicrhau llwybr ymarferol a diogel ar gyfer 
defnyddwyr yn ystod y gwaith adeiladu.  

Tudalen 11Page 133



 

 

 
 
3.2    EITEM 56 

Codi storfa offer pren a lloches ar gyfer rheoli'r coetir (cais ôl-weithredol) - cynlluniau 
diwygiedig yn Big Covert, Coedwig Clwyd, Maeshafn, Yr Wyddgrug - 21/2014/0032 
Mynegodd yr Aelodau bryder ynghylch y cais a gofynnwyd a oedd yr Ymddiriedolaeth 
Genedlaethol (sydd â chyfamodau ar y coetir) wedi eu hymgynghori â hwy ynghylch y cais. 
Cytunodd Swyddog yr AHNE i gysylltu â'r Ymddiriedolaeth Genedlaethol. 
 
Dywedodd Mr P Mitchell ei fod wedi codi'r mater yn fewnol gyda Chyfoeth Naturiol Cymru. 
Cytunodd yr Aelodau bod angen ymateb gan Lywodraeth Cymru er mwyn i'r polisi gael ei 
newid a'i ddatrys a’i gyflwyno i Darren Millar AC. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD 
Cysylltu â Darren Millar AC a’i wahodd i gyfarfod ag aelodau.  
Swyddog yr AHNE i gysylltu â'r Ymddiriedolaeth Genedlaethol. 
 

 
3.3  YMGYNGHORIAD CYNLLUNIO 

Gosod tyrbin gwynt 6kw (9 metr o uchder, 11.8 metr o uchder gyda’r llafn) yn Y Lletty, 
Pen Line, Cilcain, Yr Wyddgrug, CH7 5NZ 
 
Cyfeiriodd Mrs Archdale at y cais uchod a holodd pam nad oedd y cais wedi ei gyhoeddi 
gyda dogfennau ategol y Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol. Dywedodd Swyddog Cynllunio’r AHNE 
fod yr ymateb wedi ei anfon ar ôl cyhoeddi papurau’r cyfarfod. Cytunodd y Swyddog 
Cyfathrebu i gylchredeg yr ymateb i'r aelodau, sydd fel a ganlyn: 

 
“Mae'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn nodi bod y cais hwn fwy neu lai yr un fath â'r hyn 
a wrthodwyd yn gynharach eleni (Cod Rhif: 051227). Mae'r safle ar fryn agored yn yr 
AHNE sy’n weladwy ar draws ardal eang, gan gynnwys rhwydwaith o lwybrau 
cerdded. Mae'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn derbyn dadl yr ymgeisydd o blaid 
defnyddio ynni gwynt yn hytrach na phaneli solar, ac yn nodi bod y tyrbin arfaethedig 
yn gymedrol o ran maint (11.8 metr i flaen y llafn). Deallir hefyd, gan gydnabod y 
byddai peth effaith weledol andwyol, nad yw Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru yn ystyried y 
niwed yn ddigon difrifol i wrthod y cais.  

 
Mae'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn dal yn credu bod hwn yn safle sensitif ac yn 
ffafrio gosod y tyrbin mewn lle llai amlwg, o bosibl yn nes at yr adeiladau fferm neu yn 
yr ardal amgaeedig i'r de-ddwyrain o'r fferm sy’n llai agored ac yn cael ei chuddio gan 
wrychoedd, coed a choetiroedd bychain a fyddai'n tynnu’r llygad oddi ar y tyrbin. 
Nodir bod angen cyflymder gwynt o 5 metr yr eiliad i wneud y tyrbin yn hyfyw, ond nid 
oes manylion ynghylch cyflymder y gwynt ar y fferm wedi eu cyflwyno gyda'r cais a 
fyddai'n gymorth mawr i ddewis y safle mwyaf priodol ar gyfer y tyrbin. 

 
Os yw’r awdurdod cynllunio yn fodlon nad oes lleoliad gwell gyda’r cyflymder gwynt 
angenrheidiol, mae’r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn awgrymu gosod y tyrbin tua 30-40 
metr i'r de/de-ddwyrain o'r lleoliad arfaethedig er mwyn lleihau’r effaith ar y nenlinell 
o'r rhwydwaith llwybrau cerdded cyfagos. Dylai lliw’r mast a'r tyrbin gydweddu â'r 
bryn, a dylid plannu eithin brodorol o amgylch y tyrbin i helpu i leihau’r effaith ar y 
dirwedd agored ac i integreiddio'r tyrbin yn ei leoliad gwledig. Byddai'r Cydbwyllgor 
Ymgynghorol hefyd yn argymell bod yn rhaid rhoi’r cysylltiad grid dan ddaear." 
(Polisïau Cynllun Rheoli AHNE PCP1, PCP2, PSQ1 a PSQ2) 
                    

        
4. Cyfarfod Cydbwyllgor yr AHNE 14/11/2014 

Rhoddodd Swyddog yr AHNE ddiweddariad llafar ar gyfarfod cyntaf y Cydbwyllgor. 
Presennol:- 

Tudalen 12Page 134



 

 

 
  Y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones 
  Y Cynghorydd Hugh L Jones 

Y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones 
  Y Cynghorydd Ian Roberts 
  Y Cynghorydd Derek Butler 
 

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau gan y Cynghorydd Bernie Attridge. 
Penodwyd y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor a'r Cynghorydd Huw L Jones 
yn Is-gadeirydd.   
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones bod y Cydbwyllgor yn bwyllgor strategol a bod 
gweithio mewn partneriaeth yn allweddol i symud ymlaen. 
 

4.1         Partneriaeth AHNE Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy 
Yn y cyfarfod cymeradwyodd y Cydbwyllgor ffurfio Partneriaeth AHNE Bryniau Clwyd a 
Dyffryn Dyfrdwy. Felly, y cyfarfod heddiw yw cyfarfod olaf y Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol. Mae'r 
trefniadau llywodraethu newydd ar gyfer y Bartneriaeth yn ffurfio rhan o'r cytundeb cyfreithiol 
newydd. Mae ffurflenni cais, cytundeb a rôl y Bartneriaeth yn cael eu cwblhau. Bydd 
hysbyseb am aelodau i ymuno â'r Bartneriaeth yn cael ei rhoi yn y papurau newydd lleol cyn 
y Nadolig. Bydd pob aelod o’r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn cael eu gwahodd i wneud cais, 
ynghyd â sefydliadau ac unigolion sydd wedi mynegi diddordeb. Ailadroddodd Swyddog yr 
AHNE nad oedd gan y Bartneriaeth y gallu i gael cynrychiolaeth o bob sefydliad gan ei fod 
bellach yn cwmpasu ardal llawer mwy. 
 

               
5.      ADOLYGU CYNLLUN RHEOLI’R AHNE 

Cyflwynwyd Cynllun Rheoli’r AHNE gan yr Uwch Swyddog (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) ac 
eglurodd y bydd rhywfaint o'r adborth o'r gweithdai a gynhaliwyd y llynedd yn cael ei gynnwys ym 
mholisïau ac amcanion y Cynllun. 

 
Y Cynllun Gweithredu 
Bydd amcanion y Cynllun yn cael eu cyflawni drwy weithio mewn partneriaeth. 
 

5.1  Holodd aelod pam bod cyfeiriad estynedig at 'Mynediad a Hamdden' o fewn y Cynllun. 
Eglurodd Uwch Swyddog yr AHNE bod Mynediad a Hamdden wastad wedi bod yn rhan 
allweddol o'r Cynllun Rheoli. Fodd bynnag, mae’r cyfeiriad wedi ei estyn yn y cynllun 
presennol i ddarparu ar gyfer yr ardal ehangach. Eglurwyd mai un o'r pwysau mwyaf ar 
dirweddau gwarchodedig yw hamdden. Dylai pawb allu cael mynediad a mwynhau'r AHNE 
ond gydag ystyriaeth ddyledus i'r bobl sy'n byw ac yn gweithio yno. Mae Strategaeth Estyn 
Allan hefyd yn cael ei chynhyrchu i helpu i dargedu grwpiau heb gynrychiolaeth ddigonol a 
Grwpiau Cymunedau yn Gyntaf ac i wella eu mynediad i'r AHNE. 
 

5.2      Tudalen 16 

IVCO1. - Sicrhau bod ymwelwyr a'r diwydiant twristiaeth yn cefnogi ac yn deall yr 
angen am gadw a gwella rhinweddau arbennig yr AHNE fel asedau allweddol sy'n 
sylfaen ar gyfer twristiaeth. 
 
Cyfeiriodd Mrs Clough at yr amcan uchod a dywedodd y gallai Grŵp Twristiaeth Bryniau 
Clwyd gynorthwyo i gyflawni hyn.  
 

5.3     Cafwyd trafodaeth ynghylch a oedd gormod o bwysau ar ardaloedd eiconig yr AHNE 
oherwydd materion mynediad a pharcio ac a ddylid rhoi mwy o bwyslais ar ardaloedd 
eraill/ardaloedd mwy anghysbell i helpu i wasgaru ymwelwyr. Eglurodd Uwch Swyddog yr 
AHNE bod nifer yr ymwelwyr yn cynyddu ac y gallai hynny achosi rhai problemau ond roedd 
yr un mor bwysig bod llonyddwch a phellenigrwydd yr AHNE yn cael ei gadw. Mae Tîm yr 

Tudalen 13Page 135



 

 

AHNE yn ymdrechu i greu cydbwysedd gydag ymwelwyr a chymunedau i fwynhau'r AHNE a'i 
nodweddion amrywiol. 
 

 
6. Gwobr yr AHNE 2014 

Rhoddodd Uwch Swyddog yr AHNE ddiweddariad llafar ar wobr yr AHNE ar gyfer 2014 ac 
eglurodd bod saith o enwebiadau wedi dod i law (a gylchredwyd eisoes). Dywedwyd mai 
enillydd gwobr 2014 oedd Richard Jones - Sgiliau Cefn Gwlad. 
 
Dywedodd Swyddog yr AHNE eu bod yn cysylltu â Richard Jones pan fo angen rhywbeth 
arbennig ar yr AHNE. Mae Richard wedi cwblhau llawer o waith ar gyfer yr AHNE, gan 
gynnwys y maes parcio ym Mwlch Pen Barras sydd wedi ei ganmol yn fawr. Mae Richard 
hefyd wedi darparu cyfleoedd gwaith da i unigolion sydd eisiau dilyn gyrfa o fewn cefn gwlad. 
Bydd y wobr yn cael ei chyflwyno i Richard a’i dîm ym mis Mawrth 2015. 
 

 6.1        Arian y Gronfa Datblygu Cynaliadwy 
Diolchodd y Cynghorydd Holland i Swyddog y Gronfa Datblygu Cynaliadwy, Nick Critchely, 
am y gwaith sydd wedi ei wneud i waliau yn Llanarmon-yn-iâl. Cwblhawyd y gwaith gyda 
chyllid Cronfa Datblygu Cynaliadwy, Cadwyn Clwyd a chyfraniadau lleol. 
 

 
7.      ADOLYGIAD LLYWODRAETHU CYMRU O DIRWEDDAU DYNODEDIG YNG NGHYMRU 

Cyflwynodd Swyddog yr AHNE yr adroddiad (a gylchredwyd yn flaenorol) ynghylch yr 
Adolygiad o Dirweddau Dynodedig yng Nghymru ac esboniodd fod yr adolygiad wedi 
dechrau edrych ar y ddwy agwedd gyntaf:- 

 
1. Beth oedd dibenion Ardaloedd o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol a Pharciau 

Cenedlaethol 
2. A oes modd cael dynodiad tirwedd unigol 

 
Aeth Swyddog yr AHNE yn ei flaen i esbonio bod yr adolygiad hefyd yn ymwneud â 
llywodraethu. Mae gan Barciau Cenedlaethol eu hawdurdod lleol a’u cyllideb eu hunain. 
Dywedodd Swyddog yr AHNE bod gan yr AHNE drefnau llywodraethu priodol: y Cydbwyllgor 
a Phartneriaeth yr AHNE. 
Cafwyd trafodaeth ynghylch hyn ac roedd y rhan fwyaf o’r aelodau yn cytuno bod gan frand 
Parc Cenedlaethol broffil uwch nag AHNE. Codwyd rhai pryderon ynghylch y goblygiadau a 
allai ddod yn sgil unrhyw newid brand e.e. cyfyngiadau cynllunio. Holodd yr aelodau hefyd a 
fyddai cyllid yn fwy diogel ar gyfer yr AHNE os yw'n derbyn statws Parc Cenedlaethol.  
Dywedwyd bod yr NAAONB wedi ymateb ar ran yr holl Ardaloedd o Harddwch Naturiol 
Eithriadol. 
 

 
8.   SEMINAR AELODAU’R AHNE - Plas Tan y Bwlch 

Gofynnodd Swyddog yr AHNE a fyddai unrhyw aelodau yn hoffi mynychu’r seminar ym 
Mhlas Tan y Bwlch ar 26 a 27 Ionawr 2015. 
Mae lle i ddau.  
 

 
9.      YMGYNGHORIADAU CYNLLUNIO LLYWODRAETH CYMRU  

Cyflwynodd Swyddog Cynllunio’r AHNE yr adroddiad (a gylchredwyd yn flaenorol) yn 
ymwneud â saith o ymgynghoriadau Llywodraeth Cymru sy'n gysylltiedig â chynllunio a 
chynghorodd yr aelodau i ystyried eu hymateb o safbwynt yr AHNE. Cafwyd trafodaeth 
ynghylch hyn ac roedd y rhan fwyaf o’r aelodau yn cytuno y byddai'n golled fawr i'r AHNE os 
yw'r Datganiad Dylunio a Mynediad yn cael ei ddileu. Cytunodd yr Aelodau y dylid darparu 
hysbysiad cyn cyflwyno cais i Bartneriaeth yr AHNE. Holwyd a fyddai cynnydd yn y ffioedd ar 

Tudalen 14Page 136



 

 

gyfer ceisiadau ôl-weithredol. Cytunodd yr Aelodau i gyflwyno’r ymatebion a argymhellir 
mewn perthynas â thri o'r dogfennau ymgynghori. 

 
 
PENDERFYNWYD 
Ymgynghoriad ar Ddylunio yn y Broses Gynllunio  
“Mae dylunio da yn hanfodol i ddarparu datblygiad yn llwyddiannus ar dirweddau 
gwarchodedig neu o fewn tirweddau o’r fath heb danseilio neu niweidio'r rhinweddau 
a’r nodweddion sy'n eu gwneud yn lleoedd arbennig. Gall dylunio da hefyd wella 
cymeriad ac ymddangosiad ardaloedd o'r fath. Yn y cyd-destun hwn, mae'r 
Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn croesawu'r pwyslais ar ddylunio da mewn polisïau 
cenedlaethol a lleol ac yn cefnogi'r amcan i godi safonau dylunio drwy'r broses 
gynllunio a mesurau eraill. 
 
Fodd bynnag, mae'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn bryderus iawn ynghylch y cynnig i 
ddileu'r angen i ddatblygwyr gyflwyno Datganiad Dylunio a Mynediad ar gyfer pob 
cais. Mewn ardaloedd sensitif fel AHNE mae’r angen i ystyried dyluniad a chyd-destun 
y cynnig mewn perthynas â'i leoliad yn ystyriaeth hanfodol sy'n aml yn cael ei 
hesgeuluso, ac mae’r gofyniad ffurfiol i ystyried materion o'r fath drwy Ddatganiad 
Dylunio a Mynediad yn gam pwysig i sicrhau dyluniad da. Yn y cyd-destun hwn mae'r 
Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol hefyd yn nodi nad yw llawer o geisiadau yn cael eu 
cyflwyno gan ddylunwyr proffesiynol. Tra bod lle i addasu’r categorïau a'r trothwyon 
sy'n gysylltiedig â'r gofyniad i gyflwyno datganiad dylunio o'r fath, mae'r Cydbwyllgor 
Ymgynghorol yn credu'n gryf y dylid cadw’r angen am ddatganiad ffurfiol ar gyfer 
ardaloedd sensitif, gan gynnwys AHNE. Dylai’r eithriad a ddefnyddir yn gyffredin 
mewn deddfwriaeth cynllunio sy'n ymwneud ag Erthygl 1(5) Tir a Safleoedd 
Treftadaeth y Byd gael ei gymhwyso yn hyn o beth." (Cwestiynau 13 a 14) 
 
Dechrau dwys gyda’r system rheoli datblygu 

 
“Mae'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn cefnogi'r egwyddor y dylai datblygwyr 
ymgynghori â’r gymuned cyn cyflwyno cais ar gyfer datblygiadau mawr, ac yn cytuno 
y dylai hyn godi materion cynllunio sylweddol fel y gall datblygwyr ymateb iddynt cyn 
cyflwyno eu cais. Mae'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn nodi bod y lleiafswm gofynion 
cyhoeddusrwydd arfaethedig yn cynnwys rhybuddion safle a llythyrau at gymdogion, 
aelodau ward lleol a chynghorau tref a chymuned. Fodd bynnag, mae'r Cydbwyllgor 
Ymgynghorol yn ystyried ei hun yn rhan o'r gymuned ac yn gallu codi materion 
cynllunio sylweddol i ddatblygwyr eu hystyried. Mae’r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol 
felly’n awgrymu y byddai hysbysiad cyn cyflwyno cais i'r Cydbwyllgor/Partneriaeth yr 
AHNE fel rhan o'r broses hon yn fuddiol.”  
 
Pwyllgorau cynllunio, dirprwyo a byrddau cynllunio ar y cyd 
 
“Mae'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol yn cefnogi’r rhan honno o Brotocol Pwyllgor 
Cynllunio Cenedlaethol (na fydd yn ffurfio rhan o'r cynigion deddfwriaethol) sy'n 
ymwneud â hyfforddiant gorfodol i aelodau. Mae osgoi ymdrech diangen a dyblygu 
drwy baratoi set genedlaethol o ddeunyddiau hyfforddi yn ddull synhwyrol. Er nad yw 
manylion deunyddiau a thestunau’r hyfforddiant wedi eu nodi eto, mae’r Cydbwyllgor 
Ymgynghorol yn argymell yn gryf y dylai awdurdodau cynllunio lleol sydd â 
thirweddau a ddiogelir yn genedlaethol (Ardaloedd o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol a 
Pharciau Cenedlaethol) dderbyn hyfforddiant penodol mewn perthynas â chynllunio 
ar gyfer cadwraeth a gwella tirweddau dynodedig.” 

 
 

10.      UNRHYW FATER ARALL 
 

Tudalen 15Page 137



 

 

10.1        Ffatri Dobson & Crowther, Cilmedw, Llangollen 
Dywedodd Swyddog Cynllunio’r AHNE bod Mr Simon Collinge wedi anfon llythyr (a 
gylchredwyd yn flaenorol) at y Cadeirydd a'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol. Mae Mr Collinge 
wedi mynegi pryder bod lliw cladin wal y ffatri a godwyd yn ddiweddar yn rhy olau a bod yr 
adeilad yn weledol ymwthiol yn yr AHNE. Roedd Mr Collinge hefyd yn pryderu ynghylch torri 
coed a oedd yn helpu i guddio’r safle. 

 
Roedd yr aelodau yn cydymdeimlo â'r farn a fynegwyd ond cytunwyd na fyddai'r datblygwr 
yn newid lliw'r cladin (a gymeradwywyd) yn hwyr yn y datblygiad. Roedd yr Aelodau yn 
siomedig iawn bod y Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol wedi codi’r pryderon hyn a’r Awdurdod 
Cynllunio wedi dewis peidio â gweithredu ar awgrym y Pwyllgor h.y. i weld sampl o’r paneli 
sampl. Dywedodd y Cadeirydd ei bod yn bryderus iawn ynghylch torri coed ac wedi cysylltu 
â'r awdurdod cynllunio i geisio’r lefelau uchaf o liniaru i wneud iawn am eu torri. 
 
Anfonwyd y llythyr canlynol gan y Cadeirydd at Mr Collinge ar ôl y cyfarfod: 

 
Dear Mr Collinge 
 
As requested, I reported your letter to the meeting of the Interim Joint Advisory 
Committee (IJAC) for the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB held on 5 December, 
2014. Copies of your letter and the photographs you sent were circulated to all 
members prior to the meeting. 
 
The IJAC are very disappointed that the planning authority chose not to act on the 
committee’s suggestion that sample panels be erected on site to help select the 
colour of the cladding, and agree with you that a darker, more recessive colour would 
help better integrate the new factory into its rural setting. However, members 
accepted that the planning authority had issued an approval for the cladding as 
constructed and regretted that there was little that can be done at this stage to 
overturn a legitimately made decision. The committee did however ask for their 
concerns to be brought to the attention of the planning authority, hence me copying in 
Ian Weaver. 
 
Members also share your deep concern about the loss of mature trees along the A5 
which were to be protected and retained as part of the development. These helped 
screen the site and reduce its impact in the landscape, and their felling has resulted in 
the development appearing starker than it would otherwise. When they were felled I 
personally approached the planning authority to express my concerns and to seek as 
much mitigation as possible from the developers to compensate for their loss. The 
committee appreciates that it is difficult to fully compensate for the loss of such 
mature trees in the short term, but understands that the planning authority has 
reached agreement with the developers to secure additional planting in mitigation 
which, in time, will help break up views of the building.  
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Cllr Carolyn Thomas 
Chair of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB Interim Joint Advisory Committee 

 
10.2  Fferm Wynt Mynydd Mynyllod 

Dywedodd y Swyddog Cynllunio bod cynnig Scottish Power Renewables ar gyfer hyd at 25 o 
dyrbinau gydag uchder o 110-160 metr ym Mynydd Mynyllod ger Llandrillo wedi ei dynnu'n ôl 
oherwydd effaith gweledol y cysylltiad grid angenrheidiol ar y dirwedd. 

 
10.3  Fferm Wynt ar y Môr  Rhiannon  

Tudalen 16Page 138



 

 

Dywedodd y Swyddog Cynllunio bod cynnig Celtic Array ar gyfer 250+ o dyrbinau 265 metr o 
uchder ym Môr Iwerddon hefyd wedi ei dynnu'n ôl. Y prif resymau dros beidio â bwrw ymlaen 
â’r cynnig oedd amodau heriol dan y môr a chostau cysylltiedig.   
 
 

 
10.4   Swyddog Cynllunio’r AHNE 

Diolchodd y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones i Swyddog Cynllunio’r AHNE a’i ganmol am ei 
effeithlonrwydd. Dywedodd fod y Swyddog Cynllunio, sy'n gweithio'n rhan amser (deuddydd 
yr wythnos), wedi ymateb i 62 o geisiadau ers y cyfarfod diwethaf.   

 
 10.5  Neges gan y Cadeirydd    

             Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r holl aelodau am eu cyfraniad i'r Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol a 
dywedodd ei bod wedi mwynhau cadeirio'r cyfarfodydd ac ymestyn ei gwybodaeth am yr 
AHNE. Roedd hi wedi ceisio hyrwyddo a chodi ymwybyddiaeth o'r ardal ar bob cyfle posibl.   

 
 10.6       Swyddog yr AHNE 

Diolchodd y Cynghorydd Nancy Matthews i Swyddog yr AHNE am friffio’r aelodau i ymestyn 
eu gwybodaeth am yr AHNE ac am eu croesawu ar y pwyllgor.   

        

 
11. DYDDIADAU CYFARFODYDD Y DYFODOL 

   Cyfarfod cyntaf Partneriaeth AHNE Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy 
Dydd Gwener 27 Mawrth 2015 
 
 

           
 

Tudalen 17Page 139



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag

Page 140



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CYDBWYLLGOR 
ARDAL O HARDDWCH NATURIOL EITHRIADOL 

BRYNIAU CLWYD A DYFFRYN DYFRDWY 
 

 
Cynhaliwyd:    13 Chwefror 2015 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol:  Steve Gadd 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:   Paula O'Hanlon /Huw Rees 
 
Teitl:  Monitro Cyllideb 2014/15 y Cydbwyllgor a 

Chyllideb Arfaethedig 2015/16 
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  

 
Mae'r adroddiad yn rhoi manylion ynglŷn â sefyllfa monitro cyllideb refeniw’r Ardal o 
Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol ar gyfer 2014/15 yn ogystal â’r gyllideb arfaethedig ar 
gyfer 2015/16. 
 

2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio'r adroddiad hwn?  
 
Pwrpas yr adroddiad yw darparu diweddariad ynglŷn â sefyllfa ariannol bresennol yr 
Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol. 
 

3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
 
Bod yr aelodau'n nodi'r cynnydd yn erbyn strategaeth y gyllideb y cytunwyd arni ar 
gyfer eleni (Atodiad 1). Hefyd, eu bod yn cymeradwyo'r gyllideb arfaethedig ar gyfer 
2015/16 yn ffurfiol.                                               
  

4. Manylion yr Adroddiad 
 
Mae'r adroddiad yn rhoi crynodeb o gyllideb refeniw’r Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol 
Eithriadol ar gyfer 2014/15 y manylir yn ei chylch yn Atodiad 1. Cyllideb gwariant gros 
yr Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol yw £406 mil. Y sefyllfa yw bod rhagolwg o £3 
mil o dan wariant.  
Mae'r adroddiad hefyd yn darparu crynodeb o'r gyllideb refeniw arfaethedig ar gyfer 
2015/16 yn Atodiad 2, sy'n cynnig cyllideb gwariant gros o £403 mil. 

Tudalen 19

Eitem Agenda 5

Page 141



Cyflwynir y gyllideb mewn dwy ran; Craidd ac Ardal. Mae'r gyllideb Graidd yn 
ymwneud â’r swyddogaethau hynny sy’n gyfystyr â’r lleiafswm y byddai'n ofynnol ei 
gael er mwyn gweithredu'r gweithgarwch yr Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol yn 
ystod y flwyddyn gyfredol. Gall y gyllideb hon amrywio o flwyddyn i flwyddyn yn 
ddibynnol ar gyllid allanol a chyllid mewnol. Mae'r gyllideb Ardal yn ymwneud â 
gwariant i gyflawni prosiectau yng ngwahanol Awdurdodau Lleol yr Ardal o Harddwch 
Naturiol Eithriadol. Gallai'r gyllideb hon gynnwys staff nad ydynt yn staff craidd sy'n 
gweithio ar brosiectau penodol o fewn yr Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol yn 
ystod y flwyddyn hon. Bydd y gyllideb hon yn amrywio o flwyddyn i flwyddyn a hyd yn 
oed o fewn y flwyddyn yn dibynnu ar gynnydd prosiectau a ffynonellau cyllid.  
 

5. Sut mae'n cyfrannu at Flaenoriaethau Cynllun Rheoli Ardal o Harddwch 
Naturiol Eithriadol Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy? 
 
Bydd rheoli cyllidebau refeniw’r Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol yn effeithiol yn 
helpu i gyflawni blaenoriaethau'r cynllun rheoli y cytunwyd arno ar gyfer y flwyddyn 
gyfredol gan fod yn sail i weithgarwch ym mhob maes, yn enwedig ein perthynas â 
phartneriaid cyllid a'r blaenoriaethau yr ydym yn eu rhannu â hwy. 
 

6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 
Ar hyn o bryd rydym yn rhagweld y bydd y cyfraniadau incwm yn aros ar y lefel y 
cytunwyd arnynt yn y gyllideb ar gyfer eleni.  
 

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau'r asesiad a gynhaliwyd o effaith y penderfyniad ar 
gydraddoldeb?  Dylid atodi Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb wedi ei gwblhau 
fel atodiad i’r adroddiad hwn. 
 
Amh. 
 

8. Pa ymgynghori a wnaed gyda'r Pwyllgor Archwilio ac eraill?  
 
Dyma'r cyfle cyntaf i ymgynghori â'r Cydbwyllgor ynglŷn â chyllideb 2015/16. 
Cytunwyd ar gyllideb 2014/15 yng nghyfarfod diwethaf y Cydbwyllgor a gynhaliwyd ar 
14 Tachwedd 2014.  
 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
 
Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn amlinellu sefyllfa ariannol yr Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol 
Eithriadol ar gyfer 2014/15. Os erys y sefyllfa fel y mae, sef mymryn o dan wariant, 
argymhellir fod hyn yn cael ei gario drosodd i'w ddefnyddio gan y Cydbwyllgor yn 
2015/16. Bydd y gyllideb arfaethedig ar gyfer 2015/16 yn rhoi sicrwydd o 
sefydlogrwydd ariannol i’r Cydbwyllgor dros y 12 mis nesaf. Fodd bynnag, rhaid 
cydnabod bod cyllidebau pob corff yn y sector cyhoeddus yn dod o dan bwysau 
cynyddol oherwydd yr hinsawdd economaidd ac efallai na ellir dibynnu ar lefelau 
ariannu i’r dyfodol (gweler hefyd adran 10). 
 

10. Pa risgiau sydd, ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w lleihau? 
 

Tudalen 20Page 142



Mae'r gyllideb arfaethedig yn dibynnu ar incwm gan Gyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, 
Llywodraeth Cymru a'r tri Awdurdod Lleol. Bydd unrhyw newidiadau i'r lefelau incwm 
hyn yn peri risg i ddarpariaeth prosiectau i’r dyfodol ac i’n gallu i gyflawni yn erbyn y 
blaenoriaethau a nodir yng Nghynllun Rheoli’r Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol. 
 

11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 
Mae'n ofynnol i awdurdodau lleol o dan Adran 151, Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 
wneud trefniadau ar gyfer gweinyddu eu materion ariannol yn briodol. 

Tudalen 21Page 143



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag

Page 144



�����������	�

����� ���
������

������������������������������������
�	���	����

	���� ���!�������	�
��������"����������		��������#�$%��
&
'(
)�*+�,

�-�.
%�

*+�,/�0

�1)
&2$%�

*+�,/�0

3 3

��"��������

���������

	
�
���� 
������ 
������

�������������������� 
���� 
����

���
���������������� 
������ 
������

��������
� ���
!��

��
!����"������ ����
 �����

��������
!����"������ ��� ���

���
����������#���
!����"������ ����
 �����

�����

�$$�����"������ ����� �����

���
���������"������ ����� �����

%��&����

'�
��� ������ ������

���
��%��&��������� ������ ������

��������"�������� *45�,+� *4+�,�6

��	�
�

()*�'�
�� +
������� +
�������

	,-�'�
�� +������� +�������

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1����� +����
�� +����
��

-����������0�1����0�1���� +������� +�������

*��"�
��0�1����2���1/��0�1���� +������ +������

��������	�
�  *45�,+��  *45�,5#�

�1%27��
%����
���%-)
 +  5�+80�

Tudalen 23Page 145



�����������	�

����� ���
������

������������������������������������
�	���	����

����� ���!�������	�
��������"����������		��������#�$%��
&
'(
)�*+�,

�-�.
%�

*+�,/�0

�1)
&2$%�

*+�,/�0

3 3

��"��������

���������

	
�
���� 
������ 

�����

�������������������� ��� ���

���
���������������� 
������ 

�����

��������
� ���
!��

-���� �
���
 
�����

���
����������#���
!����"������ �
���
 
�����

�����

�$$�����"������ �� ���

���
���������"������ �� ���

%��&����

3
�
/������%�
� ����� �����

4�(2����&����

���
��%��&��������� ����� �����

��������"�������� �#4�45# �##�084

��	�
�

()*�'�
�� +
������ +
������

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1����� +
���
��� +

������

��������	�
�  �#4�45#�  �*8�84,�

�1%27��
%����
���%-)
 + 0�6�*

Tudalen 24Page 146



�����������	�

����� ���
������

������������������������������������
�	���	����

	���� ���!�������	�
��������"����������		�����"��"�������������#$%&$'

�������

�	
��



"()�)*
��

+,�-
.��

�#$%&$'

� /

��"��������

���������

	
�
���� ������� 
������

�������������������� ����� 
����

���
���������������� ����	
� 
���
��

��������
�����
 ��

��
 ����!������ ���	� �����

��������
 ����!������ �		 ���

���
����������"���
 ����!������ ��
	� �����

�����

�##�����!������ ����� $�$��

���
���������!������ ����� $�$��

%��&����

'�
��� ������ �$��$�

���
��%��&��������� ������ �$��$�

��������"�������� �����	
 �0$�1$�

��	�
�

()*�'�
�� ��	�����
 +
�$�����

	,-�'�
�� �������
 +�$��$��

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1����� ��	����
 +�������

-����������0�1����0�1���� �
���		
 +�������

*��!�
��0�1����2���1/��0�1���� ���			
 +������

��������	�
� ������	
�  �0$�1$��

�).23��
.����
���.,(
 	 #

Tudalen 25Page 147



�����������	�

����� ���
������

������������������������������������
�	���	����

����� ���!�������	�
��������"����������		�����"��"�������������#$%&$'

�������

�	
��



"()�)*
��

+,�-
.��

�#$%&$'

� /

��"��������

���������

	
�
���� �	���	� 
������

�������������������� ��� �$�

���
���������������� �	���	� 
���$�


��������
�����
 ��

-���� 
���
� 
�����

���
����������"���
 ����!������ 
���
� 
�����

�����

�##�����!������ �� ���

���
���������!������ �� ���

%��&����

3
�
/������%�
� ��			 �����

���
��%��&��������� ��			 �����

��������"�������� 
������ $4$��5$

��	�
�

()*�'�
�� ��
����
 +
���$��

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1����� ��
�����
 +

����$�

,��.�/�������0�1����0�1�����%��&����3
����-1����/

��������	�
� �
�������  $4$��5$�

�).23��
.����
���.,(
 	 #

Tudalen 26Page 148



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cynhaliwyd:   13 Chwefror 2015 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol: David Shiel 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:   David Shiel - Swyddog AHNE Cynorthwyol 
 
Teitl: Derbyn fersiwn ddrafft Cynllun Rheoli’r Ardal o 

Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol a phenderfynu 
ymgynghori’n allanol  

 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 

Adroddiad yw hwn ynglŷn â mabwysiadu fersiwn ddrafft Cynllun Rheoli Ardal o 
Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy 

 
2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio'r adroddiad hwn?  
 

Mae angen cytundeb er mwyn ymgynghori’n allanol ynghylch fersiwn ddrafft y 
Cynllun.  

 
3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
 

Bod y Cydbwyllgor yn cymeradwyo fersiwn ddrafft y Cynllun Rheoli ac yn ei 
chymeradwyo er mwyn ymgynghori’n gyhoeddus yn ei chylch.  

 
4. Manylion yr Adroddiad. 
 

Adolygiad yw fersiwn ddrafft y Cynllun Rheoli o Gynllun Rheoli 2009 ar gyfer Ardal o 
Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol Bryniau Clwyd, ond ei fod bellach yn cynnwys ardal 
Dyffryn Dyfrdwy a ddynodwyd yn Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol yn 2011.  
Cafodd ei pharatoi yn dilyn ymgynghori â phartneriaid a budd-ddeiliaid allweddol.  
Mae'r broses o gynllunio’r drefn reoli wedi cynnwys cynnal gweithdai ymgynghori ym 
meysydd yr Amgylchedd Naturiol, yr Amgylchedd Hanesyddol, Mynediad a 
Thwristiaeth a Chynllunio a Datblygu gan ymgysylltu â chyrff proffesiynol a 
sefydliadau sydd â diddordeb yn y broses 

 
Mae'r cynllun yn dynodi Priodweddau a Nodweddion Arbennig Bryniau Clwyd a 
Dyffryn Dyfrdwy ac yn amlinellu cyfres o Bolisïau ar gyfer datblygu cynaliadwy yng 
nghyd-destun harddwch naturiol.  Mae'n cydnabod y manteision y mae cymeriad 
arbennig y dirwedd yn eu cyfrannu i gymunedau ac economïau y tu mewn a'r tu allan 
i'r Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol.  

 

Tudalen 27

Eitem Agenda 6

Page 149



 

 

Drwy gyfrwng Adroddiad Cyflwr yr Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol mae fersiwn 
ddrafft y Cynllun Rheoli yn gwneud asesiad o'r materion a'r ffactorau allweddol sy'n 
effeithio ar gymeriad arbennig yr Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol ac yn cynnwys 
Cynllun Gweithredu 5 mlynedd sy’n gweithio tuag at sicrhau bod yr Ardal o 
Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol yn gallu parhau i gyflawni gwasanaethau allweddol sy’n 
cyfrannu at les economaidd, cymdeithasol a diwylliannol.   

 
5. Sut mae'n cyfrannu at Flaenoriaethau Cynllun Rheoli Ardal o Harddwch 

Naturiol Eithriadol Bryniau Clwyd a Dyffryn Dyfrdwy? 
 

Bydd fersiwn ddrafft y Cynllun Rheoli drafft yn disodli'r cynllun presennol y dylid bod 
wedi ei adolygu yn 2014.  Bydd yn gosod rhaglen waith yr Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol 
Eithriadol tan 2019.    

 
6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 

Cyflawnir y Cynllun Rheoli o fewn trefniadau’r gyllideb bresennol 
 
7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau'r asesiad a gynhaliwyd o effaith y penderfyniad ar 

gydraddoldeb?  Dylid atodi templed Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb wedi ei 
gwblhau fel atodiad i’r adroddiad hwn. 

 
Atodiad 6 

 
8. Pa ymgynghori a wnaed gyda'r Pwyllgor Archwilio ac eraill?  
 

Paratowyd y cynllun yn dilyn gweithdai gyda budd-ddeiliaid allweddol o blith grwpiau 
arbenigol a grwpiau buddiant.   

 
Cymeradwywyd drafft cynharach o'r cynllun gan y Cydbwyllgor Ymgynghorol Dros 
Dro yn Rhagfyr 2014.  

 
9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
 

“Fel y nodir uchod caiff y Cynllun Rheoli ei gyflawni o fewn y cyllidebau presennol a 
bydd hefyd o gymorth i ddiogelu lefelau ariannu allanol presennol sy'n ffurfio rhan o 
gyllideb arfaethedig yr Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol."  

 
10. Pa risgiau sydd, ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w lleihau? 
 

Mae Dyletswydd Statudol ar Awdurdodau Lleol i lunio Cynllun Rheoli ar gyfer yr 
Ardal o Harddwch Naturiol Eithriadol 
Ariannol – Byddai methu â mabwysiadu Cynllun efallai yn peryglu cyllid allanol gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru a Chyfoeth Naturiol Cymru. 
Enw da - Mae risg i enw da wrth beidio â mabwysiadu cynllun ac wrth fethu â 
chyflawni rhwymedigaeth statudol i wneud hynny.   

 
11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 

Tudalen 28Page 150



 

 

Mae Deddf Cefn Gwlad a Hawliau Tramwy 2000 yn gosod dyletswydd ar 
Awdurdodau Lleol i lunio Cynllun Rheoli ar gyfer Ardaloedd o Harddwch Naturiol 
Eithriadol o fewn eu ffiniau.    
Mae gan y Cydbwyllgor a sefydlwyd dan adran 101(5) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 
a Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 y pŵer i weithredu ar ran awdurdodau Sir y Fflint, Sir 
Ddinbych a Wrecsam wrth gyflawni'r ddyletswydd hon.  

Tudalen 29Page 151



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag

Page 152



 

!

!

!

 

 

 

Clwydian Range and Dee Valley 
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
!

!

!

!

 

 

Draft 

Management Plan 2014 - 2019 
!

PART!ONE!!

STRATEGY!

!

!

December 2014 

Tudalen 31Page 153



!

PART$ONE$$

STRATEGY$

!

Contents!

!

$ Introduction$$ 2

$ !

SECTION$ONE$

1$ AONB!Designation! 2

1.1$ Purpose!of!the!Designation 3

1.2$ Significance!of!the!designation! 3

1.3$ Who!is!the!Plan!for! 3

1.4$ Governance 4

$ !

SECTION$TWO$

$ Setting!the!Plan!in!Context

2.1$ European!Landscape!Convention 5

2.2$ IUCN!Category!V!! 5

2.3$ The!Environment!Bill! 6

2.4$ Taking!the!Long!View! 6

2.5$ River!Basin!Management!Plans 6

$ !

SECTION$THREE$

3.1$ An!Ecosystem!Approach 7

$ !

SECTION$FOUR$

$ What!makes!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!Special!!

$ Special!Qualities! 10

$ Special!Features! 11

$ A!Vision!for!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley 12

$ Landscape!Quality!and!Character 13

$ Habitats!and!Wildlife! 14

$ The!Historic!Environment 18

$ Access,!Recreation!and!Tourism 21

$ The!Built!Environment!! 24

! !

!

!

Tudalen 32Page 154



P a g e  | 2 

!

INTRODUCTION(

(

The!Clwydian!Range!nd!Dee!Valley!Area!of!Outstanding!Natural!Beauty!is!the!dramatic!

upland!frontier!to!North!Wales!embracing!some!of!the!country’s!most!wonderful!

countryside.!!!

!

The!Clwydian!Range!is!an!unmistakeable!chain!of!heather!clad!summits!topped!by!Britain’s!

most!strikingly!situated!hillforts.!!Beyond!the!windswept!Horseshoe!Pass,!over!Llantysilio!

Mountain,!lies!the!glorious!Dee!Valley!with!historic!Llangollen,!a!famous!market!town!rich!in!

cultural!and!industrial!heritage.!!

!

The!Offa’s!Dyke!National!Trail!traverses!this!specially!protected!area,!one!of!the!least!

discovered!yet!most!welcoming!and!easiest!to!explore!of!Britain’s!finest!landscapes.!!

!

(

About(this(Plan.(

(

This!Management!Plan!is!the!first!overarching!5!year!strategy!for!the!newly!formed!

Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!Area!of!Outstanding!Natural!Beauty.!

!

It!is!a!plan!for!all!those!with!an!interest!in!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!and!!

has!been!prepared!by!the!AONB!Unit!in!close!collaboration!with!key!partners!and!!!!!!!!!!!

stake!holders.!This!is!a!fiveLyear!plan!for!the!entire!community!of!the!AONB!not!just!

the!AONB!unit.!!It!also!recognises!that!the!AONB!has!an!impact!on!the!wider!region!

and!can!be!affected!by!influences!outside!of!its!boundary.!It!is!a!Plan!for!the!AONB,!!

its!communities,!businesses,!visitors!and!organisations!and!will!require!all!who!have!

an!interest!in!the!AONB!to!work!together!to!achieve!its!aspirations.!It!will!ensure!

that!AONB!purposes!are!being!delivered!whilst!contributing!to!the!aims!and!

objectives!of!other!strategies!for!the!area.!

!

This!Management!Plan!is!different!from!its!predecessors!in!that!it!also!begins!to!

tackle!the!question!of!what!the!AONB!can!produce!to!meet!society’s!needs!whilst!

ensuring!the!achievement!of!AONB’s!purposes!to!conserve!and!enhance!natural!

beauty.!

!

!

(

SECTION(ONE(

1..AONB(DESIGNATION(

The!Clwydian!Range!was!designated!as!an!Area!of!Outstanding!Natural!Beauty!in!July!

1985.!In!2011!following!detailed!work!by!the!Countryside!Council!for!Wales!and!the!

three!Local!Authorities!of!Denbighshire,!Flintshire!and!Wrexham!the!AONB!

designation!was!extended!to!include!the!Dee!Valley.!This!is!the!most!recent!

landscape!designation!in!Wales!and!makes!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!AONB!

for!largest!of!the!5!AONBs!in!Wales.!

!

Tudalen 33Page 155



P a g e  | 3

!

1.1"Purpose"of"the"Designation"

AONBs!together!with!National!Parks!recognise!our!finest!landscapes!and!set!a!

framework!for!their!protection!and!enhancement.!The!primary!statutory!purpose!of!

designating!a!tract!of!Countryside!as!an!AONB!is!to!conserve!and!enhance!the!

natural!beauty!of!the!area.!The!concept!of!‘natural!beauty’!includes!the!protection!of!

flora,!fauna!and!geological!as!well!as!landscape!features.!However,!it!is!very!

important!that!the!cultural!dimension!of!the!landscape,!including!the!historical,!

spiritual!and!inspirational!elements,!as!well!as!the!physical!human!shaping!of!the!

land!is!fully!recognised.!In!Wales!the!added!dimensions!of!the!language!provides!an!

essential!element!of!cultural!richness!that!must!be!recognised!too.!These!should!all!

be!integrated!into!the!management!of!AONBs.!

!

1.2 The significance of AONB designation 

The!power!to!designate!an!Area!of!Outstanding!Natural!Beauty!comes!from!the!

National!Parks!and!Access!to!the!Countryside!Act,!1949.!!The!purposes,!duties!and!

management!requirements!for!AONBs!are!set!out!in!the!Countryside!and!Rights!of!

Way!(CRoW)!Act!2000.!Section!82!of!the!CRoW!Act!establishes!the!primary!purpose!

of!AONB!designation!as!the!conservation!and!enhancement!of!natural!beauty.!

!

Section!85!places!a!duty!on!all!public!bodies!to!have!regard!to!the!purposes!of!

conserving!and!enhancing!the!natural!beauty!of!the!area!in!undertaking!any!

functions!or!actions!affecting!an!AONB.!!It!is!not!the!purpose!of!designation!to!stop!

development!but!the!planning!authorities!will!consider!any!development!proposal!to!

ensure!that!it!does!not!unduly!harm!the!character!and!appearance!of!the!AONB;!it!is!

sensitively!located!and!designed;!and!it!complements!or!enhances!the!special!

qualities!and!features!of!the!area.!

!

Section!89!requires!the!local!authorities!in!whose!area!an!AONB!lies!to!prepare!and!

publish!an!AONB!Management!Plan!to!guide!policy!development!and!management!

actions.!!!

!

1.3 Who is the Plan for? 
The!Plan!is!designed!to!provide!a!framework!that!can!inform!and!guide!anyone!who!

undertakes!activities!that!may!affect!the!AONB.!These!will!include:!

!

Relevant"Authorities – All!public!bodies!and!statutory!undertakers!–!as!

defined!in!Section!85!of!the!Countryside!and!Rights!of!Way!Act!2000!–!that!

have!a!duty!to!have!regard!for!the!purposes!of!AONBs.!This!plan,!in!defining!

the!areas!special!qualities!and!features!sets!out!an!agenda!for!managing!

change!that!will!help!these!bodies!to!fulfil!their!statutory!duties.!!The!Joint!

Committee!of!the!AONB!represents!and!acts!on!behalf!of!the!three!local!Authorities!

of!Denbighshire,!Flintshire!and!Wrexham.!!

"

Tudalen 34Page 156



P a g e  | 4 

!

Partners'of'the'AONB – organisations!and!individuals!that!have!a!key!role!in!

delivering!and!championing!the!programmes!of!the!AONB!–!as!represented!by!the!

AONB!Partnership!

.!

Landowners'and'Land'managers – The!Plan!seeks!to!work!with!landowners!

and!land!managers!and!recognises!the!key!role!they!have!to!play!in!realising!

the!overall!vision.!

!

Local'Communities'– The!plan!commits!to!working!with!those!who!live!and!

work!within!the!AONB!and!identifies!the!importance!of!communities!in!

defining!and!caring!for!the!landscape.!The!plan!sets!out!an!agenda!for!

working!with!the!communities!of!the!AONB.!

1.4 Governance 

Since!the!expansion!of!the!AONB!to!include!the!Dee!Valley,!parts!of!which!fall!in!to!

Wrexham!County!Borough!Council,!a!governance!review!has!been!undertaken!in!order!to!

develop!more!appropriate!working!structure!that!reflects!the!joint!approach!between!the!

three!Local!Authorities!of!Denbighshire,!Flintshire!and!Wrexham!as!well!as!the!need!to!

expand!to!include!other!partnerships!in!the!new!AONB.!!!

!

AONB Joint Committee 2014 
The!three!Local!Authorities!of!Denbighshire,!Wrexham!and!Flintshire!entered!into!the!Legal!

Agreement!to!jointly!discharge!their!AONB!functions!by!means!of!a!Joint!Committee!for!the!

AONB!in!the!summer!of!2014.!!The!Committee!is!made!up!of!Lead!members!(members!of!

the!Authority’s!Executive!or!Cabinet)!of!each!Local!Authority!and!has!the!power!act!on!

behalf!of!those!Local!Authority’s!in!delivering!the!purposes!of!the!AONB.!

!

AONB Partnership 2015 
The!AONB!Partnership!is!an!effective!resource!in!the!range!and!depth!of!political!and!

professional!expertise!and!experience.!It!represents!the!local!authorities,!landowners,!

farmers,!conservation!and!recreation!interests.!!!The!Partnership!supports!the!delivery!of!

the!AONB!Management!Plan!through!its!expertise!and!experience!in!a!broad!range!of!fields!

related!to!landscape!management.!!It!is!supported!by!an!Officer’s!Working!Group!of!

relevant!officers!from!the!constituent!local!authorities!and!Natural!Resources!Wales.!!

!

'

'

'

'

'

'

Tudalen 35Page 157



P a g e  | 5 

!

SECTION'TWO'

Setting'the'Plan'in'Context.'

'

European'Context'

'

2.1'''European'Landscape'Convention'

The!UK!signed!up!to!the!European!Landscape!Convention!in!2007.!!The!Convention!

clearly!sets!out!an!agenda!for!landscape!protection!and!management!on!a!European!

level!and!as!such!is!an!important!element!in!informing!a!strategic!approach.!The!

Convention!asks!member!states:!

a)"to"recognise"landscapes"in"law"as"an"essential"component"of"people’s"

surroundings,"an"expression"of"the"diversity"of"their"shared"cultural"and"

natural"heritage,"and"a"foundation"of"their"identity;"

b)"to"establish"and"implement"landscape"policies"aimed"at"landscape"

protection,"management"and"planning."

c)"to"establish"procedures"for"the"participation"of"the"general"public,"local"and"

regional"authorities,"and"other"parties"with"an"interest"in"the"definition"and"

implementation"of"landscape"policies."

d)"to"integrate"landscape"into"their"regional"and"town"planning"policies"and"in"

its"cultural,"environmental,"agricultural,"social"and"economic"policies,"as"well"

as"in"any"other"policies"with"possible"direct"or"indirect"impact"on"landscape."

!

Specifically!the!Convention!asks!each!country!to!undertake!to!raise!awareness!of!

landscape!protection,!identify!special!landscape!characteristics,!and!to!set!and!

implement!objectives!for!protection,!management!and!planning!of!the!landscape.!

!

'

2.2'International'Union'for'Conservation'of'Nature'and'

'''''''Natural'Resources'–'Category'V'Landscapes'

AONBs!together!with!other!designated!landscapes!in!the!UK!are!part!of!a!global!network!

and!sit!within!a!worldwide!category!of!protected!areas!known!as!“Protected!

Landscapes”.!Category!V!refers!to!one!of!six!categories!of!protected!areas!worldwide.!

Category!V!Landscapes!recognise!the!significance!of!AONBs!in!global!terms!and!

ensures!a!consistent!approach!to!landscape!conservation!internationally.!The!IUCN!

recognises!that!thinking!on!protected!areas!is!undergoing!a!fundamental!shift.!“Whereas!

protected!areas!were!once!planned!against!people,!now!it!is!recognised!that!they!need!to!

be!planned!with!local!people,and!often!for!and!by!them!as!well.!Where!once!the!emphasis!

was!on!setting!places!aside,!we!now!look!to!develop!linkages!between!strictly!protected!

core!areas!and!the!areas!around:!economic!links!which!benefit!local!people,!and!physical!

links,via!ecological!corridors,!to!provide!more!space!for!species!and!natural!processes.”!

Tudalen 36Page 158



P a g e  | 6 

!

National Context 

2.3##The#Environment#Bill#

Environment!Bill!emphasises!the!importance!of!considering!the!management!of!our!natural!

resources,!on!land!and!sea,!in!a!more!integrated!way!and!places!sustainable!development!at!

the!heart!of!its!approach.!!It!sets!out!a!new!statutory!framework!for!the!integrated!and!

sustainable!management!of!our!natural!resources!in!order!to!deliver!a!healthier,!more!

resilient!Wales!through!economic,!social!and!environmental!benefits.!!!!!!!!!

2.4#Taking#the#Long#View#

       Welsh Government Statement for AONBs and National Parks. 

This!draft!policy!statement!sets!out!the!Welsh!Governments!policy!framework!for!

statutory!designated!landscapes!in!Wales.!!It!requires!designated!landscapes!to!

contribute!to!meeting!the!challenges!of!sustainable!development!through!the!

delivery!of!their!statutory!purposes.!

!

It!set!out!a!vision!for!AONBs!and!National!Parks!to!be!living,!working!landscapes,!

exemplars!of!sustainable!development,!with!vibrant!rural!communities,!extensive!

recreational!opportunities!as!well!as!thriving!ecosystems!rich!in!biodiversity.!

!

It!calls!for!Protected!Landscapes!in!Wales!to!be!areas!where!new!and!innovative!

solutions!to!environmental!challenges!will!be!developed,!tested!and!shared.!

!

It!specifically!promotes!an!‘ecosystem!approach’!to!landscape!management!which!

means!considering!how!it!regulates!our!environment!and!its!key!services!including!

economic!and!social!wellbeing.!

!

!

2.5##River#Basin#Management#Plans#=#2015#

The!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!falls!into!two!River!Basin!Districts!L!the!Dee!and!the!

Clwyd.!!Natural!Resources!Wales!are!currently!consulting!on!the!River!Dee!Basin!

Management!Plan!and!the!River!Clwyd!Catchment!Management!Plan!due!to!be!completed!

in!2015.!!!Both!plans!outline!measure!to!improve!the!water!environment,!its!river!lakes!and!

streams,!and!encompass!all!of!the!issues!and!pressures!on!the!water!environment.!!The!

plans!recognise!that!river!basin!management!can!deliver!multiple!benefits.!!For!example!the!

management!of!the!uplands!can!not!only!manage!flood!waters!but!can!also!deliver!better!

water!quality!and!help!in!carbon!capture.!

!

Tudalen 37Page 159



P a g e  | 7 

!

SECTION THREE 

3.1 An Ecosystem Approach 

What is the landscape of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley delivering for us and how 
can we ensure that it can continue to deliver?

!

The!natural!systems!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!touch!our!lives!every!day.!

Whether!living!in,!Mold,!Wrexham!or!Rhyl!or!in!the!more!rural!areas,!we!rely!on!these!

natural!systems!to!support!us.!!They!underpin!our!health,!wealth!and!happiness!and!give!us!

a!sense!of!place,!pride!and!identity.!

Well!looked!after!the!AONB!will!continue!to!provide!us!with!some!of!the!essentials!of!

life!including!clean!air!and!water,!food,!fuel!and!raw!materials.!!It!helps!to!regulate!our!

climate;!stores!flood!waters,!filters!pollution,!and!provides!opportunities!for!us!to!

improve!our!health!and!wellbeing.!!The!Plan!therefore!needs!to!consider!what!benefits!

the!AONB!can!provide!to!meet!the!needs!of!society!and!respond!to!current!issues!such!

as!the!need!to!produce!more!food,!improve!health!and!wellHbeing!and!adapt!to!the!

effects!of!a!changing!climate.!

!

It!is!also!recognised!that!the!landscape!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!has!an!

influence!on!ecosystems,!communities!and!economies!far!beyond!the!boundary!of!the!

designation.!For!example!the!river!catchment!of!the!Dee!has!its!beginnings!in!the!

Clwydian!Range!and!the!Berwyn!Mountains!but!extends!far!beyond!through!

Denbighshire,!Wrexham,!Flintshire!and!Cheshire.!!Activity!within!these!catchments!

therefore!is!potentially!wide!reaching!and!so!where!necessary!we!need!to!consider!

these!impacts.!This!is!equally!true!of!the!communities!and!businesses!outside!of!the!

AONB!that!nevertheless!rely!on!the!outstanding!quality!of!the!landscape!on!their!

doorstep!to!thrive.!

!

Tudalen 38Page 160



Tudalen 39Page 161



Tudalen 40Page 162



P a g e  |10 

!

SECTION'FOUR'

What'makes'the'Clwydian'Range'and'Dee'Valley'Special'?'
'

In!setting!out!a!programme!of!management!for!the!protection!and!enhancement!of!the!

AONB!it!is!first!necessary!to!define!those!individual!features!and!qualities!that!make!up!

the!special!character!of!the!area.!

!

Whilst!it!is!recognised!that!there!are!a!number!of!other!elements!within!the!landscape!

that!are!of!particular!value!it!is!important!to!identify!those!features!within!the!Clwydian!

Range!and!Dee!Valley!that!represent!the!finest!qualities!nationally.!!It!is!also!recognised!

that!this!special!character!is!made!up!of!the!unique!combination!of!all!its!Special!features!and!

qualities!where!the!features!may!be!considered!to!be!the!physical!attributes,!it!rolling!moorland,!

woodlands!and!cliffs!and!the!qualities!are!the!nonphysical!attributes!and!are!related!to!how!we!

interact!with!it.!These!are!the!sensory!aspects!of!the!landscape.!

!

The!2009!management!planning!process!for!the!Clwydian!Range!undertook!

consultation!with!local!communities,!public!bodies!and!agencies!with!an!interest!in!the!

area’s!management.!!The!individual!features!and!qualities!that!make!up!the!special!

character!of!the!area!were!identified!and!formed!the!basis!of!the!2009!Management!

Plan!for!the!Clwydian!Range.!!Similarly!the!work!that!took!place!to!deliver!the!extension!

to!the!Clwydian!Range!into!the!Dee!Valley!in!2011!considered!the!special!characteristics!

of!the!landscape!which!were!then!drawn!together!into!an!Interim!Statement!in!2012.!!The!

Special!Features!and!Qualities!identified!in!both!pieces!of!work!have!been!drawn!together!to!form!

the!basis!of!this!plan.!

!

!

!

Special'Qualities'of'the'AONB!

!

Landscape'Character''

and'Quality'
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Tranquillity 
Tranquillity is associated with an atmosphere of calm and stillness; 
peace and quiet; and with dark night skies. 

Remoteness and wilderness, Space and Freedom 
Remoteness and wildness is associated with a feeling of trepidation 
and sometimes even danger. The sublime.  

Space and freedom is related with access to the landscape and the 
uninterrupted and extensive views from the high places within it. 

Bro and the link between communities and their landscape 
A sense of belonging and attachment to the landscape. 

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Tudalen 41Page 163



P a g e  | 11 

!

Special'Features'of'the'AONB!

!

Habitats'and'

Wildlife'
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Heather Moorland and Rolling ridges 
The#dramatic#moorland#ridges#of#the#central#Clwydian Range, expansive 

Llandegla and Ruabon Moors, Llantysilio and North Berwyn. 

Broadleaved woodlands and Veteran trees 
Bishops Wood, Cwm and Wheeler Valley. Ash dominated Alyn Valley 
woods and the small copses of the upper Alyn and upland oak woods of 
the Dee Valley. 

River Valleys and the River Dee 
The dramatic and powerful river Dee contrasted with the smaller twisting 
and winding River Alyn and River Wheeler.  

Limestone grasslands, cliffs and screes. 
Graig Fawr, Loggereads and Bryn Alyn – Llanarmon yn Ial and the 
spectacular Eglwyseg Escapement

!

!

Historic'

Environment'
!

Historic'Settlement'and'Archaeology'

Historic#settlement#patterns#and#conservation#areas.#The#diverse#patterns#and#

features#in#the#landscape#left#by#previous#generations.#

#

Industrial'Features'and'the'World'Heritage'Site'

Limestone#quarrying#and#lead#mining,#slate#quarries#and#associated#tramways#

and#workings#–#the#Pontcysyllte#Aqueduct#and#canal,#Horseshoe#Falls#

#

Historic'Defence'Features'

The#dramatic#chain#of#Iron#Age#Hillforts#of#the#Clwydian#Range,#Castell#Dinas#

Bran#and#Chirk#Castle#and#medival#Motte#and#Bailys#at#Tomon#y#Rhodwedd,#

tomen#y#Fadre#and#Carrog.#

#

Small'historic'features'

Often#unlisted#or#scheduled#a#rich#mixture#of#small#historic#features#that#are#an#

important#part#of#the#rich#cultural#layer#of#the#landscape#–#wells,#village#pumps,#

boundary#stones,#waymarkers,#milk#stands#and#K6#telephone#boxes.#

#

Traditional'boundaries'

Drystone#walls#and#hedges#reflecting#traditional#skills#and#craftsmanship#and#

often#reflecting#local#styles#and#geology.

!

Access'Recreation'

and'Tourism'

Iconic'Visitor'and'Cultural'Attractions'

Sites#that#have#helped#to#shape#the#identity#of#the#AONB#as#a#visitor#destination#

–Loggerheads,#Mole#Famau,#Castell#Dinas#Bran,#Valle#Crucis#Abbey,#the#

Horseshoe#Pass#and#Pontcysyllte#Aqueduct#and#Horseshoe#Falls#

#

The'Offa’s'Dyke'National'Trail'and'Promoted'Routes'

Stretching#from#Prestatyn#Hillside#in#the#north#to#Llangollen#in#the#South#The#

National#Trail#makes#the#AONB#particularly#accessible.#The#Dee#Valley#Way,#

north#Berwyn#Way#and#a#network#of#community#paths.#Together#with#extensive#

areas#of#Access#Land#the#landscape#of#the#AONB#is#particularly#accessible.#

'

'

Culture'and'People'

The'Built'Environment'

The#villages#and#towns,#hamlets#and#scattered#settlements.#

People'and'Communities'

A#rich#mix#of#culture#and#strong#sense#of#community#–#the#facilities#and#services#

that#areessential#to#sustaining#rural#life.

Tudalen 42Page 164



P a g e  | 11 

!

A!Vision!for!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!AONB!

!
The!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!AONB!is!a!dynamic!landscape!with!flourishing!

communities!and!a!thriving!local!economy.!!This!landscape!supports!a!rich!biological!and!

cultural!resource!delivering!benefits!for!the!communities,!economies!and!ecosystems!far!

beyond!its!boundary.!!The!landscape!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!is!cherished!as!a!

peaceful!haven!by!those!living!in!and!visiting!the!AONB!and!is!treasured!for!its!open!spaces!

and!commanding!views.!!Its!special!features!and!the!benefits!they!provide!are!understood!

and!appreciated!by!all.!

!

The!AONB!is!managed!through!sound!and!effective!partnerships!which!ensure!that!

communities!and!visitors!are!fully!engaged!in!decision!making!and!are!empowered!to!have!a!

stake!in!their!local!landscape!and!invest!in!its!future.!!!

!

The!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!is!a!flagship!for!sustainable!development!and!forward!

planning!and!its!international!protection!as!a!category!V!protected!landscape!is!influential!

on!an!international,!national!and!local!stage.!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Tudalen 43Page 165



P a g e  | 13 

!

LANDSCAPE(QUALITY(AND(CHARACTER(

(

(

!

!

!

!

!

This!section!focuses!specifically!on!the!qualities!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!and!in!

particular!the!tranquility!it!offers,!the!wide!and!expansive!views!in!all!directions!from!almost!every!

corner.!From!the!East!however!views!are!dominated!by!the!conurbations!of!Mold,!Chester,!

Wrexham!and!Merseyside.!This!has!a!significant!impact!on!tranquility,!particularly!at!night!spilling!

light!onto!the!darker!skies!to!the!West.!

!

This!section!also!recognises!the!vital!role!that!people!have!played!and!continue!to!play!in!giving!the!

landscape!a!distinctive!character.!Generations!of!communities!have!shaped!the!land,!farming,!

building!and!moulding!the!landscape!to!meet!their!needs.!It!is!people!who!give!an!area!its!flavour,!its!

culture!and!its!heritage,!accumulated!over!many!generations.!

!

Special(Qualities(

(
! Tranquillity,(!

!

! Remoteness(and(Wilderness(B(Peace!and!quiet!with!a!hint!of!danger!and!surprise!

!

! Bro(and(the(link(between(communities(and(their(landscape(B(A!sense!of!

belonging!and!attachment!to!the!landscape!

Policies( Landscape(Quality(and(Character(

(

PolSQ1. Conserve!and!enhance!the!Special!Qualities!and!distinctive!

character!of!the!AONB’s!landscape!and!associated!features.(

! !

PolSQ2. Safeguard!the!panoramic!views,!tranquillity!and!environmental!

quality!of!the!AONB.!

!

PolSQ3. Secure!the!equitable,!sustainable!use!of!the!area’s!natural!resources!

to!conserve!and!enhance!the!special!qualities!of!the!AONB.!

!

PolSQ4. Protect!and!promote!traditional!cultural!distinctiveness!within!the!

AONB!including!the!Welsh!language.!

Great!diversity!of!landscape,!wideNopen!views,!expansive!moorland!and!dramatic!ridges,!

spectacular!cliffs!and!screes,!ancient!trees!and!rich!woodland,!sweeping!river!valleys!and!

cascading!streams;!diverse!heathlands!and!rich!floristic!grasslands;!

!

Historic!settlements!and!distinctive!buildings,!dramatic!monuments!and!a!tapestry!of!

evidence!of!human!settlement:!world!heritage!site,!canals!aqueducts!and!waterways;!!

!

dark!night!skies;!clear!unpolluted!air,!peace!and!tranquillity,!remote!and!wild;!ruined!

abbeys!and!early!churches,!picturesque!views!and!ancient!ruins;!thriving!communities,!

Welsh!language!and!Culture;!artistic!and!literary!inspiration,!extensive!trails!and!paths;!!

!

Cynefin,!Belonging.!

Tudalen 44Page 166



P a g e  | 14 

!

Objectives)

)

SQO1. Ensure!that!the!natural!resources!and!special!qualities!of!the!AONB!are!

recognised!and!valued.!

SQO2. Ensure!that!the!impacts!of!environmental!change!on!the!AONB!are!

understood!and!a!strategic!response!is!developed!and!implemented!

SQO3. Minimise!the!cumulative!impacts!of!small;scale!change!that!may!erode!the!

special!character!of!the!AONB.!

SQO4. Protect!the!tranquillity!of!the!AONB!and!take!steps!where!possible!to!reduce!

noise!and!light!pollution.!

SQO5. Where!possible!reduce!visual!intrusion!by!screening!or!removing!eyesores.!

SQO6. Establish!a!monitoring!programme!from!key!viewpoints!across!the!AONB!

!

)

HABITATS)AND)WILDLIFE)
The!AONB!supports!a!wide!diversity!of!habitats!and!species!reflecting!the!local!ariations!in!

geology,!topography,!soils,!land!use!and!climate.!The!dramatic!moorland!ridges!of!the!

Clwydian!Range!and!rolling!hills!of!the!Dee!Valley!are!mixed!with!spectacular!limestone!

cliffs,!meandering!and!cascading!rivers!and!scattered!woodlands.!They!contain!some!of!the!

UK’s!most!important!habitats!and!the!significance!of!these!areas!for!conservation!are!

recognised!by!designation!as!a!Site!of!Special!Scientific!Interest,!a!Special!Area!for!

Conservation!and!a!Special!Protection!Area.!

)

Connectivity)

It!is!the!combination!and!variety!of!features!and!habitats!in!the!AONB!that!taken!together!

make!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!special.!It!is!important!to!consider!how!these!

various!components!interact!and!function!as!an!overall!ecosystem.!

!

The!upland!areas!and!river!valleys!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!are!providing!many!

ecosystem!service!benefits!for!people!and!communities!both!within!and!beyond!the!AONB.!

Some!are!well!known!such!as!food,!fuel,!water!and!biodiversity!as!well!as!cultural!services!

such!as!recreation!and!tourism.!Others!are!less!apparent,!but!include!flood!regulation,!soil!

formation!and!pollination!and!are!equally!critical!to!human!well!being.!

!

The!AONB!contains!valued!landscapes!and!natural!habitats!and!its!soils!and!woodlands!store!

carbon.!It!is!an!important!source!of!water!and!food.!Its!landscape!and!natural!beauty!attract!

visitors!seeking!recreation!and!mental!refreshment.!

!

Special Features 

! Heather!Moorland!and!Rolling!ridges!

! Broadleaved!woodlands!and!Veteran!trees!

! River!Valleys!and!the!River!Dee!

! Limestone!grasslands,!cliffs!and!screes.!

Tudalen 45Page 167



P a g e  | 15 

!

Policies' Habitats'and'Wildlife'

! !

PolHW1. Secure!natural!systems!and!networks!that!provide!more!and!

better!places!for!nature!for!the!benefit!of!wildlife!and!people.!!!

!

PolHW2. Restore,!reconnect!and!expand!key!habitats!and!species!at!a!

landscape!scale!in!order!to!increase!resilience!to!environmental!

change.!!

!

PolHW3. Ensure!that!the!conservation!of!habitats!is!an!integral!part!of!

agricultural!and!field!sports!management.!

!

PolHW4. Ensure!that!the!natural!benefits!and!services!of!the!landscape!

are!properly!understood!and!valued.!

'

'

Heather'Moorland'and'rolling'ridges'

'

Most!of!the!moorland!within!the!AONB!consists!of!dry!heath!although!wet!heath!and!

blanket!bog!are!also!present!particularly!in!the!South.!!Management!is!primarily!for!sheep!

with!grouse!management!also!important!in!the!Dee!Valley.!!Although!moorland!areas!in!the!

Clwydian!Range!are!not!designated!they!are!still!important!habitats!for!protected!species.!!

Across!the!AONB!there!is!a!distinctive!transitional!zone!on!the!lower!hillsides!where!

moorland!gives!way!to!more!fertile!lowFlying!farmland.!This!upland!margin,!often!known!in!

Wales!as!ffridd,!has!a!distinctive!habitat!composition!with!elements!characteristic!of!both!

upland!and!lowland!habitats.!!Ffridd!can!often!be!one!of!the!most!diverse!habitats!within!

the!AONB!and!it!particularly!important!in!connecting!more!fragmented!areas.!

!

!

Objectives'

'

HMRO1. Work!with!the!North!Wales!Bionet!Group!to!maintain!or!extend!the!current!

extent!of!heather!moorland!within!the!AONB.'

HMRO2. To!bring!areas!of!heather!moorland!into!positive!productive!management.!

HMRO3. Continue!to!monitor!black!grouse!and!other!upland!bird!species!!

as!an!indicator!of!habitat!condition.!

HMRO4. Associate!food!production!with!ecosystem!management.!!

HMRO5. Support!and!encourage!sustainable!grouse!moors!management!!where!it!has!

positive!environmental!and!economic!impacts.!!

HMRO6. Where!possible!restore!areas!of!former!heathland!habitat!within!the!AONB.!

HMRO7. Provide!support!to!farmers!and!landowners!in!upland!areas!to!bring!moorlands!

into!management!schemes.!

!

!

!

'

Tudalen 46Page 168



P a g e  | 16 

!

Limstone(Grasslands,(Cliffs(and(Screes.(

(

Calcareous!grasslands!and!limestone!outcrops!exist!throughout!the!AONB!most!notably!to!

the!North!around!Prestatyn!Hillside!and!the!central!areas!around!Llanarmon!yn!Ial!and!

Eryrys.!!The!dramatic!Eglwyseg!Escarpment!dominates!the!Eastern!end!of!the!Dee!Valley!in!

the!South!and!provides!some!of!the!most!outstanding!features!of!the!AONB.!!

!

These!areas!are!associated!with!shallow,!free!draining!base!rich!soils!supporting!rich!plant!

communities.!This!habitat!type!contributes!greatly!to!the!biodiversity!of!the!AONB.!!These!

open!area!have!traditionally!been!maintained!by!grazing!livestock!but!changes!in!farm!

practices!have!led!to!some!areas!becoming!underIgrazed!with!a!subsequent!loss!of!species!

diversity!as!scrub!encroaches.!!!

!

Many!limestone!areas!within!the!AONB!are!of!significant!biological!and!geological!interest!

and!as!such!are!afforded!protection!as!Sites!of!Special!Scientific!Interest!and!Special!Areas!of!

Conservation.!!!

!

Traditionally!these!areas!have!been!associated!with!quarrying!and!mineral!extraction!with!a!

few!large!quarries!still!in!operation,!and!a!wealth!of!industrial!archaeology!associated!with!

19th!and!early!20th!century!lead!mining.(

(

(

Objectives(

(

WVTO1. Maintain!the!current!extent!of!calcareous!grassland!and!limestone!pavement!

within!the!AONB.!

WVTO2. Bring!all!areas!of!public!owned!/!managed!limestone!grassland,!cliffs!and!

screes!into!favourable!management!schemes.!

WVTO3. Provide!opportunities!for!privately!owned!areas!of!limestone!grassland!and!

pavement!to!come!into!favourable!management!schemes.!

WVTO4. Ensure!that!recreational!pressure!is!minimised!in!sensitive!areas.!

(

(

(

Woodland(and(Veteran(Trees(

Many!of!these!woodlands!represent!a!link!with!the!landscape!as!it!appeared!following!

the!last!ice!age!and!support!a!diverse!range!of!flora!and!fauna.!Ash!woodlands!are!

particularly!important!in!the!Alyn!Valley!where!it!has!been!designated!SAC.!In!other!

parts!of!the!AONB!oak!woods!are!significant.!The!historic!parklands,!particularly!evident!

In!the!Dee!Valley!contain!some!of!the!oldest!trees!in!the!AONB!and!are!key!components!

of!the!historic!landscape!as!well!as!supporting!significant!biodiversity.!

!

(

(

(

Tudalen 47Page 169



P a g e  | 17 

!

Objectives)

!

WVTO1. To!maintain!the!current!extent!of!broadleaved!woodland!and!veteran!trees!

within!the!AONB.!

WVTO2. Record!the!current!extent!and!condition!of!veteran!trees!in!the!AONB.!

WVTO3. To!maintain!and!restore!broadleaved!woodland!towards!a!favourable!condition!

through!the!implementation!of!Biodiversity!Action!Plans!for!Mixed!Ash!

Woodlands,!Upland!Oak!Woodlands!and!Wet!Woodlands.!

WVTO4. Develop!publically!owned!woodlands!as!models!of!best!practice!in!broadleaf!

woodland!management.!

!

River)Valleys)

!

In!considering!the!River!Valleys!of!the!AONB!it!is!important!to!look!beyond!the!water!bodies!

themselves.!!For!example!the!management!of!the!moorlands!and!ffridd,!maintenance!of!

woodlands!and!field!boundaries!can!not!only!manage!flood!waters!but!can!also!deliver!

better!water!quality!and!help!in!carbon!capture.!!Also!we!should!remember!that!the!water!

ultimately!flows!far!beyond!the!boundary!of!the!AONB!so!the!impact!of!land!management!

within!the!AONB!is!potentially!far!reaching.!

!

The!River!Dee!is!the!most!dominant!of!the!rivers!in!the!AONB!with!the!Dee!catchment!

extending!northwards!to!include!the!River!Alyn!in!the!heart!of!the!Clwydian!Range.!!The!

Dee!is!designated!SAC!and!is!important!of!Atlantic!salmon,!otter!and!a!range!of!wetland!

habitats.!!The!Wheeler!is!the!other!significant!river!forming!and!important!part!of!the!

Clwyd!Catchment.!

!

They!are!dynamic!systems!and!provide!a!wide!range!of!ecological!niches!supporting!a!

diverse!flora!and!fauna.!They!also!form!important!wildlife!corridors,!enabling!dispersion!and!

migration!of!species.!

!

!

)

Objectives)
!

WVTO1. Continue!to!monitor!the!extent!of!key!indicator!species!such!as!otter!and!

water!vole!in!order!to!gauge!habitat!condition.!

WVTO2. Continue!to!develop!a!partnership!of!key!agencies!and!bodies!to!ensure!an!

integrated!and!landscape!approach!to!management.!

WVTO3. Support!and!develop!a!landscape!scale!approach!to!a!programme!of!

invasive!species!control!particularly!in!relation!to!Himalayan!balsam.!

WVTO4. Raise!awareness!amongst!the!general!public!and!landowners/managers!of!

the!importance!of!the!river!valleys!for!biodiversity.!

!

)

Tudalen 48Page 170



P a g e  | 18 

!

THE#HISTORIC#ENVIRONMENT#
#

The!AONB!has!a!wealth!of!archaeological!and!historic!remains!that!date!from!the!early!

prehistoric!period!right!through!to!the!Second!World!War.!Sites!range!from!the!massive!

Iron!Age!Hillforts!to!the!less!conspicuous!crop!marks!and!finds!in!the!lower!areas.!The!

large!number!of!archaeological!sites!in!the!AONB!are!part!of!the!continuous!imprint!of!

human!activity!that!contribute!to!the!landscape!character.!They!represent!human!

activity!from!around!the!last!ice!age!12,000!years!ago!to!the!more!recent!but!important!

industrial!landscapes!associated!with!mineral!and!stone!extraction.!

!

Many!of!these!archaeological!sites!are!Scheduled!Ancient!Monuments!and!are!afforded!

protection!through!Cadw.!Many!other!historic!features,!such!as!boundary!stones,!village!

wells!and!milestones!are!not!protected!and!as!such!are!much!more!vulnerable.!!!

!

!

Special Features 

! Historic!settlement!and!archaeology!

! Industrial!Features!and!the!World!Heritage!Site!

! Historic!defence!features!

! Small!historic!features!

! Traditional!boundaries!

!

!

Policies# Historic#Environment#

! !

PolHE1. To!conserve!and!enhance!features!and!sites!of!archaeological,!

cultural!or!historic!importance!within!the!AONB!whilst!recognising!

that!the!whole!of!the!area!has!an!historic!dimension.!

PolHE2. Increase!our!understanding!of!all!aspect!of!the!Historic!Environment!

of!the!AONB.!

PolHE3. Ensure!that!the!World!Heritage!Site!is!conserved!in!the!context!of!its!

setting!within!the!AONB.

! !

! !

!

Historic#Settlement#and#Archaeology.#

#

Objectives#

!

HSAO1. Work!towards!a!position!where!the!condition/state!of!all!archaeological!sites!

within!the!AONB!is!known!and!appropriate!management!work!is!carried!out.!!

Utilise!HER!information,!Pan!Wales!projects,!Glastir!agriPenvironment!schemes!

and!the!planning!process!to!facilitate!this.!

HSAO2. Encourage!owners!of!Historic!parks!and!Gardens!within!the!AONB!to!

maintain!and!restore!existing!parkland!features!as!noted!in!the!Register.!

HSAO3. Increase!the!profile!of!the!Historic!Environment!through!effective!and!!

Tudalen 49Page 171



P a g e  | 19 

!

consistent!interpretation!and!information.!

HSAO4. Incorporate!information!gathered!as!part!of!the!Historic!Environment!Record!

into!the!continuous!management!process!within!the!AONB.!

!

&

Industrial&Features&and&World&Heritage&Site.&

&

The!tranquillity!and!beauty!of!the!AONB!today!in!many!places!masks!the!bustling!and!

thriving!industry!that!once!dominated!many!parts!of!the!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!

during!the!Industrial!Revolution.!!!The!drive!to!win!natural!resources!from!the!landscape;!

lead,!limestone,!slate!and!sand,!saw!entrepreneurs!and!prospectors!push!high!onto!remote!

hillsides!and!deep!into!wooded!valleys!in!search!of!fortune.!!The!same!period!saw!great!

innovation!in!overGcoming!the!natural!barriers!of!the!landscape!and!features!such!as!the!

Pontcysyllte!Aqueduct,!the!Alyn!Valley’s!Leete!and!tramways!to!Moel!Fferna!and!Llantysilio!

and!extensive!lead!works!at!Minera!remain!as!dramatic!reminders!of!past!ingenuity!and!

determination.!!

!

Throughout!the!AONB!remains!of!winding!sheds,!engine!houses,!tramways!and!limekilns!are!

an!important!part!of!the!special!character!of!the!landscape!and!offer!reminders!of!past!

communities.!!

&

Objectives&

&

DFSO1. To!secure!the!integrity!of!the!outstanding!universal!values!of!the!World!

Heritage!Site.!

DFSO2. Maintenance!of!key!views!to!and!from!the!WHS!and!the!visual!and!cultural!

setting.!

DFSO3. Take!steps!to!limit!the!impact!visitor!pressures!on!the!historic!integrity!and!

setting!of!the!World!Heritage!site!

DFSO4. Ensure!a!consistent!approach!to!interpretation,!signage!and!quality!of!the!

experience!across!partnership!authorities.!

DFSO5. Raise!awareness!of!the!importance!of!industrial!sites!and!features!within!the!

planning!and!AONB.!

DFSO6. Develop!an!“at!risk!“!register!for!key!industrial!historic!sites!and!work!

towards!programmes!that!will!respond!where!action!is!required.!

!

!

&

Hillforts&and&Defensive&Structures&

&

The!medieval!strong!holds!of!Castell!Dinas!Brân!and!Chirk!Castle!associate!the!Southern!part!

of!the!AONB!with!the!defence!of!the!Dee!Valley!by!first!the!Welsh!and!subsequently!the!

English!under!Edward!I.!!!The!impressive!chain!of!Iron!Age!Hillforts!of!the!Clwydian!Range!

and!Dee!Valley!point!to!a!much!earlier!occupation!and!defensive!settlement.!Later!again!the!

Tudalen 50Page 172



P a g e  | 20 

!

association!of!Owain!Glyndwr!with!Corwen!and!Ederynion!give!a!strong!cultural!and!

historical!root!in!defence!of!national!identity.!

!

Objectives)

)

DFSO1. Ensure!continuation!of!the!Heather!and!Hillforts!Project!to!maintain!existing!

level!of!work!at!the!4!hillforts!of!Penycloddiau,!Moel!Arthur,!Moel!y!Gaer!

Llanbedr!and!Moel!Fenlli!and!aim!to!continue!programme!to!include!Moel!y!

Gaer!Bodfari!and!Moel!Hiraddug.!

DFSO2. Ensure!the!structural!integrity!features!and!ensure!that!impacts!of!visitor!

pressure!is!minimised.!

!

)

Small)Historic)Features)

The!landscape!and!particularly!the!villages!of!the!Clwydian!Range!Area!of!Outstanding!

Natural!Beauty!contain!many!small!features!which!cumulatively!help!enhance!the!area!and!

give!it!its!character.!Some!still!have!a!useful!function,!like!post!boxes!and!village!greens!and!

parish!commons.!Others!like!old!fingerpost!road!signs,!no!longer!maintained!by!the!Highway!

Authority,!milestones!or!K6!red!telephone!boxes!no!longer!have!a!use!and!can!easily!

disappear!from!our!landscape.!!

!

These!everyday!features!are!often!taken!for!granted!but!our!settlement!landscapes!would!

be!the!poorer!without!them.!

!

Objectives)

)

DFSO3. Raise!awareness!of!the!importance!of!small!historic!features!within!both!the!

planning!and!highways!environments!by!providing!training!sessions!to!

professionals.!

DFSO4. Encourage!Communities!to!identify!and!map!features!within!their!

communities!on!a!standard!database!which!is!compatible!with!the!HER.!

DFSO5. Encourage!Communities!to!adopt!these!features!and!act!as!their!champions!

by!raising!awareness!within!community!councils!and!youth!groups.!

!

)

Boundaries)

)

Boundary!features!in!the!Clwydian!Range!largely!reflect!local!circumstances!and!

geology.!!In!the!limestone!areas!the!boundaries!are!predominantly!stone!built,!in!the!

more!recently!enclosed!upland!areas!boundaries!are!predominantly!fence!lines!and!in!

the!agricultural!areas!of!the!lower!slopes!in!both!the!east!and!west,!hedges!

predominate.!

!

)

)

Tudalen 51Page 173



P a g e  | 21

!

Objectives))

)

BO1. Using!SDF!and!other!funds!develop!a!Countryside!Grant!schemes!to!support!

projects!which!will!maintain!and!enhance!the!most!important!boundaries!in!

the!AONB!as!well!as!other!Special!Features!

BO2. In!line!with!aspirations!within!The#Welsh#Historic#Environment#Strategic#

Statement#(2009)!raise!the!skills!base!amongst!the!local!workforce!to!

increase!the!number!of!people!who!can!carry!out!the!necessary!conservation!

and!repair!work.!

BO3. Identify!the!most!important!boundaries!within!the!AONB.!

!

!

ACCESS RECREATION AND TOURISM 
The!Clwydian!Range!and!Dee!Valley!is!an!historic!gateway!to!Wales,!crossed!by!a!

number!of!access!corridors.!These!corridors,!including!main!road!routes!(such!as!the!

A5,!A55!and!A494),!upland!passes!(including!the!Horseshoe!Pass)!and!the!rail!routes,!

have!varied!historical!significance!as!well!as!being!highly!important!for!tourism.!

In!2007!a!Sustainable!Tourism!Strategy!and!Action!Plan!for!the!Clwydian!Range!AONB!

was!prepared,!to!run!up!to!2013!and!beyond.!!It!formed!the!basis!for!the!award!to!the!

AONB!of!the!European!Charter!for!Sustainable!Tourism!in!Protected!Areas!and!has!been!

actively!used!by!the!AONB!team!and!its!partners!to!guide!their!tourism!related!work!in!

the!area.!!This!strategy!was!reviewed!in!2014!encompassing!the!new!parts!of!the!AONB!in!

the!South.!!The!strategy!gives!recognition!to!the!value!of!tourism!to!the!economy,!

environment!and!communities!of!the!AONB!and!its!wider!area!of!influence.!

Sustainable!Tourism!is!defined!as!tourism!that!takes!full!account!of!its!current!and!

future!economic,!social!and!environmental!impacts,!addressing!the!needs!of!visitors,!the!

industry,!the!environment!and!host!communities.!

)

Health)and)well6being.)

The!trend!across!the!UK!and!other!developed!nations!is!for!physical!activity!levels!to!

decline.!This!is!associated!with!widespread!use!of!the!private!car,!an!increase!in!

sedentary!leisure!activities!and!greater!mechanisation!in!the!home,!workplace!and!

public!places.!Illness!as!an!outcome!of!physical!inactivity!has!been!conservatively!

calculated!to!be!£1.08!Billion!per!annum!in!direct!costs!to!the!NHS!alone.!Indirect!costs!

have!been!estimated!as!£8.2!Billion!per!annum.!Studies!have!shown!that!in!a!UK!

context!for!every!£!spent!on!developing!and!promoting!access!to!the!countryside!

presents!a!£19!saving!to!the!health!Service.!Investment!in!infrastructure!and!action!to!

facilitate!increased!activity!levels!amongst!local!communities!through!access!to!the!

countryside!is!critical!therefore!in!promoting!significantly!improved!levels!of!health!an!d!

wellbeing.!

!

Special)Features)

)

! Iconic!Visitor!and!Cultural!Attractions!

! The!Offa’s!Dyke!National!Trail!and!Promoted!Route!

Tudalen 52Page 174



P a g e  | 22 

!

!

!

!

!

Policies' Access,'Recreation'and'Tourism'

! !

PolART1. To!promote!the!sustainable!use!and!enjoyment!and!

understanding!of!the!landscape!of!the!AONB!in!a!way!that!

contributes!to!local!prosperity!and!social!inclusiveness.!!!

!

PolART2. Ensure!the!attractiveness!of!the!AONB’s!landscape!and!views!as!

a!primary!basis!for!the!areas!tourism!are!retained.!!!

!

PolART3. Ensure!that!all!visitors!and!residents!are!able!to!experience!and!

enjoy!the!benefits!of!the!special!qualities!of!the!AONB!within!

environmental!limits.!!

!

PolART4. Ensure!that!the!honey!pots!and!other!key!access!points!are!

managed!to!a!high!standard!and!that!they!act!as!models!of!good!

practice!in!access!and!conservation!delivery.!!

!

PolART5. Ensure!the!Country!Parks!and!the!Offa’s!Dyke!National!Trail!

provide!effective!gateways!to!the!AONB!in!promoting!

understanding!and!awareness!of!its!key!qualities!and!features.!!

!

!

Iconic'Visitor'and'Cultural'Attractions.'

'

Key!sites!such!as!Loggerheads,!Moel!Famau,!Castell!Dinas!Bran,!Valle!Crucis,!the!River!

Dee!and!Pontcysyllte!aqueduct!have!been!reproduced!by!early!landscape!painters!such!

as!Richard!Wilson,!Turner!and!Edward!Pugh,!and!as!such!have!particular!significance!in!

the!very!early!presentation!of!picturesque!landscapes.!!They!have,!in!part,!contributed!

to!a!very!strong!tradition!of!tourism!to!these!areas!within!the!AONB.!

!

These!are!the!sites!that!help!to!give!an!area!a!sense!of!place!because!of!the!cultural!

attachment!associated!with!them.!!The!influence!of!Loggerheads!and!Moel!Famau!on!the!

central!Clwydian!Range!has!been!significant!and!spanned!generations.!!It!has!!in!part!shaped!

communities!and!been!a!corner!stone!of!the!tourism!in!this!area.!!

!

Similarly!Castell!Dinas!Brân,!Valle!Crucis!Abbey,!Pontcysyllte!and!the!and!the!Horseshoe!Pass!

combine!to!give!the!Southern!part!of!the!AONB!a!sense!of!the!sublime!and!has!!provoked!

generations!of!visitors!in!search!of!the!picturesque!to!flock!to!the!Dee!Valley.!

!

Tudalen 53Page 175



P a g e  | 23 

!

Objectives
!

IVCO1. To!ensure!that!visitors!and!the!tourism!industry!understand!the!need!for,!and!

support!the!conservation!and!enhancement!of,!the!special!qualities!of!the!

AONB!as!key!assets!upon!which!tourism!is!based.!

IVCO2. Promote!and!assist!convenient!and!sustainable!access!into!the!AONB!and!

special!places!within!it.!

IVCO3. Continue!to!develop!public!transport!links!and!develop!a!strategy!to!reduce!

congestion!between!honeyApots!and!with!other!centres!of!population.!

IVCO4. Investigate!ways!to!reduce!congestion!around!key!visitor!areas.!

IVCO5. Target!information!relating!to!the!Countryside!Code,!behaviour!and!the!

Country!Park!and!provide!information!relating!to!the!impact!of!visitors!on!

conservation!and!remedy!works!including!tree!felling.!

IVCO6. Ensure!that!both!Loggerheads!Moel!Famau!Country!Parks!continue!to!act!as!

exemplars!in!delivering!projects!in!key!areas!and!manage!both!sites!towards!

favourable!condition!through!sensitive!ecological!management.!!

IVCO7. Provide!assistance!to!tourism!businesses!in!the!area!should!be!helped!to!

embrace!the!opportunities!and!responsibilities!of!being!in!a!protected!area,!

understanding!more!about!the!AONB,!improving!their!management!of!

resources!and!informing!their!guests!about!the!area.!

!

The Offa’s Dyke Trail and Promoted Routes 
!

The!Offa’s!Dyke!Path!National!Trail!is!a!key!feature!of!the!AONB,!running!its!entire!

length!from!Prestatyn!Hillside!in!the!North!to!the!Dee!Valley!in!the!South.!!!It!links!many!of!

the!AONB’s!most!outstanding!features!crossing!the!peaks!and!hillforts!of!the!Clwydian!

Range,!the!dramatic!moorland!plateau!of!the!Ruabon!Mountain!before!crossing!the!

Eglwyseg!Escapement!and!the!Pontcysyllte!Aqueduct.!!!!

!

The!AONB!is!also!well!served!by!an!extensive!network!of!rights!of!way,!which!have!been!

actively!maintained,!identified!and!promoted!for!various!kinds!of!access,!with!some!

promoted!as!named!trails.!The!River!Dee!provides!a!major!facility!for!recreation.!

!

Objectives!

!

ODPO1. Continue!a!programme!of!Rights!of!Way!improvement!across!the!AONB!

through!the!use!of!the!Community!miles!Initiative!and!other!area!access!

improvement!works!focusing!on!increasing!opportunities!to!access!the!

countryside.!!

ODPO2. Provide!increased!opportunities!where!appropriate!for!cycling!and!horse!

riding!in!the!AONB!and!promote!these!opportunities.!

ODPO3. Ensure!each!Local!Access!Forum!has!a!good!understanding!of!the!needs!of!the!

AONB!through!regular!liaison!

ODPO4. Raise!awareness!of!the!acknowledged!health!and!wellAbeing!benefits!

provided!by!the!AONB!and!develop!initiatives!promoting!physical!activity!

particularly!walking!and!cycling.!

Tudalen 54Page 176



P a g e  | 24

!

ODPO5. Understand!and!work!towards!removing!physical!and!psychological!barriers!

to!access.!

ODPO6. Investigate!ways!to!promote!the!trail!with!local!tourism!businesses!and!to!

develop!initiatives!that!will!strengthen!business!links.!

ODPO7. Strengthen!links!between!the!Trail!and!nearby!settlements!and!places!of!

interest!utilising!the!wider!Rights!of!Way!Network!and!Public!Transport.!

ODPO8. Monitor!erosion!in!key!areas!and!develop!a!programme!of!measures!that!will!

reduce!the!impact!of!the!trail!on!the!landscape!by!limiting!width!or!depth!of!

path!as!appropriate.!

!

!

THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT 

Policies. Historic.Environment.

! !

PolHE1. Ensure!that!new!development!adopts!the!highest!standards!of!

design!and!is!sympathetic!to!the!character!and!appearance!of!the!

AONB.!!!

PolHE2. Retain!and!improve!essential!services!and!facilities!for!local!people.!!

PolHE3. Ensure!that!local!businesses!and!communities!feel!a!sense!of!

ownership!and!responsibility!for!their!surroundings.!!

! !

! !

Objectives
!

BEO1. Ensure!new!development!in!and!around!the!AONB!is!sympathetically!located!

in!the!landscape,!and!is!well!designed!to!complement!the!character!and!

appearance!of!the!area!and!its!setting,!particularly!in!respect!of!visual!

impact,!scale,!materials!and!landscaping.!

BEO2. Conserve!and!enhance!the!character!and!local!distinctiveness!of!historic!

villages,!buildings!and!gardens!within!the!AONB.!

BEO3. Promote!action!to!reduce!the!visual!impact!of!prominent!existing!

development!in!the!AONB.!

Culture and People 

Communities!need!to!be!at!the!heart!of!any!vision.!Rural!communities!need!economic!

and!social!sustainability.!There!are!two!key!areas!that!need!support.!The!first!is!local!

facilities!such!as!shops,!pubs,!schools!and!youth!clubs,!which!provide!vital!services!for!

the!community!and!local!employment,!and!includes!more!recent!necessities!of!life!

such!as!mobile!phone!and!internet!access.!

!

Tudalen 55Page 177



P a g e  | 25

!

The!second!is!countering!rural!exclusion!by!which!opportunities!are!limited!by!issues!

such!as!unemployment,!poor!skills,!low!incomes,!poor!housing!and!poor!public!

transport.!A!lack!of!affordable!housing!for!local!people!is!another!important!factor.!

Communities!may!also!have!specific!needs!for!particular!groups,!including!older!and!

younger!people!and!the!less!able.!It!is!also!important!that!the!local!communities!feel!

that!they!are!part!of!the!AONB!and!they!have!a!part!to!play!in!formulating!policy!and!

the!decision!making!process.!Communities!should!directly!benefit!from!being!in!the!

AONB!through!projects!that!are!targeted!at!communities!and!their!environs!through!the!

Sustainable!Development!Fund.!

!

!

Objectives!

!!

CPO1. Help!local!communities!to!retain!and!enhance!access!to!essential!

community!services!and!facilities.!

CPO2. Support!the!development!of!affordable!housing!for!local!people!in!

appropriate!locations,!whilst!maintaining!the!highest!standards!of!design!

and!landscaping.!

CPO3. Foster!a!sense!of!place!and!local!pride!to!secure!social!wellFbeing.!

CPO4. Ensure!that!the!governance!of!the!AONB!promotes!effective!partnerships!and!

fosters!opportunities!for!communities!to!engage!in!the!management!of!the!

AONB.!!

Tudalen 56Page 178



Clwydian Range and Dee Valley

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

State of the AONB Report

2014 – 2019

T
u
d
a
le

n
 5

7
P

age 179



In setting an agenda that will ensure the special qualities and features of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley are preserved, it is first necessary

to make an assessment of their current extent and condition. It is also important that the issues impacting upon them are identified and that

factors likely to impact upon them in the future are anticipated. 

The State of the AONB Report identifies where possible the extent and condition of each feature and the factors impacting on them. It also

seeks to identify an ideal state for these features and begins to establish indicators that will help to define what we are aiming for in pursuing

the good health of the AONB. It is an on going process that relies on constant data gathering and monitoring and should be able to respond to

changing demands on the environment. There is a requirement for up to date information that will lead to informed responses to

environmental change.T
u
d
a
le

n
 5

8
P

age 180



P a g e  | 2 

Tranquillity, Remoteness and Wilderness 
 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Intrusion 

 

A variety of factors can have an 

impact on the Tranquillity, 

Remoteness and Wilderness of 

the AONB. Traffic noise, light 

pollution, the impact of 

quarrying and utility 

installations can all have an 

effect on the tranquillity of the 

AONB and peoples enjoyment 

of the landscape. 

 

Light from the major 

settlements, particularly to the 

east and north of the AONB, 

have a significant impact on 

dark night skies. 

Light and noise pollution from 

transport, development and 

recreation erodes tranquillity – 

A55, A494, A5, A542 

Intrusive and degrading 

elements such as power lines / 

phone lines, transmitters, masts 

and wind turbines can have a 

significant impact. 

Cumulative effects of small scale 

change can lead to a 

degradation of landscape 

character. 

Permitted development 

completed within the AONB 

could also impact the landscape. 

Accommodating visitor access 

and destination sites within 

sensitive locations. 

 

 

Further intrusion mapping required 

 

Extent: 

Illuminated bollards and signs within 

Denbighshire – 80 within AONB 

Wrexham - unknown 

Flintshire - unknown 

Street lights 

1,350 directly adjacent to or within 

AONB in Denbighshire. 

 
 

 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Roads 

 

The principle roads and 

communication routes in the 

AONB primarily cross the 

 

Possible environmental impact 

of major road improvement 

schemes in the AONB.  

Potential loss of rural character 

 

Length and class of roads in the 

AONB: 

Dualled EuroRoute –                    1.6km 

Trunk Road -                                35.0km 

A Road -                                        49.2km 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 5

9
P

age 181



P a g e  | 3 

Clwydian Range in an east – 

west direction, and run in an 

east – west direction along the 

Dee Valley and Morwynion 

Valley. The most significant 

road is the dualled A55 

EuroRoute which passes 

through the narrowest part of 

the AONB at Rhuallt. Other 

important routes are the A5 and 

A494 Trunk Roads and the A542 

Horseshoe Pass, A5104, A5151, 

A541, A539 and A525. However, 

the bulk of the network within 

the AONB is made up of smaller 

roads and lanes, many of which 

add to the character of the area. 

 

and features as a result of 

highway maintenance, signage 

and minor improvement works. 

Increasing traffic related to 

people working at a 

considerable distance from 

where they live, increasing 

commuter traffic, and use of cars 

for recreational visits. 

Raising awareness of the AONB 

through threshold / village 

signs. 

B Road -                                         23.6km 

Minor roads -                             338.8km 

Unclassified County Roads -    60.9km 

Total length of road                  509.1km 

 

No. of AONB threshold signs – 16 

No. of AONB branded village signs – 

21 

 

 

 

 
 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 
Minerals 

 

The limestone and slate 

geology of the Clwydian Range 

and Dee Valley has been 

exploited for its mineral wealth 

for centuries. This has left its 

mark on the landscape; many 

abandoned or worked out 

mineral sites have been 

assimilated into the landscape 

over time but others still scar 

the area. There are two active 

slate quarries in the AONB, 

other sites are dormant but 

 

Restoration and aftercare of 

quarries, including these which 

are outside the AONB but visible 

from it or impact on views into 

the area. 

Dormant sites – need to pursue 

Prohibition Notices under s102 

of T&CP Act 1990. 

 

 

 

Within AONB 

No. of active quarries – 2 

Area of active quarries – 41.5 ha 

% of total AONB area – 0.11% 

No. of dormant quarries - unknown 

Area of dormant quarries - unknown 

% of total AONB area - unknown 

No. of confirmed Prohibition Orders 

- unknown 
 

Within 3km of AONB 

No. of active quarries - 8 

Area of active quarries – 203.38 ha 

No. of dormant quarries - unknown 

Area of dormant quarries - unknown 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

0
P

age 182



P a g e  | 4 

have old planning permissions. 

Given the scale of mineral 

operations and their potential 

impact on a wide area, 

including important views out of 

the AONB, there is a need to 

have regard to both active and 

dormant quarries outside the 

designated area. 

 

No of confirmed Prohibition Orders – 

unknown                                                  

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Utilities and Energy 

 

Overhead power transmission 

lines and communications masts 

are the most prominent utility 

infrastructure within the AONB. 

The largest power lines cross 

the AONB at its narrowest point 

near Rhuallt and travel through 

the AONB down the Morwynion 

Valley. Given the topography of 

the AONB it is an attractive 

location for communications 

infrastructure. The most 

prominent installations are the 

masts at Moel y Parc and Cyrn y 

Brain, but there are also 

prominent masts at 

Gwaenysgor, Moel Gelli, Craig-

y-dduallt, Coed Mawr and 

Barber’s Hill. 

 

A relatively new feature of 

 

Overhead cables and wires can 

degrade the local landscape 

character. 

Reluctance to share masts leads 

to duplication and an increase 

impact on the local landscape. 

Mobile phone coverage 

‘blackspots’ lead to pressure for 

additional communication masts. 

Cumulative impact of large scale 

wind farm development in the 

setting of the AONB degrades 

landscape character and sense 

of tranquillity. 

The need to moving towards 

zero carbon development 

without harming the AONB. 

 

 

 
Extent: 

Length of National Grid high-voltage 

overhead cable (400kv) – 17.46km 

Length of 132kv overhead power 

lines – 1.38km 

Length of 33kv overhead power lines 

– 44.76km (87.85 

Length of 33kv undergrounded 

power lines – 6.19km (12.15%) 

 

Communication masts: 

Moel y Parc (TV) 

Moel y Gelli (Emergency Services) 

Gwaenysgor 

Bryn Alyn 

Cyrn y Brain 

Moel Gelli 

Craig-y-dduallt 

Coed Mawr 

Barber’s Hill 

 

Wind turbines: 

1 46m high wind turbine consented 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

1
P

age 183



P a g e  | 5 

regional energy infrastructure 

is the development of major on-

shore and off-shore wind farms. 

 

within the AONB 

50m+ high wind turbines within 15km 

– 122 

 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Land Management Practices 

 

Land Management Practices are 

continually changing, adapting 

to government policy, climate 

change and agricultural 

improvements. These changes 

in management have the ability 

to impact on the landscape of 

the AONB. 

 

Impact of European and Welsh 

Government agricultural and 

forestry policies can have a 

significant impact on landscape 

character and views 

It is important that habitat 

improvements and creation 

becomes a part of viable land 

management systems and 

businesses. 

Modern agricultural practices 

and equipment leads to larger 

fields with fewer internal 

boundaries and wider gateways, 

which can degrade the local 

landscape character. 

Geometrical forestry planting 

and harvesting, and heather 

cutting patterns can add 

intrusive lines into the 

landscape. 

Lack of buffer strips along 

watercourses. 

 

 

6,441.35 ha of the AONB is Common 

Land (16.55% of total AONB area) 

7,786.98ha (20% of total AONB area) 

of land in the AONB in Glastir Agri-

environment scheme in 2013. 

o 5,232.24ha (67%) Entry Level 

o 793.75ha (10%) Glastir 

Advanced 

o 1,760.99ha (23%) Glastir 

Commons 
 

Protection: 

8,028.37 ha of AONB designated as 

SAC (20.62% of AONB land area) 

9,097.34 ha of AONB designated as 

SSSI (23.36% of AONB land area) 

2,555.05 ha of AONB designated as 

SPA (6.56% of AONB land area) 

21.33 ha of AONB designated as LNR 

(0.05% of AONB land area) 

3,451.92 ha of AONB designated as 

Wildlife Sites (8.87% of AONB land 

area) 

Tranquillity, 

Remoteness 

and 

Wilderness 

 

Climate Change 

 

The AONB has evolved over 

time, shaped by geological 

 

Adaption and mitigation 

measures may impact upon the 

AONB and its setting. 

Reduction in air and water 

 

9,428 ha (24.2% of AONB area) is 

heather moorland. 

Total area of AONB covered by 

woodland 5,165.24 ha (13.27% of 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

2
P

age 184



P a g e  | 6 

forces, climate and human 

activity, and this evolution is on-

going. Climate change is 

expected to have a major 

influence in the coming 

decades, and we need to 

manage this process, taking 

action to adapt to the impacts 

and make the best of the 

opportunities. 

 

Although the global climate has 

been relatively stable for 

thousands of years, recent 

extreme weather events and 

longer terms trends suggest it is 

now changing due to human 

activity. Climate change is 

expected to continue, causing 

hotter, drier summers, warmer 

wetter winters, more extreme 

weather and sea level rise in 

Wales and the rest of Britain. 

 

Global climate change is 

projected to continue, causing 

hotter drier summers, warmer, 

wetter winters, more extreme 

weather, droughts, heat waves, 

heavier rainfall, and 

accelerating sea-level rise in 

Wales and the rest of Britain 

over coming decades. 

 

quality impacting on the health 

of the population and ecosystem. 

Seasonal reduction / increase in 

water flow. 

Pressure for inappropriate flood 

defences with dredging and 

development degrading the 

local landscape character. 

Long dry spells of weather could 

lead to increased fire risk, 

particularly on heathlands. 

 

AONB area). 

 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

3
P

age 185



P a g e  | 7 

Resource / 

Special 

Feature 

Description Issues State 

Cultural 

Heritage and 

Bro 

 

Bro/Welsh Language 

 

‘Bro’ is a Welsh word which 

describes a sense of 

belonging and community 

cohesion within an area. It is 

an intangible concept which is 

difficult to define, but is 

nonetheless a valid 

component of sustainable 

Welsh communities. The 

Welsh language is part of the 

traditional character and 

cultural make-up of the AONB. 

The use of Welsh is greater 

than the Wales average 

(21.3%) and remains a 

significant feature of the area. 

The greatest proportion of 

Welsh language users live in 

the western and south western 

parts of the AONB. 

 
Picturesque and romantic 

movement 

 

The story of the picturesque 

movement in the AONB goes 

back to the late 18th century, 

particularly in the Dee Valley 

 

Community involvement and 

participation in local events and 

traditions. 

Inward migration is changing 

the makeup of communities 

Need to raise community 

awareness of the AONB and the 

benefits it brings, especially in 

the south. 

Need to raise local business 

awareness of the AONB and the 

benefits it brings. 

Sustaining the Welsh language 

Lack / loss of facilities to 

celebrate cultural associations. 

Visitor pressure degrading 

landscape character at key 

locations. 

Loss of significant views 

depicted in art or prose due to 

vegetation encroachment, or 

insensitive development. 

 

 

Percentage of population speaking, 

reading and writing Welsh in the 

AONB (2011): 

North – 26.7% 

West – 37.2% 

East – 24.2% 

South – 29.1% 

No. of active community groups – 

Unknown 

No. of community shows – 6 

No. of community publications – 

Unknown 

Cylch Meithryn / Ty a fi clubs – 7 

Welsh medium primary schools in 

the AONB – 2 

 
 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

4
P

age 186



P a g e  | 8 

around Llangollen, painted by 

Turner and Wilson amongst 

others. Richard Wilson also 

has close links to the 

Loggerheads area. 

 

The ladies of Llangollen 

established the Dee Valley as 

a centre for picturesque 

appreciation from their home 

at Plas Newydd. 

 

Poets and authors such as 

Wordsworth, Gerald Manley 

Hopkins and Mendelssohn 

have also taken inspiration 

from the AONBs landscape. 

 
Eisteddfodau 

 

Building on these artistic 

traditions, Llangollen is known 

throughout the world for the 

International Eisteddfod, held 

annually in the town since 

1947. Corwen was the location 

of the first public national 

eisteddfod in 1919. 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

5
P

age 187



Page | 9 

Natural Environment 
 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Natural 

Environment 

 

Natural Benefits and Services 

 

The landscape of the AONB is 

important for the resources it offers 

which benefit everyone, such as 

water, food and locations for quiet 

enjoyment. 

 

These benefits, known collectively 

as Ecosystem Services indicate that 

the landscape of the AONB not only 

provides a rich variety of habitats 

and species, but also contributes 

positively towards the production of 

food, the control of climate and 

recreational provision. 

 

There is a need for natural 

systems and networks that 

are fit for purpose, with 

more and better places for 

nature for the benefit of 

wildlife and people. 

There is a need to identify all 

the benefits and services 

delivered by the natural 

system. 

Lack of data and knowledge 

makes it difficult to manage 

within environmental limits. 

There is no baseline for 

assigning a value to the 

services and benefits 

received from the natural 

system. 

 

 

 

 

Natural 

Environment 

 

 

Habitat Resilience 

 

Habitat resilience is a habitats 

ability to respond to natural or man-

made disturbance through fast 

recovery or by resisting damage.  

 

Resilience and condition of 

the natural system is not fully 

understood. 

Attention given to priority 

habitats at the expense of 

other locally important sites, 

 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

6
P

age 188



Page | 10 

 

 

such as road verges and 

other corridors. 

There is a need for the 

expansion of and 

connectivity between 

wildlife rich habitats. 

Natural 

Environment 

 

Designations / SAC 

 

Special Areas of Conservation 

(SAC) and Special Protection Areas 

(SPA) are legal protections for sites 

of European importance for habitats 

and birds, to protect against 

damaging activities. These 

designations form part of a larger 

European network called Natura 

2000. 

 

Sites of national importance are 

designated and given protection as 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest 

(SSSI) 

 

Land designated as a County 

Wildlife sites are often the finest 

local examples of habitats, and are 

given material consideration in the 

planning process. 

 

These and other designations 

provide a level of protection for 

important sites against potentially 

damaging activity. 

 

Need to bring sites into 

favourable conservation 

status. 

Visitor pressure in key 

conservation areas. 

Designations do not address 

all conservation interests. 

 
Extent: 

There are 22 SSSI’s in the AONB, 

covering 9,097.34 ha (23.36% of total 

AONB area). 

There are 3 SAC’s covering 8,028.37 

ha (20.62% of AONB) 

There is 1 SPA covering 2,555 ha 

(6.56% of AONB) 

There are 162 Wildlife Sites covering 

3,451.92 ha (8.87% AONB) 

There is 1 LNR covering 21.33 ha 

(0.05% AONB) 

There are 73 RIGS sites covering 

676.45 ha (1.74% AONB) 

 
Condition: 

NRW continue to monitor the condition of 

SSSIs, SACs and SPAs. All geological SSSIs 

are in favourable condition.  

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

7
P

age 189



P a g e  | 11 

Natural Environment 
 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Limestone 

Grassland, 

cliffs and 

screes 

 

 

Calcareous grasslands typically 

occur on shallow base-rich soils 

derived from the underlying 

limestone rocks. They are 

characterised by a short species-

rich turf containing a variety of 

grasses and herbs. In the AONB 

calcareous grassland primarily 

occurs in the north from Prestatyn to 

Cwm, centrally along the Alyn 

Valley, including the second largest 

limestone pavement in Wales at 

Bryn Alyn, and in the south around 

the Eglwyseg rocks where large 

areas of scree are also located. 

 

Limestone pavement is an area of 

limestone which lies wholly or 

partly exposed on the surface of the 

ground and has been fissured by 

natural erosion. They can be 

wooded or open and both types 

exist within the AONB. 

 

There are a number of geologically 

and archaeologically important 

 

Under-grazing encouraging 

scrub encroachment. 

Over-grazing resulting in 

loss of species diversity 

Enrichment of soils from 

fertilisers, herbicide 

application, ploughing and 

re-seeding from agricultural 

purposes. 

Acidification and nitrogen 

enrichment caused by 

atmospheric deposition. 

Recreational pressure 

bringing about floristic 

changes associated with soil 

compaction. 

Recreational pressure on 

Limestone geological SSSI 

features such as Eglwyseg 

scree slopes and Panorama 

Drive limestone grassland. 

Invasion by no-native plant 

species. 

Limited knowledge of 

underground systems. 

 
Limestone Grassland Ideal state: 

Favourable condition will be comprised of 

short species-rich mixtures of herbs, 

grasses, sedges and mosses on lime-rich 

soil. Balanced management ensures a scrub 

grassland mosaic that supports a wide range 

of wildlife without the scrub spreading to 

replace the grassland. 

 
Extent: 

Unimproved Calcareous Grassland: 

292.24 ha (0.75% of AONB area) 

Semi-improved Calcareous 

Grassland: 39.74 ha (0.1% of AONB 

area) 

 
Limestone Pavement Ideal state: 

Limestone pavements require structural 

diversity to maximise transitions, shelter 

invertebrates and keep a variety of 

structural niches open. There should be a 

mixture of flora characteristic of rocky and 

woodland habitats. Wooded pavements 

should have clearings created naturally by 

clint and gryke structure or through 

woodland management. 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

8
P

age 190



P a g e  | 12 

caves associated with the Limestone 

areas of the AONB. Caves studied 

have been found to be important 

archaeologically for human and 

animal activity. Cave systems at 

Tremerchion, Llanarmon-yn-Ial and 

Loggerheads are among the more 

well known. In 2015, there is 

currently a Cadw funded project 

running to discover more about 

Limestone caves in north east 

Wales. 

 

Scree slopes on the Eglwyseg rocks 

are an important geological feature, 

across which the Offa’s Dyke 

National Trail passes. 

 

Removal of Limestone rocks 

for rockeries. 

Quarrying. 

 

 
Extent: 

Limestone Pavement: 1.88ha (13.82% 

of Limestone Pavement in Wales – 

Wales total 13.6 ha) 

Scree: 22.89 ha 

 
Indicators:  

There are 12 SSSIs in the AONB 

containing Geological features. 

There are 73 RIGS sites in the AONB 

covering 676.45 ha (1.74% of the 

AONB). 

315.52 ha (88.23%) within SAC, SSSI 

or Wildlife Site.  

230.3 ha (64.4%) international and 

national designation with 

commitments to maintain / restore 

favourable condition (SAC and SSSI). 

 
Limestone Cave systems indicators: 

No. Caves in the AONB - unknown 

4 cave systems protected as SSSI; 

Alyn Gorge Caves (Alyn Valley 

Woods & Alyn Gorge Caves SSSI), 

Coe Gwyn & Ffynnon Beuno Caves, 

Tremeirchion Caves (both Ffynnon 

Beuno & Cae Gwyn Caves SSSI) and 

Minera Caves (Ruabon / Llantysilio 

Mountains & Minera SSSI). 

 
Limestone Habitats Favourable 

Management: 

1.05 ha (0.29% resource) are within 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 6

9
P

age 191



P a g e  | 13 

DCC Countryside Service owned / 

managed sites. 

5.47 ha (1.53% resource) are within 

NWWT managed sites. 

 
Condition: 

NRW continue to monitor the 

condition of SSSIs and SACs.  

All geological SSSIs are in a 

favourable condition. 

 

From 2015 to 2018 there is to be significant 

investment into Limestone features in the 

AONB through the Limestone Legacy project 

which has received NRW competitive bid 

funding. 

 

Heather 

moorlands 

and rolling 

ridges 

 

 

Dominated by heather, bilberry 

and western gorse with ideally a 

diverse range of age communities. 

It has a distinct range of bird life 

associated with it, including grouse, 

stonechat and whinchat.  

 

The uplands of the North Berwyn, 

Llantysilio, Ruabon and Llandegla 

mountains in the south of the AONB 

are predominantly heathland. 

Heather moorland is also found in 

large blocks along the ridge of the 

Clwydian Range between 

Llandegla and Bodfari. 

 

 

Conversion to grassland 

through ploughing, 

reseeding, liming and 

fertilisation for agricultural 

purposes. 

The division of common 

through internal fences and 

subsequent loss of hefted 

flocks. 

Under-grazing / 

abandonment. 

Localised over-grazing 

caused by lack of heathland 

management and structure. 

Poorly managed burning / 

wildfires. 

 
Ideal state: 

Upland heath in ‘favourable condition’ is 

typically dominated by a range of dwarf 

shrubs such as heather, bilberry, crowberry, 

bell heather and western gorse. They are 

generally structurally diverse, containing 

stands of vegetation with heather at different 

stages of growth, including areas of mature 

heather. This habitat supports an important 

assemblage of birds, a diverse invertebrate 

fauna and, in some cases, assemblages of 

rare and local mosses and liverworts. 

 
Extent: 

9,428 ha (24.2% of AONB area) 

(includes degraded areas / potential 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

0
P

age 192



P a g e  | 14 

Inappropriate methods of 

supplementary feeding. 

Bracken invasion. 

Heavy recreation pressure 

causing erosion, particularly 

illegal off road vehicle use in 

the south of the AONB. 

Lack of appropriate 

rotational heather 

management. 

Afforestation. 

Nitrogen enrichment caused 

by atmospheric deposition. 

 

for restoration / expansion). 

 
Indicators: 

9,317.2 ha (98.9%) has some form of 

designation conferring a level of 

protection. 

7,776.6 ha (82.48%) is protected as 

SSSI or SAC. 

 
2. Favourable management: 

683.51 ha (7.25% resource) are 

within DCC Countryside Service 

owned / managed sites. 

 
3. Condition: 

The majority of the heathland areas in 

the AONB are currently being 

managed through cutting and 

burning of heather, and cutting and 

bruising of bracken. 

Bracken extent unknown. Between 

2008 and 2012, in the Heather and 

Hillforts project area, 1,029 ha of 

bracken were sprayed, and 270.5 ha 

cut / bruised. Bracken dominated 

heathland reduced from 788 ha to 303 

ha. 

Between 2008 and 2012, in the 

Clwydian Range and Llantysilio 

mountains, mature / degenerate 

heather reduced from 384 ha to 367 

ha 

 

The Heather and Hillforts project Landscape 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

1
P

age 193



P a g e  | 15 

Partnership Scheme ran from 2008 to 2012, 

focusing on the Clwydian Range and 

Llantysilio mountains heathland areas. 

Significant work was undertaken to reduce 

the extent of bracken through aerial 

spraying, as well as work with landowners 

and graziers to improve the condition of 

heathland. Heather condition surveys were 

carried out in 2005 and 2010, showing an 

improvement in the age structure of heather 

as well as a reduction in the extent of 

bracken cover. 

 

Woodland 

and veteran 

trees 

 

 

Many of these woodlands represent 

a link with the landscape as it 

appeared following the last ice age 

and support a diverse range of flora 

and fauna. Ash woodlands are 

particularly important in the Alyn 

Valley where it has been 

designated SAC. In other parts of 

the AONB oak woods are 

significant. 

 

Veteran trees are trees which, 

because of their size and age are 

considered of exceptional cultural, 

landscape and nature conservation 

value. Veteran trees are often 

associated with parkland, and are 

usually found in more lowland 

areas. There are few in the north of 

the AONB and are found in greater 

 

Grazing preventing natural 

regeneration. 

Loss due to localised 

quarrying. 

Lack of specific woodland 

management and cessation 

of traditional management. 

Fragmentation of ownership. 

Invasion by naturalised 

species leading to a change 

in structure and composition 

(sycamore and beech). 

Loss of species such as red 

squirrel. 

Development pressures. 

Effects of air pollution. 

Acidification of base-rich 

soils through the scavenging 

effect of commercial 

conifers. 

 
Ideal State: 

A woodland in ‘favourable condition’ has a 

varied structure with at least three age 

classes spread across the average life 

expectancy of the commonest trees, areas of 

open space – both temporary and 

permanent relatively undisturbed mature / 

old growth stands, understory and some 

build-up of fallen and standing dead wood. It 

should be comprised predominantly of 

native species and there should not be signs 

of rapid loss of native trees and shrubs. 

There should also be signs of seedlings 

growing through to saplings to young trees 

at sufficient density to maintain canopy 

density. 

 
Extent: 

Broadleaved (including mixed) 

woodland: 1809.43 ha (4.65% of 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

2
P

age 194



P a g e  | 16 

number in the south. Some fine 

examples can be found on the 

Eglwyseg (Yew / Field Maple), at 

the Horseshoe Falls, at Trevor 

Church and Chirk Castle. 

Many semi-natural 

woodlands have declined as 

a result of replanting with 

exotic conifers. 

 
Pests and diseases 

Present / future tree 

diseases could have a 

significant impact on the 

local landscape character. 

Phytopthora Ramorum – 

Bilberry and Larch (is listed 

as an EU controlled 

organism). 

Chalara fraxinea – Ash 

dieback. 

Phytophthora Alni – alder. 

Canopies opened by 

disease may be subject to 

higher rates of wind-throw, 

and invasion by 

unrepresentative species 

becomes more likely. 

 

AONB area) of which 795.8 ha (2.04% 

of AONB) is Semi Natural Ancient 

Woodland or Replanted Ancient 

Woodland. 

 
1. Indicators: 

199.9 ha (11.04%) are within 

international and national designation 

(SAC and SSSI). 

 
2. Favourable Management: 

54.79 ha (3.03% resource) are within 

Country Parks and DCC Countryside 

Service managed sites. 

17.72 ha (0.98% resource) are within 

NWWT managed sites. 

 
3. Condition: 

Woodland SSSIs 

NRW continue to monitor the 

condition of all SSSIs and SACs. 

 

River 

Valleys 

 

 

River valleys are not only important 

for the watercourse itself but also 

the bank and associated land or 

riparian zone. They are dynamic 

systems and provide a wide range 

of ecological niches supporting a 

diverse flora and fauna. They also 

form important wildlife corridors, 

enabling dispersion and migration 

 

Water pollution from 

sewage, acidification, urban 

drainage, agricultural run-

off and mine and industrial 

damage. 

Loss of bank-side vegetation 

through overgrazing and 

poaching. This can also lead 

to erosion of river margins 

 
Ideal state: 

The morphology of rivers and streams and 

their associated plant and animal 

assemblages vary according to their 

geographical area, underlying geology and 

water chemistry. However, all rivers in their 

natural state are dynamic systmes, 

continually modifying their form. A healthy 

river will have good water quality, free from 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

3
P

age 195



P a g e  | 17 

of species. 

 

There are three significant river 

valleys in the AONB. The River Dee 

from Corwen to Newbridge, the 

River Alyn from Cilcain to 

Llanferres and the River Wheeler 

from Bodfari to Melin-y-Wern. 

and siltation of the river 

channel with losses of fish 

spawning gravels and 

habitat diversity. 

Modification of the shape 

and course. 

Potential loss of indicator 

species such as otters, water 

voles and fresh water pearl 

mussel. 

Invasive non-native species 

such as Himalayan balsam, 

Chinese mitten crabs and 

mink competing with native 

species. 

Recreational impacts such as 

walking, angling, boating 

and canoeing can cause 

disturbance to both the 

habitat and resident species. 

Inappropriate land drainage 

and flood defence works. 

Climate change may affect 

the habitat and species 

through flooding and 

temperature change. 

Abstraction and discharge of 

water for hydro-power 

generation. 

Meeting the requirements of 

the Water Framework 

Directive and Catchment 

Management Plans. 

 

outside pollution, and marginal and bank-

side vegetation that supports an array of 

wild flowers and animals and provides 

corridor links between fragmented habitats. 

Rivers which display a mosaic of features 

such as riffles and pools and exposed 

sediments can support a diverse range of 

plant and animal species. 

 
Extent: 

62.77 km  (34.53 km River Dee, 19.55 

km River Alyn and 8.69 km River 

Wheeler) 

 
Indicators: 

The River Dee is designated at SAC 

and SSSI. 

3.31 km (16.93%) of River Alyn are 

within SAC. 

1.43 km (16.46%) of River Wheeler 

passes through wildlife sites. 

 
2. Favourable management: 

1.06 km (8.16%) of the River Alyn 

falls within Loggerheads Country 

Park. 

1.73 km (5.01%) of the River Dee falls 

within Ty Mawr Country Park, and 

Denbighshire Countryside Sites. 

 
3. Condition: 

Otters are known to be present on all 

three rivers. Water voles have been 

recorded on the Llangollen Canal, 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

4
P

age 196



P a g e  | 18 

and at either end of the Wheeler 

valley with extensive field ditches 

giving population potential to 

expand. There is only one pocket of 

water vole records in the Alyn valley, 

though further surveys may reveal 

more.  

Invasive species are known to be 

present on all three river systems, 

both mink and Himalayan balsam in 

particular, although Japanese 

Knotweed is more widespread on the 

River Dee. The River Dee also has 

populations of Signal Crayfish. 

All three rivers have wet woodland 

and meadow habitats supported by 

back channels in many places 

providing good bank-side cover and 

corridors for wildlife. 

A number of rights of way cross and 

run parallel to all three rivers, in 

particular the Alyn indicating 

recreation pressure is present. 

Recreation pressure on the River Dee 

is significant; it is popular for fishing, 

canoeing and rafting. A number of 

businesses use and are dependent on 

access to the river. 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

5
P

age 197



 | 19 P a g e

The Historic Environment 
 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Historic 

Environment 

Historic Settlement and 

Archaeology 

 

There are a number of historic 

settlements within the AONB. 

Llangollen is the largest with a 

population of around 3,000. The 

town was granted its charter in 1284 

and straddles the Dee via an arched 

bridge built in about 1500. The 

historic core of the town lies on the 

southern side, focusing on the 

church and the river crossing. Later 

development occurred largely as a 

result of the woollen industry. Since 

early times, the town has been an 

important stopping place, 

especially for people travelling 

from London to Ireland. Until the 

early 1800s, roads were notoriously 

hazardous but Telford’s new road to 

Holyhead (now the A5) had a 

profound effect on the development 

of early 19th century Llangollen and 

North Wales in general, allowing 

the London mail coaches to travel 

faster and more safely. 

 

 

 

Deterioration and lack of 

funding for the upkeep of 

structures and monuments. 

Erosion of sites following 

archaeological excavations. 

Lack of awareness of ancient 

monuments and sites. 

Lack of facilities for study 

groups. 

Inappropriate land 

management. 

Lack of archaeological data. 

Damage from metal 

detection. 

Off Road Motorcycle and 4x4 

damage, particularly on the 

Llantysilio and North Berwyn 

mountains. 

Historic Parks and Gardens 

are privately owned; 

dependant on landowners to 

maintain and enhance. 

Not all open to the public. 

 

 

 
Protection: 

Scheduled Ancient Monuments are 

nationally important archaeological 

sites or historic buildings, afforded 

protection against unauthorised 

change. 

There are 95 Scheduled Ancient 

Monuments in the AONB, the 

protection of which are overseen by 

Cadw. Many of these sites provide 

evidence of past mining, quarrying 

and settlements.  

Scheduled Ancient Monuments cover 

156.04 ha (0.4% of the AONB). 

There are 17 Conservation Areas in 

the AONB, covering 88.85 ha (0.23% 

of the AONB). 

There are 645 Listed Building in the 

AONB. 

Valle Crucis Abbey, Eliseg’s Pillar 

and Llangar church are guardianship 

sites and managed by Cadw. 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

6
P

age 198



 | 20 P a g e

 

The Cistercian Abbey of Valle 

Crucis lies near the confluence of 

the Eglwyseg and the Dee rivers, 

north of Llangollen. The 

fragmentary 9th century cross, the 

Pillar of Eliseg, is set on a small 

circular mound which is a Bronze 

Age Barrow, just to the north of the 

Abbey. 

 

Historic parks and gardens form an 

important and integral part of the 

historic and cultural fabric of an 

area. They are listed in the Cadw / 

ICOMOS Register of Parks and 

Gardens of Special Historic Interest 

in Wales. The registered sites are 

Penbedw, Golden Grove, St 

Beuno’s, Colomendy, Valle Crucis, 

Bryntysilio, Llantysilio Hall, Vivod, 

Plas Newydd, Trefor Hall, Chirk 

Castle and Argoed Hall.  Although 

not protected in the same way as 

Listed Buildings they are graded in 

a similar way. It is anticipated that 

legislation in the new heritage Bill 

to be announced shortly will give 

more weight to this designation 

 

Not statutorily protected; 

need to engage with and 

support landowners. 

No arrangements for 

monitoring the condition of 

Historic parks and gardens. 

No Management / 

Enhancement Plans. 

Ideal state: 

Sites are maintained in a favourable 

condition. Cadw are currently 

reappraising their monument 

condition surveys and are 

developing a Monuments at Risk 

methodology, as yet information is 

not available for the AONB but this 

will be extremely valuable 

information in the future. 

 
State: 

Sites are visited by Cadw every 5 or 

10 years. 

SAM condition data is not consistently 

available yet, but Cadw are working 

towards this. 

Of the 645 Listed Buildings in the 

AONB, 56 are considered to be ‘at 

risk’. 

 

 
Understanding: 

Recent archaeological work on 

Elisegs Pilar has been undertaken by 

Bangor and Chester Universities, this 

has identified that the pillar sits on a 

pre-existing Bronze Age burial 

mound.  

Excavations have also taken place at 

Penycloddiau by Liverpool 

University, Moel y Gaer Bodfari by 

Oxford University and at Fron 

Newydd near Caer Drewyn by 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

7
P

age 199



 | 21 P a g e

Bangor University. 

 
Extent: 

There are 12 Historic Parks within the 

AONB covering 611.67 ha (1.57% of 

the AONB). The essential settings of 

14 Historic Parks are within the AONB 

covering a total of 1,152.01 ha (2.96% 

of the AONB). 

9 more Historic Parks and Gardens 

are directly adjacent to the AONB. 

 

 

  

Historic 

Environment 

Industrial Features and World 

Heritage Site 

 

When Thomas Telford finished 

Pontcysyllte Aqueduct in 1805, it 

was the tallest canal boat crossing 

in the world. On 27 June 2009, 

UNESCO made this masterpiece of 

civil engineering a World Heritage 

Site, along with 11 miles of canal 

including Chirk Aqueduct and the 

Horseshoe Falls at Llantysilio, near 

Llangollen. Pontcysyllte represents 

a ‘masterpiece of human creative 

genius’ and is an outstanding 

example of a construction that 

‘illustrated a significant stage in 

human history’. 

 

Construction work on the 

 

 

 

Prevention from decay and 

need for on-going 

maintenance. 

Inappropriate methods or 

materials for repairs through 

lack of understanding, skills 

or materials, or changing 

modern standards. 

Vegetation growth in the 

World Heritage Site and the 

Buffer Zone affecting views 

in and out. 

Maintenance of effective 

protection of the Site and 

Buffer Zone through 

designations and planning 

policies. 

 

 

 
Protection: 

The World Heritage Site is afforded 

protection as such. 

Much of the World Heritage site is 

owned by the Canal and Rivers Trust. 

 
Extent: 

The World Heritage site covers 62.62 

ha within the AONB (0.16% of the 

AONB). 

The World Heritage Site Buffer Zone 

covers 3,129.54 ha within the AONB 

(8.04% of the AONB). 

 
Status: 

Not currently on UNESCOs list of 

World Heritage in Danger. 46 sites 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

8
P

age 200



 | 22 P a g e

Llangollen Branch of the Shropshire 

Union Canal began in 1795 and was 

completed in 1808. The canal gave 

access to the Ruabon collieries and 

stimulated the growth of the 

limekilns and pottery works at 

Froncysyllte and Tref-y-nant. 

 

The Vale of Llangollen Railway was 

opened in 1861. For nearly a 

century, the railway took over much 

of the traffic formerly carried by 

road and canal. The Llangollen 

Railway Society now operates the 

line between Llangollen and 

Corwen. 

 

World Heritage Status means that 

the Pontcysyllte Aqueduct and 

Canal has been inscribed on the 

World Heritage List, offering it 

increased awareness. This 

awareness leads to an increase in 

the level of protection and 

conservation given to inscribed 

sites. It is one of 28 properties 

inscribed in the UK. Worldwide 

there were 1,007 World Heritage 

Sites in 2014.  

 

Loggerheads was the focal point for 

lead mining in the 18th and 19th 

century and remnants of this 

industrial past remain along the 

Management of visitor 

pressure. 

Need to develop the 

presentation of the 

Outstanding Universal Value 

– how to get the story across. 

Site surveys not followed up. 

Sites being lost to land use 

change. 

Some industrial remains are 

in poor condition. 

Much of the industrial 

heritage of the Alyn Valley is 

outside the public estate. 

Lack of awareness of 

archaeological heritage, the 

relationship of quarries, 

inclines and associated 

works which together have 

cultural integrity. 

Some sites unrecorded or 

with no scheduled 

protection. 

Some sites recommended 

for scheduling in the Metal 

Mines survey of the 1990s 

have not taken place. 

The vast majority of 

industrial (and indeed all 

other periods of site) are 

undesignated. They are 

noted on the HER Historic 

Environment Record which 

is set to become statutory in 

listed in 2014. 

 
Industrial Archaeology 

Protection: 

Some of the key industrial sites are 

protected as scheduled. The canal 

and many associated monuments are 

scheduled. The Nant y Pandy 

tramway and slate works at 

Glyndyfrydwy are scheduled but in 

poor condition. Parts of the Minera 

lead mines at Meadow shaft are a 

SAM as is the Hoffman kiln in the 

Minera Quarries. 

 
Condition: 

The Glyndyfrydwy slate works 

buildings and parts of the tramway 

are in a poor condition. 

Key features like the Leete at 

Loggerheads Country park, Cascade 

Woods lead mining site and others 

are unprotected 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 7

9
P

age 201



 | 23 P a g e

river and in the woods. There was 

extensive lead mining in the Alyn 

Valley, Prestatyn Hillside, Bryn 

Alyn, and areas of Esclusham 

Mountain, World’s End and Minera. 

 

The name Loggerheads derives 

from a dispute over mineral rights 

which was eventually settled in the 

high court. The boundary stone 

adjacent to the A494 and boundary 

stones within the Park mark the 

position the legal boundary was 

determined to be. 

 

There was extensive slate 

quarrying in the south of the AONB, 

on the Llantysilio and North Berwyn 

mountains. Only the Berwyn quarry 

on the Horseshoe Pass remains 

open today. 

 

There are a number of features 

associated with these mines, such 

as the Leete at Loggerheads, and 

tramways from the Moel y Faen 

quarry to Llangollen canal, and 

Moel Fferna to Glwyndyfrdwy 

through Nant y Pandy, where there 

are extensive ruins relating to slate 

working. 

the new Planning Bill. 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

0
P

age 202



 | 24 P a g e

Historic 

Environment 

Hillforts and Defensive Structures 

 

The chain of Iron Age Hillforts along 

the ridgeline of the Clwydian Range 

are its most high profile and unique 

archaeological sites. These 6 

hillforts, between Moel Hiraddig 

near Dyserth and Moel Fenlli near 

Llanferres, provide one of the 

highest concentrations in Western 

Europe. 

 

Moel y Gaer is one of the summits 

of Llantysilio Mountain, on the north 

side of the river Dee and west of the 

Horseshoe Pass. There is evidence 

for human activity here dating back 

to at least the Bronze Age (2,300 – 

1,200 BC), with a large burial cairn 

on the summit of Moel Gamelin. 

Several centuries later, during the 

Iron Age (1200 BC – 74 AD), Moel y 

Gaer was chosen as the site for a 

small hillfort. 

 

Castell Dinas Bran, a medieval 

castle located within the earthworks 

of an earlier Iron Age Hillfort, 

towers over the town of Llangollen 

giving it a strong sense of place and 

historic context. Similarly, Caer 

Drewyn Iron Age Hillfort, along 

with the 6th century church at St 

Mael and St Sulien and associations 

 

 

Erosion to the hillforts and 

other defensive structures 

through recreation and 

sheep scrapes. 

Damage through 

inappropriate land 

management, such as 

quarrying, tree planting and 

over grazing. 

Ploughing / Agricultural 

pressure. 

Damage from metal 

detection. 

Increased awareness and 

access could lead to 

increased erosion issues. 

 

 
Extent: 

10 Iron Age Hillforts in the AONB, 

covering 105.14 ha (0.27 % of total 

AONB). 

3 Motte and Bailey castles. 

Small remnants of a 12th century 

castle at Dyserth. 

2 later 13th Century stone castles. 

 
Protection: 

5 Iron Age Hillforts are owned by the 

Local Authorities. 

All Iron Age Hillforts are designated 

as Scheduled Ancient Monuments. 

Dinas Bran Castle, owned by 

Denbighshire County Council, is 

designated as a SAM, SSSI and it is 

also within the buffer zone of the WHS 

and within the Historic landscape  of 

the Vale of Llangollen 

Chirk Castle is jointly managed by 

Cadw and the National Trust. 

Tomen y Rhodwydd, Tomen y 

Faerdre and Glyndwr’s Mount are all 

SAMs. 

Remains of Dyserth Caslte are a SAM. 

 
Condition: 

Erosion work was carried out on Moel 

Fenlli, Moel Arthur, Penycloddiau , 

Moel y Gaer Llanbedr, Moel y Gaer 

Llantysilio and Caer Drewyn as part  

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

1
P

age 203



 | 25 P a g e

with Owain Glyndwr give the town 

of Corwen a strong historical root. 

Pen y Gaer Hillfort is located near 

Garth adjacent to Trefor Hall 

woods. 

 

Completed in 1310, Chirk is the last 

Welsh castle from the reign of 

Edward I that is still lived in. 

Features from its 700 years include 

the medieval tower and dungeon, 

17th century Long Gallery, grand 

18th century state apartments, 

servants’ hall and historic laundry.  

 

Motte and Bailey castle sites are 

found at Tomen y Rhodwydd near 

Llandegla, Tomen y Faerdre near 

Llanarmon-yn-Ial and Glyndwr’s 

Mount near Llidiart y Parc. 

 

The site of Gop Cairn at Trelawnyd, 

not technically a defensive 

structure but hinting at nearby 

settlement, is thought to date to the 

Neolithic period from about 

3000BC. It is a vast mound, 

constructed on the top of a hill, 

perhaps marking burials in a 

nearby cave. 

 

of the Heather and Hillforts scheme. 

Erosion repair work has taken place 

at Tomen y Rhodwydd and extensive 

stabilisation work was carried out at 

Owain Glyndwr’s Motte. 

Management plans were drawn up 

for the six monuments within the 

Heather and Hillforts project area. 

Prior to work taking place in Heather 

and Hillfots, condition surveys were 

carried out on the 6 hillforts, this 

work was repeated in 2012 and an 

improvement in condition was 

demonstrated at each of the sites. 

Continual monitoring will be needed 

to maintain this. 

 
Understanding: 

The Heather and Hillforts project, from 2008 

to 2012, greatly increased our 

understanding of 6 hillforts in the AONB. A 

programme of archaeological digs (at Moel 

y gaer Bodfari, Penycloddiau, Moel y Gaer 

Llanbedr) and community archaeology 

events have developed a greater 

understanding within the local community. 

The Clwydian Range Archaeology Group 

(CRAG) was established during Heather and 

Hillforts, and now runs successfully as an 

independent voluntary group who have 

made important discoveries on land 

adjacent to Moel Arthur Hillfort. 

 

Recent archaeological work has also been  

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

2
P

age 204



 | 26 P a g e

undertaken on Moel y Gaer Bodfari by 

Oxford University and Penycloddiau by 

Liverpool University. Bangor University have 

been excavating at Fron Newydd adjacent to 

Caer Drewyn as well as at the small 

defended settlement of Moel Fodig, just 

outside the AONB. 

 

Historic 

Environment 

Small Historic Features 

 

These are features that are unique 

to the AONB. They are unlikely to 

be listed and conserved but they 

are part of the fabric of the 

landscape. Examples: Red 

telephone boxes, water troughs, 

milestones, stone stiles and gate 

posts, old wells, old road signs, 

named rocks, milk stands and 

World War I and II relics. 
 

 

 

These features tend to 

‘disappear’ and part of this 

is because there is not a 

comprehensive list held 

anywhere. They also 

disappear through being 

modernised or through road 

improvement schemes. 

 

 
Extent: 

23 K6 Red Phone Boxes. 

15 Trig Points. 

Total number of features unknown. 

% loss of features identified 

unknown. 

 

The new Heritage Bill is likely to contain a 

section on proposals to produce robust 

‘local lists’ of these types of features. 

Historic 

Environment 

Boundaries 

 

The main types are native 

hedgerows on slopes and dry stone 

walls in the limestone and upland 

shale areas. The other types are 

hedgerows on a stone retaining 

wall (Clawdd Wall). These linear 

features are valuable wildlife 

habitats, which act particularly well 

as wildlife corridors between 

habitats. 

 

 

 

Loss of hedges and walls 

due to agricultural 

improvement. 

Loss due to lack of 

maintenance. 

Loss of skill to maintain in a 

traditional way. 

Expense of maintenance. 

Modern maintenance not 

suitable. 

 

 
Extent: 

Length of traditional boundaries in 

the AONB unknown. 

12 km of hedgerow have been 

restored through the AONB 

countryside grant scheme between 

2007 and 2014. 

0.5 km of dry stone wall have been 

rebuilt through the AONB 

countryside grant scheme between 

2007 and 2014. 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

3
P

age 205



 | 27 P a g e

An unusual feature unique to 

Corwen within the AONB is 

boundaries using upright slate 

slabs – an example of this can be 

seen at Gro Isa just north of Corwen 

next to the River Dee. 
 

 

Need survey of boundaries with those that 

have greatest impact on the landscape 

prioritised for action. 

 

% of boundaries in good condition unknown. 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

4
P

age 206



 | 29 P a g e

Access and Leisure 

 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Access and 

Leisure 

 

Iconic Visitor and Cultural 

Attractions 

 

The Vale of Llangollen and Dee 

Valley forms a striking gateway to 

North Wales as the topography 

changes rapidly from flat 

Shropshire Plain to a steep sided 

Welsh Valley, with accompanying 

changes in building styles and 

materials, culture and way of life. 

The area has a special role as a 

gateway to and cultural window on 

Welsh life and marks the English-

Welsh borderlands. 

 

Further north, the Clwydian Range 

is the first chain of hills inside the 

Welsh border. With strong cultural 

links to Liverpool and the North 

West of England, the area is heavily 

visited. 
 

‘Honey-pot’ sites 

 

The Pontcysyllte Aqueduct and 

 

 

 

No coherent identity for the 

area, there are three distinct 

tourism units – the Clwydian 

Range, the Dee Valley and 

the World Heritage Site. 

There is no coordination of 

visitor management. 

Interpretation and 

awareness of the culture and 

history of the area is low. 

People pass through the 

area travelling to west 

Wales. Need to raise 

awareness of the area and 

encourage people to stop in 

the AONB. 

Lack of high quality facilities 

– public transport, car 

parking, cafes, toilets, 

information. 

Localised degraded 

environment due to 

congestion, litter and 

vandalism. 

 

 

 

Provision: 

36 Caravan Parks / Camp Sites in the 

AONB. 

Number of tourism businesses – 

unknown 

Number of AONB threshold signs - ? 

Number of Car Parks in the AONB – 

unknown. 

Number of Public Toilets in the AONB 

– 8 

4 Country Parks in the AONB – 

o Loggerheads 

o Moel Famau 

o Ty Mawr 

o Minera Lead Mines 
 

Extent: 

4 Country Parks covering 1,007.05 ha 

(2.59% of AONB). 

o 1 Country Park currently 

closed. 

There are 20 sites (including Country 

Parks) in the AONB managed by 

AONB / Local Authorities. These 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

5
P

age 207



 | 30 P a g e

Canal is a feat of civil engineering 

of the Industrial Revolution, 

completed in the early years of the 

19th century. The property is 

inscribed as a World Heritage Site 

and is recognised as an innovation 

ensemble that inspired many 

projects all over the world. 

 

Loggerheads Country Park 

provides an important link to the 

wider Clwydian Range and is seen 

as a base from which to explore. 

 

Moel Famau is a significant tract of 

heather moorland in the Clwydian 

Range. The Jubilee Tower is on the 

summit. 

 

Ty Mawr Country Park and farm lies 

on the banks of the River Dee 

beneath the arches of the Cefn 

Viaduct. 

 

Minera Lead Mines Country Park is 

a starting point for the Clywedog 

Trail and accessing the beautiful 

countryside of Minera Mountain.  

 

Offa’s Dyke National Trail and the 

Panorama Drive, which run along 

the foot of Eglwyseg Rocks, offer 

stunning high level views. 

 

Existing and new 

development where there 

has been a lack of attention 

to design, character, 

materials and integration 

within key views and at key 

locations which contribute to 

visitor experience. 

Access for the less able is 

challenging. 

Lack of / closure of visitor 

facilities. 

Traffic management, 

congestion and car parking. 

Poor public transport links 

and infrastructure. 

Busy road crossings. 

Some industrial remains are 

in poor condition. 

Visitor pressure in key 

conservation areas. 

cover 1075.78 ha (2.76% of the 

AONB) 

Natural Resources Wales estate 

(formerly Forestry Commission) 

covers 1299.37 ha (3.34% of the 

AONB). 

 
Condition: 

Minera Lead mines currently closed 

to the public. 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

6
P

age 208



 | 31 P a g e

The Horseshoe Pass is a popular 

tourist viewpoint and scenic drive.  
 

Access and 

Leisure 

 

The Offa’s Dyke Trail and 

Promoted Routes 

 

The AONB has an extensive 

network of paths, bridleways and 

byways. Some have great historical 

significance including the Leete 

Path and old Drovers’ Roads. The 

network brings specific economic 

benefit to the local economy. 

 

There are a great many 

publications promoting primarily 

walking opportunities. 
 

Open Access 

 

Access Land comprises mountain, 

moor, heath and down, common 

land and all land over 600m in 

height. 

 

Access Land is an important 

component of the Clwydian Range 

and Dee Valley, and provides 

access to areas, particularly 

hilltops, not served by the Rights of 

Way network. It is found throughout 

the AONB, but the majority in found 

in the south, covering the large 

 

 

On-going maintenance of 

promoted routes. 

Erosion in sensitive areas. 

Impact of access on stock 

and farming, particularly by 

dogs. 

Limited Rights of Way for 

horse riders and cyclists. 

Congestion in honey pot 

areas. 

Blocked and unusable paths 

restrict opportunities. 

Number of unsupported 

promoted routes. 

Uncertainty with the public 

to where access land areas 

are. 

Disturbance to nesting birds 

and other wildlife. 
 

Adventure activities 

Population health issues 

increasing. 

Conflict between user 

groups using the resources 

of the area, in particular the 

River Dee. 

Litter, noise, damage. 

Mountain biking pressure on 

 

 

Extent: 

772.6 km of Public Rights of Way 

324.4 km of Rights of Way and 

permissive routes promoted by 

AONB / Local Authority publications. 

(42% of the network). 

114 km of Promoted Cycle Routes on 

Public Rights of Way / permissive 

paths. (14.8% of the network). 

Length of blocked / unusable paths 

unknown. 

Significant car parks serving the 

network include Loggerheads, Moel 

Famau and Ty Mawr Country Parks, 

Car Parks in Corwen and Llangollen, 

and Llantysilio Green. 

Number of Laybys suitable for 

parking unknown 

3 Railway stations serving the AONB 

(Prestatyn, Ruabon and Chirk) 

10,380.18 ha of Access Land (26.67% 

of AONB area), of this 

o 6441.35 ha is common land 

o 3938.83 ha are mapped as 

open country. 

Number of adventure activity 

providers unknown. 

Tourism spend in the AONB in 2012 - 

£39.4 million. 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

7
P

age 209



 | 32 P a g e

extents of open moorland on the 

Ruabon, Llantysilio and North 

Berwyn mountains. 

 

A number of permissive access 

routes have been developed to 

guide walkers to points of interest 

and significance, such as Liberty 

Hall south of Corwen, and the 

summit of Moel Gyw. 
 

Adventure Activities 

 

There is growing concern that 

people’s lifestyles are becoming 

too sedentary. They seek to ‘de-

stress’ through adventure 

experiences such as rock climbing, 

caving, kayaking, white water 

rafting, mountain bikes, horse 

riding etc…. 
 

The landscape of the AONB 

supports adventure activity 

businesses, including the mountain  

Biking centre at Coed Llandegla. 
 

bridleway network and 

wider countryside. 

Impact of access on key 

conservation sites. 

Access and 

Leisure 

Health and well-being –

Deprivation 

 

In general, the AONB is not an area 

with high levels of deprivation 

when assessed against most 

deprivation indicators, including 

 

 

Maintaining and improving 

access to local services. 

People living in deprived 

areas do not get a benefit 

from the AONB.  

 

 

2 Communities First Areas within the 

AONB 

7 Communities First Areas within 3km 

of AONB. 

Percentage of LSOA’s (Lower-level 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

8
P

age 210



 | 33 P a g e

income levels, educational 

attainment, employment, health, 

housing quality and physical 

environment. Overall, the AONB is 

within the least deprived 25% areas 

of Wales (Welsh Index of Multiple 

Deprivation 2005). However, one 

aspect in which the AONB 

demonstrates notably high levels of 

deprivation is access to services, 

which is a result of the sparsely 

populated rural character of the 

area. As the population is older than 

the average, access to local and 

specialist health care, and support 

services, all contribute to a sense of 

community wellbeing. 

 

Although still below the Welsh 

average, levels of limiting long 

term illness have increased in the 

AONB between 2001 and 2011. 
 

 Super Output Areas) in AONB within 

the most deprived quartile in Wales 

for access to services – 26.3%  (10 of 

38) 

Percentage of people with limiting 

long-term illness 

o East 17.2% 

o North 21.7% 

o West 19.5% 

o South 21.2 % 

o Wales 22.7% 
 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 8

9
P

age 211



 | 34 P a g e

Culture and People – The Built Environment 

 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Environment 

Settlement 

 

The settlement pattern of the 

Clwydian Range is characterised by 

villages and hamlets on either side 

of the main ridge, such as Llanbedr 

DC, Cilcain and Nannerch, and 

along river valleys, including 

Bodfari and Llanferres. Most of 

these villages are compact and 

nucleated in form. These 

settlements are supplemented by 

scattered farmsteads and isolated 

dwellings which extend higher up 

the slopes.  

 

The settlement patterns in the south 

of the AONB are found primarily 

along river valleys. Smaller villages 

include Bryneglwys, Glyndyfrdwy, 

Carrog, Pentredwr and 

Froncysyllte. The towns of 

Llangollen and Corwen both 

straddle the River Dee. Similar to 

the Clwydian Range, scattered 

farmsteads and isolated dwellings 

are found higher up the slopes. 

 

 

Development in the AONB 

and its setting is not always 

in sympathy with the local 

landscape character and 

settlement pattern. 

 

 

No. of AONB villages / settlements defined 

in development plans: 

Denbighshire 23 

Flintshire 6 

Wrexham 2 

Total – 31 

 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 9

0
P

age 212



 | 35 P a g e

 

A number of larger settlements 

adjoin the AONB, including 

Prestatyn, Meliden, Dyserth, 

Gwernymynydd, Trefor, Cefn Mawr 

and Chirk. 

 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Environment 

Conservation Areas 

 

Conservation Areas are designated 

by local planning authorities to 

protect areas of special 

architectural or historic interest 

where it is desirable to preserve or 

enhance their character or 

appearance. They are one indicator 

of the quality of the built 

environment. Designations should 

be underpinned by up to date 

Character Appraisals, and planning 

authorities should prepare 

Management / Enhancement Plans. 

Designation also brings some 

additional controls on 

development, but these can be 

increased via Article 4 Directions if 

permitted development is harming 

the special character of the area. 

 

 

 

Incomplete / out of date 

Conservation Area 

Character Appraisals. 

Lack of Management / 

Enhancement Plans for 

Conservation Areas. 

No arrangements for 

monitoring the condition of 

Conservation Areas. 

 

 
Extent: 

There are 17 conservation areas in 

the AONB, covering 88.85 ha (0.23% 

of AONB) 

o Denbighshire 9 

o Flintshire 6 

o Wrexham 2 

% of AONB villages / settlements 

recognised in development plans 

which are Conservation Areas – 

41.9% (13 of 31) 

% of Conservation Areas with an up 

to date Character Appraisal unknown 

% of Conservation Areas with a 

Management / Enhancement Plan 

unknown 

No. of Article 4 Directions unknown 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Environment 

Listed Buildings 

 

Buildings of special architectural or 

historical interest are Listed by 

Cadw. There are strict controls over 

 

 

Concerns over the number 

of listed buildings at risk. 

There is a need to update 

 

 
Extent: 

There are 645 Listed Buildings in the 

AONB 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 9

1
P

age 213



 | 36 P a g e

development of Listed Buildings 

and their setting to ensure their 

special character is conserved or 

enhanced. The number and grade 

of Listed Buildings in an area is 

another indicator of the quality of 

the local built environment. Local 

authorities are advised to 

undertake 5 yearly surveys of the 

condition of Listed Buildings in their 

area to identify buildings at risk. 

 

and maintain the Buildings at 

Risk list for each Local 

Authority. 

The Jubilee Tower at Moel 

Famau is one of the most 

prominent and distinctive 

Listed Buildings in the 

AONB, but is in need of 

restoration / conservation to 

secure its long term future. 

 

56 are considered to be ‘at risk’. 

Significant Listed Buildings include 

Chirk Castle, Llangollen Bridge and 

the Jubilee Tower. 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Environment 

Development Control 

 

The control of development in the 

AONB is an important means by 

which the character and 

appearance of the area can be 

maintained or improved. 

Development proposals outside the 

area can also have an impact on 

important views in or out of the 

AONB. 

 

The three local planning authorities 

(LPA’s) consult the Joint Committee 

on planning applications which 

might impact on the AONB. 

 

 

 

 

Need to maintain Joint 

Committee activity in 

respect of responding to 

development proposals. 

Maintain and develop the 

Joint Committee’s credibility 

and influence as a planning 

consultee. 

Three LPA’s; need to ensure 

consistent approach across 

administrative boundaries. 

Urbanisation of villages and 

poor urban design. 

Need for a more proactive 

response to unauthorised 

development in the AONB. 

 

 

 

No. of planning applications referred 

to the JAC 

o 2011/12 – 199 

o 2012/13 – 212 

o 2013/14 – 221 

% of JAC comments adopted by 

LPA’s  

o 2011/12 – 68% 

o 2012/13 – 72% 

o 2013/14 – 74% 

No. of possible unauthorised 

development cases referred to LPA’s 

o 2011/12 – 13 

o 2012/13 – 21 

o 2013/14 – 10 

 

 

Culture and 

People – The 

Built 

Planning Policy and Guidance 

 

.Within a plan led system for the 

 

 

Clear and robust policies 

 

 

Local Development Plans: 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 9

2
P

age 214



 | 37 P a g e

Environment control of development, relevant 

and up to date planning policy and 

guidance is an essential component 

of protecting and conserving the 

character and appearance of the 

AONB. 

 

The local planning authorities 

publish Local Development Plans 

(LDPs). Adopted Supplementary 

Planning Guidance (SPG) notes 

complement development plans. 

The Joint Committee has prepared 

non-statutory Development 

Guidelines for the AONB. National 

planning policy is set by the Welsh 

Government, and the Joint 

Committee is usually consulted on 

proposed changes to national 

policy. 

 

 

 

required to conserve and 

enhance the AONB. 

Need for Joint Committee to 

engage with LDP process; 

WG guidance no longer 

requires LDP’s to include 

national AONB policies. 

Three LPA’s; need to ensure 

consistent approach to 

AONB policy and guidance 

across administrative 

boundaries. 

No specific SPG for the 

AONB to conserve and 

enhance local 

distinctiveness. Non-

statutory Development 

Guidelines cannot be 

adopted by the LPA’s. 

Need to maintain AONB 

profile and Joint Committee 

activity in respect of 

responding to planning and 

other policy consultations. 

 

Denbighshire LDP 2006 – 2021 

(adopted 2013) 

Flintshire LDP 2015 – 2030 (In 

preparation: adoption planned in 

2018) 

Wrexham LDP 2 2013 – 2028 (In 

preparation: adoption planned in 

2018) 

 

Unitary Development Plans (now 

superseded by Local Development Plan 

system): 

Flintshire UDP 2000 – 2015 ( adopted 

2011) 

Wrexham UDP 1996 – 2011 (adopted 

2005) 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 9

3
P

age 215



 | 38 P a g e

Culture and People – Sustainable Communities 

 

 

RESOURCE/ 

SPECIAL 

FEATURE 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

 

ISSUES 

 

 

STATE 

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Sense of place 

 

Community, belonging, attachment 

and a sense of place. Associated 

with this is the Welsh language, 

strong community vaues and a 

sense of local pride which are all a 

part of the natural beaty of an area. 

There is an understanding that ‘the 

land makes us what we are’. 

 

 

 

Lack of awareness of the 

AONB and its purposes 

within parts of the local 

communities. 

Unfocused community and 

voluntary actions that 

contribute to local 

distinctiveness. 

 

 

 

 

  

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Population 

 

The AONB is sparsely populated 

but there is some variation across 

the area, the Dee Valley is the most 

populous mainly due to the larger 

towns of Llangollen and Corwen. 

However, there are a number of 

larger and more populous 

settlements in close proximity to 

the Clwydian Range such as Mold, 

Ruthin, Prestatyn, Chirk and the 

Wrexham urban fringe.  

 

The age profile of the AONB shows 

an older population than Wales, 

 

 

As life expectancy 

increases, there will be 

increasing numbers of older 

people in society. A sharp 

rise in the number of over 

80s will see a generation 

keen to relax but potentially 

reluctant (or unable) to 

travel far. 

Over the past fifteen years, a 

sustained rise in the birth 

rate has caused a mini baby 

boom. 

Grandparents will be 

 

 

Resident Population (2011) -18,690 

o 8,000 of these within the Dee 

Valley 

Population Density (2011) 

o North – 0.7 (persons per km 

sq) 

o West – 0.4 

o East – 0.4 

o South - 0.4 

o Wales 1.5 

Families with dependent children 

o North – 378 

o West – 839 

o East – 426 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 9

4
P

age 216



 | 39 P a g e

Denbighshire and Flintshire. 

 

The number of families with 

dependent children has risen 

between 2001 and 2011, 

particularly in the western area of 

the AONB. 

‘younger’ than ever before; 

and retiring baby boomers 

will priorities their leisure 

time. 

Pressures and opportunities 

arising from the close 

proximity of the AONB to a 

much larger population. 

 

o South - 301 

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Housing 

 

The AONB is an attractive area in 

which to live. It is also within easy 

commuting range of large 

employment centres such as 

Deeside, Chester, Wrexham and 

beyond. This influences the local 

housing market by pushing up 

house prices, often beyond what 

many local people can afford. The 

number of social / rented council 

and housing association properties 

in the AONB is limited. The 

problems of availability and 

affordability for local people are 

compounded by a higher 

percentage than the Welsh average 

of second / holiday homes in parts 

of the AONB. 

 

 

 

Increasing the number and 

range of affordable homes in 

the AONB to meet local 

needs. 

High levels of demand for 

council / housing association 

accommodation in some 

areas. 

Need for robust planning 

policies to ensure that new 

housing development 

addresses affordability and 

local need issues. 

 

 

368 Council Houses in Denbighshire 

and Flintshire areas of AONB. 

(Wrexham CBC Council House 

numbers unknown). 

No. of dwellings unknown 

Council / Housing Assoc Waiting 

Lists unknown 

Second homes in the AONB unknown 

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Employment 

 

A high proportion of AONB 

residents are economically active 

 

 

Lack of economic self-

containment resulting in 

 

 

No. of working residents unknown 

No. of jobs in the AONB unknown 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 9

5
P

age 217



 | 40 P a g e

when compared to the Welsh 

average but most commute out of 

the area to nearby towns and other 

centres of employment. The area 

does not therefore exhibit high 

levels of economic self-

containment, which can impact on 

community cohesion. The public 

sector is the largest source of 

employment, but agriculture and 

forestry continues to be an 

important employer when 

compared to the Welsh average. 

 

fewer people ‘embedded’ in 

their local area and reduced 

sense of community. 

Fewer local jobs than the 

working population. 

Reduction in the number of 

active agricultural holdings 

and the overall increase in 

the average holding size. 

Resources to deliver AONB 

Sustainable Tourism 

Strategy and Action Plan. 

% of population economically active 

(2011) 

o East 70% 

o North 67% 

o West 67% 

o South 68% 

o Wales 66% 

% of residents living and working in 

the AONB unknown 

% of residents employed in 

agriculture or forestry (2011) 

o East 5.4% 

o North 5.6% 

o West 9.3% 

o South 4% 

No. of active agricultural holdings 

unknown. 

Average size of agricultural holding 

unknown. 

No. of tourism related businesses 

supporting the AONB unknown 

% of population retired (2011) 

o East 20% 

o North 20% 

o West 21% 

o South 18% 

Levels of long term unemployment 

(2011) 

o East 0.9% 

o North 1.6% 

o West 1.2% 

o South 1.7% 

o Wales 2.4% 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 9

6
P

age 218



 | 41 P a g e

Culture and 

People – 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Facilities and Services 

 

Access to local facilities and 

services such as schools, shops, 

post offices, community meeting 

places and public transport all 

contribute to a sense of community 

wellbeing. Access to such services 

in the AONB can be limited. Rural 

services are in decline and 

continue to be under threat given 

the economic outlook and the 

viability of providing such facilities 

in isolated and sparsely population 

areas. 

 

 

Maintaining key existing 

rural facilities and services 

that meet the needs of local 

people, and preventing the 

further loss of such facilities. 

Review of education 

provision and the number of 

rural schools. 

Developing access to new 

facilities and services such 

as high speed broadband 

and mobile phone coverage. 

Ensuring effective public 

transport network links to 

service centres. 

 

 

 

40 places of worship in the AONB. 

Facilities in Denbighshire area of 

AONB. 

o 57 Pubs / hotels / bars. 

o 118 shops. 

No. of primary schools in AONB – 14 

Nos. on school roll unknown 

No. of settlements with a public 

house – 21 (68%) 

No. of settlements with a community 

hall – 17 (55%) 

No. of settlements with a shop / PO – 

13 (42%) 

No. of settlements with a regular 

daily bus service – 19 (61%) 

Broadband ‘notspots’ – Unknown 

No. of mobile blackspots – unknown. 

 

T
u
d
a
le

n
 9

7
P

age 219



M
a
e
 tu

d
a
le

n
 h

w
n
 y

n
 fw

ria
d
o
l w

a
g

P
age 220



Clwydian Range and Dee Valley
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

Draft Management Plan 2014

SECTION THREE

Action Plan

T
u
d
a
le

n
 9

9
P

age 221



1

Landscape Quality and Character

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority
LQCO1 Ensure that the natural resources

and special qualities of the AONB

are recognised and valued

Support Cadwyn Clwyd Renewable Energy Pilot projects and other appropriate

community based projects which seek to mitigate the impact of climate change and

reduce the carbon footprint of the AONB without harming the special qualities and

features of the area or its character and appearance.

Cadwyn /

AONB

LQCO2 Ensure that the impacts of

environmental change on the

AONB are understood and a

strategic response is developed

and implemented

Engage with the National Grid’s Visual Impact Provision (VIP) programme to reduce

the impact of high voltage transmission in the AONB and it’s setting.
AONB

Promote mast sharing to reduce clutter and impact on the local landscape character

of the AONB.

Work with the industry to apply the seven ‘Holford Rules’ and develop guidance for

mitigation measures.

LQCO3 Minimise the cumulative impacts

of small scale change that may

erode the special character of the

AONB.

Prepare guidance on the introduction of renewable energy technologies into the

AONB and its setting, to reduce the impact on the local landscape character

Encourage and support energy conservation measures in order to help meet national

and regional targets for energy consumption.

LQCO4 Protect the tranquillity of the

AONB and take steps where

possible to reduce noise and light

pollution.

Identify those special qualities of the AONB that are sensitive to change and monitor

their state.

LQCO5 Where possible reduce visual

intrusion by screening or

removing eyesores.

Conduct fix point photography monitoring of key viewpoints across the AONB.

Establish a monitoring programme from key viewpoints across the AONB

LQCO6 To investigate and increase our

understanding of the cultural

diversity of communities within

the AONB.

Organise community reminiscence days to engage with communities and draw upon

their wealth of knowledge about the area. 1 per year

Support the research and recording of the area’s social history

LQCO7 Develop partnerships that will

help to stimulate awareness of

and interest in cultural diversity

within the AONB.

Hold an annual AONB Forum to stimulate discussion on the areas special qualities and

ensure community participation

Maintain an AONB Partnership as part of the governance structure for the AONB

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
0

P
age 222



2

HMRO1 To maintain or extend the

current extent of heather

moorland within the

AONB

Where possible, restore areas of former heathland particularly around

Coed Moel Famau, Coed Nercwys, Moel Findeg and Moel Famau.

HMRO2 To bring areas of heather

moorland into positive

productive management.

Continue to support the graziers on the Clwydian Range,Llantysilio

Mountain and North Berwyn in the management of heathland through

cutting and burning.

Continue to work with Coleg Cambria Llysfasi to provide training courses

in upland management as part of their National Diploma course – 2

events per year.

HMRO3 Continue to monitor black

grouse and other upland

bird species as an

indicator of habitat

condition

Monitor Black Grouse populations and other upland birds every year at

key lek sites across the AONB in order to inform and target specific

management.

RSPB AONB

NRW

HMRO4 Associate food production

with ecosystem

management.

Work with farmers and graziers to associate lamb from the upland areas

with quality landscapes.
AONB

Cadwyn

Cadwyn

Graziers

AONB

Food Trail

Engage producers and retailers with the Clwydian Range Food Trail

Project to promote local produce and give added value to produce

associated with positive conservation works.

HMRO5 Support and encourage

sustainable grouse

management where it has

positive environmental and

economic impacts

Support the North Wales Moors partnership on Y Berwyn RSPB NRW

AONB

HMRO6 Provide support to

farmers and landowners

in upland areas to bring

moorlands into

management schemes.

Attend graziers meeting where appropriate AONB

AONB
Provide practical support burning in upland areas wherever possible

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
1

P
age 223



3

Limstone Grasslands, cliffs and screes
Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

LGPO1 Maintain the current extent of

calcareous grassland and limestone

pavement and scree within the AONB.

Ensure that the conservation objectives of each site are understood

and incorporated into project plans.

Plot and record cave systems in the AONB and identify features at

risk.

Support and promote projects through the North Wales Bionet

Group

LGPO2 Bring all areas of public owned /

managed limestone grassland, cliffs and

screes into favourable management

schemes.

Carry out targeted scrub control to restore areas of former

calcareous grassland habitat at Prestatyn Hillside, the Alyn Valley

and Eglwyseg.

LGPO3 Provide opportunities for privately

owned areas of limestone grassland and

pavement to come into favourable

management schemes.

Develop a Landscape Partnership Scheme Project for HLF to address

issues of visitor impacts on areas of limestone grassland, cliffs and

screes particularly around Loggerheads, Eglwyseg and the

Panorama.

Ensure that land managers understand the importance of calcareous

habitats and their sensitivity to grazing levels and the enrichment of

soils from fertilisers, herbicide application, ploughing and re

seeding.

LGPO4 Ensure that recreational pressure is

minimised in sensitive areas

Reduce the impact of the Offa’s Dyke National Trail on the Eglwyseg

Screes through path repair and consolidation.
AONB NRW

Assess the floristic changes that recreational pressure associated

with soil compaction brings about.

Develop the Countryside Grant Scheme to include funding of all

special features of the AONB including limestone grassland

restoration projects.

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
2

P
age 224



4

Woodland and veteran Trees

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

WVTO1 To maintain the current extent of broadleaved

woodland and veteran trees within the AONB.
Support measures to reduce the impacts of pests and

diseases on the local landscape character (Phytopthora

Ramorum – Bilberry and Larch Ash dieback, and

Phytophthora Alni – Alder

Support appropriate planting programmes that strengthen

woodland resilience to environmental change.

WVTO2 Protect Veteran Trees within the landscape

across the AONB

Record the current extent and condition of veteran trees in

the AONB.

WVTO3 To maintain and restore broadleaved

woodland towards a favourable condition

through the implementation of the

Biodiversity Action Plans for Upland Mixed Ash

Woodlands, upland oak woodlands and wet

woodlands.

Bring all areas of public owned / managed broadleaved

woodland into favourable management schemes such as

Glastir or SSSI Section 15 Agreements by 2013.

Implement actions within existing section 15 management

agreements and Glastir schemes.

Develop the Countryside Grant Scheme to include funding

of all special features of the AONB including small

woodlands under 2 ha.

WVTO4 Develop publically owned woodlands as

models of best practice in broadleaf woodland

management.

Develop management programmes for all Local Authority

owned woodlands in particular Bishops Wood, Coed Alex,

Alyn Valley Woods, Riverside Woods Llangollen, Corwen

Cynwyd Railway line and Coed Pen y Pigyn and along the

Dee corridor at Ty Mawr including Jeffry’s Wood

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
3

P
age 225



5

River Valleys

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

RVO1 Continue to monitor the extent of key indicator

species such as otter and water vole in order to

gauge habitat condition.

Meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive

and Catchment Management Plans

NRW AONB/

RVO2 Continue to develop a partnership of key

agencies and bodies to ensure an integrated and

landscape approach to management.

Support the Alyn and Wheeler Living Landscapes Project

and its work on riparian connectivity and invasive species.

NWWT AONB –

NRW

NEWWildlife

Develop the Countryside Grant Scheme to include funding

of all special features of the AONB including water courses

AONB

RVO3 Support and develop a landscape scale approach

to a programme of invasive species control

particularly in relation to Himalayan balsam.

Continue to work in partnership with others to control

invasive species within the Alyn and Wheeler Living

Landscapes Project.

Support the DINNS Partnership in addressing invasive

species throughout the Dee catchment.

Support Big Dee Day to tackle invasive non native plants

and animals, such as Japanese knotweed, Himalayan

balsam.

RVO4 Raise awareness amongst the general public and

landowners/managers of the importance of the

river valleys for biodiversity.

Devise and run an exemplar demonstration project on good

catchment management

Hold an annual workshop on pollution control and good

management for landowners, local councillors and

professionals.

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
4

P
age 226



6

Historic Settlement and Archaeology

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

HSAO1 Work towards a position where

the condition/state of all

archaeological sites within the

AONB is known and appropriate

management work is carried out.

Utilise HER information, Pan

Wales projects, Glastir agri

environment schemes and the

planning process to facilitate this.

Produce a schedule of historic site enhancements to prioritise works

and promote good practice across all types and ages of assets. Target

Project Action by the use of an ‘At risk’ register.

Conduct CPD sessions with planners and Highway officers to explain

Archaeology and the Planning system and the importance of these

small features in maintaining the character of settlements

Work with Denbighshire Agricultural Estate at Caer Drewyn to

establish an appropriate stocking rate and continue to control scrub

around the hillfort.

HSAO2 Encourage owners of Historic

parks and Gardens within the

AONB to maintain and restore

existing parkland features as

noted in the Register.

Work with registered Historic parks and gardens landowners and

other relevant agencies to undertake appraisals and to prepare and

implement management plans to conserve and enhance the sites.

HSAO3 Increase the profile of the Historic

Environment through effective

and consistent interpretation and

information.

Raise awareness of the importance of industrial sites and features

within the planning and AONB.

Through the Our Picturesque Landscape Project devise and run an

engagement programme for both residents (including schools, Town

and Community Councils and Community Groups) and visitors,

promoting awareness and understanding of the Historic Environment

of the AONB and the historical links between sites.

HSAO4 Incorporate information gathered

as part of the Historic

Environment Record into the

continuous management process

within the AONB.

Ensure all decisions regarding the Historic Environment are evidence

based.

Ensure LANDMAP data and the Historic Environment Record are

utilised to guide the determination of planning applications and

inform agri environment schemes.

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
5

P
age 227



7

Industrial Features and World Heritage Site.

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

WHSO1 To secure the integrity of the outstanding

universal values of the World Heritage

Site.

Work in partnership to achieve the aspirations of the World Heritage

Site Landscape Management Plan.

WHSO2 Maintenance of key views to and from the

WHS and the visual and cultural setting.

Establish an HLF project with Canal Rivers and Trust and Wrexham

County Borough Council to preserve the key views from and into the

WHS

WHSO3 Take steps to limit the impact visitor

pressures on the historic integrity and

setting of the World Heritage site

Work with Cadw and local landowners to formalise access to the

Horseshoe Falls from Llantysilio.

WHSO4 Ensure a consistent approach to

interpretation, signage and quality of the

experience across partnership authorities.

Work with the World Heritage Site partnership to develop an

Interpretation and strategy for the whole corridor.

WHSO5 Raise awareness of the importance of

industrial sites and features within the

planning and AONB.

Through the Our Picturesque Landscape Partnership project assess

and restore key features associated with lead mining limestone

quarrying particularly around Loggerheads, Minera and Eglwyseg.

Work towards the reconsolidation of industrial features on Prestatyn

Hillside.

Through the Our Picturesque Landscape Project provide high quality

interpretation for key industrial sites within the AONB – in particular

the Leete at Loggerheads, Devil’s gorge and Minera Lead mines.

WHSO6 Develop an “at risk “ register for key

industrial historic sites and work towards

programmes that will respond where

action is required.

Establish an HLF project to identify and respond to sites at risk. LAs

Cadw

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
6

P
age 228



8

Hillforts and Defensive Structures

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

DFSO1 Ensure continuation of the Heather and

Hillforts Project to maintain existing level

of work at the 4 hillforts of Penycloddiau,

Moel Arthur, Moel y Gaer Llanbedr and

Moel Fenlli and aim to continue

programme to include Moel y Gaer

Bodfari and Moel Hiraddug.

Monitor the impact of the Offa’s Dyke

National Trail on the Hillforts of the

Clwydian Range.

AONB NRW

DCC /FCC

Continue to support a partnership approach

to tackling off road vehicular trespass and its

impacts on the hillforts, particularly on

Llantysilio Mountain work with Police,

NRW and Local Authorities.

DCC RoW AONB

NWP

NRW

DFSO2 Ensure the structural integrity features

and ensure that impacts of visitor

pressure is minimised

Complete the reconsolidation of the

masonry at Castell Dinas Bran around the

gatehouse.

DCS AONB

Cadw

Through the Our Picturesque Landscape

project take steps to minimise erosion into

Castell Dinas Bran particularly from the

eastern access point.

AONB Cadw

DCS

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
7

P
age 229



9

Small Historic Features

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

SHFO1 Raise awareness of the importance

of small historic features within both

the planning and highways

environments by providing training

sessions to professionals.

Ensure LANDMAP data and the Historic

Environment Record are utilised to guide the

determination of planning applications and inform

agri environment schemes.

Conduct CPD sessions with planners and Highway

officers to explain Archaeology and the Planning

system and the importance of these small features

in maintaining the character of settlements

SHFO2 Encourage Communities to identify

and map features within their

communities on a standard database

which is compatible with the HER.

Encourage the use of the Civic Trust Wales historic

characterisation tool kit in the AONB’s

settlements.

Visit Local Communities to discuss recording of

features

SHFO3 Encourage Communities to adopt

these features and act as their

champions by raising awareness

within community councils and

youth groups.

In line with The Welsh Historic Environment: a

Celebration (2009) Establish an Historic

Environment Champion from within the AONB

Partnership.

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
8

P
age 230



10

Boundaries

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

BO1 Using SDF and other funds develop a

Countryside Grant schemes to

support projects which will maintain

and enhance the most important

boundaries in the AONB as well as

other Special Features

Continue to support through SDF a grant scheme

to facilitate boundary improvement.

AONB

BO2 In line with aspirations within The

Welsh Historic Environment Strategic

Statement (2009) raise the skills base

amongst the local workforce to

increase the number of people who

can carry out the necessary

conservation and repair work.

Continue to work with Llysfasi College students

and staff to provide training courses in

Countryside Skills

AONB

Continue to offer training days for Countryside

Volunteers in hedge laying and dry stonewall

construction.

AONB

BO3 Identify the most important

boundaries within the AONB within an

historic context.

Gather information on current condition of

boundaries within the AONB.

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

0
9

P
age 231



11

Iconic Visitor and Cultural Attractions.

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

IVCO1 To ensure that visitors and the tourism

industry understand the need for, and support

the conservation and enhancement of, the

special qualities of the AONB as key assets

upon which tourism is based.

Maintain Sustainable Tourism Charter

status for the AONB.

AONB Cadwyn

FCC / DCC

WCBC

Co ordinate the development and

implementation of Destination

Management Plans that affect the AONB.

DCC

FCC

WCBC

AONB

VW

Hold an Annual Tourism Forum

Work with Visit Wales and other Protected

Landscapes to promote sustainable

tourism in Wales

IVCO2 Promote and assist convenient and sustainable

access into the AONB and special places within

it.

Utilise countryside sites such as Ty Mawr

Country Park and Loggerheads to act as

gateways to the AONB through good

quality interpretation and information

provision.

AONB Cadwyn

CRT

WCBC

DCC

FCC

IVCO3 Continue to develop public transport links and

develop a strategy to reduce congestion

between honey pots and with other centres of

population.

Work with the public transport staff and

companies to co ordinate public transport

to and from AONB access hubs.

IVCO4 Investigate ways to reduce congestion around

key visitor areas.

Prepare a Visitor Management Plan for the

World Heritage Site and consider ways to

reduce congestion that will reduce the

impact on residents and improve the

visitor experience.

CRT AONB

WCBC

DCC

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

1
0

P
age 232



12

Implement the scheme for the

development of additional car parking at

Loggerheads and implement car park

improvements at Ty Mawr country Park

AONB Cadwyn

DCC

IVCO5 Target information relating to the Countryside

Code, behaviour and the impact of visitors on

conservation status of key sites.

Collect and disseminate data on actual and

potential users recreational needs and

aspirations.

AONB NRW

NFU

FUW

IVCO6 Assist tourism businesses to embrace the

opportunities and responsibilities of being in a

protected area

Develop an AONB Tourism Ambassador

scheme.

AONB DCC

FCC

WCBC

Provide support to business groups in the

Clwydian Range and Dee Valley and

continue to develop the Sustainable

Tourism Forum of businesses and officers.

AONB DCC

FCC

WCBCT
u
d
a
le

n
 1

1
1

P
age 233



13

The Offa’s Dyke Trail and Promoted Routes

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

ODPPRO1 Continue a programme of Rights of Way

improvment across the AONB through the use of

the Community miles Initiative and other arera

access improvement work focusing on increasing

opportunities to access the countryside.

Seek safe and convenient access for horses,

cyclists and walkers when creating new

routes in the AONB.

AONB DCC

RoW

ODPPRO2 Provide increased opportunities where appropriate

for walking, cycling and horse riding in the AONB

and promote these opportunities

Crete digital files of all promoted routes

within the AONB and make them accessible

on the web.

AONB DCC

FCC

WCBC

ODPPRO3 Work with the Local Access Forums to ensure an

effective partnership with access users and

landowners.

Provide support to farmers and landowners

in dealing with recreational pressure.

AONB FUW

NRW

NFU

ODPPRO4 Raise awareness of the acknowledged health and

well being benefits provided by the AONB and

develop initiatives promoting physical activity

particularly walking and cycling.

Continue to develop through partners

volunteer and events programme activities

that encourage the use of the countryside

Develop and promote Health Walks and

Green Gyms close to AONB settlements

AONB

ODPPRO5 Understand and work towards removing physical

and psychological barriers to access enabling all

sectors of society to participate in and benefit from

Ensure least restrictive access is applied on

all promoted trails in the AONB

AONB DCC

FCC

WCBC

NRW

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

1
2

P
age 234



14

outdoor access and recreational opportunities. Continue to provide opportunities for

underrepresented groups to experience the

special qualities of the AONB.

AONB NRW

ODPPRO6 Investigate ways to promote the trail with local

tourism businesses and to develop initiatives that

will strengthen business links.

Through the Walking with Offa project

provide support to tourism businesses in

order to ensure that they are able to

maximise the potential of the National Trail

to the economy of the area.

AONB Cadwyn

DCC

CRT

WCBC

ODPPRO7 Strengthen links between the Trail and nearby

settlements and places of interest utilising the wider

Rights of Way Network and Public Transport.

Through the Walking with Offa cross border

collaboration project with other Protected

Landscapes work with business groups to

increase awareness of the Offa’s Dyke Path

as a gateway to the AONB.

AONB Cadwyn

DCC

CRT

WCBC

ODPPRO8 Monitor erosion in key areas and develop a

programme of measures that will reduce the impact

of the trail on the landscape by limiting width or

depth of path as appropriate.

Carry out erosion control measures on the

Offa’s Dyke National Trail at Cyrn y Brain,

Egwyseg, Moel Famau and the hillforts of

the Clwydian Range in order to reduce the

impact of the trail on the landscape and

conservation features of the area.

AONB NRW

ODPPRO9 Identify key indicator sites to monitor visitor user

numbers within the AONB

Produce an annual monitoring report for key

sites such as Ty Mawr Country Park,

Loggerheads and People Counter data for

the trails in the AONB.

AONB DCC

NRW

DCC

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

1
3

P
age 235



15

THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

BEO1 Ensure new development in and around

the AONB is sympathetically located in

the landscape, and is well designed to

complement the character and

appearance of the area and its setting,

particularly in respect of visual impact,

scale, materials and landscaping.

Prepare guides for development at gateway

locations to complement the AONB and

strengthen local landscape character.

AONB

To work with the local planning authorities to

prepare and adopt formal Supplementary

Planning Guidance and design guides for

development in the AONB.

Facilitate an annual meeting with interested parties

on the built environment.

Undertake characterisations studies of all

settlements, initially focusing on the larger

settlements and pressure points, to identify

sensitivities and opportunities for change

Consider and comment on >100 planning

applications and other development

proposals in and around the AONB each year,

and to seek >85% adoption of the JC’s views.

Increase awareness and understanding of

development issues in the AONB by assisting

with planning committee member training

and development programmes and

continued professional development for

officers.

BEO2 Conserve and enhance the character and

local distinctiveness of historic villages,

buildings and gardens within the AONB.

Work with the local authorities to undertake

5 yearly reviews of the Buildings at Risk register

and condition surveys covering the AONB and take

action to rduce the number of buildings at risk

AONB

Carry out and/or updating Conservation Area

Appraisals and Management Plans for all

Conservation Areas within the AONB,

AONB

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

1
4

P
age 236



16

including boundary reviews and an

assessment of the overall condition of the

areas.

To promote the use of Article 4 Directions to

control permitted development in

Conservation Areas which is harmful to the

character and appearance of the area as

identified by Conservation Area Appraisals.

Ensure that Historic Parks and Gardens are

protected from inappropriate development

which would harm the character or

recognised special features of the registered

site

BEO3 Promote action to reduce the visual

impact of prominent existing

development in the AONB.

Develop guidance for the siting and design of

agricultural and forestry buildings in the

AONB to enhance local landscape character

Work with National Grid to reduce the impact of

pylons in the Molwynion Valley and Tremeirchion area

through their Visual Improvement Project

Work with Scottish Power to under ground overhead

lines where ever possible

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

1
5

P
age 237



17

Sustainable Communities

Objectives Actions Lead Partners Timescale Priority

SCO1 Help local communities to retain

and enhance access to essential

community services and

facilities.

Support and promote appropriate social /

community ownership and enterprise projects

and initiatives such as ‘The Pub’s the Hub’

which will maintain and improve access to

local facilities and services.

AONB

Resist development proposals that involve the

loss of community facilities such as local shops

and public houses.

Identify current broadband provision across

the AONB and work with communities and

other agencies to secure the best possible

coverage/speed of service, address broadband

‘not spots’, and to promote the WAG

Superfast Scheme

Promote a profitable, high quality local food

processing economy as a way of revitalising

rural incomes; and to raising awareness among

residents, businesses and visitors about the

benefits to the landscape, economy and social

fabric of purchasing locally sourced goods.

SCO2 Support the development of affordable

housing for local people in appropriate

locations, whilst maintaining the highest

standards of design and landscaping.

Support the local authorities in carrying out

housing needs and affordability surveys in

areas of high demand for affordable housing

indicated by LA/HA waiting lists.

AONB

Work with local planning and housing

authorities to promote affordable housing

schemes for local people, to secure affordable

units as part of any new market housing

development, and to encourage the provision

of affordable housing for local people through

AONB

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

1
6

P
age 238



18

conversions and the development of individual

new dwellings in villages and hamlets.

Promote opportunities to encourage local

businesses to become more environmentally

and economically sustainable, particularly in

ways that conserve the special qualities of the

AONB

SCO3 Foster a sense of place and local pride to

secure social well being.

Promote opportunities to encourage local

businesses to become more environmentally

and economically sustainable, particularly in

ways that conserve the special qualities of the

AONB

AONB

AONB

AONB

Support a Community Ambassador Scheme to

improve communication with communities

Liaise with community and Town Councils on an

annual basis

Hold an annual Forum

Produce an volunteer programme of events twice per

year

T
u
d
a
le

n
 1

1
7

P
age 239



M
a
e
 tu

d
a
le

n
 h

w
n
 y

n
 fw

ria
d
o
l w

a
g

P
age 240



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AONB Management Plan  

28/01/2015 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 119Page 241



 

<Title of the proposal being assessed> 
 

Contact: 
 

David Shiel, Clwydian Range and Dee Valley 
AONB - Environmental Services> 

Updated: 28/01/2015 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A strategic or service plan 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

The adoption of the Management Plan for the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley 
AONB.  This is a statutory Plan which sets out an agenda for the management of 
the Special Qualities and Features of the AONB for the period 2014 - 2015.  The 
Plan has been prepared following consultation with key stakeholders on behalf of 
a partnership of the 3 local authorities of Denbighshire Flintshire and Wrexham. 
 
The Proposal is to take the draft plan to public consultaion.  
  

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

No The proposal relates soley to the administrative process of 
moving the plan to public consultation stage.  

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

N/A 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 

Tudalen 120Page 242



 

(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

N/A 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

N/A 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

<Please Select> N/A 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
<Please Select> N/A 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: following 
Public 
consultation 

 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

David Shiel  28/01/2015 
 

 

Tudalen 121Page 243



 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 122Page 244



Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol Chwefror 2015 
Prosiect Manylion/ 

Gweithredu  
Cyfeirnod Cynllun 
Rheoli  

Amserlen  Cost negyddol 
neu bositif neu 
niwtral (Trwy 
gyllidebau 
presennol ac 
allanol) 

Cyllid 

Cyllid ac Ariannu Bod yn eitem sefydlog ar 
y ‘Rhaglen Gwaith i'r 
Dyfodol’ 

Adrodd i bob 
Cydbwyllgor 

Niwtral 

Cynlluniau Strategol 2014-16 

Strategaeth 
Gyfathrebu 

Asesu monitro ac 
effeithiolrwydd  
Cyfathrebu AHNE   

Gwanwyn 2015 Niwtral 

Cyfeillion Bryniau 
Clwyd a Dyffryn 
Dyfrdwy 

Lansio ‘Grŵp Cyfeillion' 
annibynnol 

Haf 2015 Niwtral 

Cynllun Rheoli 
AHNE 

Cefnogi Polisïau’r AHNE 
trwy gyfraniad i 
ymgynghoriadau. 
Gweithredu Cynllun 
Gweithredu AHNE 

Haf 2015 Niwtral 

Strategaeth 
Allgymorth a 
Gwirfoddolwyr 

Darparu datganiad polisi, 
cynllun ymgysylltu a 
chynllun gweithredu 

Haf 2015 Niwtral 

Cynllun busnes Ysgrifennu cynllun 
busnes pum mlynedd  

Hydref 2015 Niwtral 

Prosiectau 2015-16 

Pen-blwydd Bryniau 
Clwyd yn 30 oed 

Dathlu’r Pen-blwydd  Niwtral 

Strategaeth 
Twristiaeth AHNE 

Gweithredu’r Cynllun 
Gweithredu  

Hydref 2015 Niwtral 

Rhaglen Newid yn yr 
Hinsawdd 

Gweithredu a hyrwyddo'r 
llenyddiaeth newydd 

Haf 2015 Niwtral 

    

Strategaeth 
Twristiaeth Edeirnion 

Gweithredu’r Cynllun 
Gweithredu  

Hydref 2015 Niwtral 

 Eiconau AHNE 

Safle Treftadaeth y 
Byd 

Cydweithio rhwng y ddau 
ddynodiad 

Hydref 2014 Niwtral 

 Sefydliadau Adran 85 

Cynllunio Llunio SPG ar gyfer yr 
AHNE 

Gwanwyn 2016 -Negyddol 

Llonyddwch Ymchwilio i welliannau i 
awyr dywyll 

Gwanwyn 2016 -Negyddol 

Trefoli  Ymrwymo i gytundeb 
gyda NEWTRA a 
Phriffyrdd ALl i barchu 
natur wledig yr AHNE 

Gwanwyn 2016 -Negyddol 

Twristiaeth Ymchwilio sut orau i 
integreiddio Brandiau 
Gogledd Ddwyrain Cymru 

Gwanwyn 2016 Croeso Cymru E4G 
Niwtral 

Tudalen 123

Eitem Agenda 8

Page 245



 
a'r AHNE  

Tudalen 124Page 246


	Agenda
	1 AGENDA
	Clwydian Range AONB 13.02.15 (Welsh)


